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Shadad
pur, Kakka

r. 
I 

1
7
8
 

Shahda
dpur, 

I 
1
7
9
 

Kakka
r. 

Tando
 Bago . 

I 
18

1
 

Badin.
 

Tando
 Alahy

ar, I 
18

3
 

a,
 



THE N
IZAM

ANI T
RIBE.

 
15. A

llahdad
 wd. O

hulam 
Hu ssen

 Ismail
i 

16. T
alah K

han M
uba.rik

ani (d
eceased

) sue-, 
ceeded

 by Oo
whar K

han. 
17. La

l Khan
 Phatu

ani (de
ceased)

 succe
eded. 

by his 
son Sh

ah Muh
ammad

. 
18. S

hah Al
i Phat

uani (
 decease

d) suc
ceeded

 
by She

r Muh
ammad

. 

Hydra
bad. j 

GunL 
Hydra

bad. I
 Badin

, Ouni.
 

1
8
5
 

1
9
0
 

1
9
1 

Hydra
bad. j

 Hydra
bad, 

D e r  o
l 192

 
Mohba

t. 
Karach

i. 
Hydrab

ad. Tatta, 
Hala, 

Shah-I
 193 

dadpur
. 

19. G
hulam

 Ali Ph
atuani 

(deceas
ed) su

cceed- l1 
Ohulam

 Shah 
wd. Ab

dul-/ H
ydraba

d. I B
adin, G

uni. 
ed by 

his gra
ndson 

Ghulam
 Ullah

. 
lab • 

19
4

 

.20, A
hmad K

han Al
udani 

...... ...
.........

.. .... ! M
ir Mu

hamma
d Kh

an 
wd. Ah

mad_ K
han. 

21. A
hmad K

han Las
hkaria

ni ....
.........

.... . 
.U. W

ali Mu
hamma

d wd. 
Ali Ba

khsh 
Kar­

mani. 
23. A

li Bakh
sh Bha

lelani 
.........

.........
...... [ (L

apsed.)
 

2 4', A
hmad K

han Bh
alelani

 ..... .
........

..... .. 

Karach
i. 

Hydra
bad. 

Hydra
bad. 

Hydra
bad. Kar,.ch

i. 
Hydro.

bad. 

Ghorab
a.ri. 

Shahdad
pur. 

Badin,
 Badin,
 Ouni, 

Moro. 
19 6 197 198 199 

Jati. 
I 199

 
Hydra.b

ad, D
 e r o 

Mohba
t. 

co
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THE L
AGHA

RI SI
RDIRS

. 
25. N

awab A
hmad K

han w
d. Wa

li Muh
am- 1 N

awab W
ali Mu

hamma
d! Hy

dra.bad
. I Sak

rand. 
m ad B

ozdar. 
Khan w

d. Naw
ab Ahm

ad 
Khan. 

201 20
6 

26. N
awab 

Muham
mail K

han w
d. Na

wab 
W a.Ii M

uhamm
ad Kh

a.n Boz
dar. 

Hydrab
a<l. 

Shikar
pur. 

,-7. A
llahdad

 Khan
 Bozcla

r .......
.........

........ 
Gul l

luham
mad 

Khan! 
Shikar

pur. 
grands

on of N
o. 27. 

28. G
hulam 

Haidar
 Bozda

r .......
.........

........
 (Lapse

d.) 
29. H

aidar A
li Kha

n .. ...
. .. . . . . .

. .. ... . . .
 .. . .. .. . 

Ali B
akhsh 

wd. F
ate bl 

Shikar
pur. 

Khan. 
:.lO. G

hulam 
Shah B

ozdar 
........

.........
....... I 

Khuda.
 Bakh

sh wd
 Ali1 

Hydra
 bad. 

Akbar
 (grand

son of 
No 

30.) 
31

. 
Khan 

Muham
mad B

ozJa.r 
and h

is
 son j Gbulam

 Murt
aza K

han! Sh
ikarpu

r. 
Ghnla.m

 Masta
fa.. 

wd. K
han M

uhamm
ad 

Khan. 
32. G

hulam
 Muham

mad B
ozdar ..

........
........ l

 Ali M
uhamm

ad wd.
 Ghu-

Hydra.
bad. 

lam Mu
hamma

d. 
33. .B

ud ho Ai
iani. ...

....... .•
• .. .. .. .

... .. ... 
.. . .. .. 

Sahib 
Khan w

d. Bud
 ho. H

ydra ba
d. 

34. H
ussen K

han Br
a.bman

i ......
........

. � .... 
Ali Mu

hamma
d Khan

 wd. H
ydraba

d. 
Fa.teh 

Khan. 
\ 

Guni. Larkha
na.. 

Ra.to D
ero, K

akka.r. 
}

21
1 212 

Labdar
ya., M.e

har. 
I 213

 
Badin.

 
I 

2a 
Labdar

ya. 
I 

215 
Hydra.b

ad, Ha.
la. I

 
216 

Dero M
ohbat, 

Tando
l 218

 
Be.go. Ouni. 

I 
219 

,_.. 0
 



15.
 36. ,1
. 

18
.  39. 40
. 

41
. 

4 2.
 

4,3
. .,. 

lkhtiar
 Khan 

lsani, gra
ndson 

of lsan
 ::::-. .  ( 

Ghulam
 Shah 

wd. Y
akh- 1 Hydra

bad. l
 Hala.. 

I 
tiar (o

r l khti
ar) Kh

an. 
Shikar

pur. 
Mebar.

 
Kakka

r. 
Gui M

uhamm
ad Kac

ha.i ( d e
ceased

)  sue -I 
I Shik

arpur. 
I Kakk

.ar. 
I 

ceeded
 by S ha

hd a.d (a
lias Pa

.rial Kh
an.)  

THE M
ARRI 

TRIBE
. 

I 
Muhba.

t Kha
n Haj

iza.i {d
eceased

) 1mc -
Hydra.

bad . 
Naushah

ro Fero
z o. I 

c eeded
 by W

 a.dero 
Mir  M

uhamm
ad 

K
han

. 

Ali Kh
an Haj

iza i ··
······"

· ······
·······

······ l(LapBed.
) 

Dau K
han H

ajizai ..
.........

. ........
... ......

. 
R!lshid

 Khan
 Haj iza

i .....
...... ...

. ... .... .
. Gahw

ar Khan
 wd. Ra

shidj 
Khan. 

Ahmad
 Khan

 Haji.zai.
 . .....

... ......
........

. (Laps
ed b efo

re 186
1.) 

I 

Nindo 
Khan M

ani. an
d his 

two so
ns Ali

 (La pse
d.) 

I 
Bakhsh

 and N
 abi Bak

hs b.  

H ydra.
bad. 

Tando
Bago. 

Hala, T
and o 

Karach
i. I Alahy

ar
. 

Manjban
d. 

I I 

Ghulam
 Haidar

 ... . .. . .
.. .... •.

 .... ... ..
 .. .. .. . . 

Din M
uhamm

ad wd.
 Mu- I 

H ydra.ba
d. I M

irpu r K
baa.  

hamma
d Hass

an (gra
nd-

aon of 
No. 43

.) 
Ghulam

 Murtaza
 Hajiza

i .......
........

...... I M
isri Kh

an wd
. Ghul

a.ml K
arachi;

 I D a.d
u.  

M urtaz
a Khan

. 

I I I I I I I 22
0 

22
1 

2
2
2
 

226
 

2
2
7
 

2 2
8 

.... 
2
2
9
 

2
8
0
 

2
8
1
 

2
8
3
 

2
3
j
 



T
A

B
L

E
 
O

F
 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S-
co

nt
in

ue
d

. 

Name 
of Gran

tee, &c
. 

Presen
t Repr

esentat
ive. 

Distric
t. 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
�-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

11-
-

-
-

-
1 

THE ,
JAMA

LIS. 
45. B

akhsho
 Khan 

Murida
ni .....

.........
....... I 

Hayat 
Khan w

d. Bakh
sho 

Kban. 
416. D

ato Kh
an Jal b

ani ..
.........

.........
....... / 

Jiando
 Khan 

grands
on oi 

Dato K
han. 

417. S
aindad

 Bakhs
ha.ni .

.........
.........

........
 Rusta

m Kh
an wd

. Jan 
Muham

mad. 
48. O

hulam 
Ali Su

khwan
i .......

........
.........

 Ghula
m M

uha m
m n d 

Khan w
d. Ghu

lam Al
i. 

T
H

E
 

BHUR
GRI B

ALUC
HIS. 

49, A
hmad K

han Bh
urgri .

.........
.........

..... (L
apsed.)

 

Kara.ch
i. 

Hydra b
ad. 

Karach
i, 

Karach
i. 

Hydra.
bad. 

50. O
hulam 

Muham
mad B

hurgri 
. . .. . . ..

 .. . .. .. 
Ali Ba

khsh w
d. Dils

 had H
ydra.ba

d. 
grands

on of N
o. 50. 

51, F
atch K

han Bh
urgri..

.........
 .... .. ...

 .. .. . .. 
Fazul 

Muham
mad 

wd . H
ydra ba

d. 
Fateh 

Khan. 
52. J

affar K
han Bh

urgri ..
.. . .. . ..

 ... ... . ..
 . .. . .. ..

 Muha
mmad 

Hassan
 wd. 

Hydra.
bad. 

Jaffar 
Khan. 

53, M
ehrab 

Khan 
Bhurgr

i (dec
eased) 

sue-K
huda B

akhsh w
d. Sird

ar Sh
ikarpu

r. 
ce

ed
ed

 by Sir
darkha

n. 
Khan. 

T
H

E
 BAOR

A.NIS.
 

I 
I 

54, A
li Mura

d Bagr
ani ..

.........
. , .. .. .. .

 .. • .. .. 
Hamzo

 Khan
 wd. 

Ali H
ydra ba

d. 
Murad.

 

Taluka
. 

Jobi. 
Page. 235 239 

Hydra
bad, T

an d o
l } 

Ba.go, G
uni. 

240 
Jati. Dadu. Hala. Ilydrab

ad, Sh
ahdad­

pur. Hydra
bad, Sh

ahdad-
pur. Hydra.

bad. Mehar.
 

Kakka
r, 

Hala, S
hahdad

pur . 

2
4
1
 242 H

5 

2
4
5
 

2
4
5
 

}
24

7 250 252 



55. 56
. 

57
. 

58
. 59. 60
, 

61
. 

62
. 

THE R
INDS .

 
Bahaw

al Kha
n Rind

 ........
.... ....

.........
.. 

Gul Mu
hamma

d Rind
 ... ...

.. .... ..
.........

. 
THE C

HA�G
S. 

Murad
 Ali Ch

ang (d
eceased

) succe
eded b

y Mur
ad A

li wd.
 Peiro

z 
Pairoz

 Shah.
 

Shah. 
Allah B

akhsh 
Chang

 .........
.. .... . . .

.........
 

Sainda
d Chan

g ( dece
ased) b

y Ghazi
 Khan.

 
THE N

UNDA
NIS. 

Karach
i. S

ehwan
. 

D
o.

 
D

o.
 

Hydra
bad. 

Guni. 
Hydra

bad. 
Guni. 

Karach
i. G

horaba
ri. 

Bahaw
al Kha

n Nun
dani (

decease
d) sue

- Shah
 Muh

ammad
 wd./ Hydrab

ad. I S
hadadp

ur, 
ceeded

 by Mu
hammad

 Khan.
 

Bilawal
 Khan.

 
THE 

KHOS
AS. 

Alam 
Khan 

Khoso 
(deceas

ed) su
cceede

d Alam
 Khan

 w<l. 
Rajah 

Shikar
pur. 

Rato<le
ro . 

by Raj
ah, 

Khoso.
 

Jam C
hatta a

nd Roh
il Kho

sas (de
ceased)

 Imam
 Bakhs

h wd R
ohal! 

Shikar
pur. I 

Ratode
ro. 

succee<
lc<l by 

Dilawn
r. 

Khan, 

I 
25

3 

}
25

4, 

2
5
5
 

}
25

6 

2
5
7
 

I 
250 I 2
6
0
 

I 
2
6
2
 

I 
2
6
3
 



TA
B

L
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OF
 CONT

ENTS-
continu

ed. 
Name 

of Gra
ntee, &

c. 
Presen

t Repr
esentat

ive. 
THE 

MUGS
IS. 

63. G
ui Muh

ammad
 Mugsi

 ........
........

........
 !(Lapse

d.) 
THE 

KHOK
ARS; 

64'. G
hulam 

Haidar
 Rhok

ar (de
ceased

) suc-!
(Lapse

d.) 
ceetled

 by .Bir
a Khan

. 

Distric
t. 

65
. 

R1111tam
 Khan

 Khoka
r (dece

ased) s
ucceed

-Fate
h Khan

 wd. R
ustam 

Hydra.
bad. 

ed by 
Mubar

ik Kba
n. 

Khan. 
Sbikar

pur. 

Ta.Iuka
. 

Gnni , Lab<lar
ya.. 

66. K
hair M

uhamm
ad Kho

kar (de
ceased)

 sue- , K
han M

uhamm
ad wd

.l Hyd
rabad. 

I Tando
 Allahy

ar. 
ceecletl

 by Ra
tta. 

Ratti K
han. 

THE 
ABRA

S. 
67. A

li Mar<
lan Kh

an Abr
o .......

........
........

. ! Ali H
a idar w

<l . .Ali G
oha rl 

Shikar
pur. I 

Naush
ahro A

bro. 
Khan. 

-THE 
KHAT

IANS.
 

Page. 264' 264 265 2G 7 } 2G8 269 270 271 272 
'68. G

hulam 
Muham

mad ..
........

.........
........

 ! Jan M
uhamm

ad wcl. 
Ghu- 1 

Hydra
bad. I

 Hydra
bad, B

ad i n,
I 273 

lam H
aitlar 

(grand
son 

Hula. 
of �o.

 68) . 

.... Ii?--



69. M
'Clba.mm

a.u Hassa.
u Khat

ian ..
.........

. ... I Ha
mzo K

han w
d. }Ju

.I Hyd
rabR.d. 

I Hala.
 

hamma
d Has

san. 
70. N

azar .Ali
 Khati

an ...
.........

.........
.... .. 

M
IS

CE
LL

A
N

E
O

U
S 

SI
R

D
A

R
S.

 

H ydra.
bad. I 

Hala. 
2
74,

 

2
74,

 

2
i
5
 

71. S
ayad K

aim Sh
ah Hus

seni (d
eceased

) sue-I 
I 

Karach
i. S

eh wan.
 

I 
2 77 

ceeded
 by Say

ad Ghu,
lam Ras

ul. 
72. P

ir Niza
muddi

n Sirh
indi (d

eceased
) suc- 1 Pir Sp

amsucl
din wd

. Pir 
SLikar

pur. 
ceeded

 by Pir
 Imam

udin. 
Imamu

d<lin. 
73. P

ir Fida.
 Muhiy

uddin 
Sirhind

i (dece
ased) 

Pir G
hulam 

Naksh
baud 

Sbik arp
ur. Sukku

r, Nau
shahro

' 1 
A bro. 

�279 
Sukku

r, Nau
shabr)

j 
succeed

ed by P
ir Muh

ammad
 Ashra

f. 
w d. 

Pir M
uhamm

ad 
Ashraf

. 
Abro. 

I 

74. A
bdullah

 Khan 
Pa.than

 ......
........

....... 
Ataull

a.h Kh
an wd

. Ab-\ 
Shikar

pur. I 
Naush

ahro A
bro. 

dullah
 Khan

 and A
bdul 

Rahim
 Khan

, and 
Mu -

hamma
d Usm

an Kh
an 

Barakz
ai. 

C
HA

P
T

E
R

 
IV

 

F
IR

ST
 C

L
A

SS
 K

B
A

IR
A

TD
A

R
S.

 

1.
 

M.akhd
um Ab

dul K
halik 

(deceas
ed) su

e-Mak
hdum 

Abdul 
Khalik

\ Shik
arp

ur. I N
aushab

ro Abr
o. 

ceeded
 by Ma

khdum
 Muha

mmad 
Akil. 

and M
uhamm

ad Raza
 

and 
and 

.Muham
mad Rafi

k and M
uhamm

ad Abi
d. Sh

ah Mu
hamma

d. 
2. Say

ad Oh
nlam 

Shah 
Sirda.r 

(deceas
ed) Sa

yad G
hiJ!am 

Hussen
j Shik

arpur. 
I Gbotk

i. 
succeed

ed by S
yad M

ia Nur
 Husse

n. 
wd. Ka

landar
 Bakhs

h. 

282 2
8
6
 

2
8
6
 

2
8
6
 289 

...., C-1'
 



T
A

B
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T
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N
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ue
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Name 
of Gran

tee, &c
. 

Presen
t Repr

esentat
ive. I 

Distric
t. I 

Taluka
. 

I Page.
 

CHAP
TER I

V-con
tvn:ued

. 
3
. 

Ohulam
 Busse

n Shah
 Sayad

 ........
....... ..

. Chut
a.I Sha

h gran
dson o

 Shik
arpur. 

[ Ohotk
i. 

I 29
3
 

No. 3. 
t, 

Sayad 
Ohulam

 Ali Sh
ah ....

...... ..
.........

 Dital 
Shah 

wd. Gh
ulam 

Shikar
pur. I 

Robri.
 

I 
2
!)
4,
 

Nur H
ussen S

hah an
d Sadi

k Ali S
hah ....

.. Ali Sh
ah, and

 others
. 

5,
 

Ghulam
 Husse

n Shah
 and 

Sbikar
pur. I 

Rohri.
 

I 
2
9
5
 

Yakub
 Ali Sh

ah. 
6.

 
Sadik 

Ali Sh
ah ....

.. .......
. ....... .

....... ..
. . 1 Yak

ub Ali 
Shah w

d. Sa-
Shikar

pur. I 
Rohri. 

I 2
9
7
 

..... 
dik Al

i Shah
. 

Ghotki
. 

C)
 

7. 
Muham

mad R
aza, A

mir A
li Sha

h and
 Hima

t Ali 
Shah 

w
d.

 
Shikar

pur. 
Rohri, 

2
9
9
 

Allah W
are.yo. 

Khan M
uhamm

ad Sha
h. 

8
, 

Shah M
arda.n, 

and Al
i Aska

r (dece
ased) ..

. Shah
 Mard

a n and
 M u-I 

Shikar
pur. I 

Rohri.
 

hamma
d Mak

ki Sh
ah 

I 
8
0
1 

wd. Al
i Aska

r. 
9
. 

Sayad 
Sadik 

Ali Sh
ah, Sa

yad Im
am Al

i Y aku
b Ali S

hah. 
I Shik

arpur. 
I Rohri

. 
I 

302 
Shah, 

and S
ayad 

Wahid
 Bak

hsh N
 a<lir A

li Sl.nh
. 

(deceas
ed) su

cceede
d by 

Sayad 
Assan 

and 
Ali Sh

ah. 
W a.hid

 Ba.khs
h. 

10. S
ay ad I

da! Sh
ah son

 of Fat
eh Ali 

Shah ..
 � 

I Shikar
pur. I 

Rohri. 
I 

303 
11. T

he Mu
zawars

 of t
he To

mb o
f Ya 

Karach
i. I D

adu. 
I 

30
3 

Muha.m
mad K

alhora.
 



12
. 

13
. 

H
. 

15
. 

16
. 

17
. 

18
. 

19
. 

20
. 21. 22 . 

Pin iat 
Mu zaw

a.r of t
he Shri

ne of 
Khwaj

ak t.a ps
ed). 

I 
K hizr. 

I 
Kam ba

r Ali S
hah . . .

. . . .. . . .
 ..... ...

. .. ... . ..
 .. Bac h

 al  Sha
h wd. 

Fazul 
Hydrab

a.d . 
Ali Sh

ah· . 
Sher M

u hamm
ad Sha

h .... ...
.. ......

........
. Saya

d Mah
di Sha

h wd.  
Sher M

uham m
ad S ha

h. Hydra
 bad. 

Imam 
Bakhsh

 and B
acha.I S

hah (de
ceased)

 Sayad
 M alu

k Sha
h wd. 

Hyd ra.
bad. 

s uc ceed
ed  by 

Fateh 
Muham

mad S
hah, 

Fateh 
Muha

mma
d 

Custod
ian of t

he Tall
i a of H

aji Sha
h. 

Shah. 
Laldas

 F akir
 U dasi

 ......
.........

...... ...
... Ha.s

om a! L
aldas. 

I Hydra
bad. 

Hydra.
bad I 

I 

I Naush
ahro F

ero zo . 
I 

I Nau sh
ah ro F

erozo. 
I 

I Nau sh
ahro F

erozo. 
I 

Nausb
ahro F

erozo. 
N au sh

ahro F
ero zo. 

Darves
h an N

aniksh
ahi o f

 Halan
i, Kan

- 1 
diaro . 

Shikar
pur . I 

Rohr i.
 

I 
Sayad 

Wa.ray
o Shah

 .......
........

. .......
.... 1 Sa

yad  O
h aus 

Ali S
hah 

wd.  S
her M

uhamm
ad 

Sh ah 
( nephe

w of 
No. 

18
.)  

Kazi M
uhamm

ad Shar
if ....

........
.. . .....

. : Azizu
llah w

d. Kaz
i Mu-

bamma
d Shar

if. 
Shikar

pur. I  
LarkaH

. 
I 

Kaim  
Kalhor

o  (Jec
eased) 

succee
ded b

y l 
Shik ar

pur . 
Labdar

ya. 
Da ud. Ahmad

 Muga.w
ar (dec

eased) 
succeed

ed byj 
Khud a

 Bak hs
h wd. J

umo. 
Shikar

pur. 
Shikar

pur. 
J uma 

his son
. 

Mirza A
ta Muh

ammad
 .......

.........
...... ..

 , Mirza 
Muham

mad H
as- Sh

ik
ar

pu
r. 

I Shika
rpur. 

I I 
san w,l

. Mirza
 Ata M

u-
ha

m
m

ad
, 

30
t 

30
5 

30
6 

30
7 

30
7 

30
8 

,-a
 

30
9 

...;r
 

310 }a
u 312 



T
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B
L
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O
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C
O

X
T

E
X

T
S-

co
nt

in
ue

d.
 

_
 

Nam
e 0£ G

,antc
c, &c.

 
I Pre

sent 
Repm

catat
i,e. 

Dist6
ct. 

:'.:.ka. 
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TALUKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES. 
JA PI. 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS, 

No. 1.  Malik Sobdar Khan wd. Malik Sirdar Khan .. . 9. Malik Ghulam Hassen wd. Malik Jahan Khan 
TALPtiR JA GIRDARS, 

Page. 5 88 
10. Mir Ali Murad wd. Mir Ahmad Shahwani 104 
26. Mir Wali Muhammad wd. Mir Ghulam Muhammad Bagani 131  27. Mir Gulam Hussen wd. Mir Ali Muhammad Bagani 133 

SIRDAR J A.G IRDARS. 
24. Ahmad Khan Bhalelani 47. Rustam Khan wd. Jan Muhammad Jamali 

GHORAB.ARl. 

FmsT CLASS JAGIRDAlts. 

] .  Malik Sobdar Khan wd. Malik Sirdar Khan 4. Jam Murad Ali Khan wd. Jam Mihr Ali Khan 
TALPUR J AGIRDA.RS. 18. Mir Jan Muhammnd wd. Mir Ghulam Hai.Jar 

20. Mir Ahmad Ali wd. Ali Murad Khanani 

1 99 240 

5 
2
5 

1 13  1 18 



2 

TAL UK.AW AR LIST OF .ALIBNEES-continued. 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS. 20. Mir Muhammad Khan wd. Ahmad Khan N izamani 59. Ghazi Khan wd. Sainclad Chang 

S UJA. WA.L. FIRST CLASS J AGIRDARS. 9. Malik Ohulam Hussen wd. Malik Jehan Khan Jat ... 
TA.LPUR JA.GIRDARS. 9. Mir Budho Khan Shahwani 

SA.KRO. FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS, 5. Malik Murid Khan wd. Haji Khan and Khuda Bakhsh, Ali Bakhsh and Ali Muhammad sons of Malik Ibrahim Khan 

196 

2o7 

38 

103 

Karmat's 34' 

6. Khairo wd. Mazar Khan and Ohulam Shah wd. Daulat Kh1J.n Karma ti 3t· 7. Rahimdad Karmati 34' 
8. Alahbindo wd. Jamal Khan Karmati 34' 



a 
TALUKAWAR LIST OF ALIENEES-contiuued. 

T.J.TTA. 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS. 1. Malik Sob<lar Khan wd. Malik Sirdar Khan 5 2. Malik Doda. Khan wd. Salar Khan nephew of Malik Jiand Khan Numria 18 41'. Jam Murad Ali Khan wd. Jam Mihr Ali Khan Jokhia 25 
TALPUR JAGIRDARS, 8. Mir Alah B1�khsh wd. Mir Ali Bak.heh Shahwani 9. Mir Budho Khan Sbahwani 
SIRDAR J AGJRDAB.S. 

H; Sher Muhammad wd. Shah Ali Nizamani 

KOTRI. 

FIB.ST CLASS JAGIRDARS. 

100 

103 

198' 

1. Malik Sobdar Khan wd. Malik Sirdar Khan 5 2. Malik Doda Khan wd. Salar Khan and nephew or Malik Jiand Khan Numria 18 
TALPUR J AGIRDARS. S, 3 and t. Mir Jan Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Huhammad 40 



4 

TALUKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

J).AIJ U. 

FIRST CLASS J AGIRDARS. 
11. Wadero Karimdad Khan w<l. Fazal Khan Marri and Sabzal Khan wd. Imam Bakhsh Marri 50 

TA.LPUR JAGIRDA.RS. 
2, 3 and 4,. Mir Jan Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Muhammad 

BIRDAR J A.GIRDA.RS. 
!. Ahmad Khan Baharani 
8. Jaffar Khan wd. Darya Khan Jiandani 

ff. Misri Khan wd. Ghulam Murtaza Khan Marri 
ff. Ohulam Muhammad Khan wd. Ghulam Ali Jamali 

FIRST CLASS KHAIRA.LDA.RS. 
11. Muzawars of the tomb of Yar Muhammad Kalhora . . . 

SEHWAN. 

FIRST CLASS J A.GIRD.A.RS. 
15. Seth Aluma! wd. Seth Tikamdas 

TALPUR J.A.GIRDARS. 
2, 3 and 4. Mir Jan Muhammad wd. Ali Muhammad 10. Mir Ali Murad wd, Mir Ahmad Khan Talpur Shahwani 

94 

169 

177 23� 241 
. . .  303 

58 

9i 
104 



5 

TALUKAWAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

SIRDAR J AGIRDARS. -'l5. Babawal Khan Rind M,. Oul Muhammad wd. Fat&h Khan Rind 71. Sayad Ohulam Rasul Shah wd. Kaim Shah 
JORI. TALPUR JAGIRDARS. 2!J. Mir Ghula.m Ali wd. Mir Khan Muhammad Manika.ni SIRDAR JAG IRDARS. 8. Jafar Khan wd. Darya Khan, Talpur Jiandani 4."i. Hayat Khan wd. Bakhsho Khan, Jama.Ii 

M..4.NJ..4.HAND. SIRDAR J AGIRDARS. 40. Gahwar Khan wd. Rashid Khan Marri 
HYDRA. BAD. FIRST CLASS J AGIRDARS. 21 .  Jam Murad Ali Khan wd. Jam Mihr Ali Khan Jokhia TALPUR JAGIRDARS. 1 .  Mir Bijar wd. Mir Ghulam Hussen 2, 3 and 4. Mir Jan Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Muhamma<l 9. Mir Budbo Khan Shabwani 

254 

254 2� ... ' . 

123 

1_,.. 
j ' 

239 

229 

83 

103 
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TA.LUKAWAR LIST OF ALIEXEES-continu�d. 
10. Mir Ali Murad wd. Mir Ahmad Shahwani l(l4, 12. Mir Jam Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan Khanani 108 1 3. Mir Allahdad wd. Mir Ahmad Khan Khanani 109 

SJRDAR JAGIRDARS, 5. Ghulam Ali wd. Bagh Ali Hallelani . . .  173 17. Shah �fohammad wd. Lal Khan Pliatuani 192 

24., Ahmad Khan Nizamani Bhalel:rni 199 

32. Ali Muhammad wd. Ghulam Muhammad Laghari .. . 216 
46. Jiando Khan grand Bon of Dato Khan Jamali 24-0 50. Ali Bakhsh wd. Dilshad Bhurgri 245 51 .  Fazul Muhammad wd. Fateh Khan Blmrgri 24-5 52. Muhammad Hussan wd. Jaffar Khan Bhnrgri 24-7 68, Jan Muhammad wd. Ghulam Haidar Khatian 272 

IJERO MU IIA BA T. 

TALPUR JAGIRDARS. 19. Mir Mubarik Khan wd. Mir Ghulam Ullah . . . 118 
23. Mir Ghulam Ali wd. Mir Khan Muhammad Manikani 123 

26. Mir Wali Muhammad wd. Mir Ghulam Muhammad Bagani 131 
SIRDAR JAGIRDARS. 

1. Mir Muhammad Khan wd. Mir Hassan Ali Baharani 168 
8. Ali Mardan Khan wd. Khair Muhammad Khan Thora 175 17. Shah Muhammad wd. Lal Khan Phatuani 192 



'1 
TALUKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-conlinued. 

24. Ahmad Khan Bhaldani 

33. Sahib Khan wd. Budho L:ighari 

TANIJO BA GO. 

TALPUR JAGIRDARS. 

I .  Mir Bja.r wd. Mir Glrnlam Hussen Sha.h<ladani 

26. Mir Wali Muhammad wd. Mir Ghulam Muhammad Talpur 

199 

218 

83 
Bag,1ui 131 

29. Mir Khan Muhammad wd. Ali Khan Manikani 136 

30, Mir Ali Bakhsh Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Hassan Khan 
Manikani 136 

8IRDAR JA.GIRDARS. 

4. Fazul Khan wd. Piaro Khan Talpur Jivanani 17� 

6. Ali Mardan Khan wd. Khair Muhammad Khan Thoro 175 

12. Mir Rajo Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan Darya Khanani 181 

3.'l Sahib Khan wd. Bu<lho Laghari 218 

39. Dau Khan Hajizai 

i6. Jiando Khan grandson of Dato Khan Jamali 

TALPUB. J AGIRDARS. 

I. Mir Bijar wd. Mir Ghulam Hussen 

. .. 

2, 3 and 4. Mir Jan Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Muhammad 

228 

240 

83 
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TAL UKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

1 G. Mir Mubarik son of Ghulam Shah and grand son of Mir Mahrnb 
Khan .. ni 113 

17. Mir Ali Bakhsh wd. Muhammad Ali . . .  113 

:. n .  Ghulam Ali Khan wd.  Mir Abdu1la.h Manikani 137 

8IRDAR J AGIRDARS. 

3. Jan Muhammad wd. Ghulam Hussen Ba.harani 171 

1 3. Ahmad Khan Darya Khanani 183 

Hi. Gahwar Khan wd. Talha Khan 191 

1 9. Gbulam SL ah wd. Abdullah Nizamani . . .  194' 2 1.  Ahmad Khan wd. Mahmud Khan Nizamani 197 

22. Wali Muhammad wd. Ali Bakbsh Niza.mani 198 

:m. Khuda Bakhsh wd. Ali Akbar Lagari . . .  2a GS. Jan Muhammad wd. Ghulam Haidar Khatian C) .. ') _ , _ 

G UNI. 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS • 

• ., Malik Doda Khan wd. Salar Khan nephew 0£ Malik .Tian<l Khan 
Numria 18 

2, 3 and 4. Mir Jan .Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Muhammad 94-

8. Mir Allah Bakhsh wd. Mir Ali Ba.kbsh. . .  100 

fl. Mir Budho Shahwani 10:l 

10. Mir Ali Murad wd. Mi1 Ahmad Khan Shahwani 104-

1 2. Mir Jam Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan 108 

2�. :M.ir Ghulam Ali wd. Mir Khan Muhammad 123 



9 
TALUKAWAR LIST OF ALIENEES-coutinued. 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS, 

15. Allahadad wd. Ghulam Hussen Ismailani 190 
16. Gahwar Khan wd. Talah Khan Mubarikani 191 
19. Ghulam Shah wd. Abdullah Nizamani . . .  194 22. Wali Muhammad wd. Ali Bakbsh Nizamani 1!?8 26. Nabab Muhammad Khan wd. Nabab Wali Muhammad Khan Laghari 211 

34,. Ali Muhammad Khan wd. Fateh Khan Laghari 219 

4'6. Jiando Khan grand son of Dato Khan J amali 240 

57. Murad Ali wd. Pairozshah Chang . . .  256 68. Allah Bakhsh Chang 256 
65. Fateh Khan wd. Rustam Khan Khokhar . . . 268 

TALPUR JAGIRDA.RS. 

1. Mir Bijar wd. Mir Ghulam Hussen 83 2, 3 and 4. Mir Jam Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Muhammad 94, 1 2. Mir Jam Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan 108 13. Mir Allahdad wd. Mir Ahmad Khan • .. 100 16. Mir Mubarik son of Ghulam Shah and grand son of Mir Mahrab ... 113 17. Mir Ali Bakhsh wd . .Mir Muhammad Ali 1 13 
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TAL UKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES- � ntinued. 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS, 

2. Ahmad Khan Baharani 169 

18. Sher Muhammad wd. Shah Ali Nizamani 193 

3:?. Ali Al uhammad wd. Ghulam Muhammad 216 

35. Ghulam Shah wd. Yakhtar Khan 220 

30. Dau Khan Hajizai 228 

43. Ghulam Muhammad wd. Ghulam Ali Jamali 241 

5t. Hamzo Khan·wd. Ali Murad Bagrani . • .  252 

68. Jan Muhammad wd. Ghulam Haidar Khatian 272 

<iO. IIamzo Khan wd. Muhammad Hassan Khatian 2H 

70. Nazar Ali Khatian 274 

SHA H.JJAJJPUR. 

TALPUR J AGIRDARS, 

l .  Mir Bajar wd. Ghulam Hussen 83 

2 arnl 3 and 4. Mir Jan Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Muhammad 94-

9. Mir Budho Shahwani 1 03 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS. 

9. Bahwal Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan 

l 1 .  Al i  Murad Khan Ahmada.ni 

J 8. Sher Muhammad wd. Shah Ali 

20. Mir 1\1 uhammad Khan wd. Ahmad Khan 

51). Ali Bakhsh wd. Dilshad 

1 78 

179 

193 

196 

245 
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TALUKAW.AR LIST OF .ALIENEES-continued . 

.51. Fazal Muhammad wd. Fateh Khan Bhurgri 

5i. Hamzo Khan wd. �\Ii Murad 

60. Shah Muhammad wd. Bilawal Khan 

MIBP UBKHAS. 

TALPUR J AGIRDAS. 

8. Mir Allah Bakhsh wd. Mir Ali Bakhsh 

9. Mir Budho 

IO. Mir Ali Murad wd. Mir .Ahmad 

SIRDAR J AGIRDARS. 

�3. Din Muhammad wd. Muhamtl'lad Hassan Marri 

T.A.NJJO AL.A.HYAB. 

TALPtrB. J AGIRDARS. 

9. Mir Budho 

SIB.DAR JAGIRDARS. 

14. Nasir Khan Khanani 

39. Dau Khan Hajizai 

66. Khan Muhammad wd. Ra.tto K.hair 

MORO. 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS. 

245 

252 

259 

100 

103 

104 

233 

103 

184 

228 

269 

11. Karimdad wd. Fazul and Sabzal Khan wd. Imam Ba.khsh 50 
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TALUKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

TALPUR JAGIRDAR& 

1. Mir Bija.r wd. Mir Ohulam Hussen 

23. Mir Ohulam Ali wd. Mir Khan Muhammad 

Sm.DA.:& J AGIRDA.S. 

7. Dost Ali, Thora 

22. W ali Muhammad wd. AJi Bakhsh 

NA. USHA.HB O  FEROBO. 

FmsT CLASS J A.GIRDARS. 

H. Bilawal wd. Salar 

TALPUR JA.GIRDARS. 

36. Mir Karam Khan 

Snma JA.GIRDARS. 

37. Wadero Mir Muhammad Khan 

FIRST CLASS K.HAIRATDA.RS. 

13. Bachal Shah wd. Fazul Ali Shah 

14,, Sayad Mahdi Shah wd. Sher Muhammad Shah 

15. Sayad Maluk Shah wd. Fateh Muhammad Shah 

16. Basom.al Laldas 

17. Darweshan Nauik Shahi . . .  

83 

123 

176 

198 

67 

158 

2
2
6 

305 

306 

307 

307 

308 
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TALUKAWAR LIST OF ALIENEES-conUnued. 

SAKRANJJ. 

TALPUR JAGIRDARs. ·  
3 and 4. Mir Jan Muhammad wd. Mir Ali Muhammad 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS. 
7. Dost Ali Thora 

25. Wali Muhammad Khan wd. Nawab Ahmad Khan 
.KANJJIA.ll O. 

TALPUR J AGIRDARS. 
35. Mir Khuda Baksh Khan wd. Mir Jam Kh3.n 

SHIKARP UR. 

TALPUR JAGIRDARS. 
32. Mir Ghulam Haidur wd. Mir Muhammad Khan 

FIRST CLASS KHAIRATDARS. 
21 .  Khuda. Bakhsh wd. Jumo Muzawar 
22. Mirza Muhammad Hasan wd. Mirza Ata Muhammad 
23. Abubaker wd. Alah Bakbsh 
24. Mata Guiab Devi and Mabie.sing wd. Fakir Bakhsh 
25. Sachedino wd. Mufti N asrullah 

PATTADARS. 
2. Ohulam Shah wd. Zoburuddin 

Ohulam Jan wd. Sharfudin 

94, 

17G 

206 

155 

149 

811 
312 

313 

313 

3H 

318 

318 

Be.idea th- there are Dital Khan wd. Muhammad Awn, Kalandar Khan Mogul, Ali .Kftan wd. 
Umedo Khan Ba.ba.r Sikandar Kha.n Muza.far Khan Pathan Sikandar Kbi.n and S1<lilr. Kha.n 
and Rahmdil Kha.n, 'Ba.cha.I KhN!. wd. Ghulam Haidar and Ali Bakhah Alahdad. Vidc Chapter 
IL of " Alienatiowl ill Silld." 
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TA.LUKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

Shah Navaz wd. Fakhniddin 318 

1 2. Saifudin wd. Abdul Karim 333 

13. Hayat Ullah Khan wd. Fateh Ullah Khan, Shah Wali Khan 
wd. Rahim Kh:in , Rahmat Ullah Khan and other sous of 
KLair U llah Khan 334 

SUKKUR. 

SJRDAR J AGIRDARS-

72. Pir Shamsud Din w<l. Pir Imainud Din Sirhindi 270 

';3. Pir Ghulam Naksbband wd. Pir Muhammad Ashraf Sirhindi 279 

FIRST CLASS KHA.IRATDARS. 

2G. Hajan Ali Shah wd. Shah Muhammad Shah 

PATTADARS.* 

314 
1 .  Abdul Baki w<l. Aziz Ullah Pathan 316 

5. Aman Ullah unqle and legitimate heir of Faiz Ullah 318 

6. Ri.iml Bakhsh wd. Shah Muhammad, -.;bah Da11ran wd. Shah 
Pa.:1and Khan, Mir Hasan wd Muhammad Rahim 323 

7. Shor �Iuhamma<l Nazar Muhammad . . . 323 

8. Ali �awaz 2nd son of B:i.ohal Khan, and Ghulam Shah 323 

0. Dita! Khan wd. Muhammad Azim and Madad Khan 326 

1 0. Muhammad Usman grandson of Madad Khan and Rahm<lil 
Khan wJ. Abdul �fansur .. , 329, 330 

1 1. Ghnhm Shah brother of Isa Khan Mirza and Jan Muham-
mad wd. Ghulam Haidar Khatian :132 

llesi<les these there are Sikanrlur Khan and Ba.kluihan Khan and Bn.khRho Khan &n<l N1U<ir Khnu 
an,! Sber,lil Khan Mrl Fatch Kh:m nnd others, who are all ijharc111 in one Pattadari. l'icfc 
Chapter 11. of " A.lienatiuna in Si11<l." 
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TAL UKA WAR LIST OF ALIE.NEES-contiuued. 

NA USHA.HRO A.BRO. 

TALPUR J AGIRDARS. 
3!. Mir Ghulam Ha.idar wd. Mir Muhammad Khan 

SIRDAR J AGIRDARS. 
�7. A.Ii Haidar wd. A.Ii Gohar Khan 

140 

27<1 

72. Pir Shamsuddin wd. Pir Imamuddin �7!) 
73. Pir Ghulam Nak.shband wd. Pir Muhammad Ashraf 279 
74. A.ta-ulla h Khan wd. Abdullah Khan and Abdul Rahman Khan wd. Muhammad Usman .Khan Barakzai 282 

FIRST CLASS KHA.IRATDARS. 

1. Makhdum Abdul Khalik and Muhammad Razo and Shah Muhammud ... 286 
PATTADARs.• 

2. Abdul Baki wd. Aziz Ullah Pathan 
3. Abdul Ahad Ulavi 
4. Muhammad Rafik and Ghulam Muhammad 
5. Aman Ullah uncle and legitimate heir of Faiz Ullah 
7. Sher Muhammad Nazar Muhammad 

H. A.bas Khan and Abdullah Khan 
R OHRL 

TALPUB. J AGIRDARS. 
32. Mir Ghulam Haidar Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan 
33. Mir Muhammad Bakar wd. Mir Ahmad Khan 

:no . 
31-8 
318 
31 8 
323 
33G 

149 
1 49 

• Be11ides these there &re Sh&hnl\W&Z Khan wd. Fat.eh Ullah, and Abdu!IAh Sb&h aad lna.yat Ali 
Sba.b and Agha Khan. ruu Chapter 11. of " Aliew,tiona in Sind." 
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TAL UKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

FIRST CL.A.SI KHAIRATDARS. 

4-. Dital Shah wd Ghulam Ali Shah and others 2941 5. Ohulam Hussen Shah and Yakub Ali Shah 295 

6. Y akub Ali Shah wd. Sadik Ali Shah • •• 297 7. Himat Ali Shah and Khair .Muhammad Shah 299 

8. Sayad Shah Mardan and Muhammad Makki Shah wd. Ali Askar 301 

9. Yakub Ali Shah and Nadir Ali Shah and Wahid Bakhsh 302 

10. Sayad ldal Shah wd. Fateh Ali Shah . .. 303 18. Sayad Ohaus Ali Shah wd. Sher Muhammad Shah 809 

GHOPKI. 

FIRST Cuss J AGIB.DARB. 13. Sayad HU88en Bakhsh (Alias Ganj Bakhsh) wd. Pir Makhdum Hamid 55 
FIRST CLASS KHAIB.ATDARS. 2. Sayad Ohulam Huasen wd • .Kalandar Bakhsh 3. Chuta! Shah grandson of Dost Ali Shah 6. Yakub Ali Sha\i wd. Sadik Ali Shah • • • 

UB.d. UBO. 

HISSADAR. Jam Banbbo Khan wd. Jam Abulkhair 

. .. 289 
293 297 

386 
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TALUKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continucd. 

LARKHANA. 

TALPl7R JAGIRDARS. 
1. Mir Bijar wd. Mir Ghulam Hussen 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS. 
83 

2G. Nawab Muhammad Khan wd. Nawab Wali Muhammad Khan .. .  2 1 1  
FIRST CLASS KHAIRATDARS. 

17. Azizullah wd. Kazi Muhammad Sharif 
RA TO IJERO 

�7. Ghul Muhammad Khan gran<lson of Nawab Allahdad Khan 

310 

Laghari 2 1 1  fil .  Alam Khan wd. Rnjo Khoso 262 (i2. Imam Bakhsh wd. Rohal Khan Khoso . . .  
LAB IJAR YA. 

SIRDAR J.A.GIRDARS. 
20. Ali Bakh,,h wd. Fateh Khn.n 
31. Ghulam :Murtaza Khan wd. Khan :Muhammad Khan 
6.3. Fateh Kuan wd. Rustam Khan 

FIRST CLASS KHAIRATDARS. 
20. Dau<l Kalhora .. . 

21:J 

215 

2G8 

311 
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TALUKAWAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

KANBAR. 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS. 

10. Wadero Muhammad Khan wd. Dato Khan, (grandson of Ghaibi 
Khan) +I) 

NASillABAJJ. 

FIRST CLASS JAOIRDA.RS. 

10. Wn<lero Muhammad Khan wd. Dato Khan, (grandson of Ghaibi 
Khan) 40 

MEHAR. 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS. 

10. W adero MuhaJDmad Khan wd. Dato Khan, (grandson of Ghaibi 
.Khan) 40 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS. 

8. Jafar Khan wd. Darya Khan 177 
fl9, Ali Bakhsh wd. Fateh Khan , . . 213 

:35. Ghulam Shah wd. Ikhtiar Khan . . . 220 

53. Kbuda B�khsh wd. Sirdar Khan . . . . . .  247 

KAKKAB. 

TALJ>UR JAGIRDARS, 

8. Mir Alah Bakhsh wd. Mir Ali Bakhsh . . .  . . .  . . .  100 
9. Mir Budho 103 

23. Mir Ghulam Ali wd. Mir Khan :Muhammad . . .  . . .  ]� 



9. 

11.  

27. 

35. 

36. 

53. 
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TAL UKA WAR LIST OF ALIENEES-continued. 

SIRDAR JAGIRDARS. Bahawal Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan Ali Murad Khan Ahmadani Ghul Muhammad Khan grandson of Nawab Allahdad Khan Ghulam Shah wd. Ikhtiar Khan Shahdad Alias Parial Khan Khuda Bakhsh wd. Sirdar Khan 
SHAHIJAIJP UR {UPPER SIND FRONTIER.)• 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS. 10. Wadero Muhammad Khan wd. Dato Khan, (grandson of Ghaibi 

178 17B 
21 1 

220 

221 

247 

K� � 

J.d. OOBABAIJ. 32. Mir Ghulam Haidar Khan wd. Mir Muhammad Khan 
NA. GAR (THAR .d.NIJ PARKAR.Jt 

FIRST CLASS JAGIRDARS . 

149 

lG. Chandusing wd. Ha.buji and Gumansing wd. Samatj i Sod.ha 62 
Vide also Chapter VII. of " Alienations in Sind." 

t VMk also Chapter VL of " Alienations in Sind," 





INTRODUCTION TO THE MEMOIRS 
OF 

;FIRST CL.ASS J.A. GIRD.A.BS. 

The First Class Jagir Alienations or Grants, at present existing in Sind, correspond in general character and description, with those enumerated in• the statements submitted to Govem­ment by Mr. Ellis as Special Commissioner for Jagirs, with his No. 80, dated 10th November 1868. The reason for classing all these grants as First Class Jagirs was simply the fact, that they dated from a period, anterior t.o the rule of the Talpur dynasty. In · other words, they were classed as First Class Grants, because there was evidence to show: that they had been in existence before 1788, i. �, before the date of accession of the Talpurs, and,. that they had remained, dur­ing the reign of these Rulers, up to the Conquest of the country by the British in the possession of the family of the original grantees. It was considered that if these grants had been recognised b;v the Talpurs (who were not remarkable for generosity in con­firming the grants of their predecessors) there could be little hesitation in admitting the hereditary rights of the holders at the date of the Conquest (1848) . It was therefore proposed to continue these grants in per­petuity, without deduction, to lineal male descendants of the hold­ers at the date of Conquest (1848). The great antiquity of these grants, and their recognition by the Talpurs, oo.ded to the fact that many of the holders were de­sce:�:ulants of the ancient Rulers of the country whose possessions h� been gradually encroached upon by conquering races, until they were content to hold in Jagir as subjects a portion of the territory they had formerly ruled as Chiefs, placed the propriety 



2 of admitting the hereditary character of the Jagirs beyond a doubt. The Government of Bombay therefore strongly recom­mended that the alienations should be continued without deduc­tion, and the Government of India in their letter No. 711 of the 5th April 1859 sanctioned, as recommended, the hereditary con­tinuance of all the fourteen Jagirs shown in Mr. Ellis' state­ment. One of these fourteen J agirdars having died without leaving any heirs male, bis J agir lapsed to Government. But two other First Class Grants were made after April 1859, and thus the number of First Class Grants is now fifteen. As has been more than once stated, the distinctive privilege granted to First Class J agirdars was that their waste lands were not liable to resumption. The other conditions of their grant are the same as those ofTalpur Jagirdars. It would be noticed that in the San.ad of Ghaibi Khan alone, provision was made for the levy of Nazarana from his successor. 



3 

SECTION I. 

THE NUMRI.A.S. 

1. In his Memorandum of men of rank in the Karachi 
Collectorate submitted by Captain Preedy, the Collector, to the 
Commissioner, in 1847, he gave the following information regard­
ing this tribe :-" The tribe appears originally to have been of Rajput origin. The finit " of the family w_hose name hM been recorded was Essab Khan, who, accom­" pa.nied by his eight brothers, set forth from Rajputana, and after many " adventures arrived at Kech in Makran, where they were well received " by the Chief of that place. " After sojourning for some time at Kecb, the Numria or Nau Mardi " (literally nine men) brothers, assassinated the Chief of the place on account of " a gross insult offered to the elder brother by the latter. In consequence " of this, they were obliged to fly the country, and they returned to the " Western frontiers of Sind, where they settled and intermarried with the " inhabitants of the country. In a few years, they became a very numerous " and powerful tribe, anri gradually obtained possession of the whole of the " Hill country lying between the Rabb mountains and the Indus, on the " East and West, and the Malir and Barau rivers on the North and " South. For many years fierce contests were maintained between them " and the Khosas, but the latter were eventually driven beyond the Baran " river. This happened about 70 years ago, since which time the N umrias " have held undi"sturbed possession .... . ...... . . . . • . •  " The N umria tribe i s  still divided into nine difterent families, who inter­" ma.rry with each other and with the Jokhias. Four Chiefs of this tribe " still levy ' Nath ' a kind of black mail on all merchandize passing- between " Sehwan and Karachi, and between Karachi and Kotri by the Hill routes. " Their names are �lir Khan and Juma Khan, who reside at Dnbah near the " Baran river, and Dhioji Khan and Majid Khan, who resi<le at Dummanj. The " rates at which ' Nath. ' is paid to these Chiefs, is three annns per camel load " between :--ehwa11 aud Karachi, and one and a half annas per camel load be­" tween Karachi and Kotri, and vice versa. In consideration of this ' Nath,' the " �umria Chiefs gnarantee the safety of the whole of the merchandize, " camels and attendants, and �hould any thing be lost, are bound to make it " good. They detii.ch two or more of their followers as guides with each " Kati.la., who recein,, 2 Rupees each for the trip between Kotri and Karachi, " and 4 Rupees between Sehwan and Karachi. These guides are expected " to supply the travellers with wood and water on the march. The subject " of thiR black mail was, I believe, referred by His Excellency the Governor •• to the Supreme Government, but no orders have been received xespect­" ing it." 



4 2.  This account 3t:,CJTees in several particulars with that re­corded by Pottinger, Burnes, and Masson, and may be compared with the following given by Mr. Frere (in his No. 198, dated 6th 
June 1852) to Government :-" They are probably the largest tribe in Lower Sind. They " appear to have been among the first of the Baluch hordes which invaded " Sind, and seem to have been settled in the districts they now inhabit " from the earliest times of such detailed �nd authentic history as has been " preserved of this part of the country. " Their Maliks (or Chiefs) held extensive Jagirs as vassals of the De:thi " Emperors, practically almost independent of any local superior, and under " the Kalhoras their po�ions were much more extensive than latterly '' under the Talpurs. " They were allied by marriage with the latter dynasty, and are inti­" mately connected in the same manner with the Jam of Bela, the Khan of ' ' Kalat, and others of the most influential families in Makran and Balu-" chistan." 
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1 .  MALIK AHMAD KHAN NUMRIA (DECEASED) SUCCEEDED 
BY MALIK SIRDAR KHAN. 

1. Mr. Ellis in his Memorandum dated 10th June 18u2, 
0ena108'1. gave the foll wing genealogy of Malik Ahmad Khan. 

Ahmad Khan. 

I 
Sobdar Khan 
died in 1847. 

1lalik sL., Khan 

I Pahar Khan. 
_J_ 
13 sons. 

I 

Pahar Khan. 

Izzat Khan. 

I 
Sobdar Khan. 

Muhammad Khan. 

Izzat 1 4 son& f Khan. 

2. One of Ahmnd Khan's daughters was married to Mir Karm 
P011it.ion. Ali and another to the Jam of Bela. His sister 

was married to Mir Nur :Muhammad, and his son Sobdar 
was married to the sister of the Jam of Bela. He held almost 
sovereign powers in the hills near Kotri and Jerruck, and even 
after the Conquest he enjoyed. the produce of the Liquor, Opium, 
Ferry_ and Fishery farms in Kotri, besides its Customs and 
Transit duties-. He even exerci.:;ed his proprietary right over the 
unoccupied waste in Kotri to such an extent as to sell parcels 
of it for building sites, l\nd for a long time he used to obtain a 
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perquisite called ' Nathi ' from those who require ground m or about Kotri.• 3. After tho Conquest Ahmad Khan made his Salam to 
&st.ate. the Governor and on receiving a Salam Parwana applied to the Collector to be confirmed in bis possessions. He WWI, however, not able to produce any Sanad except for his Jagir of Bampto which had been given to him by the Amirs in lieu of a share, owned by him elsewhere. The Sanad was copied by the Collector's establishment, and returned to Ahmad Khan who, it appeared afterwards, did �ot ta.ke good care of it and lost it. On the 5th December 1843, Captain Preedy sub­mitted a list of Jagirdars who held no Sanads, to the Secretary to Government, in which he stated that Ahmad Khan enjoyed the Government share of the land tax in Kotri, but that he had no documentary evidence to prove his title, and that as the Daftars of the Kalhorn.s were not available even at Haidarabad, Captain Rathborne had not been able to throw any light on the subject. The Secretary in his No. 1250, dated 6th December 1843, replied as follows :-• 
'' His Excellency is of opinion that parties without Sa.nads but who 

" can satisfactorily prove to you that they were in undisputed po�session of 
" Jagirs on the 17th February hst, shou ld be confirmed in such rights, pro­
" vided of course they have made their Salam to the British Government. 
" You should institute, however, a most aearching enquiry into all such cases." 4. It was not very difficult to <letermirie Ahmad Khan's claims to those of his Jagirs which were not on the hills. But the Collector felt considerable doubts as to the course he should adopt in respect to the Kohistan Jagir. 

" Under the rule of the .Amirs, Ahmad Khnn and other chiefs of the 
" Numria. tribe wcrn allowed to cul tiv:i.te the land around tlie village of 
" Humlnni, and in the vi l lage lying Hmongst the mountains which form a 
" Western frontier without paying any part of the produce, or any money 
ff reut to Government." • • 86tl No. 167, dated 12th September 1851, frum the Deput.Y Collector, ,Jerruok. to t.he Collector of Karnchi, and No. 307, dated 2nd Septemher 1851, from the Deputy t:nllectnr, Sehwan, tn t.he Deputy Collector, Jerruck and No. 678, dated 2ith March 1851, from t.he Collector Karachi, to the Commissioner. • No. no, dated 6th March 1846, t.rom Collector, K&raehi, to Secretary, Sind Government.. 
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5. Ahmad Khan asserted that he and his ancestors had en­

joyed this privilege since the time when Sind was tributary to 
the Delhi Emperors, and that it had ne\•er been disputed by the 
Kalhoras or the 'fa.lpm:s.• He laid claim, on the plea of former 
·possession " to the whole of the hill country extending from 
" the borders of the cultivated land in the valley of the Indus on 
" the East, to the left bank of the H!l.b river on the West, and 
" from below Jerruck on the South, to within a few miles of Lakki 
H on the North, a tract of country averaging about 6,000 square 
" miles in extent."+ He offered to bind himself and his 
tribe to report all offences and apprehend all offenders, if his hill 
Jagir was l'estored to him in its entirety. When the Deputy Col­
lector of Kotri sent measurers to survey and mark off all tracts culti­
vated by him, he declared be would not have those tracts at all if his 
waste was to be taken from him. Eventually he and Sir Charles 
Napier at a personal interview at Karachi, came to an arrangement 
by w)i.ich not ouly this question but various others mainly a.rising 
out of t.he. occupation of part of his gardens at Kotri by the Indus 
Flotilla Department, and the abolition of tinvn duties and customs, 
were finally settled. Under this arrangement he obtained Rupees 
400 for damage done by the troops to his garden at Kotri, and 
was confirmed in his enjoyment of the ferry, liquor, opium and 
fish contracts of Kotri as herP.tofore. The Government acquired 
" the whole of his gardens at Kotri in exchange for the Govern­
., ment gardens near the Mesa Shikargah, and the garden of 
" Mir Nur Muhammad and nt Karaku at the rate of five fruit 
" treea for every t.hree received from the Jagirdar's gardens. Sir 
•� Charles Napier, moreover, accepted the reason given by Ahmad 
" Khan for the failure of his . sons to make their Salam to him, 
" &bd  agreed to regrant to Sobdar - the Jagirs of Ghallu and La,tif­
" pur in the Haidarabad Collectorate, and to Pabar Khan his J a­
" girs situated near Petara and in Syatri, minus ¼th to be deducted 

• No. 319, dated lat May 1846. Colleotor of Karachi to the Secretary, Bind Government . 
t liQ. 4.28, Jated 6th lla7 lSiB. Collector of Kara.obi to the Commissioner, 
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" as rent, from Kharif 1 257. A. H." These concessions probably 
induced Ahmad Khan to consent to the settlement of his claim 
to the Kohistan ,Tagir, on the foll,,wing basis :-

" All the lands in the Hill tracts which have been cultivat,id by Ahmad 
.. Khan or his followers within 5 yea.rs from this dat.e to be mea.s.ured, and the 
" same to be m:\de over to him under a new :-;a,nad bearing His Excellency 
" the Governor's seal. The rest of the Hill country belongs to Govern-

6. Under this settlement the cultivated tracts were pointed out 
to an experienced Kardar, Rijhumal, and to measurers who were 
paid by Government, and such tracts were marked off by them. But 
the Government gardens from the Baran river to Nurpur, could 
not show as many fruit-trees as the Jagirdar was entitled to, 
and he accordingly agreed to accept for the balance 600 bigahs 
of good land in Kolab Mesa. 'l'he Sanad for the bill Jagir 
and for Kolab Mesa was sealed by Sir Churles Napier, and 
forwarded to the J agirdar through the Deputy Collector on 
the 13th of July 1847. 

7. The Jagir.:i regranted to Sobdar and Pahar Khan " minus 
" ¼th " were saddled by the Collector of Karn.chi, with the pay­
ment of two nnnas per bignh for waste. 'fhis the J ngirdars refused 
to p:1y, and it was not until Mr. Frere's time that the original 
condition imposed by Sir Charles Napier was alone adherecl to, and 
the J.igir.s were restorei. S3bdar Khan died in May 1847, and this 
event appears to have weighed heavily on his father's heart, and 

· hastened his end which came in Decem her 1850. He left !1 will, 
datecl 15th D�c:.-mber 1830 (10th Safar 1267 A. n.) atteated by the 
Kazi and Mufti, as well as by several other witnesses, under which 
he had made a complete distribution of the following property 
among his brother, his sons, ancl his grandsons :-

1. Liquor. Drug and Ferry contracts of Kotri and the fisheries of 
Multani, Gn::!!'ai, Karaka+ nnd Mihrani. 

2. Fishery of Deh,Rajo Nizamani. 
3. li'isher,v of Dhandh of R:i.jo N izamani. 
4. Bndhapnr Jagir produce. 

• No. 424, dl\ted 1 Uh November 1846, from the Collector of Karachi to the Deput7 
Collector of ll otri. 

t Correctly Karo Khao. 



9 i. The produce of the fol lowing after deducting Muhammad Khan's ahare-Shawl. Rajo Niza.mani. Karala (in Nai Baran).• Dingi, } . K t . • B d m o n. an ra, Kbanpur. 6. The produce of Dhabu. 

Chaubandi. N urshah-ki-Wasi. Karreri. Bahsurah. Kasi Andha. Maojhu. 
7. The produce of Dabbri after deducting Muhammad Khan's share. 8. The produce of Cheija. 9. The produce of the Hill Jagirs­Khanto Terai. Jhangri. Sumba.k. Shahji and adjacent land. 10. M.ir Nur Muhammad's garden­M.ir Bela garden. Rajar do. ¼th Chaubandi. 11 .  Two Pakka wells. 12. Khanpur Ferry. 13. Produce of the Shawl Dhandh. 14. }>roduce of Bampto. 15. Nai Baran Fishery. 

Karchat. Taung. Taku. 
Manjhand garden. Mesa garden. 

8. On the 10th of June 1852, Mr. Ellis, Assistant Commissioner in Sind drew up a Memorandum which was forwarded to Gov­ernment by Mr. Frere, and which contained all the particulars necessary for the decision of Malik Sirdar Khan's claim to a re­grant free of assessment. The proofs produced by the claimant were but few. He rested his claim " on his notoriously ancient " possession," and Mr. Ellis had no doubt that the family, which was one o! the oldest of those in the Province, had formerly a large tract in,iheir possession, over which they had ruled with unlimited power and unquestioned authority. * Vici, Lieutenant Stewart's No. 63, dated 28t,h April 1863, to the Collector of Karachi. 
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" From portions of this tract, " wrote be, " they were gradually dia. 
• posBE"Me<i by the more powerful chiefs who acquire<I au a.<1cemla.ncy over the 
• counrry g1·nerallv, and thus we , should t-xpect documents to I.ave been 
" iRSu ... d by the rnling power when t:tk ing away ontl tr , ns(t.'rri11g to others 
" portion" of the �umria.'s conntry, rat.her thn.11 whe11 nllowi 11g t li e  Chiefs to 
"retain po�es.�ion of tracts which they had helJ from time immemorial." 

9. There were, however, two Ea,o.fls issued hy Kur Muhnmrnad 
and Murnd Ali Shah, K'.llhoras, dated 1741 nnd 1763, respectively, 
and confirming the N umrfa. Chief -i n the J ngirs held by him nt 
thnt do.te, which were mu.ch more extensh·e t.hau tho:;e be was 
possesse�l of at the Conquest-but which could not be accurately 
identified, p1l·tly owing to the const1nt ch:mge of n:,rnes, and 
part1y owing to m�ny of  the lands having been �xcha11ged for 
others. There were nlso a few ' Takida, ' or letters of inj unction 
of the Talpm· dynasty, either conferring new grants in exchange 
for previous possessions, or originnting in some temporary ob• 
struction of  which the Jagirdar l�ad complained, nnd which t.he 
order was intended to remuve. Many of these related 1 0  Fer1iea 
and Fisheries, the right to which was held by the :Kumria chief 
and continued by Sir Cnar1f>s Napier, although, as a general rule, 
such rig!1t!i were resumed by him. Sir Charles Napier had depart. 
ed from his Jagir rules in the case of the Karma.ti Chief on 
the ground of the antiquity of that Chief's holdini, nnd Mr. Ellis 
had no doubt that the c�e or the Numria Chief deserved similar 
treatment. Otherwise Mr, Ellis showe<l, that under the ordinary 
principles, the Jagirdtl.r could hardly avajl himself of any one of 
the many J agirs in his poa.c;ession with nd vantage. 

�O. The Jagirs or their equivalent, which had been in posses. 
sion of the family from the time of · the K.alhoras, or even from 
an earlier period, had been distinquished from those· of later 
acquisition in a Memorondµm given by Malik Ahmad Khan 
immediately after the Conquest, the correctness of which Mr. Ellia 
saw no reasoXl .to doubt, Sucb Q.JLcieni ,Tagira were the follow. 
ing ;-



M:Rnjhu. 
Kasi .\ nbinn• and Petaro, 
W asi Pir Muhammad Shah. 
Chanbaudi. 
Khanpur. 
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Kotri. 
Ka.brokah. 
Shawl. 
&jo Nizamani. 

11. These and the 600 bigahs in Budhnpur, nnd the 2,829 bigahs 
in the Hill tracts grantel by Sir Charle-. Napier, were recom­
mended by Mr. Ellis for hereditary confirmation " to the lineal 
" desccndauts of Malik Ahmad Khnn." The lands of' Bampto 
hD.d been acknowledged by Ahmad Kbnn to have be�n granted 
bythe Ta]purs-and these, Mr. Ellisrecommended,should be confirm­
ed to the heirs on the principles ordinarily enforced on the suc­
cession to Jagirs in the Karachi Collt>ctornte. In the Bampto 
Jagir alone Ahmad Khan's brother, Muhamnmd, Imel no share • 

. In nil tbe others he was entitle<!. to ¼th of the produce, which 
Mr. Ellis recommended should he continued by A hmud Khan's 
heir, and on failure of Ahwa.d Khan's line, oonfirme<l to Mubam .. 
mad Khan's family. 

12. Regarding the fisheries, Mr. Ellis concurred in opinion 
with the Collector that the fisheries of the lakes ancl streams in tbe 
estate should remain with the Jagirdar, but thnt the Indus Palla 
fisheries, as well n.s the ferries, the liquor a.nd drug contracts 
should be in the hands of Government. 

13. As, however, the a.uthoriied enjoyment of these rights under 
the former Government had been satisfactorily estnblished; Mr. 
Ellis l'ecommended that their value annually to - the heirs of 
Malik Ahmad Khnn should b� fixed at the average net rec�ipts 
of the last five years, nnd paid annually. Malik Ahmad's brother 
had enjoyed Rs. 250 (Ha.idarabad) from these contracts, und these, 
llr. Ellis was of opinion, Sirdar Khan should be directed to 
continue. Mr. FrP-re agrecd with Mr. Ellis in his recommendations, 
fll?-� forwarded them to t.he Bombay Government. The Chief 
Beoretary in reply wrote as follows (No. 5873, dated 8th September 
1852,_ llevenue Department) :-

• Called alllo Andeh-ji-� 
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" The Right Honourable the Governor in Council is of opinion that the " possessions of the late Malik Ahmad Khan, Chief of the N umrias, cannot be " considered in the light of Jagirs, concerning tho continuance of which " Government a.re at liberty to make such rules as may seem to them expe­" dient, but that they should be considered as hereditary possessions to be •• continued undiminished to the lineal male hei rs. His Lordship in Council •• wo1,1ld recognize this right in its fullest extent, and in any case in which •• abolition of any particular cess may by necessary, its fair value should._be •' given." 
14. The letter then ended with a request to the Commissioner 

to report the amount of money compensation to be awarded in 
lieu · of the net proceeds of revenue, derived by the Jagirdar from 
the fisheries, farms, liquor contracts, &c., and also from a fresh 
piece of land which had been sometime ago taken up by the 
FJotilla Department. A copy of this letter was sent to the 
Collector of Karachi by Mr. Frere, with a request to transmit a 
draft Sanad and to furnish the other details required by Govern• 
ment. Subsequently on a petition from Sirdar Khan, Mr. Frere 
directed that portions equivalent to the interest possessed by the 
N umrias in the J agirs of Shawl, Manjhu and Deh Raja N izamani 
should be marked off. This was, however, a very difficult thing 
in practice. Shawl was in the hands of Mir Sher Muhammad and 
Deh Raja Nizamani in tha.t of Raja Nizamani. These J agirdars paid 
the expenses of cultivation, and took half the produce instead of ½rd, 
as was usually the case. Irrespectively of this private arrangement 
the J agirda.rs had to hand over to the N umria chief one-eleventh 
of the entire produce, free from any expense of cultivation, and it 
was, therefore, clear that the demarcation of one-eleventh of the 
land to Malik Sirdar Khan would not be equivalent to the right 
he possessed. The c.ase was, however, different with regard to 
Manjhu, the Jagir of Mir Muhammad. There the Numrias enjoyed 
nothing more than the fourth share of the profits of the Jagir. 
This fourth share was taken on the whole extent of Manjhu, as it 
was at the time of Mir Muhammad's death, and not inocely on 
the cultivated portion of it. 

15. Lieutenant Stewart who was charged with the settlement 



13 

or the case, proposed to double the eleventh share in the Shawl 
and Deh ltajo J a.girs, and to allot out of Manjhu a fourth share 
contiguous to the Jagirs held by the Numrias in the Tuluka of 
Kotri. This last proposal was unreservedly sanctioned by Mr. 
Prere•-but as re;1.rdi the Shawl aud D�h Rljo Jagirs it appear­
ed to him that, the allotment of ?1 ths of the land would not 
autlbiently provide for the share of expenses of cultivation which 
then foll up'>n Mir Sher Muhamm'.lcl and R'.ljo and were deducted 
before the Numria's i-1-1 th was taken . He therefore directed this 
point to he reconsidered. The Shawl ,Jagir had been given by 
the )f irs, bit m,,kti, thnt is, without any measurement or specifica­
tion of boundaries, and it had bc�11 added to by the alluvial 
deposits of the river. Its division therefore led to a very long 
corrP.sponrlence which effectually dehye<l the st>ttlement. But the 
division C1f this Jagir was not the only q uestion which had to be 
decided before the S3.nad could be framed. 'l'he Malik claimed 
the right to sel l  hnd at Kotri for building sites. This, Lieutenant 
Stewart refuser! to recognize, and the Commissioner npproved 
bis decision. The Malik was al!-o a sharer with novernment in 
the proJu·ce of Chnuhandi and �ai Baran to t he extent of ¼th in 
the former, nn<l ¼th in the lat ter. The average yearly proceeds of 
both were not more than Us. 31-4, and Lieutenant Stewart there­
fore proposeci to convert this into land at the rate of a Jireb per 
Rupee, and to add . it to the Malik's Jagir of Kasi Nabina. It 
appeared, however, to Mr. Frere that the Jagirdar would lose by 
this arrangement, as no allowance would have been made for 
fallows :-" Unle!IS the land is such," he wrote, " ns to produce a. crop every " year, I consider that he should have thrice that nmount or 3 Jirebs for " every Rupee of auuual value. On tl..iis puiut, therefore, further inquiry • should be mode." 

16. ThJ' annual allowance to be made to :Malik Sirdar Khan in 
lien of bis enjoyment of the Liquor, Drug, Ferry and Palln Fish­
ery contracts was fixed by Lieutenunt Stewart at Rs. 3,035, and 

• No. 433, dat.ed 26th February 18o3, to th11 Cullector of Kanu:hi. 



the 5 per cPnt. cess to be p'.lid by the Malik was fixed for his life at 
Rs. 293-0-0. Both tlwse were approved by Mr. Frerl'. 

17. There still remained the question of Mulik Ahrnad Khan'• 
will. Lieuten:int Stewa1·t- intim1ted to the Malik that Govern­
ment would not interfere i ll t he private arrangements marle in it, 
but th,Lt it would be expected of him that. the shares apportioned 
to each indh,i<lual as nametl therein would be given over to him 
withont let or hindrance. This intimation was approved. by 
Mr. Frcret. 

18. The M ilik further nsked on the 8th of April 1853., 
th:it 1 8 3  d'.l.te trea3 an l 5 M1ngJ trees growing in and im­
mJ:li,itJ ly a�1 1und the town of K >tri, as well as the J agirs of 
Tak and B Lriln in M 1nj lnnd, and Shn.ht>j i  in Jerruck be inserted 
in the draft Sanad.. Lieutcn�nt Stewart reported thut t.he trees 
in question were in t.lie p:lssession of the Malik, and that. he had 
not en ter.�cl them in his draft 8.'lnad separately, as he thought 
there could be no doubt r?g,1 rdi 1 1g  the right of the :Malik to any­
thing that ru ight be produced on the lands l1eld by him and on 
which these trees grew, As to the .Ta.girs, Lieutenn1 1t  Stewart 
explained, that they hid been omitted owing to the non-arrival of  
one or two of the reports called for from the.Kardnrs, who had 
been directed to report the boundnrics of all hncls hel1l in J"agir by 
the � u nrh� with in  their scr,arate charges. Mr. Prere's order was 
dated 18th l1 ny ns fol lows :-

" It  •tppea.rs there is no occasion to cnt.er i;eparntely the date and 
u ·M:in�o trnes referred to. nud the lands omitted iu Lieuteuant Stewart's 
" li�t wi l l  now he inserted." 

19. 'l'he amount of the allowance S'.!ttled for the Sayer 
revena� enj Jy� I by t!rn .Jagi 1-.b,r w.13 rep'lrtJ l tJ GJvernm�nt, and 
s:inctio1 1ed by tham in ltesolutiun No. 2770, d:ited 6th June 
18:H, Reve1 1ue Department. 

20. In the Collect.orat.e Roll framed by Captain Pelly, 
the �falik's lanJed possessions were shown as follows ic. the 
First Class :-

t No. 433, da.ted 26th February 186:.1, to the Collector or Karachi. 
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Bigahs. Wiswas. 

lhlah and Uplan in Shah Bandar • • •  659 9 

Bampto in Ghorabari . . .  5,211 0 

Shawl in 'l'atta 15,489 9 

DAh Rajo Nizamani in Tatta . . . •522 13 * 523 bigaba iD 

Kotri in Kotri Taluka 9,702 I! 

Khanpnr do. ... 5,761 15  

Dubhoe anJ Dhubo do. . .. •1,894, 11  • U!l5 bigl\ha i n  the 
Sanad. 

Andha-ki-Kasi <lo. . . .  •2,42'> 12 .,. Klllli Nabina in the 
Sanad with 2,427 bigaha. 

W asi N ursbah do. 3,434 16  

Karrah do,, •903 1 5  * 904 bigahs in the 
&wad. 

Bndhapur do. •52� 12 • 523 bigahs in Ule 

Sauad. 
Jutteara. do . . . •  . . .  117 5 

¼th Manjbu Jo. •t,776 7 • 1,775 bigahs in the 

Deli Mir  Khan in Karachi 4,G 2 

Suml,o.k do. 30 5 

Wahi do. £0 5 

Nurreri do. ... 7 7 

Poyani do. •12 19 * 13 bigah.a in the 
Sanad. 

Shahu do. . . . 9 I 

•1s2 13 • 183 bigah1 in the Jangnhri do. . &n!\d. 

Oangyaro do. 305 7 

17 • 32 bigahs in the 
1f.itri do . . . .  •31 Sanad. 

KanJ i Tarai do. •164 18 * 16.i bigahs in 
Sanad. 
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Bigahs. Wiswaa. 

Banharo in Karachi . . .  •s7 19 * 88 bigaha in the . . . Sann.cl. 

•9 10 
• 10 bigaba in the 

Mulh do . . •  . . . &nad. 

Shahaji do. . .. •66 9 * 67 bigabs 
Sanad. 

in tla 

Tongh do. . .. 1 .233 6 

Dam-do. 93 3 
il67 bigaha in � 

Bahl do. •66 13 Sanad. 

Patta Kurchat do. 32 1 

Karchat Bataro do . . .  33 6 

Tukko do • • •  . . . 1 16 0 

To these was added the Jagir of Ghalia granted by Sir 
Charles Napier to Sob:lar Khnn, a comparat ively new grant, which 
was confirrneJ to the Malik for his l ife. (No_. 228, da.te<l 4th 
Februaru 185S,from the Comnii,aioner, to the .4.ssistant Com. 
fll.iBsioner for Jagirs) . 

21. In the Sannd (No. 99) issued in 1861, the wiswns were 
knockei off, an,l the bigahs increased in several places to make 
up for them. Tb.e total hereditary p::>ssessions and revenues 
confirmed to the J agirdar were 51,0:t0 bigl\hs, and 3,035 Rupees 
respectively. The operative clause of the Sannd ran as fol­
lows ;-

" In con'4idera.tion or the history and repnte of your family, the ar,ti­
" q•ti t_v of your Jagir, your own posit iou a.'I Sirilar of your tribe, and of the 
" goocl conduct of your tribe undl'r British Huie, it is ordered that, with 
" the flinglc exception of tlie aforesaid Jagir of Gballa, . . . . . . . . .  the whole or 
" your Ja�i rs above noted, according to the est11hlished bonnda1-ies, together 
" with the s·lid yearly money allowance of Rs. 3,035 (three thousand Rnd 
" thirty five) l,e acco,·ded to your lineal heirs male (failing whom, at any time 
• to the lineal heini male of your gmn,lfather Ahmad Khan) free of all as­
" ses.-1ment except 5 per cent. for Roads and Schools calculated on the net 
" annual produce." 



17 22. It would be observed that this clause secured nothing to the heirs of }Iuhammad Khan, the brother of Malik Ahmad Khan, for whom Mr. Ellis had made a favourable recommenda­
tion. 



Bula Khan. 
Genealogy. 
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BULA. Kru.N, NUMRIA. (DECBA.SED) SUCCEEDED 
BY JIA.ND KHAN, 

1. Bula Khan's genealogy was given 
by Captain Pelly as follows :-Ari. 

I Hamal. 
I Baprah. 
I Badar. 
I Tharun. 
I Dudun. 
I 

Saffar. 
I Malik Bula Khan. 
I Haidar Khan. 

Malik Bula Khan. Harun Khan. 
I . 

1-1 Jiand Khan. Salar Khan. 
2. Like l\fulik Ahmad Khnn, Bula Khan_ was not merely a 

Position. Jagirdar but enjoyed• the town duties and 
customs as well as the Sar Shumari and 

Peshka1Jh of Unarpur. He was measured out 220 bigabs of land 
in Unarpur, as compensation for the loss of these sources of 
revenue. 

Estate. 3. Bula Khan made his Salam rather 
late-but he was, nevertheless, restored to 

• No. 143, dated 17th March 1846, from the Collector of Karachi, to the Secretary t.o Sind Gover nment, and No. 023, dated 5th November 1846, from the Deputy Collector of Kotri, to the Collector of Karacl:ii. 
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his Jagir of Unarpurt and his rain lands in the Karachi Taluka. 
Beside� these he cl.aimed also one-half of the Jagir of Choria in 
the Haidarabad District-the other half being in the hands of 
Mir Khan Muhammad. It appeared �th1:1t Bula Khan and his 
son had been in possession of ,the Jagir of Budhapur and Godbo 
�fter 1841, when Mir Shahdad gave them one-half of Choria in 
exchange. . They enjoyed the produce for one year, but in 
1842 Mir Mir Muhammad wishing to extend some hunting g-roun<l 
he had adjoining this town land, arranged wit.h Mir  Shahdad that 
the whole of Choria should be given to him, he providing- elsewhere 
for both Mir Khan l\Iulnmmad and Bula Khan. But before this 
provision could be made Sind became a British possession, and 
the two Jagirdars not being in posscssionofChoria could not, undcl' 
the Rules, be c:mtinue<l in it. Sir . Charles Na pier having vcrb:illy 
granted one-half

°
of the Jagir to J\Iir Khan M uhammad it was 

restored to him. (No. 81 of 1847 from the Secretary to the Sind Government, to the Collector of Haidarabad)-but no exception 
having been expressly made in favour of Buh Khan, Captain 
llathborne refused to hand over bis moiety to him. ( No. 203 , dated 7th February 18t9,fl'om the Collector ef llaidarabacl to the Commissioner) . The J agirdar petitioned repeatedly fur his portion 
of the J:igir, and at length l\Ir. Frere holding that his case wns 
altogether indentical with tha.t of Mir Khan :Muhammad authorize<l 
its restoration, " subject to a revision of the claim on the death 
" of the present  incumbent." 

" As a general rule," he wrote, " l  am reluctant to restore Jagirs t he  
" claim to  which has nut bPi:n recogn ized during so  many years of t l 1 e  B , i t i�h 
" Rule, but if P.ver a case can b.t> admitted as an exception to that Rule, this 
" woulct seem to be a<l mi�sible." ( No. 929, dated 12th .Aprfl 1853, frorn 
the Commissioner to Capta,i,n Stack.) 

4. Bula Khan also claimed the Hill Jagirs-mnrginally notecl. 

t No. 884, dated 17th December 1844, from the Collector of Karachi to the Secretary 
to the Siod Gov�rnmeot. 
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I. Thariri. 
2. Lands watered by the 

streams Dang and Shore. 
3. CbooL 
4. Charra. 
a. Odb. 

He had no documentary evidence, and in its 
absence evidence was taken from Zamindars, 
and the Kardar was asked to refer to the 
Khasras of cultivation. On reading all the 
evidence laid before him, Mr. Frere held that 

the Jagirdnr had only substantiated his claim t!> Thariri, and this 
was restored to him. (No. 13.09, dated 17th May 1853, from the 
Oommissioner to the Oollector of Karachi). 

5.  Bula Khan died on the 31st May 1853, and Captain Pelly 

1 .  All Unarpur inclusive of the recent 
increment and of commutation in Bigahs. W. 
lieu of dues a.bolisbed 9,259 14  

2 .  Ha.If Choria 3,074 0 
3. Tha.riri in Jerruck. . .  1 ,204 1 2  
4. Ra.in 1and of Ma.kans :-

Desui 
Kapa.t 
Akro 
Kabar Kullo 
S1.1.ri Sing .. 
Hathal Buth 
Sokaj 
Anjeri and Tala.h Undeh .. 

519 15 
120 13  

1,087 8 
307 5 
.557 1 4  
101 19 
287 17 
525 0 

Napierian Bigahs. . .  17,045 17 

reported the ex­
tent of his holdings 
as marginally no­
ted, after having 
the rain lands mea­
-sured out. i Refer­
ring to the Resolu­
tion of the Bom­
bay Government 
in 1852 on the sub­
ject of Malik 
Ahmad Khan's 
J agirs he wrote :-

" On the whole it appears that the Government of Bombay and the 
" Commissioner throughout regarded the tenure of the chief representatives 
" of the � umria tribe, as based upon immemorial occupancy, and strengthened 
" by the antiquity, numbers and good behaviour of the grantees. A tenure 
•• so ba.�<·d and strengthened must be admitted as an exception, and when so 
'' allowed, shoulil seem incapable of falling otherwise than in the First Class 
•' J agir regran ts,",r 

6. Mr. Frere accordingly recommended to Government 
that, Bula Khan's family might be dealt with in the same way 

:t No. 7, of 1855, dated 19th July,1855, from thelai Aaistant CommiaaionerforJltp'II 
to the Commissioner. 

,- Report No. 21 ef 1855, from the Ind .Aasistaut Commiaaioner for Jagil,L 
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as that of the elder branch, whose possessions had been decided 
to be heredita.ry, and the Bombay Government were pleased to 
approve his recommendation . ( Government Resolution No. 5128, 
dated 11th IJecember 1855, Revenue Department). 

7. In the Collectorate Rolls, the one-half of Choria in the 
possession of Jiand Khan was shown to be 2,511-4 bigahs in 
extent, although Mir Khan Muhammad's moiety was shown to 
be 3,019 bigahs. In the statement of First Class ,Tagirdars pre.; 
pared by Major Goldsm.id, for submission to Government, the area 
of Choria was entered in accordance with the Collectorate f.:olls, 
and there was thus a difference of 563 bigahs. On this account 
the total possessions confirmed · to the J agirdar by the Sanad 
(No. 100) of 1861, were 16,484 bigahs. The Sanad contained 
the same operative clause as Malik Sirdar Khan's. 
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3. MUHAMMAD KHAN, NUMRIA (DECEASED) SUCCEEDED BY 

Muhammad Khan. KAISAR KHAN. 1. Muhammad Khan was · brother of Malik Ahmad Khan, 
Genealogy and Position. whose genealogy has been already giyen. 2. He possessed the J agir of W esirki in the Guni Talukn, 

Estate. besides being co-sharer with his brother in some other Jagirs. Wesirki was, in 1853, ascertained by measure­ment to contain 4,748 Mirs' bigahs. It had been confirmed to Mu­hammad. Khan by Sir Charles Na pier, and on Muhammad Khan's death. on the 22nd December 1851, Captain Stack, calculating its average produce for the last 5 years, fixed the cultivated portion at 632 bigahs, and adding 15 per cent. for a boundary line recommended that 727 Mir's bigahs in all(= 532 Napierian bigahs) be regranted to Kaisar Khan, the son of the deceased J agirdar, subject to an assessment of two annas per bigah, which he com­muted into a fixed payment (Rs. 53) equal to one-fourth of the average income of the land.* 3. Mr. Frere, however, considered this to be a case calling for some modification of the existing rules. As however, Kaisar Khan was not the Chief of the tribe, and as the J agir in question was not of great antiquity, having been granted in 1842, in lieu of three shares granted in 1818, 1828 and 1828, respec­tively, Mr. Frere did not recommend the adoption of such a liberal decision as had been sanctioned by Government in the case of Malik Sirdar Khan. 
" But the antiquity of the family," he wrote " and their possession of exten­

" sive Jagirs long before the domination of those from whom we took the 
,. country, are ci rcumstances which ought to be borne in mind in deciding 
" 011 this claim." 4. He therrfore authorized the remission of any payment on account of quarter-produce, and in other respects sanctioned the .settlement proposed by Captain Stack.t 

+ No. 62, dated 7th May 18�3, from Captain Stack to the Commissioner. t !fo. 182J, dated 30th June 1853, from Mr. Frere to Captain Stacie. 
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5. On the 18th November 1857, Kaisar Khan petitioned for a 
grant of equal amount on the right bank of the Indus near Malik 
Sirdar Khan's J agirs, as the Kardar had ordered him to take the 
land on the side of Guni, where it was salt and waste, and as even 
an allotment from the arable portion would put him to the · neces­
sity of spending Rs. 400 on canal clearances alone. Major Gold­
smid recommended that the 532 bigahs re granted to the J agirdar 
might be considered'hereditary, and in the First Class, and this 
was approved by Government. But the allotment was subse­
quently exchll.Ilged, at the J agirdars request, for 310 bigahs in 
Khirdahi in the Ghorabari Taluka of the Karachi Collectorate­
( 77ide Commissioner's No. 277, dated 18th August 1859, to the 
Collector of Karachi), and this Jagir was confirmed to Kaisar 
Khan and his lineal heirs male by the Sanad (No. 101) issued to 
him on the · 24th of May: 1861. 
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THE JOKHI..t!.S. 

Captain Preedy wrote about this tribe as follows in 1847 :-
" The Jokhia tribe i3 of Rajput origin. They formerly occupied a 

" mountainous district ' Kungara ' north of Shah Bilawal, whence about 150 
" years ago, they descended to the valley of the Rabb River, and as their 
" numben, increased, gradually spread themselves over the lands lying be­
" tween the Rabb and the Malir rivers. Their fin;t chiefs were of no celebrity, 
" but in the reign of Ghulam Shah Kalhora, Bijar Jokhia who was a sepoy in 
" the service of that Prince, obtained the chieftainship and title of Jam for 
" the following service. The district of Sakra including Darajah and Soveri 
" Bunder w� at that time governed by a Hindu Rana or chief named Arjun, 
" a man of great bodily strength and possessing great influence in the Delta. 
" Ghulam Shah was anxious to dispossess him of hi'.! territories, but having 
" no just pretence for attacking him, he was anxions to have him a<:sassina­
" ted. This, however, it was no easy matter to accomplish, as the Rana was 
" noted as a brave and powerful man, and being on his guard he had con­
" structed a temporary building on an island to which be repaired every 
" night with a few followers to sleep. Bijar Jokhia, however, undertook to 
" accomplish his destruction, and having collected about twenty resolute men 
" of his own tribe, he and they swam over at night to the island where the Rana 
" reposed, and making a sudden onslaught sword in hand kil led him and 
" all his foijowers before they recovered from their surprise. Ghulam Shah, 
'· on hearing of this success seized upon the Rana's lands, and appointed 
" Bijar, Jam of the J okhia tribe ; and the latter having obtained great renown 
" by his exploit, easily obtained an acknowleclgment of his SU!)remacy from 
" the whole tribe. Being of a restless, intriguing disposition, Jam Bigar soon 
" contrived to involve himself in quarrels with his neighbours. The Karma­
" tis he dispossessed of the valley of the Malir river, and having gained 
" a victory over the N umrias near the Habb river he compelled them to 
" move further north, and he and his followers occupied the whole of the 
" lands lying between the Rabb and the Oharra Creek." 



25 4. Jill: MIRR ALI. 
Lineage and Poeition. I. This Chicrs genealogy was as follows :-

I Mihr Ali. 

Bijar. 
Mihr Ali. 

I .Murad Ali. 
I 

Bijar. 
.Muhammad. 

I Ghulam Ullah. 
Karn bar Ali. 

2. He was one of the few Muhammadan Sirdars, who � the first arrival of the English Army in Sind, professed friendship for the new power, being probably influenced partly by the per­suasions of Seth Naumal, the Native Agent of the British, and partly by the correct idea he and his followers had conceived of i,ts strength and its resources. On the arrival of Sir John Keane's Army at Vikkur in 1838, the Jam came forward and supplied a. thousand camels for the use of the troops and Commissariat, and as this was done at a time when the Amirs, under a semblance of friendship, were in reality doing a�l in their power to retard the movements of the force, the assistance was the' more valuable, and as an acknowledgment of his services on this occasion, the Jam received from Sir H. Pottinger a. present of 1,000 Rupees. From that period until the commencement of the war, the Jam continued very useful to the British, frequently supplying many hundreds of camels for the use of the numerous regimen ts and detachments which were hastily pushed forward towards Upper Sind and Afghanistan, at the commencement of hostilities in Kachi, and in consequence of the subsequent disaster at Kabul. 
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Be also rendered a great service in conveying the post between Karachi and Haidaraba.d. 3. When, however, the war broke out, the J am was unal,le 
to disobey the commands of his liege lord and master Mir Nasir Khan, and was actively engaged in cutting off the communica­tions of the British Army, and st.opping their supplies. But neither he nor any of his tribe, committed any wanton act of cruelty or spoliation .• 

" In the beginning of February 1843," wrote Captain Preedy in 1847, 
" the Jam was directed by the Amini to muster h is tribe and in conjunction 
'· with the Karmatis aud Numrias to occupy the town of Karachi, 
" and, i f  possible, to dri ve us out of our Camp. The Chiefs assembled their 
" men, but the 11ews of t he \'ictory at Meani so <lamped their ardour, that 
" they did not dare to approach within forty miles of Karachi." 

4. After the victory of Haitlarabad, the Jam came in and 
Estate and t.nes. 

made his Salam, and the Jagirs which he had held under the Amirs were restored to him. In addition to these ,Jagirs, the Jam had the privilege of levying customs and transit duties on all merchandize passing from Karachi to Tatta, on all imports and exports at Gharra, and a Rupee per maund on all the Ghi manufactured in the districts occupied by his clan, viz. ,  those l�· ing between the Rabb and the Gharra Creek on the East and '\Vest, antl betwePn Cape Monze and the hills whence the :Malir ri"·er takes its rise in the North and South, a sp10e of about 3,000 square miJes according to Captain Prcedy. He also enjoyed the proceeds of a monopoly for tlie nrrnufacture of spil'its at Gharra, which hacl been a source of great profit to him so long as a CantonmPnt  had been maintained there .  The total income <lerived by him from these various sourct•s was ahout u,5OO Rs. per annum, and this amount Sir Charles Napiel', on the abolition of  the trnnsit clutil-'s and t he in­troduction of the Bombay Customs reguhtions in Sind, offered to bestow upon him as compensation. Unhappily, howerer, for himsel f  he preferred receiving a grant of land in Jagir imtead, and being allowed h is choi<'e of the whole Karachi Col l ectc,rate, i-el ected 
• No. 31.,0o, dated 22nd Decemlier 1852, from Captain Preedy to the Commissioner. 
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Damnni, 8,000 N apierian bigahs in which were made over to him in Kharif 1846-47. But the Jagir was situated on the Haggar stream, which was in a very fluctuating state. The Jam was unable to provide for the proper clearance of the Canals, and to add to his troubles, the price of grain went down very low. The result was that his receipts, which in his first year had amount­ed to Rs. 3,000, dwindled down in 1851 to Rs. 500 only, and in 1852, when the Commissioner with the Collector was in the neigh­bourhood of his usual residence in the Hills, he " complained of " his utter inability to provide himself even with the common " necessaries of life, to say nothing of luxuries, which a Chief of his " power, rank and importance might not unreasonably aspire to."• Mr. Frere having satisfied himself by enquirie8 that his complaints 
were not exaggerated, directed the Collector to advance Rs. 200 and twenty Kharwnrs of grain to the Jam, in order to relieve his immediate necessities, ancl recommended to Government that one­half of Dumn.ni might be resumed, and a pension of 250 Rs. a month settled on tho Jagirdar. The Bombay Government, were accordingly pleased, under the authority of the Government of India, to sanction this pension " in lieu of one. half of the land or 41,000 Bigahs " which the Jam had " received from Sir Charles " Napirr." (Bombay Government letter No. 753, dated 18th February 1853.) Their act ion was approved by the Court of Directors in their Despatch No. 58, dated the 20th October 185't 6. Tile monthly pension of Rs. 250 was insufficient for the Jam. He was anxious that the whole ot his Jagir shou]d be resum­ed, and a pension <Jf Us. 500, in lieu of it, settled upon his nephew whom be wished to adopt as his heir. · The Collector, however, did not support his request, and Mr. Frere eventually ordered that the moiety in the h'mds of the Jam should be taken under Gov­ernme1 1t  management, and one-half of the net proceeds, after deducting the expt-nses of canal clearance, and collection ancl other charges (hesids Ha'knha if the net proceeds should exceed Its. 250) • Mr. Frere'a No. 46:.l, duted 31st December 1852, to Government. 
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be ma.de over each season to the Jam.• 6. The Jam was found possessed at the Conquest of 16,000 Mir's bigahs in the Duaba, and of 7,900 Mir's bi�ahs in Syatri (Ghorabari). The earliest of his Sanads was granted by Ghulam Shah, Kalhora, on the 27th Shaiban 1173 t A. H. and stipulated that the grantee, who was the Jam's grand-father, was to protect travellers and Kafilas en route between Karachi, the Hills and Seh wan. 7. Captain Pelly in his Syatri Taluka Roll recorded 3 sharers in what was called the Nai Jagir, consisting of the Makans of Bal Thairn, Marri and Seri. TlrnEie were the Jam, his nephew Ghulam Ullah, and one Rahimdad, J okhia Rahimdad, however, had died in 1849, and the Collector, Captain Preedy, had resumed ¼th of the Jagir of Nai upon the principle that such was a fair propor­tion of the lapse, and 389 more Nupierian bigahs being the excess of the whole J agir disoovered on remeasurement in 1850. Captain Pelly on revising the case in 1856, ordered restoration of the fourth part upon the later acknowledged principle that the Jam's Jagir was not divisible, he having never been looked upon in the light of an ordinary Jagirdar. This regrant was virtually confirmed by the Acting Commissioner, Brigadier General Jacob, in a general s:i.nction accorded to Captain Pelly's Jagir Settlements. The excess of 389 bigahs was, however, not restored. 8. In the Collectorate Roll, the Jam's possessions noted in the 1. Bal T�m, } Bigahs. 
Ma.rr1. 4,� 
Seri. 

2. Half of 
Durna.ni. 4,000 3. Binda. 9,680 

margin were registered in the First Class. Major Goldsmid had already expressed an opinion that they ought to be so registered. Mr. Ellis agreed with Major Goldsmid, but distinguishing between the permanent and the casual sources of the Rayer_ revenue for whica the Jagir of Dumani had been substituted, proposed to make the unresumed half of  it hereditary, a.nd to withhold the half already resumed, • No. 1642, dated 24th Jan. 1853, ·to the Collector of"'Karachi, t Or 1,193-the writing being not very legible. 
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for which the pension of Rs. 250 had been granted for the Jam's life, and his proposal met with the sanction of the Government of Bombay, as well as of the Gov.ernment of India. 9. But the Jam raised the question of the 380 bigahs th:it had been resumed from him, insisting that they were in his origi­nal boundary. Mr. Invcrarity believed this assertion, and r£:com­mcnded to Government that it should be restored. He also specially reported the regrant which had been made by Captain Pelly. 10. The Bombay Government in their letter No. 1090, datell 17th March 1860, considered it " as a general rule inexpedient to " disturb a settlement effected 10 years ago, and the correctness ,, of which there " was " hardly reason to doubt, as the proportion '' between the lesser and greater scale of land measure was su:ffici­" cntly well ascertained." " It is possible, however," wrote they, " that this land formed portion of a Jllakan with a defined boun­" dary, in which case it would be reasonable, when restoring the " resumed share of Rahimdad, to restore this portion also." 11. The Commissioner explained that the excess resumed was " part though not necessarily a 'completing part ' of two Makaus " shown to have been in the Jam's possession, until the death of " Rahimdad caused a remeasurement." The amount was trifling and the case came most clearly under Sir llartle Frere's Circular No. 1543, of 8th October 1857, (page 100 of continuation of No. 
XVIII, Selections from Bombay Government Records) and also of his instructions to the Assistant Commissioner in his letter dated 30th November 1857. 

" The present reference," Mr. Inverarity continued, "is so far urgent that 
" a  chief like the Jam, old, fractious, and seldom looking below the surface of 
" thinrrs, natnrallv sets great value on every inch of his hereditary possessions, 
" and 

0

in large grants, like those of the First Class, it is not improbable, 
" that an occasion of remeasurement such as that now referred to may show 
" 3 or 400 bigahs more or les& than the figures registered at any time. In 
" future contingencies of the kind, a simple report would perhaps, suffice, 
" without entailing on the Commissioner, the necessity of entering eaoh time 
" into explarlator.y detail." 
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12. In reply, copy of the letter of the Bombay Government to 
the Government of India was sent to Mr. Inverarity " as  illustra­
" tive of the amount of detailed e�plana.tion neceli88,ry in casei 
" of this kind." This letter after briefly narrating the circum­
stance, stated that the excess was claimed " as bond, fide part of tho 
" J agir of N ai "-that the Commissioner believed there had been 
no encroachment-that the differeiice was solely owing to a 
variation in the mode of measurement-and that the land was of 
very trifling value. The Government of India in their No. 2472, 
dated 31st October 1860, Home Department, sanctio11ed the addi­
tion of 389 bigahs to the grant of land in the First Class already 
confirmed. 
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THE KARMA. TIS. 

1. Captain Preedy wrote about thie tribe as follows :-
,, This tribe of Baluchis came originally from Ha.lab• on the frontier 

" of Persia. On their march towards 8ind, they took possession of Karmat 
'' in Makran, where they remained for a considerable time, and from which 
" place they derive their name. From Karmat they gradually extended 
" themselves towards Sind, until finding themselves strong enough to cope 
" with the Bnrrey tribe, which then occupied the Districts lying between · 
" Karachi and the Habb river, they crossed that stream and dispossesse(t 
" the Burreys of their lands. After their conquest, the Karmatis settled. on 
" the bank of the Malir river, wllence,they extended themselves into Sakra, 
" where their chief runn resides, anJ where he obtained a Jagir on condi­
" tion that when his services might be required, he should muster his tribe 
" for the defence r4 Tatta." 2. The Karmati tribe could muster about 400 men. Their -Chief Ibn.him. Khan, joiaed the J okhias and the N umrias in order to attack the English Camp at Karachi in 1843, but the .confederates dispersed without waiting for a battle, on a smal l force m.oving out against them. t 3. This tribe appears to have heen a very ancient one. In the time of Aurangzib, two cousins by name Bijar and Babur gave in to the M:ubammadan Government a Deed of Contract .dated 14th Rajib, A. H. 1103 ( A. D. 1691), engaging to protect travellers and caravans from highway and other robbery 
en route between Lahori Bunder and the Thana of Budosar, .and 4urangzib, in the same year, _granted these Karmati.11 an allowance in .Dams e<j_ui valent to about R!il. 9,600 of our currency. '.1.'his allowance w1;1s declared in the Sa.natl of want to be in form of Jagir and Inam ui Sakra, being the very {ooality in which the tribe are at present ·  Jagirdars .. M1}an Mir Muhammad, Kalhora. 
(alias Allahyar Khan) confirmed to Murid Karmati the father of Malik Ibrahim, the J agirs b.eld by his ancestors. This confirma­tory deed bore d,;1.te 27th Rabi-ul-Awal, A. H. 1162. On the 5th 

• Aleppo. t Captain Preedy's list of men of rank in his Collect-Orate sent in lt!47, to the Commissioner. 
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J amacli us Bani, )Ur Fateh Ali, continued to Malik M urid, Allah 
lfaudo, Fatch Khan and llazar, the Jagirs of Otari, Bukcra, Ratul, 
Sammejani, Garbabru, Chuck, Mirakur, Bubra, Ra.hi and other 
lands in Sakra, these being the identical Jagirs this tribe at pre­
sent hold. They had been confirmed in them by the successors 
of Mir Fateh Ali. 
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GDBALOOICAL Tass OJ' THE BABURANI BRANCH OF THE KAR1UTIS. Babur. 
I 

I I I Malik Murid Allah Bandah. Mazar Khan. 
I 

I 

Jamal Khan. Muhammad Khan 
I Bakadar (No. 8). 

I -, I Babur. Malik (No. 5) Mazar 
I Ibrahim died Khan 
I Dec. 1845. (No. 6). 

Dau lat. 

I 
I (No. 6). 5 sons. 

I I I . 1  TaJ Mu- Ali Haji Khan Sahrab Khuda died Hth died Bakbsb. 
llarch 1855. Sept. 1849. 

hammad Muhammad. died in KaliklMurid. 

I I Fateh Muh&mmad. Sodha. 

\ 

I Notak. 
I Rahimdad. 

Fateh Khan. 
I Rahimdad. I n Mnrad 

Ali. Fate Ba uch Khan. Khan. 

n!da. 

\ 
Notak. 

I 

1853. 

Allya.n. B. I lJ&r, 

Allyan. Oalnrar. 



No. 5 �IX iBRAHll( KHA_N, JuRHATI (DECEASED) BUd­
CEEDED BY HIS SIX SONS. 

No. 6 MAZAR KHAN A.ND DAULAT KHAN, :BROTHER A.ND 
NEPHEW, RESPECTIVELY, OF No. 5. No. 7 RAHIHDA.D A.ND ALLYA.N. No. 8 MUHAMMAD KHAN (DECEASED) SUCCEEDED :BY ms soN 
BA.KADAR KHAN. 

1. Of the three brothers Malik Murid, Allah Banda and Mazar Khan who were grantees from Mir 
Genealogy aod position. Fatah Ali, Mazar Khan died without heirs, while Malik Murid left three sons Mali){ Ibrahim (No. 5), Mazar Khan (No. 6) and Babur who dying early left a son Daulat Khan (No. 6) . Allah Bando's representative is No. 8. Rahimdad and Allyan were descended from Bijar. 
2. Malik Ibrahim, Mazar, Daulat, Bakadar, Rahimdad and 

Estate. 
.Allyan were in possession of certain J agirs in Sakra at the Conquest. The first three held 2�, 712 Mirs' bigahs (=17,359 N apierian bigahs) in Babnrani, Karah, Sa.mmejani, Otharki, Rahi and Bukrani, M alik Ibrahim's share being one-hal f, and that of each of the remaining two one. fourth. Muhammad Khan heltt 24,265 Na!)ierian Bigahs in W uhreh and the last two held Clrnch, M:irakhur, Bukrani and one-half of Ba.bro, containi1 1� 10,275 �apierian bigahs. 3. Malik Ibrahim di(�d in December 1845, and Sir Charles Napier informed his sons and relatives at a ·  personal interview 

that as they were descended from one of the oldest families settled in ::,ind, and as they had, since the Conquest,, conducted themselves pt>aceably to the satisfaction of Government, an exception would be ma.de in their favour and their lands would be regranted to them without the usual deductions. The Collector of Karachi was present at the interview, and obtained the following autograph order from Sir Charles :-



35 

" I will grant to Hadji Khan K.armati, the Ja.gir held by his late 
'" father without. deducting the Fourth from either heirs or from his co-heirs. C. J. NAPIER, 

Governor. 
" This is a special favour of Government because this is one of the 

" ancient Chiefs of Sind. 
10th September 1846. 

C. J. N. " 

4. " A  reference was subsequently made to His Excellency " to ascertain whether this exception was to be considered appli­
" cable to the lands of Mazar Khan and the other branches of the " Karmati family also, and he decided that it was.•" 5. On the 28th September 1846, Sir Charles Napier granted two Sanads one for 12,060 Mirs' bigahs {=8;828 Napierian bigahs) to the six sons of Ibrahim Khan, and the other to the following :-

Mazar and Daulat Bakadar Rahimdad Allyan 
Mirs' bigahs. N apierian bigahs . . . .  1 1,654-18 = 8,531 . . .  33,148-14  -:- 24,265 . .. 9,:35i-12 = 6,8.50 , .. 4,(i78-15 = 3,425 Bot.h Sanads were similar in wording. The division of the land held by Malik Ibrahim Khan, :Mazar, and Daulat had been made by the parties, and Sir Charles confirmed it by his Sanad. 6 . ·  One of the six brothers-:fah rab Khau, died in 1849, without male issue, and another, 'faj Muhammad in 1853. l'he shares of both were not n:surned but allowed to the sm-vivors. In March 1855, Haji, the eldest, died and his share was granted to his son Malik Mm·id. On the 7th July 1855, Captain Pelly in his Ap­pendix I to his �akro Roll, recommended that all the J agirs of the Karmatis (Nos. 5 to 8) should be put in the First Class, as it was clear they had held " in Sakra �ince the time of the Delhi Kings." As however, Bakadar's holding in comparison with that of the sons of Ibrahim Khan, seemed to him inconsistent with the relative 

* No. 294, dated 26th 1''ebruary 1850, from the Collector of Karachi, Captain Pree<t_,, 
t4 the Deputy Collector of Ghorabari 
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position of these incumbent!J, he suggested that upon the demise of the parties in whose ll1\mes Sir Charles had granted his two Sanads, a re-apportionment of the entire lands there in confirmed should be made, and only ¼th granted to the heirs, the rem1.inin g  t-ths being Aqually divided between t.he sons of Ibrahim Khan on the one hand,. and the heirs of the remaining pnrties named in the two S:1,n!l.ds on the other. He also recommended that in the event of any gr,rntee dying without heirs, his share should be thrown into the general alienation, but should not be resumed. 7. M 'ljor Gol clsrnid agreed with Captain Pelly in  all his pro­posals, except th11t of lumping together the whole estate. His reasons on this point met with the Commissioner's approval ( "'\1'"o. 85 of April 1�5R), and in the list of First Class Jagirdars submitt.ed to Government, the heirs of Ibrahim Khan were accordingly re­commended for a hereditary grant of 8,828 bigahs, Mazar and Daulat for 8,531 bigilohs, Rahimdad for 6,850 bigahs, Allya.n for 3,425, and Jam;il Khan son of Bakadar, who had died in February 185S, for 24,265 bigahs. These recommendations were sanctioned by Government. 
8. Before, however, the Sanads could be issued, Allyan died in December 1859. He left no male issue, but the Government was pleased to admit his brother Gawhar as a lineal descendant 

of Bija.r to Allyan's share, and the Sanad (No. 104) was, therefore, issued to Rahimdad and Ga.whar. Malik Ibrahim's heirs were confirmed hereditarily in their possessions by Sanad No. 102. Mazar and Daulat by Sanad No. 103, and Jamal Khan by Sanad 
No. 106. 
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THE JA TS. 

1 Lieutenant L}ech in his printed Report of 1839 wrote regarding this tribe as fallows :-
" The Jats inhabit the Jati Parga.on. about Mughirbi ; their Sirriar'!ll 

" name is Ghulam Hussen ; they owe allegiance to Mir (Mir) Muhammad ; 
" they amount to 12,000 altogether in family feuds, including those i n  Cutch 
" and Warai, whence every other man comes to join his brethren on emer­
" gency, but in the Mirs' feuds only 800 present themselves at muster." 2. In A. D. 1727 the Emperor Muhammad Shah cif Delhi granted what was then called the ' Thanadari ' and ' Zamindari • of Jati, to Hamal Jat in ronsideration of his engaging to put down the robbers and marauders who in those clays infested the Rann of Cutch, and from time to time made predatory incursions. into Tatta. This grant continued to be enjoyed by Ilamal's descendants in the time of the Kalhoras and even of Mir Fateh Ali. Mir Ghulam Ali, however, appears to have interfered with their grant, for we find Mirs Karm Ali and :Murad Ali continuing " as much of it as consisted in 13,700 Mirs' bigahs." They also awarded to the family 28 kharwars of grain and 1,200 Rs. in  cash. yc.1rly. · The family had for generations maintained intim:wy with the Cutch Durbar, and enjoyed great influence in the Taluka called after them. 

G ENEALOGIC u. TREE. 

Hamal or Hamar Khan. 
I 

Miran Khan. 
I 

Rodo Khan. 
I 

Darya Khan. 
I 

Bakada.r Khan. 
I 

Ghulam Hussen. 
I 

Jahan Khan. 
---o---
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9. :MALIK GHULA.ll HrrSSEN, JA.T (DECEASED) SUCCEEDED 
BY J ARAN KHAN. 1. Malik Ohulam Hussen was fifth in: descent from Hamal, Position. the governor and grantee of J ati in the time of Muhammad Shah. 2. He was found at the Conquest in possession of 13,700 

Esi&te. 
:Mirs' bigahs in J ati, and · these were restored to him by Sir Charles Napier at the intercession of Colonel Roberts, the Political Agent at Cutch. On his death, however, in 1846, Captain Rathborne sequestrated the Jagir� prob:ibly on the ground that it had not been granted heredi­tarily by Sir Charles. "Soon after the family took the Ijara " (farm) of the whole District, and s_o were, for the time, content " to let matters rub on, but the fa.rm eventually ruined them instead '" of restoring them to prosperity."• Jahan Khan then applied fo the Commissioner for the regrant of his Jagir, and Captain Pelly reported that the Jagir having been granted by Mirs Karm Ali and Murad Ali fell in the 3rd Class, and recommended that as  an E>xceptional case the chowth might be remitted . Mr. Frere, liowever, 1u,ked the Collector whether J ahan Khan did not deserve to be rank..ed in the class of Sirdars, and to be registered among hereditary Jagirdars. Jahan Khan in the -meantime went to the Rao of C11tch to erave his counse� and the Rao on causing a search to be made in his archives. found the original Sanad of :Muhammad Shah to Hamal, a copy of which was sent to Captain Preedy by the Political Agent, who pleaded very strongly for the .Tat Chief. Oaptain Pelly accordingly recommended that Jahan Khan shou.ld be placed in the First Class, and the Acting Commis­ttloner, Colonel Jacob, agreed to this proposal, and the Govern­ment of Bombay, as well as the Supreme Government confirmed it. At the time of the settlement, bis Sanad (No. 106), accordingly, fieCUred 9,591 Napierian bigahs in Jati to his heirs. 

* Colonel Le Grand Jacob, Political Agent, Cutch's letter to Captain Preedy, Collector of Karachi, datad 27th J&flJJMJ l&ci. 
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THE OHANDIA.S. 

1. Lieutenant Leech in his printed Report on the Sindian Army wrote, in 1839, regarding this tribe as follows :-" The Chandias are under Wali Muhammad. He resides nt Ghaibi Sultan ,, and commands 1 ,000 men. The Chandias are divide<l into Ghaibianis, " Bhandns, Sarejas, Ajwanis, Sakhanis, Khashas and Bagais. The Amirs " are assisted by 8,000 men. In this caste was a Maghsi, who about a year " ago killed (one of the) Rind (tribe) who sent a messenger to the Chandias, " saying that they were going to war with the Maghsis and deprecated " the Chandias assisting their enemies. The Maghsis secretly sent one of " their principal men to the Chandias, seeking for protection ,vhich was " secretly . granted, and_ when the battle comm�nced, the Chandias cam� in, " and decided the day m favour of the Maghs1s, and 120 men of the Rmds " were killed." 2. The part taken by the Chandias in Sir Charles Napier's Campaign against the Hill tribes will be presently stated. 
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10. WA.LI MUHAMMAD CHA.NDIA. {DECEASED) SUCCEEDED 

BY W WERO GHAIBI KHAN. 

Genealogy. 1. Wali Muhammad's genealogy is thus given by Major Goldsmid :-Mirza Khan. 
I Ghaibi Khan. 
I Wali Muhammad ·Khan. 

2. The admission of this Chief's heirs to 
P011ition. the class of First Class Jagirdars solely depended upon his position, and it is therefore necessary to dwell on it at greater length than has been done in other cases. Just before the battle of Miani Wa1i Mnhammad had followed the Brit­ish army with his Contingent, (which accordiI;1g to Sir William Napier, numbered 10,000 warriors) so closely that he was within one march of the battle field when the action was fought. i'he victory, however, arrested his further progress, and " he retreated " across the Indus to his own country, where, in concert with " others, he resisted all Ali Murad's attempts to take possession " of the lands ceded in right of the turban. These confederates " being too strong for the Amir, he proposed a conference to " which they c:i,me, twenty-nine in number, with a hundred and " fifty followers ; but Ali Murad having prepared an ambuscade " killed several and captured the rest, amongst them Wali Chan­" dia." The prisoners were taken by the Mir to Sir Charles Napier who, however, expressed his regret at the treatment they had experienced, and restored to . them their liberty and their possessions. " The scene with Wali," writes Sir William Napier, " was thus described at the time " :-" He is a fine vigorous old man, resembling in look a large owl ; for his " white hair and bearrl, thick, and clustering like feathers, discloses of his " bronzed countenance little more than a very hooked nose, and two immense " round black lustrous eyes, which he kept fixed on the General without a 
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" wink, and in perfect silence, until the speech-which announced his restorn­" tion to freedom was interpreted. Then he eagerly asked, • Is this true ? " Am I free ? may I go ? '  ' yes .' ! The old man rushed without another word " from the house, and ma.de for bis own country with headlong haste, and, it 
11 was falsely supposed, with a. heart more touched by the wrong than the " redress ; but when safe amongst his tribe be exclaimed,-' the Feringhi " General has given me my life, my land and my sword! I a.m "his slave: "• 3. In 1844, accordingly, Wall Muhammad offered his servi­ces against Bija Khan, Dumbki, who with Darya Khan, Jakhrani, had expelled the Khyhiris from Kn.chi in 1827-28 in Kalat-had been expelled in turn by Major Billamore's expedition in 1839-had been finally restored to the land of the Khyhiris by Mr. Ross Bell, then Resident in Upper Sind-but had resumed his plundering incursions into Sind after the evacuation of Kachi by the British troops. t " Already Kach Gundava had been rendered " desolate and the Sindian · frontier was nearly as miserable, few " villages were left standing, and scarcely any cultivators were " to be found between Shikarpur and Puliji the stronghold of Bija." Mir Sher Muhammad had taken refuge with the Bugtis, Jakhranis, and Dumbkis, and these had in 1844 committed an inroad with unusual ferocity. The attempt of FitzGerald to surprise Bija. in Puliji had signally failed, and as the hot weather had set in, Sir Charles Napier willingly accepted the offer o� the Chandia Chief, to whom he had publicly given a sword of honour at the Durbar held in May 1844 for his onslaughts on the robbers. Before long W ali Muhammad succeeded in killing above fortf of the J akhranis, and sent in more than five hundred head of their cattle.: He had a blood feud with the Dumbkis, " and from his stronghold, " thirty miles west of Larkana, be could launch_ several thousand " warriors agairist their hills where the Marris were his allies."§ But the Marris were shortly afterwards worsted by the Bu.gtis 

* " Administration of Bind "-page 62-63. 
t Vidl Records of the Bind Im,gular I;lonwt-page !711, 
? " Administration of Bind "-page 107, 

§ l'fnrl. pap 11& 



42 and when Wall answered bis friends' call for help-he was also defd&.ted.• 4. Wa.li, however, though unsuccessful in this contest was able to catch a noted robber, Naubat Khan, for whose capture a reward of 1,000 Rs. had been offered by Sir Charles Napier. This reward together with NaubatKhan9s sword was given to hiin at a public Durbar held in La.rkana by the Governor, and Sir Charles Na pier in his letter to Lord Ellenboro�gh dated 19th December 184'4 praised the Wali's ' perfect fidelity '.t In this same month Sir Charles fixed his plan of operations against the Hill tribes, ann on the 16th January 1 8.J,5 crossed the frontier, Wali Cbandia leading his advanced guard.t The Chief was assigned the task of scouring the rn.vine of Tung-the Chandias being, in Sir Charles' opinion, ' good feelers' .§ Captain Jacob had great difficulty in getting the Chandias to wear some distinguishing mark, but at last they agreed to carry a piece of blue cloth in their turbans. They declared there was no water at Tung-but still carried out the order. Tht>y found Ilija gone but some cattle remaining, and, to quote the wor<ls of Sir Charles Napier, " Wali did his job like an " artist, no sheep or goat escaped. "1 He was told to pl under the Bugtis well, (the Bugtis whom Sir Charles called " the Pindaris " of the Inclus) " and Sir Charles wished to establish him at or near Puliji [I provided he took the Kbyhiri� under his protection n.nd paid the Government share of the produce to the Kalat Prince. Captain Jacob, how-ever, on sounding the Chief at a conference. found him averse to settling there, and on a�king him to think over the matter was told the Chandias would not consent to settlement, unless all the lands of Bija Khan were 
* " Administration of Sind "-page U4. t Administration of Sind-page 356. 1: Do. C,o. page 183. � Do. do. page HM. "'if Records or the Sind Irregular Horse-page 61. 
ti Jbid--page 64. 



43 given them free in Jagir, and unless they were regularly paid during the first year by the British Government, the country being deserted. 
" This," wrote Captain Jacob, " ill' of course absurd, and the Chandias 

" know it to be so. I am certain from what I have now seen of them, that 
" even if they were to agree to settle here they would not, and could not 
" do it ; the terror with which they look on these Kacbi looters and the men 
.. o! the hills is beyond belief. I am certain that they would all run away 
" immediately our troops were withdrawn from their neighbourhood on the 
" approach (or report of the approach) of the Dumbkis, Jakhranis, &c. The 
" fellows' 'dark countenances actually turn pale at the thought of remaining 
" here." Hereupon Sir Charles wrote to Captain Jacob :-

• Wali had better go home, as he won't take a crown I We must throw 
•· him overboard as an ally, for his future co-operation would not be worth 
" paying for. " 5. And again on 6th February 1845 :-

" Send home the Chandias with all sorts of butter ; as there are no 
" parsnips in Sind, fair words must do for the present, as  the money and 
" parsnips are together." 6. Captain Jacob, however, recommended that as the 800 Cbandias who had followed W ali O had been put to considerable " inconvenience and dreadfully frightened ", they might be paid at the rate of 2 annas a day per head, which had been promised to them by Sir Charles. " I  think, " he added, " it would be as " well to let them go home at once. . They are quite useless. "t They had been only 20 days with the force, and were, therefore entitled to 2,000 Rs. only. Their place was taken by the Marris who agreed to occupy the Bugti Country-and henceforward we lose sight of Wali Muhammad Chandia altogether. He died on the 27th of June 1850'!,  and was succeeded by his eldest son Ghaibi Khan. 7. Wali ::Muhammad left a Jagir in Dera Ghaibi and Mirzapur 

F.atate. in the Larkan.a Taluka. These villages had been granted as such to him, and several other 
• Recorda of the Sind Irregular Horse-Vol I, page 67-68. 
t Do. do. page 69-71. 
l Letter from the Acting CollectoJ', Shilrarpur, to the Oommiaaicmer, No. 33', dated 

tad July 1860, 



Chandias, by Mir Murad Ali under a Sanad dated the 2nd Rabi-us­Sani A. H. 1233 (= A. D. 1817) in lieu of pay and 1,733 Mirs' bigahs of Seri previously held.• Th� villages of Dera Gha.ibi and Mirzapur had never since the Conquest been measured, but were at a rough calculation taken to extend to about 40,000 bigahs, of which, however on]y aho?t five or six thousand were cultivated, as the Jagirs ran principally along the foot of the llala mountains and depended for their supply of water upon rain. The most productive portion lay in  the vicinity of Wagan and Kambar where it received some irrigation :irom the Nurwah at the tail of the Ghar.t 8. The Collector statedt that the resumption of the waste lands would be tantamount to depriving the Chief " of the " commonest means of support ", and to the confiscation of the " whole of his Jagir. " Moreover ", he continued, " the land intrinsically would be of little " value to us were we to take it, while the retention of the Chandia Chief " in !I. position of respectability and honour amongst his own people, and " the advantages thereby accruing to Government from having a frontier " tribe of their strength faithful and well disposed to us, would appear to be " of great political expedience, and therefore of paramount importance." In another lettert the Collector doubted whether Sir Charles Napier's rule for the. resumption of waste lands at all ap­plied to rain lands, for they. were left waste not because the J agir­dar would not cultivate them but because he could not, and they were by no means useless to him. 9. Mr. Pringle was " disposed to extend every reasonable " indulgence to so respectable and influential a Chief as the head " of the Chandia tribe "-but was not prepared to set aside the rules laid down deliberately and authoritatively by Sir Charles 
• The Sanad contained the mual reae"ation of " Sayer contracts-tu on fisher­" men and Poll tu "  in favour or the ruling power and secured to the Chandia 9o-gr�Mea of W ali )Jnbatmmf!d their " eubeiatence and allowance n from the J agir. t Letter from the A.ctiag Collector of Slubrpar to the Oc,mmillionv, NG. 434, elated 28th September 1860. % No. ea. dated 17tll October lSW. 



N'.lpier, without any precedent.• He, therefore, forwarded the correspondence to the Collectors of Haidarabad and Karachi with a request to be informed as to whether the rules had be.en applied in their Collectorates to lands similarly situated. Captain Preedy replied that a similar quest.ion h1d been mootCll on the death of Haj i ·Khan, Laghari, whose lands i n  K.ach'.l, a pargana for the most p1rt a vast inclined phin sloping upwarJs from the valley of the Indus, were situated near the IIala mountains, ma.ny miles from the River or from any can:il, and clcpendell for their supply of water upon freshes from the Nai Gaj impeded and retained by means o f  bnnds. Captain Preecly had recommended that the Jagir should be regrantcd in  i ts entirety on condition of the regrantcc keeping the buuds in  good order and the enclosed areas free from jungl� and ready for cultivation .  But Sir Charles Napier Im.cl regrantcd it, " minus " the waste lands and subject to a tax of {-th •produce." Captain lfathborne stated that Sir Charles had refused to concede the " barren hills and plains " claimccl by the N um rias and the J okhias and that his main object was not to part with rights whieh at some time or other might prove " essential to the fut ure in­" terests both of Government and of the people, " with the pro­gress of civilization . The J agir, moreover, had been only recent ly granted, and could have no hereditary associatians connected with it, and Captain Rathbornc did not see how the deyiation aclvocat­e<l by thf Acting Collector could be admitted without extendin� the same indulgence to the other Sirdars, many of whom, in his estimation, " held a much higher position th.1n Ghaibi Khan. '.' He therefore suggested that in accordance with the preceden t  of Sir Charle"' Napier in the case of the N umrias, theChandia Chief shoulcl be allowed free of  rent all land cultivated within the last 5 year�, and Mr. Pringle eventually agreed with this viewt, though ho 
* No. 1587, dated 8th October 1850, to the Collector, Shikarpur, and No. 1771, dated 24th October 1850, to Do. t Captain Rathbome's No. 890, dated 14th November 1850, and Mr. Pringle'" �o. 19141 dated 20th November 1850, to the Acting Collector of Sbikarpur. 



46 
nccompanicd the regrant with the present of a valun.blc matchlock worth 400 Rs. at the recommendation of the Acting Collector. 10. Ghaibi Khan, however, was by no means satisfied with this decision, and when the measurers went to his Jagir he petitioned the Commissioner personally at L�rkana, and asked him to stop the survey, " a  thing that never had been " done before". Mr. Frere on the 4th March 1851 , sent the pe­tition for report to the Collector who replied that " by confis­" eating the uncultivated portion of the Chandia Jagir" the authorities were acquiring " no gain in the remotest degree " for Government," and rendering the tribe and their chief " dis­" satisfied and disaffected to our rule." Ile estimated Ghaibi Khan's followers at from five to six thousand men, who were mostly looated on his Jagir, and calculated the extent of land oi which the Jagirdar would be deprived under Mr, I>ringle's . decision at a lakh and a half, or a lakh and three quarters of bigahs. The J agir, moreover, could not be divided into culth·ated and uncultivated portions, ns these were too much intermixed to admit conveniently of any such partition, and it would, therefore, be necessary to resume a large slice on one side of nn extent equal to the whole amount forfeited. This, the Collector said, would effectually reduce the J ngirdar's position in comparison with the other frontier Chiefs in the Kcfo.t territory, whose estates adjoined his. On this point he invited a reference to the Political Superin­tendent, Upper Sind Frontier, who on reading the whole corres­pondence gave it as his opinion that, " the Chandia lands and " Chandia tribe being peculiarly situntell" the question should be decided on as a special case-that " the Chandia Chief should be " confirmed in the possession of nll parts of his father's lands " during bis life time/' but that the terms of the grant " should " clearly express that the Jagir (was) liable to be resumed, or that ,: th ! conditions under which it is held, modified to any extent " Government (might) think proper on the denth'' of Ghaibi Khan, or in the case of misconduct on the part of himself or hi1 • No. U9, datod 5th Karch 1851, and No. 207, dated 21st March 1861. 



47 tribe• Mr. Frere agreed with Major Jacob and recommended to Government ,that " the course proposed by him" should be " adopted. u a special case, not applicable a.s a precedent to " Jagirs in genern,1," to which, he thought, it was not parallel. " A large majority or them have valul\ble lands which they cannot, but " which Government can, turn to account. The amount of revenue so given " up is very great compared with the inportance of the Jagirdars, and the " posseMion ofthe J agir is frequently detrimental to improvements,such as ex­.. tension of irrigation, to which the intervention of a large Jagir in the " hands of a pauper Jagirdar is often a serious obstacle." 11. None of these objections could with equal force, ac. cording to Mr. Frere, be urged in the case of Ghaibi Khan. The value of his resumable lands, present and prospective, was very small. The existence of the J agir in friendly hands was a matter of little importance, and " perhaps beneficial rather than other­" wise." The Jaginlar, moreover, was head of a tribe, which in character, comparative civilisation, and habits held a position between the Baluchis of the Hills and those who had long sett�ed in Sind, and which it was desirable to keep well affected. t The Bombay Government in their reply; entertained no doubt that in a political point of view the adoption of the course suggested by Mr. Frere was advisable, and accordingly autho­rized, " subject to the confirmation of the Honourable the Court " of Directors, the continuance of the lands in question to Ghaibi " Khan for bis life, liable to be resumed on the conditions on which " they (were) held to be modified as Goven1ment (might) deem '' expedient after his demise, or in case of misconduct on the " part of himself or his tribe." The regrant was " to be con­" sidered personal to Ghaibi Khan for his life, as a special case, " and not to be regarded ns a precedent." 'fhe Court of Direct­ors confirmed the order of the Bombay Government in favour of Ghaibi Khan, " it being fully understood that the eventual " disposal of his J agir ( was) open to reconsideration on his demise.§'' * No. 82, dated 16th April 1851, from Major John Jacob to Kr. Frere. t No. 6501 dated 24th April 1851, from the Commissioner to Government. t No. 2675, dated 20th J1�ne 1851, Political Department. § Despatch dated 3rd November 1852, para. 46. 



48 12. In Captain Pelly's Taluka Roll of Larkana we find the 
Settlement. 

following two J agirs regist.ered in the name of Ghaibi Khan :-Dero Ohaibi, unmeasured but estimated to contain 1,47,025 bigaba. lfirzapur unmeasured, but estimated to contain 1,47.024' ,, In his Mehar Roll there is a third Jagir in Ghaibi Khan's name, Khari U stillah containing 2,000 bigahs, the origin of which Captain Pelly had apparently been unable to trace, as he left the column of " grantee" blank. This Jagir was not mentioned by the Collector of Shikarpur, and the Persian records do not show how it came to be in Ghaibi Khan's possession. Captain Pelly quoted the Despatch of the Court of Directors, and did not feel himself called upon to make any recommendation as the J �gir had been dealt with in the Political Department. He, however, ignored the fact that this Jagir had never been brought to the notice of Government, and that Mir Murad Ali's San.ad was altogether silent regarding it. lla,jor Goldsmid also made no dis­t inction bet ween the J agir granted by Mir Murad Ali and this one, and, after referring to the Despatch, submitted thatGhaibi Khan's possessions (2,96,049 big:\hs) , registered in the Taluka Rolls might be " considered a first class hereditary grant saddled with the " conditions (already) attached to the tenure." Mr. Ellis concurred in this recommendation. He said the reason why Ghaibi Khan's Jagirs did not date farther back than 1818 was probably to be found in the fact that until that year ihe border chiefs had not. been sufficiently reduced to· subjection to acknowledge a superior, and that whenever cultivation was extended by canals cut at the expense of the British Govern• ment-thc rule applied to the territory of the Khan , of Kelat could be also applied to the estate of Ghaibi Khan, who would receive " half only of the tax on the produce realized, the other " half being taken by the British Government." The Bombay Government felt some hesitation in recommending this J agir for hereditary confirmation, but eventually decided that if the rule 



40 referred to by M.r. Ellis was stl'ictly enforced there would be no sacrifice of the interests of Government. As, however, the posi­tion of the Chief was a peculiar one they suggested that a N aza­rana also might be imposed on each succession. The Government of India, however, thought it scarcely worth while to impose upon the J agir any exceptional conditions. 13. Ghaibi Khan's Sanad securccl to his heirs the whole of the Jagirs of Ghaibi Dero, Mirzapur, and Khari Ustillah " accord­" ing to the established boundaries," in perpetuity, " free of all " assessment, except 5 per cent. for Roads and Schools, but subject, '' should the British Government see fit, to the payment of a " N azarana not excPeding Rs. 2,000 on each succession." The areas of the 3 Jagirs were given according to the 'faluka Rolls­but in the column of remarks it was noted that the estimates ha.cl been made by the Kardars in  1853. This is the only Jagir­dar whose heir is liable under the Sanad to pay a Nazarana. 14. At. the time the Sanad was given it was ni,t recollected that there was a charge against Ghaibi Khan of sending armed men to take forcible possession of the Dhar Yaru Bill on the "\Yest i:side of his Jagir from �he Chutta tribe. 'fhe hill wa5 declared to belong to the territory of His Highness the Khan of Kelat, but on account of the delay ma-de in reporting upon this point-Ghaibi Khan was merely cautioned, on the 10th March 1862, not to repeat his offence. " The British Government," wrote •the Commisaioner, " would see i�� " Jagirdars prosperous and happy, but they mnst'be loyal and true subject8 " of Government, and to be loyal and true they must abide by the Laws " of Government, which do not aanction aggresaion and Tiolence." 

• No. 104, dated 10th March 1862, to the Collector or Shikarpur, P•litical Departmenl. 



50 11. FAZAL, lfARRI (DECEASED) SUCCEEDED BY A.AltIHD.A.D, 

AND 

The full genealogy of the Hajizai Marris to which the Genealogy. a hove J agirdars belonged will be found in the Sub-section devoted to the �irdan of this tribe. It is here only necessary to give the following short tree :-
J A.FF ..&.R Ks.u. 

Karimdad Sahib Khan. (died in 1795, without issue), I 
Shahak (died l�). }Iir.io Nawab Khan :Mir Hassan (died 1831), (killed by one of :Mir Fat.eh Ali's (died I officera-1.eft no iHue). 1819). 

Ali )Iurad (died '-'hildless ll:129), 
1 -- ·-1 I Imam Bakhsh, 3 other sons. I Fazul Muhbat. Soh,ab. (died Uth r,-1 1858). I Karimdad:;:: a dauB.hter married j to Karimdad. 

1'•j Muhammed 2 .  Mir Nasir Khan ma?ried a daughter of Fazul who was .Position. the mother of Mir Abbas .Ali. The family, ac • 
cord ing to Captain Stack, waa one of '' rank and " con1ideration."• 3. 'fhe following Ahdnamah w� es:ecuted by the first four 
Amits, though sealed only by Mir Fateh Ali 
accordi:ng to usual practice, on the 17th Shaiban, 

120.J. or A. D_. l 789. 



51 u The Amira, Fateh Ali, Ghnlam Ali, Karm Ali, and Murad Ali " giY& their Baluch word and engage (�� � J � ) (as follows) :-" The Malmn of Chanrath with Kheti Korai appendant to it, from the " date p.ereof, is fixed as blood money for the murder of Nawab Khan• and '' conferred { � .Jl..wl ) by way of Jagir (;I� )fa. ) on Shahak, Karimdad, " Mirzo and Mir Hassan, Marris. The said Marris keeping the said lands 
n in their possessions for ever(}�J.)11.lA) (Mudam Mustadam) to enjoy " their produce season by season. We and our heirs ( .JlJI } will sanction " �his in such wise that from these and their heirs( .., lJI ) whether they remain in '' our service or not, the lands now given shall never be resumed. This " parwana is written as an Ahdnamah." This Ahdnawa.h was subsequently confirmed by the seals of Mir Fateh Ali's colleagues and successors up to the date of the Conquest. 4. On Karimdad's death in 1795 his share was enjoyed by the remaining survivors-his nephews. One of these, Shahak died in 1800, and his son Ali Murad was admitted to his share (!rd)-Another of them, Mir Hassan, died in 1819, and his 3 sons (of whom Fazul was the eldest) divided bis ½rd share amongst themselves by a private arrangement to which the sanction of the ruling power was not obtained. Ali Murad died childless in 1829 and Mir Nasir Khan gave his share to Karim. dad, the eldest son of Fazul. Mirzo the remaining survivor of the original grantees died in 1831 and his sons, the eldest or whom was Imam Baksh, divided his ½rd into 4 shares by a pri­vate arrangement unsanctioned by the Amirs. Fazul's brother lluhbat died without male issue in April 1851, bequeathing his ½rd of his father's ½rd share to his daughter's son Taj Muhammad whom he had adopted aa his son. But this share was resumed by the OoBector of Karachi. Fazul himself died on the 14th lla.1 1853, when the whole tangled · skein of family right, was unravelled by Captain Stack who recommended that the private 

* " An agent named, Arzi Larkar having been deepatched by the Mira to procure a aupply of camels proceeded to tho Tillage in which were reaiding NAwab Khan and hi■ fa­mily. The villagers complained of the exactiona that were being made on them by the llir'a Agent, and represented their grievance& to Nawab Khan, who at once pruceeded to the camp of Ani Larkar, but wu ahot by that pel'BOn while endeavonring to obtain re• drele," ( Lwvtmant St,vart', No. }61, elated 11tlt OclOM" 185�, to t!M ColllCJor). 



52 divisions should be ignored, aQd suggested a mode of settlement which, however, did not meet with the Commissioner's approval. }Ir. Frere was of opinion that as the original title deed had been granted to four individuals without any reservation on ac­count of individual services, and without a special division into shares, it was not " equitable to resume any portion so long as " legitimate male heirs of the original grantees, or of auy one of " them,'' were in existence. The special recognition of Karimdad by Mir Nasir Khan was not held conclusive by him agll.inst the rights of survivors, as Karimdad was himself one of several heirs and as on one of the co-grantees' death in 1795 his share had de­volved on the survivors. He therefore suggested. that the whole of the Jagir of Chanrath with Korai, inclusive of the portion resumed by the Collector of Karachi, " be confirmed hereditarily " to the legitimaie male heirs of the original grantees, and con­" tinued in the name of Karimdad son of Fazul, and Imam Bakhsh " son of Mirzo, the eldest representatives of the grantees,'' without any deduction of Chowth, or of. waste lands, the tenure being not a service tenure and being expressly of a permanent nature.• r,. Mr. Frere's letter was sent to the Inam Commissioner, Mr. C. J. :Manson, who inquired about the extent and value of the .J agir, and the exact term used for ' heirs' in the Ahdnamah, and recommended that in the Registers the following additions should be made to the names of the senior representatives :- " and " other descendants, male and female, (or only male, as the case " may be) from the bodies of the four original grantees.'' 6. The Acting Commissioner, Mr. Bellasis, after calling for n report from Captain Goldsmid was of opinion that the term ' .Aulad' used in th� Sanad meant strictly ' male issue', and that the addition of the above clause in the Registers " might lead " to an inference injurious to the rights of claimants in other ·cases " where no such details (had) been entered, should a question be * No. 458, dated 16th November 1863, from the CoDUaiesioner to Government. 
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" hereafter raised and a comparison instituted." The value of 
the Jagir was Rs. 1,712 after deducting Canal expenses, and the 
extent recorded was 20,880 N apierian bigabs. • 

7. The Government Resolutiont ran as follows :-" In the opinion that the grant should be viewed a.-. an undivided one, " and continuable as a whole, His Lordship in Council concurs. Govern­,, ment also approve of Hr. Frere's proposed settlement " The effect of this settlement will be to prevent alienation from the fa­" mily by decrees of Civil Courts, in fact to entail the estate on the " family for whose benefit it waa granted, and to ensure that in the event '' of the race becoming extinct, the revenue will laJ>8e to the public. And '' no claim to inheritance by adoption or illegitimate issue can be advanced. '' · · · · The validity of the confirmation given by this Gonrnment is, '' of _course, contingent on the Government of India approving of the ruleR •' which are to be submitted with the Commissioner's plan for settlement of •' Jagir claims in Sind." 
8. Under this Resolution the portion of Muhbat Khan re­

sumed by Captain Preedy was restored to the Jagirdars-but 
its distribution became a source of internal contention. Karimdad 
claimed the whole share as he represented Fazul the elder brother 
of the deceased. The younger brother, Suhrab, yet alive, claimPd 
an equal share. Captain Goldsmid while on cir�uit used his 
good offices and succeeded in bringing about a family arrange­
ment under which Karimdad agreed to give 3 shares out of 7 
to his uncle from the proceeds of the restored land. The bond 
of agreement was witnessed by Cl\ptain Goldsmid, and he re­
ceived the Commissioner's thanks for the trouble he had talren 
in securing " to a respectable family the peaceful possession of 
11 a property which would otherwise have been wasted in fruitless 
" lawsuits" .i 

9. In the Collectorat.e Roll of Karachi, Captain Pelly entered 
the total area of Cbanrath and Korai in Dadu as 17,193-18 
bigabs. The measurement made in 1845 had shown these to 

• No. 173, dated Slat May 1854, to Government. t No. 318!, dated 19th June 1854. "- No. 111, dated 11\h Januar, 18o5, rrom Hr. Frere to Captain Goldamid. 



be 31,008 (Mir Nasir Khan's bigahs) and the portion of ::Mubbat 
which had been resumed by the Collector in 1851 was 2,609-18 
}firs' bign.hs. In the Statement of First Class J agirdars submitted 
to Government in 1858 by Major Goldsmid Chanrath was shown 
in  Dadu ancl Korai in Moro, and their areas were entered as 
18,809 N apicrian bigah:; and 5,787 N apierian bignhs, rcs­
pe:rti ,cly. 
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12. ALLABD.il>, G ilOL. This J'agirdar was given his small holding of 14 Napierian bigahs in Ranni-ka.Kot in perpet-uum under the 
Origin of eet.ate. concluding paragraph of His Excellency's pro-clamation of 1847. 2. It was proposed by Yr. Ellis to confirm this Jagir as the 

Settlement. 
holding was in a wilderness-a. desert tract in which this small patch of ground was cultivated with great labour. The proposal was sanctioned. 

Death. 
3. The J a.girdar died in 1876 without male issue and bis grant lapsed to Government. ( Vide Col­

lector of Karachi', No. 2686, dated 19th of January 1877) . 



16 13. lliI.H.DUII JlUCID GA.HJ' BA.KEISH. OeneaJoa. The Genealogy -of this Jagir was as follows :-Makhdum Hamid Ganj Bak.bah. 
I Shamsuddin. 
I Makhdum Hamid Ganj Bakheh. 2. This family were settlers in U ch in the Ba.hawalpur ter­

Posit.ion. 
ritory and are said to be of great repute and sanctity. In 1847 the Na.wab of Ba.hawalpur interceded with the Commissioner for the exemption of this Jagirdar from certain exactions levied from him, and M.r. Pringle ordered that they should be discontinued. ( No. 12, dated 3rd January 1848) . 3. " It appears," wrote Major Goldsmid, " that for many Estate. " years-certainly from the time of the Kal­" horas-this family of llakhdums has been in " possession of the large J agir of Kadirpur ; so it is declared " in Mir Sohrab's Sanad of the 16th of February 1791, A. D. " which in itself is a document of more than 60 years prior to " the British Conquest." The extent of Kadirpur was entered as 6,785 bigahs. It was situated in the Ghotl"i Taluka. 4. Mr. Ellis agreed with Major Goldsmid that the J agir 

Settlement. 
should be ranked in the First Class and as this proposal was sanctioned, the Jagirdar's Sanad No. 98 secured to the lineal male heirs as usual the whole of Deh Kadirpur " in consideration of ·the antiquity of his Jagir." 
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u .. SALAR, LAKilI. In his M�morandum on Shikarpur, page 16, MajO'l' Gold­smid after describing the capture of Shikar-
Oenet.logy t.nd poeition. pur by Nur Muhammad, Kalhora, and re-ferring to his Brohi Campaigns in whicli his Lieutenant Mura<l Gunga won fresp. laurels, made a eulogistic mention of the good services of " l1ir Bahram, son of Shahdad Khan, Talpur Baluch, " Shah Bahra, and Raja L:ikhi." Salar Lakh.i was a grandson of this Raja who was a ' Kh.alifo' or Deputy• of considerable dis. tinction at the Court of the Kalhoras. Raja had nine sons, one of whom Bibwal gave the name io Bilawalpul' in Sehwan, and the other Tajo father of Salar to Tajpur in l\.fatari. " Raja and " his family had no doubt vory large alienations in Seri ancl " Deradari, among others the whole Parg::ma of Santani."t 2. Salar stated to Major Goldsmid that on 

Estate. the accession of the Talpurs to power his rela­tions fled the country. He, and Bilawal, howeYe1·, returned and obtained the allotments of Pullano Makan from Mir Sohrab u�der a. Sanad dated 11th June 1809, on condition of bringing it under cultivation, digging a canal at their own expense, and employing other than Government Zamindars. 1'hc grant was confirmed by Mir Ali Murad on 11th September 1844, and on the resumption of Naushahro from His Highness it was recon­firmed to Salar under.the orders of the Commissioner, datecl 8th March 1853. 3. In his Naushahro Roll, Major Goldsmid had recommend­
Settlement. 

ed Salar for a second class hereditary grant-­but in his report on first Class Jagirdars he included him among them. As the grant was comparat.ively tl'iffing and could not be well diminished, being only 218 bigahq and worth only Rs. 16 a year, and as the family in former days ruled whole districts, �Ir. Hllis felt no hesitation in supporting Major Goldsmid's recommendation, and it was finally approved. Death. 4.. Salar died on the 6th December 1805. 
• Tbe Kalhoru being a MOerdotal claaa their KhaliCaa were generally their chief di.to 

tipl•. Xii' Bt.hram and Sbt.h Bohra were web-besides being Military ll!lMft-rs. 
t �or Ooldamid'a report in bia Nauabahro T11lub Roll (li�ding Nt>. 8. \ 



58 SETH N.4..UKAJ •• 
Seth Xaumal hy assisting Sir Ile:cry (then Colonel) Origin of smut. l'ottinger to get camels at considerable ri�k 

to himself and to his family, who were then 
in the lfirs' hands, enabled Lord Keane to advance from Vikkur, 
and up to the period of the Conquest continued to render import.·mt 
�rvices to the officers of the British Government, whenever they 
found theaiselves thwarted by the hostility or apathy of the 
ll irs and tlteir official�.•  For these services, " he was led to expect 
" n  consiJerahlc grant of Jagir in perpetuity. Ile subscqurntly 
" fell under the displeasme of Sir Charles Na pier in consequence 
" of being accused of improper interference with the Police and 
" Revenue Administtat.iou,"t in his capacity as Head Kardar of 
Karachi. He vacated this post im ,June 1847, but was subsequent- ­
ly cleared of all blame aud re-instated in  tlie farnur of Govern­
ment. A Jagir o[ 1,000 bigahs wru; sanctioned for his life, at the 
instance ' of Mr. Pringle and tl1e Bombay Government, by the 
Government of India,; but in the hope of getting the Jagir 
increased, he " coquetted on the subject " till he " ,· irtually lost 
" the grant. " §  Some excuse was, ho,{ ever, found in the fact that 
such a J.agir in Sind "·as not at all equal to what it was in India, 
and that at his age it was not very prudent in him to lay out 
money in improvement.s with a view to future retur11s. On 
these gr,,unds, Mr. I•'rer.e recommended that in lieu of the grant 
n l ife pension of Rs. 100 per mensem might he conferred on him. 
The Bombay Goverument in all cases preferred " grants of money 
" to grants of land f'rec from nssessment, and more especially so 
" in Lower Sind, "�f and the Government of India · at their 

* )Ir. Frere's N.o. li, J;1.t-Od l!itll Jauu:i.ry 1852, to the Bombay Government Rc'l"enue Depai-tment. t So. 3-14, d:i.too 24'1.h Oct.<Jher 18119, (row .Mr. Frere to the Bombay Government. 
t Despatch Xo. G .o! the Court or Directors, dated 4th April 1849, and :No. 410, dated 13th No\·ember 1849, from the Gover11me11t .or India to tbe Govflt'llment of Bomba.y. 
§ M.r. r'rcro's No. 17, dated 16th January 186:?, to Govcrumen,. "9' 1'<'. 1 149, dahl 2lat February 185�, to Go\'"cniment or lndiL 



59 recommendation approved the issue of the pension. Seth Naumal however, prayed (a) that the peI18ion might be count.ed from the date he left the service, and (b) that it might be conferred here­di tarily upon him. The second prayer Mr. Frere considered " obviouly unreasonable " after the liberality that had been shown to the Seth, and as regards the .first Mr. Frere suggested that 
the pension might be given retrospective effect from the date of the grant of the J agir of 1,000 bigahs. The Bombay Govern­ment accordingly sanctioned the payment of the pension from the 
uth of May 1849, " the date of receipt at Bombay of the " Honourable Court's Despatch of 4th April 1849, No. 6. ,, 2. In the yenr of the mutiny, Seth Naumal " contrived to show " the same devotion to the interests of the British Government "' as during the earlier part of his life. 

" His extensive mercantile connections gave him every means of 
" correspondence with all the great centres of trade, not only in Sind and 
" tbe Panjab and Central and North-Western India, but in the countries 
" beyond our border as far as Ba.c;sora, Herat, and Bokhara. Tbe knowledge 
" so obtained was always placed unreservedly at the service of. Government, 
" and he was in the ha.bit of communicating every few days throughout the 
" mutiny all that he so heard of any public int�rest." 3 .  He was not called on to render such assistance as he had rendered to Pottinger and Outram, " in providing funds, supplies, '' or carriage," but he was ready had he been required ; and when tbe defection of the Bengal Army was as its worst, was urgent ta be allowed to raise and bring to Sind a force of Arab and Negro " mercenaries fror;n Muscat and Zanzibar." For these services, Mr. Frere thought that it would " be no more than a suitable " mark of the approbation and . favour of Government, " if the pension then drawn by him were continued for " two more '� generations, or during the lives of his son and grandson," and if he were further allowed to select from the lands he cultivated or held in mortgage a Jagir of 1,200 bigahs to be held rent free by him and bis heirs male in perpetuity.• 

• No. 34", date4 �h October 1869, to the Gonrnment of .Bomba7. 



60 4. The Bombay Government considered it undesirable to assign a Jagir from lands held in mortgage by the Seth, an4 suggested that the grant should be " from other suitable lands " to be selected by the Commissioner in consultation with the " grantee.'' In other respects, they supported Mr. Frere's re­commendation. t The Go_vernment . of India sanctioned the pension " for two lives further," and assigned i' as Jagir, lands " bearing an assessment not exceeding 1,200 Rs. per annum con­" tinuable free of assessment to Seth Naumal and his lineal male ,, heirs." ; 5 .  The land selected hy N au.mal was Deh Dera Duri, Tapa Talti, Taluka Schwan. It contained 10,457 bigahs, of which 4,157 bigahs were salt and unculturable, about 3,500 pakka uncultivated bigahs, and 1,000 kacha uncultimtecl bigahs. The total land cul­tivated in 1859 in Rabi and Kharif had been 1 ,591 bigahs and the Government Revenue for 1859-1860 had been Rs. 1,208-the average revenue for the previous three years having been Rs. 1,347. The Deputy Collector, Schwan, recommended that if this village should be granted, it should be settled by the Settlement Officer and n.n assessment fixed on each field, waste or fallow, which the Seth should not be at liberty to enhance.§ The Acting ColJcctor of Karachi thought it was necessary to make a large allowance of fallow as the land was very salt, and as the Seth would be put to great expense in cutting jungle and brushwood, and in preparing the l!Lnd, and recommended that the whole Deh should be transferred to him on condition that he would in no way in­terfere with the rights and privileges of the Zemindars, but levy the Government demand alone as it was then levied without; enhancing it.• He was in reply requested to specify " the boun. " daries, extent, rates, &c." of the Deh in order that the same might 
t No. 5044, dated 17th December 1859, to the Government or Iudia. t No. 681, dated !0th January 1860, Proceedings in the Financfal Department. i No. r,74, dated 13th July 1860, from the Deputy Collector, Sebwan, to the 

Aeling Collector or Karachi. 
• No. 2039, dated 17th November 1860, from the Collector to the Comminiener. 
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" be entered in a Sanad of the usual description.''+ This in­
formation was duly furnishedt and a Sanad was sent to the 
Collector, with a request that he would attach and attest the 
schedule of rates in Persian and hand over the Sanad to the 
grantee. 

6. On the 3rd December 1866, Seth Naumal petitioned the 
Commissioner for the purpose of securing the devolution of his 
Jagir on his two sons instead of on his eldest son. Mr. Mansfifld, 
however, in submitting it to Government stated that he had been 
in the habit of constantly receiving similar applications from 
Jagirdars and holders of rent-free land, but that he had always 
refused them as he ha<l consider�d himself bound by the rules 
sanctioned by Government regulating succession to rent-free 
lands. The Government Resolution§ ran as follows :-

" The memorialist should he informed that the main object of contin­
" uing the Jagir is to support his family name, and that this object would 
" be defeated were Government to sanction the property being sub-divided." 

Death. 7. Seth N'aumal died on the 16th 
September 1878. 

---·-

t No. 2423, dated 17th November 1860, from Commissioner to Collector. 
t No. 2108, dated 23rd November 1860, to Commissioner. 
§ No. 153, dated 14th January 1867. 



Jaguji the 
Lineage and Position. 

62 16. 8.A.MATJI SON OP JAGUJI and 
llABUJI SON OP !IAJIJI. father of Samatji was uncle to Ratansing the Rana of Parkar. He murdered the Rana. and usurped his authority, but in November 1832 having been mixed up with certain banditti who had carried off four hundred head of cattle from Chorar on the eastern frontier of Catch, he absconded to avoid the field force under Captain Roberts sent from Cutch by the Political Resident there to punish the depredators. 2. Ja:guji remained in exile from the date -of Captain Roberts' force entering Parkar until he was given up to the British Government by that of Sind. He was detained in Cutch as a State prisoner, and subsequently a prisoner at large, on a sub-sistance allowance of one rupee a day. 3. In 184i A- D. however, the small village of Budhesar in Parkar was given to him by Sir Charles Napier in lieu of the money allowance, and he was allowed to reside there. He en­joyed the revenues of the village till August 1852, when he died and the village was resumed-a few ploughs of land being allotted to his more immediate relations for free cultivation. His son and his other male kindred appealed against the resumption of the village to the Commissioner in Bind in December 1854, when the Commissioner was in Parkar. The appeal was decided in February 1856,.and the appellants were informed that the late grant was one of grace and that the resumption could not be disturbed. It was Rana Karanji's revolt which gave an oppor­tunity to Samatj i  and his son of rendering valuable services to Government and earning the Jagir of Budhesar, besides a pen­sion, as stated at page 292 of Chapter I, Section VI. 

Death. 4. Habuji died on the 22nd of December 1860, and Samatji in March 1871. 
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CHAPTER II. 

I�TRODUCTION TO THE IIEMOIRS OF HOLDERS 0�
1 

•JAGIRS OF THE FOUR GREAT TALPUR FAMILIES. 

" Soon after Sind became a British. possession, the Govemor Origin or these distinct promised the members of the Four 
grants. Great Talpur Families that, in the settle-
ment of their Jagirs , he would allow them certain privileges 
which were not contemplated for other J agirdars. There is now 

• The materials for this part of the Summary are as follows :-(The references in the text relate to them un1el!s where expressly stated otherwise) . 1. Major Goldsmid's Memo. No .. 111 of 1857 and its Appendices i. 11., A. Containing the genealogical tree of the Four Families and a de­tailed report and tabular statements regarding their possessions. B. Roll of every member or professed member of these families hold­ing alienated land in Sind, but not included in the list of members recommended for Sirdarship or special provision. C. .Alienations of these families lapsed under the British Government. D. Nominal Roll and Summary of Report and Appendices. E. Settlement of the Jagirs of these families (Statement B. in the old Jagir Summary). 2. Major Goldsmid's supplementary Report No. 138, dated let June 1858, regarding tho J agirdars in the Districts resumed from His Highness Mir Ali Murad. 8. Letter of Mr. Ellis, Special Commissioner for Jagirs to Government, No. 12 dated 3rd July 1858, forwarding 1 and 2 with his proposals. 4,. Letter dated 11th September 1858, from the Bombay Government to the Government of India forwarding 3. IS. Reply of the Government of India No. 16:J3, dated 27th October 1858, generally sanctioning the Settlement but calling for explanations on certain points. 6. Letter No. 4412, dated 28th December 1858, from the Bombay Govern­ment to the Government of India, furnishing the neceesary explanatiom. 



no record of the occasion or of the exact words of the promise, or proclamation, nor is it ascertainable, to what individuals it was made; but that such a pledge was given, is proved beyond all ques­tion, by the terms of a notice issued in 1847 by Sir Charles Napier, in whiqh express reference is made to his pro�ise in favour of the Four Great 'falpur Families." (Mr. Ellis's letter para. 7). 2. The notice thus referred to, dated 24th March 1847, 
l'UilS as r oUows :-

t, With regard to the four families, whose estates His Excellency promised to continue to descendants without the deduction of' one­fourth, that is those not for pay or civil services : these families, the Sh1hwani, the Shahdadani, Kh1nani, and Manikani, who are poor and held their Jagirs since M.ir Fateh Ali's time or before and their title to inherit which has never been disputed to them, their lands will be regranted as per rule, without looking to the dates of their Sanads. This favour is done them as their rank is high and noble, and also as the uncultivated land which they have to give up is of great extent." (Mr. Eilis's letter J_>6l'a. 9). 3. The proclamation, therefore, however it may have been 
Terms of original proclama- worded, mui::t have meant; (1) that all 

tion. lands held for p1,y or for civil service were to be excluded, (2) that the uncultivated land was to be given up, (3) that regrants to the heirs of the recognised. J_agirdars of the Four Families would not be determined or regulated by the date of the original title deeds, and (4) that :such regrants 
·7. ·Letter from the Govemment of India No. 550, dated 8let January 

1861 approving forms of Sanada. 

8. Mr. Maxwell Melvill'a .Boll. 

9. Sana.de. 
10. File E, parts I & II, containing correspondence about the J aglta of the 

four families and several other files, relating to the same, in · !be Commia­
aioher' s_ Office. 

11. Certain printed books and memoirs mentioned in the tett. 
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WQQ.lq be made without exacting the paymen.t of a fourth of tb_e 
Jagirdar's shar.e of the p1·oduce, to which all o,ther Jagirda.1.'S were 
liable upon succession. (Ibid. paras. 10-12). 

4. On these polllts the proclamation was clear enough, but Certain doubts regarding per- it was not exactly clear what was meant 
Mns affected by the proclamation. by the words " Four Families' ' . Did 
they mean all the m�mbers of these families in possession of Jagars, 
�r all the members so in possession, whose rank was " high and n.oble "-or morely the heads of the Great Families. 'l'his la11t 
coostniotion was fo11iad unworkable, for it was " impossible to 
And four so decidely superior each in his individual branch, � 
io sanction the distinction ". The first was held to be hardly 
ia accordance with tho sph-it of the Governor's proclamation 
'·' Many Jagirdars professing to be members of tho above four 
familiE!B" wrote Mr. Ellis "cannot satisfactorily trace their descen,t, 
though acknowledged as Ta.lpurs, but very many held an inferior 
position as mere retainers, which would not justify their being 
classed among �he Talpur aristocracy ". The second interpretation 
was therefore adopted, and the proclamation was held to extend 
u to all members of the Four Great Families provided they held 
a position entitling them to a favour specially aooorded, on accou.n.t of the claimants' rank ". (Ibid. p. 13, 14, 15.) 

5. The ne:s-t thing to be done was to draw up a list of all How these doubts were settled. such members. Major Goldsmid .pre­
pared this, and explained that in framing it, he was guided b,y 
three considerations-

(l�t.) Genealogy, in other words, blood relationship, to au 
original privileged grantee under the Mirs ; 

(2nd.) Social position i.e., the consideration formerly accoi:ded 
to the J agirdar or hi,s ancestors under the Mirs, and the estim.a­
ti@n in which he was now held by the people ; 

(3rd.) Extent and value of holdings. (GQ}dsmid's Memo Gf 
1857, p�r�s. 7, 8, 9, 10.) 

6. Accordin,gly, he omitted all persons whose dollbbf"!¥ 
pedigree or want of social position, or petty hold.mg, implied 



66 that they were not during the Talpur rule, considered as members of the Four Great Families allied to the reigning Mirs. 
1. Hir Bija.r. 8/&aldada,.il. 7. But there were certain 
2. Hir Mahmud (deceued). 8. Hir Ahmad. 
.. :Mir Ali .Muhammad. 
5. Hir Jahan Khan. 6. Hir Ghulam Shah. 
7. Hir Fazulali. 

Sluihwan.u. 
8. Mir Ali Bakhah. 9. Hir Budho. 10. Hir Ahmad Khan (Mir Ali Murad.) 11. Mir Muhammad Haasan. 

.K1umcmi,. 
12. Mir Muhammad Khan. 
13. Hir Ahmad Khan. 14. Mir Sher .Muhammad. 
16. Mir .Mihrab. 16. '.Mir Mubarak. 
17. Mir Muhammad Ali. 
18. Hir Ghulamali Haida.r (Mir Jan Muham-mad.) 
19. Mir Ghulam IDlah (Mir Mubarak.) 20. Mir Ahmad Ali. 
SI. Widow of Mir Ali Kuhammad. 
22. Mir Ali Murad. 

MaAil:a.nia. 28. Mir Khan Muhammad. 24. Mir Fateh Khan. 
26. Mir Fuul Ali. 
26. Mir Ghulam Muhammad. 
27. M:irAlLMuhammad (MirGhulam H11888n.) 
28. Mir Haidar Ali. 
29. Mir :Muhammad Ali 
80. Mir Allahbakhsh (Mir Muhammad Hauan.) Klumania. 
81. Mir Muhammad walad Jlajo Khan. 82. Mir Ahmad Khan. 
83. Mir Nuir Khan Manikani. 84. 31.Hir Abdullah (Ghulamali wa1ad Abdullah.) 
85. �,.,. 
82. Mir Muhammad Khan. 
86. 
as.Mir Ahmad Khan. . !�"'- ... 'd ..,._,., 84 ...... .mun -a.r. 
::Mir Jam Nindo. 
89. 
a6.Hir Karam Khan. 

G G 
) ..o ..c "' 

I i ; �  
"" z ·­
·!:= al 1:1 ·- s 

I O ! i:i '] ... ! I rt� :2ts J f·.:: -5 o, i.A The namea pl-1 between parenthetical marb in the above list are those originally ahown by .Major Qoldsmid, but u it is of im­portance having regard to the Sa.nada to know who was reoogniaed 118 Jagirdar at the oon­qneat or at the time of re11umptiou, Major Goldamid'a arrangement baa been slightly departed from, and the abo-re liai ahowa the Jagud,,n IO reoogn.iaed. 

Mirs in the Districts resumed from H. H. Mir Ali Murad in 1852, who though belonging to the favoured famili�s could hardly have been contemplated by Sir Charles Na pier's proclama­tion, as they were under the Rais or Lord Paramount of Upper Sind, when the proclamation was made. Mr. Ellis was of opinion that "as the holders belonged to the same family, and occupied the same position, as those towhom thepro­clamation referred, it would not be just or politic to apply to them a less favourable settlement than it accorded to their brethren." (Mr. Ellis's letter para. 39) .  The set­tlement, however, actually pro­posed for them differed, in some particulars, from the rule generally recommended, but the reasons for granting them a favourable settle­ment, appeared to the Bombay Government unanswerable, and were accepted .by the Supremo Government. The first list then framed by Major Goldsmid corres: ponds with the list entered in the margin. 8. It was however reduced to 36 by rejecting the claims of Noa. 31, 32 and 33 for the reasons 
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stated in the following extract from Mr. Ellis's letter. " .The 
claims of Nos. 31 and 32 may be rejected. These chiefs are not, 
properly speaking, of the Khanani tribe, they belong to the 
Daryakhana.nis as descendants of Daryakhan and not of Mubarak, 
Daryakhan's brother, from whom all other professed Khananis 
derive descent. As chiefs of the Daryakhanani branch, these 
Jagirdars will receive considerq.tion, when a separate report is 
submitted, on the Sirdars of Sind, but I concur in Major Gold­
s•nid's recommendation to exclude them from the present settle­
ment. 

" The next, Nasir Khan (No. 33), tho�gh probably he might 
be included in the Khananis, could not be considered as one of 
the Great F�milies, having no special importance, by right of 
family descent, such as is enjoyed by others who have been included 
in the list. His name is therefore omitted." (Paras. 18 and 19.) 

9. Having determine:! the list of the privileged 'Ialpur 
How to fix extent of reeumable jagirdars, the next important question 

waste. for decision was, as to the; system to be 
adopted in fixing the extent of uncultivated lands liable to 
resumption, on regrant to the heirs of the recognised j_agirdars. 
On this point Mr. EUis wrote as follows : " The difficulty of 
ascertaining what lands are uncultivated, has occupied the 
attention of every officer connected with the Jagir enquiries 
in Sind, and various subsidiary rules, have been provisionally 
tried in the hope of devising the means of determining satisfacto­
rily the amount of land resumable as uncultivated. The propor­
tion of waste in jagirs is however, so large, that a settlement 
based on such resumption, can ha,rdly be satisfactory to the holder. 
Captain Stack calculated that two thirds of a jagir might be 
considered as cultivated, and I have no doubt, that in most cases 
this is quite within the mark. 

" At the same time it must be borne in mind, that the 
jagirdar should be allowed some margin for the risks attending 
all cultivation in Sind, and when it is important to secure, as & 

matter of policy, the contentment ·of influential chiefs like those 



68 to whom this report relates, the State need, hardly hesita� to incur & loss that is merely nominal, and to allow the retenti�n by the jagirdar of more waste Lind, than he woultl otherwise·be stmetly entitled to. " ll!J.jor Goldsmid h'.\s pr()posed, for th·e settlement of tbe present claims, tl iat one-third be deducted for the waste land, 01� 11he death of existing incumbeuts, and that a regrant of two-thirds be allowed . I beg very strongly to recommend that this pro­posi1non be carried out, and that in �ettling the jagirs of the Talpur families, one-third be resumed as uncultivated', though the proper portion m�y actu'tlly be greater." (Paras. 27, 28, 29) . 10. While discu'ssin3 the ca1J of Mir Ahmtd, No. 36, Mr. Ellis suggested, however, a modification of this recommendation, to the effect,. that a jagirdar asserting his waste lands to be less than one-third, should be allowed to de�and a measurement by whichhe should be ni�de to abide. (Para. 44). 11. The Bombay Government explained to the Government of India that, although under the rule, which had hitherto pre­vailed in Sind, more than one-third would probably be found resuma.bl'e a.s waste land, a. fixed limit of resumption would ohviat.e the vexation, arising from attempts to determine the actual amount of waste, and the discontent of the jagirdar, owing to a too extensive resumption . ... Accordingly the calcu4 lation. of the regrants on this basis, was sanctioned by the Government of India. Nothing was said rega.rding the modifi­eation. recommended by Mr. Ellis in his para. 4i, but the pl'Qpesed settlenwnt with Mir Ahm'l.d was sanctioned. 12. The third question for determination was, whether the Whether terms of l\lirs' grants terms on which individual Jagiri;l were "flfe himliDgo�the Government. held under the Mirs, were binding on the British Government. " Many of these JagirA,ars," wrote Mr. Ellis, received from the Mirs ' A1tdnam,as, ' or solemn agreement's-, ratifi:ed under oath by writings in a Koran, while some-were even MSt1red of th& hereditary continuance of their possessions-. 
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" These agreements of the }firs, do not appear to ·have � 
'' considered by Sir Charles Napier, as fettering in o.ny way \he 
" right of the British Government to dispose of the Jagirs und'er 
" whatever rule might be established, and accordingly we find. 
" that, at the outset, he subjected the possessions of Mir Ali Bakb• 
" (who held an herelitary guarantee from the Mirs) to a pa;y-lne»t 
" of one-fourth of the nett proceeds C>f his estate." 

" In th': same way, when it is proposed to allow an he� 
" title subject to certain conditions, there appears to be no l'alid 
" reason for excepting the three• hereditary grantees from the COD.• 

N . AI'ba h " ditions, generally prescrided for others * o. 8 Mtr 1 khs • • • No. 9 Mir Bndho. "of similar rank. ThatSirCharles Napier No . .i3 Mir Khan Muhammad. d "would not have excepte them from the 
" operation of the ordinary rules on this point, is evidenced by the 
" records, which prove that the cases of both, Mirs Ali Bakhsh and 
" Khan Muhammad, were some years ago under consideration, with 
•• a view to a permanent settlement on these very terms." 

" Had it been determined to confirm these three ohiefe in their 
" hereditary possessions without deduction, Bigas 6,80,000, would 
" have been regrantab)e to them alone, but no such expectations 
" have ever been held out to them, nor would such a regrant have 
" been in eonfo_rmity with the principles followed by Sir -Charles 
" ·Napier after the conquest, and which have hitherto formed. the 
" basis of the Jagir Settlement in Sind ". (Paras .. 30-33) . 

18. These views were agreed to by the Government of 
Bombay, and acted upon by the Government of India. 

14. The f.ourth point to be decided ·was, whether the seven 
Talpur Jagirdars marginally noted. who W8!l' already paying one-

No: a Mir Ali° Baklish. fourth of their nett produce, should•be No. 13 Mir Ahmad Khan. compelled to.pay- itin future. Five, !fos. No. i6 llir Mubarak. 
N-o. 27 Mir Ghulam Hwisen. 8,18,16,27 and M- out,of ihe seven, w� No. 29 Mir Muhammad Ali. 
No. ao Mir Muhammad sons -or successors of Ja.girdal's, who l'ell 

Baeea34 iwthe battles.of Meeani or Dubba, ft_ght-
� -a1 aMir.OhuI&m Ali. ing:against:the Euglish. Inall·iu"QbQPCS 
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the practice had been to regrant the Jagirs, subject to the above­mentioned liability. The sixth · (No. 27) succeeded his father early in 1844, probably before the pledge had been given to the Talpur families, while the seventh, (No. 30), paid one-fourth us a fine, because his father had failed to make obeisance to the Governor upon the conquest of the country. Major Goldmid recommend­ed that one-fourth of the land should be resumed in lieu of the produce, in all the above cases, except in that of No. 27, whose landed estate was so small that Major Goldmid thought the deduc­tion of one-third on occount o( uncultivated land would suffice. Mr. Ellis concurred in this view. He however wrote " In two or at 

Whether standing liability to " most three cases, owino- to the proposed 
payment of ith produce was to • 1? 
continue. '' resumption of land in heu of one-fourth " produce, the quantity of lan_d to be resumed will be very large, " I  would request sanction for the Commissioner t.o exercise his '' discretion in snch cases, whether to resume one-fourth of the land, " or to lease the resumable land to the Jtt.girdar for a term of years " at a valuation of one-fourth of his estate. If the boundaries be " marked off now, there will be no difficulty, in carrying out the " resumption at any future time, and if such a course be more " acceptable to the J:igir<lar, I see no reason for refusing to adopt it ". (Para 37). In accordance with Mr. Ellis's proposal, the deduction of one-fourth of the land, except in the case of No. 27, was sanctioned by the Government of India, the sanction being included in thf' general sanction of the Settlement proposed. 15. The fifth question to be solved was, whether the above named Jagirdars should be li.ible to the same deduction as others, 

Whether heirs of hereditary on account of uncultivated land. On 
grantees from Mirs were liable h" . M Ell" f th " ll . 
to deduction of waste. t lS pomt r. lS was O e 10 owmg opinion :-" No case occurred in Sir Charles Napier's time, and " the rule now adopted for the resumption of only one-third is so " much more favourable to the Jagirdar than the complicated " method formerly in force that, in my opinion, it would not be " proper to assume this point in the Jagirdar's favour, especially " aa the deduction of one-fourth in these cases was an essential 
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" condition of the first grant by the British Government, to which 
" rather than the grants by the Mirs, we ought to look in deciding 
" on alienations in J agirs ". (Para 34). This view was approved by 
re the Government of India, and the effect was that the heirs of 
" Jagirdars paying one-fourth produce, were subjected, on regrant, 
" to a deduction of one-fourth of the total area. of their J agirs on 
'' account of such produce, and to a, further deduction of ¼rd of 
the remainder for waste. 

16. The sixth question was, whether the present incumbents 
should be at all disturbed, or the settlements made long ago Whether present incumbents e.g., those with Mir Mahmud and Mir should be disturbed. Mahrab, be altered. Mr. Ellis recom-
mended that they should not be. (Para 35) . The decision arrived 
at may be gathered from para. 5 of the letter of the Bombay 
Government, dated 28th December 1858, to the Government of  
India which ran as follows :-General decision that proposed Settlements should not come into operation until death of existing Jagird&ra. 

" Jt will be carefully explained to 
'' the J agirdars, that the proposed settle­
·' menf;s will not come into force until 

34 " their death, the only exceptions being 
* Nos. 10 and - , • • • h. h · th a1 • m cases m w 1c owmg to e recent 

" demise of a Jagirdar, the present possessor has been allowed to 
" succeed provisionally pending an authoritative decision." 

17. The only remaining question was, whether the portions 
resumable on the demise of existing incumbents, should be forth­
with defined. Mr. Ellis thought it was desirable " to mark them Whether resumable portions " out at once, so that when the existing should be defined forthwith. " incumbents died, the claims of their 
" heirs could be settled, without trouble and further reference" ; 
" and " he continued " as all depend on the same principle, there 
" will, I apprehend, be no difficulty in deciding at once upon the 
" whole of the claims, which I have now the honor to submit." 

This proposal also was approved by the Government of 
Bombay and the Supreme Government, and the Commissioner 
was requested to take immediate steps, to carry it into effect. 

18. Mr. Ellis concluded his report with the following 



72 remarks :-" When the cases above discussed have been settled, the " whole of the Jagirs held by the Four Great Talpur Families will " have been disposed of. A few of the ex-Ami.rs or their immediate " descendants have patches of land around their residences, but " the continuance of these lands, as well as of the money pensions " which they enjoy, is more properly matter for discussion in the " Political Department. In that Department the cases of the 
• Those in the Resumed Dia- " five Jagirdars last mentioned• have tricts. " hitherto been discussed, but this is " simply owing to the accident of their claims having come under " review during the political transactions consequent on the " resumption of Amir Ali Murad's territory. There is nothing, as " I have before observed, to di&tinguish their holdings from those " of the Talpurs who, -like them, were not reigning princes, but " connected by blood with the reigning family. The pensions " allowed to the ex-Ameers and their families, on the other band, " depend on circumstances, which hardly enter into the consi­" deration of ordinary Jagir claims. 19. " The late Acting Commissioner, in the letter now re-submit­" ted, recommended that these Jag1rdars should receive pensions 
Whether commutations of lancl " their Jagirs being resumed. I canno 

holdings into pensions expedient. " advocate the adoption of this course " The position held by a penaioner is very different from that " secured to a. Jagirdar, and to resume the landed possessions " of these Jagirdars and to for� them to receive pensions in lieu " would not only be opposed to the principles hitherto adopted in 
u Sind, and to which the Jagirdars have been accustomed, but " would probably be so unpopular as to defeat the very object of 
0 such alienations. Commutations of land-holdings for cash pen­,, sions are usually viewed with suspicion, and the former are consi­" dered a more stable and permanent provision than the latter, for " the convenion into money payment is but too often a prelude to " total resumption. 20. " Though I would deprecate the adoption of the suggestion " as a rule, it ii not improbable that some individuals who dislike 
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" the trouble of managing their own estates, may apply for a cash 
'' allowance in lieu of land. Such applications may be worthy of 
" favourable consideration, if proceeding from the J agirdars them­
" selves, but until they make the application� it would, I think, 
" be unwise to attempt the change. 

2 1. " 1.'he result of the settlement now proposed, will be that 
Result or proposed settleIµent. �' nearly nine lacs and three-quarters of 

" bigahs will be regranted hereditarily 
" to the line1,l male heirs of the respective J agirdars, whose 
" names are entered in Statement E,• and will be enjoyed free 
" of any tax:, sttve for education and road funds, or other local 
" taxes, to which J agirdars may become liable in common with all 
" others. 

22. " "This amount, at first sight, appears large, but it must be 
" borne in mind that the amount confirmed, at the conquest, to 
" these familie� was just d::mble the extent, being upwards of nine­
" teen hes of b i�.1,hs. Of this amount three lacs hwe already lapsed 
" since 18i3, by failure of direct heir-, or other causes, and nearly 
" h!!.lf a lac will n'lt be regrantable at all, having been originally 
" assigned as pay for specific purposes. 

23. " The amount of land now in possession of these J agirdars is 
" fifteen lacs and eighty-six thousand bigahs, hut the whole annual 
" revenue derived from these holdings is estimated to be within one 
" lac and six:ty thousand rupees. This estimate is not founded on 
" very accurate data, but I have reason to believe it not far from 
" the mark, aml with proposed deductions, the future alienated 
" revenue, will certainly not reach a lac and a half of rupees per 
c, annum. Thus. the revenue of these estates is by no means in 
" proportion to their great extent. 

24. " Though no decision is called for, in regard to the pensions 
" to the ex-Ameer� and their connections, yet in order to show at 
" one glance all alienations in favour of the families connected with 
" the late reigning princes of Upper and Lower Sind, Major 

• or Major Goldsmid DOW incorporated in the appended Statement. 
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" Goldsmid has at the Commissioner's request, prepared a statement 
" of cash pensions paid to the P-x-Ameers and their immediate fami­
" lies and descendants. This statement shows that the alienations 
" are-

" Cash pensions to the ex-Amirs their families 
" and other Talpurs Rs. 3, 71,956 

" Lands held in lagir · by the Four Families 
" including the five supplementary names . . .  ,, 1,59,450 

" Total Rs. 5,31,406 " 

(Paras. 50 to 56). 
25. The Government of Bombay in their letter No. 3002, 

dated 11th September 1858, concurred in the opinion that 
no attempt should be m�de to force on the Jagirdars pensions 
in lieu of land, and the Government of India agreed with them 
and accorded a " general sanction _ to the measures proposed by 

Settlement formally sanctioned " the Government of Bombay for the 
by both Government of Bombay '' settlement of the estates of the Chief 
and Government of India. 

'' Talpur families in Sind." 

26. Copies of the letter No. 3002, of the qovernment of 
Bombay, dated 11th September 1858, to the Government of India, 
the reply of the Government of India No. 1633, dated 27th 
October 1858 conveying their general sanction and calling for 

Order to carry it out. certain explanations, and the explana­
tions furnished by the Bombay Govern­

ment in their letter under date the 28th December 1858, 
were forwarded to the Commissioner in Sind, and Mr. Frere 
was requested to carry out the settlement of the estates of the 
Chief Talpur Families, in that province, in the manner proposed, 
with special reference to the proposal to mark out the resumable 
portion at once. The demarcation was howovor postponed under 
later orders as has been stated in the first Chapter. 



27. To complete the settlement, Sana.ds were issued on March IuueofSa.nads. 28th, 1861, in the following order
1
: -� No. 1, Mir Bijar. . .  . . .  . . .  -� No. 2, Mir Ahmad . . .  . . •  . · · .a 
i No. 8, Mir Ali Muhamma.d Khan · · · · · ·j fZ No. 4, Mir Alibakhsh . . .  . • • l ·! No. 6, Mir Budho Khan . . .  . . .  . . . � � No. 6, Mir Alimurad Khan . . . I J j 00 No. 7, Mir Muhammad Khan No. 8, Mir Ahmad Khan No. 9, Mir Sher Muhammad Khan No. 10, Mir Mubarak Khan No. 11, Mir Muhammad Ali Khan No. 12, Mir Jan Muhammad Khan No. 13, Mir Ali Mura.cl Khan . . .  No. 14, Mir Mubarak walad Ghula.m Ullah . .• No. 15, Mir Khan Muhammad No. 16, Mir Ghulam Muhammad No. 17, Mir Ghula.m Hussen No. 18, Mir Haidar Ali No. 19, Mir Ghulam Ali Khan No. 20, Mir Muhammad ;Ali No. 21, Mir Muhammad .Hassan No. 22, Mir Jam Nindo No. 23, Mir Murid Haider No. 24, Mir Karam Khan 

. . . 
... 

. .  
••• The following two were issued on the 4th May 1861 :-No. 79, Mir Muhammad Khan. . . • •• No. 80, Mir Ahmad Khan . . •  
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28. The form oi the Sanads was approved by Government 

Content.a a.nd provisions of in their letter No. 550, dated 31st 
eanads. January ,1861. Each Sanad stated (1) what was found in the J agirdar's possession at the conquest, ( or on resumption of Mir Ali Murad's territory) (2) and what was then and afterwards continued to the ·J agirdar and (3) then proceeded to confirm the Jagirdar in his present actual possessions for the term of his life, and (4) to lay down that a certain specified number of Bigahs, generally two-thirds of these possessions, were to be permanently accorded to his " lineal heirs male ", and failing them " to the lineal male descendant of the J agirdar recognised " at the conquest" or on resumption of the aforesaid territory (5)-that the remainder was to be given to Government, either in the Jagirdar's life-time if he so pleased or by his heir after his death and (6)-that if there was sufficient waste land to cover the Government demand on this account, i:e., on account of re­sumption of waste, he would not " necessarily ·have to give up one " inch of productive soil ," the only provision being that " the '' permanent Jagir consist of one consolidated and well defined " land alienation, where the possessions are contiguous, and as far " as  practicable, complete makans ". Option, however, was given to the Jagirdar's immediate heir to postpone this var• manent settlement in his own individual case, if he liked, and to enjoy all the land " found in and allowed possession at the " conquest,,, and (in the case of Jagirdars in the resumed Districts,) on resumption of Mir Alimurad's teiritory, " on payment of an " assessment equal to quarter produce, or on resumption of a quar­., ter the whole amount of land ". This quarter produce implied .1-as was . stated in a note-" quarter of estimated net revenue ,,. The option was restricted to the ftrat successor. The permanent settlement waa not to be def erred beyond the second succession. The existing Jagirdar could, thus, give up one.third of his Jagir at once to Government, retaining the rest and handing it down to his heirs as an unquestioned hereditary estate ; or he could retain 



77 for his natural life the whole of his Jagir undiminished in extent. In the event of his choosing the latter course, his immediate heir could surrender the one-third-retaining the remainder as a permanent possession-or, if he preferred it, instead of surrendering the third, could give up- or pay an a�ssment (equal to one­quarter produce) on-one-fourth of the entire Jagir. In the event of his preferring to surrender this one-fourth or pay tpis quarter produce-then the permanent arrangement via., the resumption of one-third of the whole estate was postponed until the succession of the next heir. The next heir was obliged to make the surrender of the one-third out of the estate to which he succeeqed, or rather to select the number of Bigahs permanently regra.ntable according to the Sanad, and to give up the remain­der which on measurement was found to be sometimes less and sometimes more than one-third. 29. The Jagirdar was further assured t�t his holding would 
ts per cent. cese and water rate. be " free of all assessment " except " 5 per cent. for Roads and Schools " calculated on " the estimated net revenue of the Jagir '', and that with respect to the payment of water rates he would be " subject to the Local Rules in force to meet the Government expenditure on canals, due regard being had to the particular circumstances of your Jagir ". The Sanad wound up with the following clause. " But be it distinctly understood that failing loyalty and 
General Clau.ae. good behaviour on your part or that of your successors, the Sanad will be revoked and the grant resumed" 30. So much for the general Settlement It remains now to describe what was done in the case of each individual J a.girdar and in the following pages each family will be treated of seriatim, and the proceedings that led to the settlement of 1858 in each case will be v�ry fully detailed.. The subsequent history of the Jagirs from 1858 will appear from the Statement annexed to the end of this Chapter. 
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SECTION I. 

The Shahdadanis. 

1. The Talpur Tribe or Clan claim one Kuka or Begam as their common ancestor. This Kuka or Begam had two wives one from the Bagrani tribe of Beluchis, the other from the Mari tribe. By his Mari wife he had five sons : Hotak, Ali, Manik, Jiwan and Miran. Hotak had two sons Shahdad and Shahak ; Ali also had two sons, Mubarik and Darya Khan ; Manik had four sons, .A.llahyar, Th:lro Khan, Chato and Saindad. 'fhe Shahdadanis (from whom sprang the reigning Mirs of Hyderabad and Khairpur) are descended from Shahdad ; the Shahwanis from Shahak's son, Shahu, the Khananis from Mubarik, and the Manikanis (from whom came the reigning Mirs of Mirpur) from Manik. 2. " Shahdad quitted his native mountains in Beluchistan for the left bank of the Indus, and colonized at a distance of 12 miles from the ancient ruins of Brahmanabad, the town which still bears his name " (Sindh Selections Volume I, page 105). He had Tendered some important state services to his spiritual and temporal ruler Mi.an Yar Muhammad Kalhora Ruler of Sind, and had been rewarded with a Jagir styled " Pat Baran" (rainfed waste) which has been identified with Shahdadpur and Konhera (Major Goldsmid's Appendix A) . Mir Shahdad died in 1147 A. H. ( 1734 A. D. ) and was buried at Shahpur in Konhera. 
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3. He lert four sons : Mir Jam Nindo Khan, Mir Ohakar 
Khan, Mir Bahram Khan, and Mir Khairo Khan. The Talpur 
race first came prominently into notice in Bind in the person 
of Mir Bahram Khan who did good service to the Kalhora 
prince Nur Muhammad (1719 A. D.-1757 A. D.) The next 
Kalhora prince after N ur Mahammad was Ghulam Shah who 
died in 1772. " The demise of Ghulam Shah," writes Burnes, 
in his Narrative of a Visit to the Court of Bind : " left the 
" musnud vacant for his eldest son Mian Sarfraz Khan, who, far 
" inferior in talents to his sire, was equally unprincipled in con. 
" duct, and to whose capricious tyranny is ascribed the ruin of his 
" line. Among the most distinguished personages at his Court waa 
" Mir Ba.hmm Khan the chief of a Balochi tribe, named Talpur, 
" whose members had for many generations, held the highest 
'' offices of the State, and whom from an impulse of jealousy and 
" susp�cion for which history can show no foundation, he ordered 
" to be put to death, together with his son Sobdar Khan." This 
cruel order was carried into execution. 

4. Babram however left two other sons alive, Mir Bijar Khan 
and M.ir Muhamud Khan, the former of whom was absent on a 
pilgrimage to Mecca at the time of his father's murder. On his 
return his life was treacherously attempted by Ghulam Nabi, a 
brother of. Ghulam Shah, who had succeeded to · the throne, 
but this attempt failed and Ghulam Nabi was slain in b�tt]e by 
the followers of Bijar who, however, " with a magnanimity 
" scarcely to he expected, was the :first to take the oath of alle­
" giance to Mian Abdul Nabi, the brother of bis fallen ette·my,.'' 
Abdul Nabi rewarded this magnanimity by asking the assistance 
of the Raja of Jodhpur in compassing Mir Uijar's death. From this 
Raja, writes Burnes " two assasins were sent as messengers _on busi­
" ness to Mir Bijar Khan, and approaching him under the pretext 
" of secret information plunged their daggers into his breast, when 
" hP; instantly expired. On this event, no hounds could restrain 
" the fury of the Talpurs, who flew to arms in great numbers, and 



81 •• & seriea of bloody commotions followed which brought about " a  total revolution in the Government of Bind. Mi.an Abdul Na.bi " fled into the mountains of Balochistan, and after various attempts " to recover his power (in one of which, through th� assistance of " the King of Kabul he was partially successful ; and added to his " crimes the murder of Mir Abdulah Khan the son of Mir Bijar) " he passed the remainder of his- life as an exile in poverty and " contempt. Mir Fateh Ali Khan the son of Bobdar Khan, " and grandson of Bahram Khan, whose bravery and persever­" ance, excited by revenge, had been chiefly instrumental in " effecting the change, was by the general voice called to the " direction of affairs, and was shortly afterwards confirmed as 
cc ruler of the country by the patent of king Timur Shah. " On his own elevation this prince liberally resolved to admit '' to a participation in his high destiny his younger brothers, Mir u Ghulam Ali Khan, Karin Ali, Khan and Murad Ali Khan, and " the four a.greed to reign together under the denomination or title •• of the Amirs or Lords of Sind. While they all lived the strong and " unvarying attachment they evinced for each other, gained " them the honorable appellation of Ohar Yar or ' the four 
cc friends.' " (Burnes' Visit to the Court of Sind). 5. It is unnecessary to narrate here how the Bhahdadani lost their dominion. Suffice it to say that the battle or Miani fought on the 17th February, 1843, put an end to their rule. The reigning Mirs were sent to Bombay a.nd Surat as prisoners and thence to Calcutta. They were, however, allowed to return • to Bind in 1854. The following family tree shows the descent or th�se Shahda.da.ni Jagirdars who were recognised at the conquest. The numerals affixed to the names indicate, in correct order, the J"agirdars so recognised, and also their number in the Statement of Roll of the Four Great TaJpur Jagirdars attached to this Chapter. 



Abdullah. 

82 

Genealogical Tree of the Shakdadani Jagirtlar,. 
Shahdad. 

I 
I 

Jam Nindo. 
I 

l 
Shahdad. Jam lroz. 

Mir Sohrab (besides others) 
founder of the Sohrabani 

family. 

Jam 
Nindo. 

I I I 
Rns- Ghulam 
tum. Hyder. 

I 
Khudabakhsh. 

I 

I 
I 

Muha- Cha- Ali 
rik. ka.r. Murad· 

Jam Nindo. Muhammad. Ghulam Ahmad. 
llustafa. 

I 
llir Bijar. 

I 
?ilir Sobdar (Ancestor 
of the reigning Mira 

of Hyderabad). 

I 

I 
Babram, 

I 
Khyro. 

Mir Mahmud 
(2). 

I 
Abdullah. Fatehali, Oh� K�ali, 

reigning l'61gnmg l'8lgD1ng 
Mir, 1783, Mir, 1802, Mir, 1812, 
died 18()2. died 1812. died 1828. 

Muradali, Ahmad Jehan 
reigning (3 , ( f> ). 

Ghulam 
HUSlltln, 
died in 

1246 A. H. 

i 

I 

I 
Bahram. 

I 
Ghulam Fazulali 
Shah (6), (7). 

I 

I I 
Sobdar, Mohammad, 
reigning 

Mir, died 
1846. 

Nur 
Muhammad, . . Mi 

1��1MJ. 

I Bijar(J). Ghulam 

I )fnbaroroad. / 

Mir, 1828, 
died 1833. 

( Ali Muhammad (4} ), 

Nasir Khan, 
reigning 

Mir, 
1840, died 

1846, 

Mir tbam- Jar 
mad; TCign- Muham.­
ing Mir, died mad. 

HIM. 

I 
Abdullah. Sbabdad, reign- Huaenali, Haaanali. 

ing M.ir, died reigning Mir, 
.A.buali. 

1867. died 1878. 



83 J.Vo. 1, Ktr Bijar. 1. Mir Bijar, was the great grandson of Bi jar the brother of Mir Sobdar, whose sons were the " Ohar Genealogy. Yar." His sister was married to Mir Shahdad one of the last reigning Mirs. 2. The following translation of an entry in the grantees' Koran will show the estimation in which Social position. Mirs Ghula.m Hussen and Bahram, the father and uncle of Mir Bijar, were held by the Four Rulers of Hyderabad. Mir Ghulam Hussen had been lured away by Mir Sohrab (who had founded the practically independent dynasty of Khyrpur in Upper Sind) but had eventually returned to . his allegiance. Mir Fateh Ali, Ghulam Ali, Karm Ali and Murad Ali enter into agreement with Mirs Ghulam Hussen and Bahram thus :-" As the former has returned we forgive his offence, and in con­" sideration of what the two Mirs have promised in writing in the " Koran, we restore to them the provision formerly made on their " behalf with their former J agirs. And the character ( or position "Jji )  of Ghulam Bussen and Bahram and their dependents, shall " be maintained provided they be not rebellious. Their enemies " shall be our enemies and their friends our friends. But they must " fulfil their agreement in the Koran." Then followed the seals of the Four Amira. 3. On Mir Ghulam Hussen's death a sanad was issued by 
Estate. Mir }Iurad Ali, dated 19th Zil Ka.id A. H. 1245 (1829 A. D.) , in the name of Mir Bijar and his two brothers, Abdullah and Ghulam Muhammad, regrant­ing to them their father's lands, specified in columns 10 to 12 of the Statement at the end of this Chapter and amounting to 1,66,498 Napierian bigahs. At the time of the conquest Mir Bijar waa the only surviving brother, Sir Charles Na pier confirmed this 
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grant, (tide his No. 2264 dated 1st September 1845, to the Col­
lector of Hyderabad and Sanad No. 1, dated. 28th March 1861, 
which states the fact of this possession) ,  and be also decided in 
his No. 3178, dated 12th December 1846, that Mir Bijar's claim 
to the share of bis deceased brothers " should be confirmed 
without any deduction." 

4. At the Settlement of 1858, the Mir was confirmed in 

How settled. 
his possesions subject of course to the 
ordinary liability on regrant to his heirs. 

:Mir Bijar died on December 5th ,  1862. For details of the 
Death or Jagirdar. regrant vide Statement at close of this 

Chapter. 
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,, 3 MIR MA.HMUIJ A.NIJ HIS SONS. N0. 2 J  

,, 5 

Genealogy. 
1. The Genealogical tree of this Mir stands as follows :-

Shahdad 
I Bahram 
I Mahmud. He was first cousin to the Ohar Yar (the four joint Rulers of Hyderabad) and uncle of Mir Sobdar. He was married to the youngest sister of Mir Suhrab, Ruler of Khyrpur. 2. This Mir and his two sons, Mirs Ahmad Khan and 

Social position. Jahan Khan, are mentioned by Burnes (vide his " Court of Sind," pages 35 and 84} and there is no doubt that at that time they occupied ii. very high position at Court. 3. Mir Bahram, Mahmud's father, received in or about 
Estate. 1771 A. D., from Ghulam. Shah Kalhora, 32 distinct town lands in ' Derahdari,' i. e., he was granted the right of management and cultivation of these lands with certain benefits and privileges attached. Mir Fateh Ali, under a Sanad dated 28th April 1776 (which was afterwards confirmed by a new Sanad and reconfirmed by Mir Sobdar), 

SbAhdadpur, Jumma t d t f th t 1 d and D:i.bhra. 2o,969-B. • regran e mos o ese own an s ; among 
Bala. Mahar 2,os1-B. them were the lands marginally noted. :By another Sanad, of the same date, Mir 
Sehwan. Bilawalpur-22,m B. Fateh Ali granted Deh Bilawalpur in J agir to Mir Mahmud. This Sanad and some others relating to estates in the Karachi Collectorate were not marked with his seal by Sir Charles Napier in token of recogni­tion. 

• B. denotes Napierian Bigaha. Jrfira' Bigaha will be denot.ed bJ I(. B. 



86 On the 4.th May 1786 (6th Rajib 1200 
Duaba, Samawati, 8,170 B, A. H.) Mir Fateh Ali by & Sanad granted Samawati. 4. On the 27th July 1787 (11th Shawal 1201 A. H.) another 

Badin, Kot shah Ismael, grant in Jagir was made under a Sanad, and n,,73 B. this was afterwards confirmed by a fresh Sanad, and on the 24th July 1803 (1st Rabi-ul-Sani 1218) Mir Ghulam Ali grant-
S.mnd, That, 1,su�. ed him " That " an estate in Sakrnnd. 5. On the 17th June 1838 Mir Sobdar Khan executed 

Sbahdadpur, Gau, 
4,883 B. 

Karaho and Gundan, 
9,647 B. 

an Anjamnamah (Deed of Agreement) in favour of Mir Mahmud, which proves the :Mir's right over the Jagirs marginally noted. 6. Besides these lands the Mir held 6,599 B. in Manjhu and 2,582 in lrundar. :Manjhu was originally in 8Jwhan, Ma,,jhu, 
6, ,,!l9 B. p:Jssession of the influential clan of the D�u, Mnndar, 
2,5s2 B. N umrias, whose Chief, Malik1Izat Khan, made it over, under the rule of the Kalhoras, to Mir Bahram, for pur­poses of cultivation, reserving a ¼th share of the produce. The same arrangement appears to have been held good on the accession of :Mir Fateh Ali, and to have been continued up to the conquest. 7. Mundar, according to Mr. Inverarity, Collector of Upper Tenure or Munda.r. Sind, was assignel to Mir Bahram Khan by Mir Fateh Ali, as to a member of his own family, and without con­sideration of military or other service. Major Goldsmid, however, in his Memorandum No. l 11 of 1857, was " inclined to believe that " it was rather made over to the son Mahmud, as :Mir Bahram " was murdered prior to Fateh Ali's accession to power. It is " unquestionably a very ancient tenure." 
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8. Thus then at the conquest, the Mir was found in. pos-
Total areaof the Mir's pos- session of 1,02,600 B. in the Districts of 

aeesions. Hyde�bad, Karachi and Shikarpur, for 
Mundar at first belonged to the Upper Bind {now Shikarpur} 
Collectorate. 

The Sanads referred to above, were confirmed by Sir 
P08i18118ions confirmed by Charles Napier on the 11th January, 

SirCbarles Napier. 1847 (vide his No. 90 of that date to the 
Collector of Hyderabad) and the Anjamnamah of Sobdar was con­
firmed on the 25th January 1847. 

9. It appears from a. letter No. 207 of 1843, without date, of 
Treatmentofthe Manjhu Jagir. Captain Preedy, Collector of Karachi to 

· Captain Wells, Deputy Collector, that although no Sanad was 
produced in respect of the Manjhu holding, the Governor relying 
en the reports of the Kardars, that the land was in Mir Jahan 
Khan's possession on the 17th February 1843, order£d its restora­
tion. Captain Preedy's directions were, to make over " the village 
" of :Manjht1 and the adjacent lands, which formed part of the 
s, Jagir of Mir Jahan Khan walad Mir Mahmud, on the 17th 
" February 1843, to the Agents of this Mir and of Ahmad Khan ; 
" three-fourths of the land revenue belong to Mir Jehan Khan 
s, and the remaining fourth to :Mir Ahmad Khan.'' 

10. As regar.is the Mundar holding, Mr. Arthur Young, 
Treatment of Mundar. Deputy Collector, Mehar, in his letter No. 101, 
dated 30th September 1850, to the Collector of Upper Bind, said 
as follows " the share ( one-half} of the produce of 3 villages in 
" Tapa Mundar, appears from all I can learn here, to have been 
" granted to him (Mir Mahmud) or some of the family by the Kal­
" hora Government" and continued by Mir Fateh Ali. . . . . .  " The 
" whole produce is collected by the Government, and the Jagir-
., dar'e share afterwards disbursed to him . . . . . . . . . .  There can be 
" no doubt that it (the grant} was allowed to Mir Mahmud, under 
" the Talpur Government, as one of the reigning family, and not 



88 " on account of military or other services." The Collector in his No. 451, dated 16th October 1850, to the Commissioner, stated that although there was no original Sanad, his own records showed that the Mir had enjoyed the produce. " The sons" he continued " hold a confirmatory San.ad of Sir Charles Napier, giv­" ing to their father all that he possessed, at the time of the con­" quest." 11. Mir Mahmud had died on the 23rd August 1849, leaving Questions regarding succession and levy of two annaa per Bigah on Mah­mud's death. 
two sons, Mir Ahmad Khan and Mir J ahan Khan ; according to the prevalent usage the produce of the then ensuing Kharif, 1261, was bestowed upon his two sons ; but nothing was settled regarding succession to his Jagir up to 4th December 18i9, (vide Captain Rathborne's letter of this date to the Deputy Collector Jerrack No. 1336). From this letter i t  appears :-(1) that " the practice invariably followed hitherto since the " conquest'' was to regrant the Jagir to the eldest son, (2) that " in any case the whole of the uncultivated land in " the several Jagirs" lapsed to Government, and the cultivated was subject to a rent of two annas the Bigah which as is shewn by Captain R�thhorne's letter No. 356, dated 18th March 18150� to the Collector Upper Sind, included in the Hyderabad District the water tax or Hakabo. 12. Mir Mahmud's heirs would not agree to these terms and Captain Rathborne in his No. 889, dated 14th November 1850, solicited the Commissioner's instructions on the following two questions : " The first is-to which of the heirs " the regrant should be made-and the second-should it or should " it not be liable to the rent of two aunas a Bigah." On the first point he wrote : " But the sons as you are Captain Rnthborne re- " f t · Tb Id t commends the succession aware are men O ma ure age. e e es or both the sons. " Mir Ahmad Khan I should take to be at " least 50 and the other Mir Jaha.n Khan about 7 years younger, 
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" and as their father, long before the conquest, had been bed 
" ridden and retired from the world, his estates were virtually in 
" his s:ms' possession.• Plans of division of them after his death, 
" had. long been drawn up, and there were orders of the Mirs con­
" firming them. As the brothers were at enmity with each other 
" the propo1·tions laid down in th� proposed arrangement were, 
" as each prevailed over the other, orcasioually changed, but no 

. ', change was made in the principle admitted that they were on 
" their father's death to share their father's Jagir between 
" them." The brothers, Captain Rathborne continued, had agreed 
to take equal shares, and he recommended that this scheme of 
partition should be sanctioned. 

13. " As reg'.l.rds the 2nd point," wrote he : " I  would recommend 

Carta.in R'.1.thbome's opimon regarding the levy or two annas per Bigah. 
'' that in this case, and in others of like nature, 
" the operation of the rule be suspended. The 
" large amount of land resigned to Govern­
,, mcnt ; the position these Sirdars. held ; the 

" terms on which their Jagirs were originally granted ; and the fact 
" th1t before the Ja�ir Rules were introduced, the late Governor .:, 

" held out strong hopes, to the four principal Talpur Families, 
'' of exemption from this rent charge, are all strong points in favor 
" of the remi3sion ;  and if it be s'.l.id that their father during his 
" lifetime negleetd to avail himsef of the offer to convert his 
" hnd.s int,> a perpetuity on the terms proposed, it may be ob­
" jectei th1t their father wa.s long before his death in his dotage, 
" an! the Jagirs were in the hands of trusteest ; but that even if 
" it w.:?re not so, t:ie Governm:mt having in no case given a per­
" petuity S:mad, though the whole of the Nizamanis very long 

* This explains the order passed about the ManJllu holding. 
t The trustees were appointed in accordance with Sir Charles' order No. 2545, dated tth �ept.ember 1847, to the Collector or Hyderabad, ( M8 page ). It appears Crom thia Collector's No. 1600, dated 16th November 1848, to the Collector of Karachi, t.ba\ lli&­.lhmad Khan himself was one of theae trustem. 
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" since applied for them ( sic I ) and others have stated their 
" readiness to effect the commutation, I think, it would be unfair 
" to hold the Sirdars to the letter of the law." 

14. The Commissioner, Mr. Pringle, in his No. 1912, dated 
20th November 1850, concurred with Captain 

The Commissioner agrees , • with Captain Rathbome. Rathborne " both as regards the immediate 
,, questions at issue, and the general questions arising eut of 
" them." 

15. But before the decision could be carried out, Mir Jahan 
Death of Jahan Khan Khan died in April 1851, without male issue. 

before the Settlement. " The Rabi crop, 1262, minus the fourth 
" share lapsed on the father's death, was given to the survivor 
" Ahmad Khan." Several questions arose in connection with the 
regrant of the J agir, and pending their decision the produce was 
kept in deposit. 

16. The first question was, whether Jahan Khan's share should 
J ahan Khan's share to lapse to the Government. The Commissioner 

lapse to Government. in his No. 1216, dated 25th May 1852, 
" looking to • the total separation of interests betwe�n the pre­
" sent claimant ( Ahmad Khan ) and his deceased brother, which 
'' had existed for a long time before their father's demise, looking 
" also to the fact th1t <lurin5 the dotage of their father they had 
" for some years managed his estate, and had obtained from the 
" ruling authority, at divers times, Sanads defining the shares of 
" each,'' decided the question in the affirmative. 

17. The next point was as to the Gandha to be employed in 
measuring out the regrant. :Mir Ahmad 

:&grant to Mir Ahmad • • dh f 7 to be by the Mir's Khan wanted the N ap1erian Gan a o 
Gandba. feet 6 inches to be used, but the Collector, in 
his No. 804, dated 28th June 1852, stated that this Gandha had 
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been used only in two cases of regrants, those to Rohal Khan 
Karri and Ali Muhammad Nizamani, and that in all other 
regrants the Mir's Gandha of 6 feet 5 inches had been 
used. The Commissioner in his No. 1656, dated 6th July 1852, 
replied : " The claimant has no right to have bis Jagir measured 
" by the N apierian Gandha." 

18. The 3rd point which required decision was the method 
of calculating the extent of resumable waste. The extent of resumable Th It' t d t' ed d waste calculated in the e CU lVa e por lOil was measur an Hyderabatl District. · found to be 18,720 Jirebs " which with the · 

" usual quantity of fallow allowed would bring up the amount 
" to about 44,000 Jirebs, Napierian measure, or 60,000 Mir's 
" measurement," ('Dide Hyderabad Collector's No. 447, dated 24th 
April 1852 to the Commissioner) . The Collector suspecting this 
measurement to be false, called for a statement of the produce 
of the J agir for fasl 1260. The Mir accordingly supplied 
this statement from which it appeared that he had .re­
ceived 1048 Kharwars in all, in kind, and Rs. 1,360 in cash. 
Calculating at the rates marginilly noted, the Collector ar-

rived at the conclusion that the 1 cultivated bigah=7 Kasas .  of Paddy. area of the cultivated land in the -5 Kasa.s of Barley or wheat or Rabi Jagir was 15,047 M. B. The fal­grains. - 4 Kasas of Juari low land regrantable .in proportion 
... &.\�g(rent in (to the two heirs) would be 32,579, cash). m:iking a total of 47,626 M. R 

Out of this the Collector deducted 3,150 M. B., which he said 
had been granted to Mir Ahmad by Mir Murad Ali, and subse­
quently exchanged by )fir Sobdar for lands equivalent in value 
in the same parganah of Shahdadpur. These, it was asserted, 
formed Mir Ahmad's separate and independent Jagir, and not the 
deceased Mir's property. Out of the remainder he declared one-half 
22,238 M. B.) to be Jaban Khan's share, and therefore lapsed to 
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Government. Thus the Mir was allowed to retain only 22,238 . M. B. 
The Commissioner however objected to the above calcnlation, on 
the ground that the Mir himself did not state the cultivated area 
to be more than 42,000 M. B. Eventually the Mir was allowed 
a choice, out of several averages for the purpose of making the 
produce calculation, and estimating the regranta.ble area. He 
chose a two years' average (of the years' 1259 and 1260 A. H.), 
the result of which was that, the regrantable area w:is reduced to Jamma and Dabhra · Mahar Snmmawati , . ,  Kot Shah Ismael •. • That 
Gass . . •  Karaho and Kbundan 

. . .  4,0:38 
. . . 183 
. . .  1,582 
. . .  1,154 
•.• 3,301 
• .. 686 
• • •  1,975 

17,226 M. B. (vide Commissioner's 
No. 1656 of 1852 to the Collector 
of Hyderabad) .  The area in  N. B. 
actually regranted in the Hyder­
abad District, ou. the 30th De-

12,919 cember 1852, by Captain Fen:ning 
under the above decision is shewn 

in the margin. 

19. Thus only 3 holdings, Bilawalpur, Manj hu, and Mundar Different methn<is of remained undisposed of. Major Goldsmid adjustment adopted in the in his No 86 of 1854 to the address of the Karachi and Shikarpur • ' 
Districts. Commissioner, wrote on this subject as fol-

lows :- " It appears that on the death of 
" Mir Mahmud Khan, a different method of Jagir adjustments was 
" pursued in each Collectorate respectively. In Ilyderabad there 
·' was nn equal division between the sons, after deducting Govern­
" ment claims and waste land resnmptions. In Shikarpur the 
" arrangement was a regrant less a quarter. In Karachi waste 
"lands were resumed, and the suns left in possession of the remain­
" der, without specification of land allotments to each. The two last 
" settlements, can, however, only be considered as temporary and 
" have been so treated in the present report." 

20. The Commissioner in his reply No. 1874, dated 3rd July 
1854, said regarding the three undisposed of J a.girs. " The onl7 
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" course is to begin ab initio, and to consider the various orders " which have at different times been passed by the Collector as Major Goldsmid's pro­posal for the settlement of the J,igirs in tho above Districts. 

" superseded." Accordingly Major Gold­smid in his No. 336, dated 14th October 1854, made a full report from which the following extract is made. " It has been " ascertained that Ahmad Khan's legitimate half of the Bilawal­" pur Ja�ir, c1lculated according to the usual scale, on an average " of four years immediately preceding the succession (adding 15 " per cent. for a defined boundary) amounts to . . .  Jirebs 2,252 " To this m1,y b3 a<l lccl for Manjhu . . .  . . .  . . . . . . . . •  , ,  330 " And for Mundar• . . . . .. . . .  . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . . . , , 1,250 
" Making a total on the three J agirs of . . . . . . . . . ,, 3,832" 21. The Commissioner sanctioned this adjustment, and as the Mir was anxious to retain his hunting Thi! Commissioner sane- d tione them. groun in ManJhu, saw " no objection to " offering the Mir an equivalent for the " Mundar Jagir in Manjhu, bigah for bigah, up to the extent of " culturable land, _and three bigahs _for one beyond that amount." This offer was however not accepted during the time allowed for its acceptance, and it therefore fell through. 22. The settlements recommended for Government sanction in his letter No. 12, dated 3rd July 1858, by Mr. Ellis with the following remarks :-" On the death of Mir Mahmud (No. 2) the terms of Mr. Ellis'R Temarks on 1111bmitting the settle­ments for Government sanction. 

" the proclamation were followed in the Hy­" derabad Collectorate, and the Jagirs were " regranted, free of all tax, to the two " sons, one of whom, however, (No. 5), died " before the regrant was carried out,, and his share lapsed to Go-
* In the tabular statement annexed to hie Memorandum No. 111 of 1857, Major Goldemid entered this a.s 12lH, and therefore increased the total by one. The total regrant­able area therefore entered in hie statement E. from which the figures in columns 3, 4 and ti of the appended Statement are taken was 16,752. 
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" vcrnment. But tho quantity of waste land resumed was so 
" great, that Mir Mnhmud's successor was very ill-content with the 
" settlement, and a revision in his favor would have been recom-

" mended had he not been found guilty of Sauctionc<l by Govern- " attemptin0f1' to deceive Government."* The meut. 
settlement proposed was sanctioned. 

3 MIR ..t1.HJL1.D. Genealogy. He was a son of No. 2. Social position. 2.  " Much might be writte,i" says Majo·r 
GJldsmi<l " to show the high position of the family and especially 
" of the late Mir :Mahmud, but it will be sufficient for practical 
" purposes to refei· to their numerous alienations and undoubted 
" genealogy, to place llir Ahmad Khan in the same rank with 
" the . . . . . .  'falpur Chief Bijar." Vide also No. 2. Estate. 3. For the estate inherited by this Mir 

from his father, vide No. 2. Date of Sanad. �fahar . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,0611 B. 4th June �Rlfl. Kahah . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,464 B. 8th June 1 8  I 8. Nalah Sind . . . . . •  549 B. 8th June 1818. Dat.e of Sanad. Kharo :Ma.rho . . .  878 B. September 1842. Kot Shah Ismael 3,959 B. November 1841. W,1Sandi Saja.11 2,190 B. November 1841. Lyari and Be-larah . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,306 B. 

This Mir in his father's lifetime 
received 3 Jagirs from Mir Murad 
Ali which are specified in the mar­
gin, 3 from Mir Shahdad Khan 
also specified in the margin and 
Lyari and Belarah, in exchange 
for " the Karya of l\Iir'Ahmad and 
" Pannah of Fakirani Shahi'' from 

* "  On the death of Jehan Khan, his brother Ahmad Khan put in a claim to the whole " 0f his father's estate of Bilawalpur, grounding it. on a will, said to have been executed in " the presence, and bearing the seals, of Mirs Xur l\luhammatl, :Mir Muhammad and ;\-lir " Na.�ir Khan, and on the strength of this will and pend in;; further enquiry, Ahmad Khan " wa'I allowed to retain posse3sion of the whole Jagir of Bihtw.lipur, until the following " yo:1.r, when it was reporteJ to me by Nin do Khizmatgar late Kardar of Ta!ti that, the will " on which AhmaJ Khan gronncled his claim had been rendered invalid by 'one of ·later " date," vide No. 310:;2, dated 1st June 1854, from the Collector of Karachi, to the Com­missioner. Nindo's allegation waa confinned on enquiry, in tho opinion of the Collector, 



Addenda and Corrigenda to the Bombay Land Revenue Code, 1819 
(Bombay V of 1�19)1 in its application to Sind, 

Secl�n 3, 

Add ilie following clause:-

11( 29) 1Theodolite or Traverse Station' means any stone, iron peg or any otner mark 
whether natural or artificial erected, buried, set up, emplored or specined by a Survey 
Officer or other Revenue Officer having authority in 1hat behalf for the purpose of indi, 
eating the angular poin� of the base line taken for the purpose ol any survey." 

Sectwn 125. 

After the word 1boundary mark' the words 1tl1eodolite or traverse station' should be 
inserted, 

Set/ion 136, 

(a) !or sub-section (2) and the nrst proviso thereto the following shall be substituted, 
namely: • 

11(2) In case ol default by any person who is primarily liable under this section, the 
land revenue, including arrears, for the current year M be recoveralile from any person 
in pos.1ession of the hnd in that year and the arrears of land revenue, if any, of previous 
years shall be recoverable from an, person who was in possession of ilie land in the year 
or years in which such arrears fall due," 

(o) in ilie second proviso to sub-section (2) tlie word 1furtl1er' shall be omitted. 

( Vide Government of Sind, Revenue Department, No, 1900�-B., dated ilie 22nd May 
1940,) 
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Mir Sobdar under the Anjamnamah, dated 17th June 1838, to which reference has already been made in treating of Mir Mahmud's J agirs. Thus the Mir held 14,406 Bigahs at the conquest. All the Sanads excepting that for :Mahar bore the Governor's seal. That for Mahar was not in the Mir's possession, but was traced in the Hyderabad Mir's Daftar. 4. The Mir received a Salami Parwana and continued to hold all the above lands under it until 1858, when Its C'.)ntinuance by Sir Charles and in 1858. he was confirmed in their possession by the settlement sanctioned in that year. 
The Mir's death. 5. He died on the 17th January 1867. 

4 MIR ..4.LI MUH..4.MMAD. 

�nealogy. Social position. 
Estate. Panjmora. and Khor Bhanda . . .  . . .  6,4il B. Pini,rarah Rahu . . .  2,196 B. Chauglani . . • . . . 403 B. 

9,0iO B. 

This Mir was the son of No. 3. 2. Vide No. ·3. 3. He was found in possession of the Jagirs marginally noted and was confirmed in their possession by Sir Charles Napier, and after· wards under the settlement of 1858, (vide Sanad No. 3) . 4. He held .in addition 2,000 Jirebs in the Pargana Pingarah (Taluka Hala) on account of Sangat (followers), but these were resumed by order of the Collector of Hyderabad, dated the 30th Octob,)r ·1s:n: The Mir complained • of this resumption, bu.t the Commissioner, Sir Bartle Frere, after calling for a report., sa,'v no reas�n for interference. ( Vide his No. 377, dated 19th February 1853, to the Collector of Hyderabad) . 



96 5. The Mir died on 27th .A.ugust 1863. His son Jan ::Uu­The Mir's death. hammad succeeded to the regrantable portions of his estate as well as to those of X o. 2. Vide Statement. 
Genealogy. 

Social position. 

5 MIR J.dH.dN KHAN. He was the youngest son of Mir Mah­mud No. 2. 2. Vide Nos. 2 and 3. 3. The Mir was found in possession of 20,489 B. at the Estate. conquest. He died in April 1851, it is said of cholera, without leaving male issue, and his whole estate, separate as well as inherited, lapsed to Government. It is therefore unnecessary to detail his possessions. 
as. 6 t 7. MIRS GHULAM SHA H ANJJ PA.ZUL A. LI. 

Genealogy. SHAHDAD. 
I 

Babram. I 
Bijar. 

I 
Abdullah. 

I 
Bahram. 

I 

Mir Ghulam Shah. lfir Fazul Ali. " The Mirs Ghulam Shah and Fazul Ali are nephews 
Sooiat poeitioo, 

" of the Ex-Amir Mir Muhammad, their " mother having been his §.�ter:' writes 



97 Captain Rathbome (fJide Conquest of Sind, page 506) . Mir Ghulam Shah was in the service of Mir Sobdar, and Mir Fazul Ali in that of Mii: Muhammad, when the Residency was attacked by Mir Shahdad. Mir Ghulam Shah begged Mir Muhammad to send an order to stop Mir Shahdad\ and a confidential person was accordingly despatched, but Shahdad replied he had sworn to do the business, and would go on with it. 2. When Sir Charles Napier was proceeding by steamers up to Sukkur, the two brothers made their Salaam to him, and on his return from Sukkur �th the intent of fighting the Amirs th�y offered him their, services in a friendly letter. Sir Charles Napier's reply was follows :-" I have received your letter expressing your readiness " to afford every aid to Europeans, �nd placing your services " at my disposal for which I have to thank you. I am perfectly " convinced of your friendly intenj;ions, and hope to find an " opportunity some day of repaying you. Bear this in mind. " Dated 31st January 1843." (Vide letter No. 303, dated 25th March 1852, from the Oolleclor of Hyderabad, to tlie Commis-1ioner, for11Jarding a petition from the Mira, with accompaniment.) 3. The :Mirs were found in possession of 97,461 bigahs at the Conquest. They died in 1852 and 1853 respectively, without leaving male issue, and their whole estate lapsed to Government. It � been previously reduced in quantity by the resumption of one-half as fine for attempting to commit forgery-and in v�lue by the levy of Duanagi (2 annas per jireb) upon the remaining half for the same cause. 
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SEOTION II. 

PM Shahwanis. 

-
INTRODUCTION. 

Shahu Khan had six sons, Karam ·Khan, Ghulam Muhammad,. Sayad Khan, Muhammad Maluk, Murad, and Sirdar Khan. " But," wrot.e Major Goldsmid, " I  am unable " to discover the existence of privil�ges and immunities, such " as  were accorded to the superior Talpur Derahdars in any " branch of succeeding generations out of the families of " Ghulam Muhammad and Karam Khan. ..A.nd indeed there 
,l appears no claim to the. social position of a Sirdar in other " than these two aections to which my recommendation has, in " this respect then been confined." 
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2. The following genealogici1,l tree shows the lineage of 
the four Jagirdars numbered 8, 9, 10 and 11, belonging to the 
Shahwani family :-

I 
Karam Khan. 

I 
Muhammad Ali. 

I 
Mir Budho Khan, 

(No. 9). 

81li.HU. Kru..ir. 

I 

I 
Mir Muhammad Khan. 

(Tando Muhammad 
Khan called aft4ir �). 

I 
Ghulam Muh&mma.d. 

I 
Haji Ahmad Khan. 

Ghutam [,hamm.a. 
( eldest aon). 

I 
I 

Karam Khan. 

r 
Mir Ghulam Shah. 

I 
Mir Alibakhah Khan. 

I 
:Mir Ghulam Haidar. 

l 
Mir Ahmad Khan. 

(No. 8) . 

:lfu Muhammad J... Khan. 
(No. 11) . 

. I 
Kir .Alimurad Khan, (No. 10). 

. I 
Mia Ghulamullah. 

3. Their social position will mostly appear from the extent of 
their holdings and will not be separately dealt with in every case. 
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No. 8. .J.LIB.J.KHSH. 

" In the time of Mir Fateh Ali the town of Jerruck with " the transit duties and the whole of the land 
Eal&te. " adjacent called Dubbiar and Wiran, was " given in Jagir to Mir Muhammad Khan". ( No. 1401 dated 17th 

October 1845, from Captain T. K. Stewart, 
1!t�!:. 

Mir'a great grand- Deputy Collector, Jerruck, to the Collector, 
Karachi') .  2. Mir Ghulam Ali, between 1802 and 1812, by an Ahdnamah in the of tlaa Mir's grand-father's aldeat brother. Koran confirmed the 

l-lanhrn in Ropa. . .  . . .  . . .  alienations marginal-Jerruck on the further (right) bank of the river . . .  Imamwah Tarai, both banks with Tanda and Ijara. (This e,·i- ly noted to Muhani­dently includea the Jagir entered in the Jagir Rolla aa Imamwah'. . . .  . . . .  . . .  . . .  mad �han's son Gugha and Sayadpur (in lieu of original Jagirll) • · ·  Gh 1 ·u· h d Ganjbahr and forest ou both banka of the Pahjar . . .  . . .  U am .w.U amma Dodo (except Fateh Khan'• Jagira) with }[aka.us of Jilirpur and to his heirs ., Roshnai and 
6 Makans of Kabulpur Yesarki in Sammawati Bakharrah 

,, Karya Chatto Bhurgri. 

Pat. Gahi . . .  . . .  , . .  Half Mad.ah in Kacha (Kokar) except Mir Muhammad .l.li'e half, i. e., ith of lladah . . . . . . . . .  . . •  Hakan Kari Chaubandi of Ahmadehah . . . .  Badiani in (Sa;yadpur) 

-� � •· . Some of them had been held by Mir Muhammad Khan while others were new grants. 3. Ghulam Muhammad dying without heirs was succeeded . by his brother Karam Khan in the possessions of the Mir's grand-father. d tail d . 2 t' 7 1l.raka . e , e m para. , excep mg JY.L ns m Imamwah and 3 in Ropa, which he agreed to surrender to his uncle Haji Ahmed Khan, being the latter's share of Mir Muhammad Khan's possessions. 4. On Karam Khan's death, Mirs Karam Ali and Murad Ali, 
Of the Mir's father. by a 8anad dated 9th April 1S18, granted his posaessions to his son Ghulam Shah who 



101 lived to be the principal Sirdar in the Court of Mir Mir :Muham• mad Khan. But during the life of Ghulam Muhammad or Karam Khan ( it is not certain which ) ,  the Shikargah made by the first grantee on the land was taken by Mir Ghulam Ali, and the J agirdar was permitted to cultivate what part of it he could, on the condition that the game should not be scared therefrom. " It is not to be expected that he could realize much " of the produce. In some seasons he got a few Kasas of grain, " in others none at all . The town duties which were very trifling, " increased with the size of the place, and these with the transit " duties were also resumed by the Amirs' Government, and the " amount of Hyderabad Rs. 80 per annum was allowed to the " J agirdar in lieu of them. 5. " Karam Khan's son Ghulam Shah continued to receive " this small tribute, and his claims upon the land became almost 
Death of the Mir's 

father at Meani. 

'' nominal. He was killed at Meani, and " his son :Alibakhsh, the present claimant " succeeded him in his extensive jagirs in " other parts of Sind. After the conquest of the country by the " British, he made no claim for the tribute formerly paid to " his father " ( Yide Captain Stewart's lett,r quoted above). 6. On the 5th December 1853, Captain Preedy, Collector of Karachi, in his No. 1383, directed the Deputy Collector of Jerruck " t,o cause the north and· south-eastern boundaries of the jagir of " Mir Alibakhsh Talpur to be clearly defined, as he was entitled " to the rent of the whole of the cultivable land around J erruck, " with the exception of the Government KJ!�ir's Jerruck Jagir 
" garden, the land inside the forest limits, " and that called Dubbiar all of which belong " to Government " From Captain Preedy's letter No, 1947, dated 24th October 1854, to Captain Goldsm.id, Assistant Com­missioner for Jagirs, it appears that Mir Alibakhsh's jagir at J erruck was called Kunera or Kunri. 



102 7. About the J agir of Karya Cha.tta, Captain Goldsmid wrote as follows :-" It appears on enquiry that The Mir's claim_ ta the " the alienation desi"'nated Karya Chatta Karya Chatta Jagir. o " was given over, before the Conquest, to " the mother of Mir Ahmad Khan (Shahwani). He is now " reported to have been in possession up to the date of his " demise. The donor Alihakhsh (No. 8) being, however, the re­" cognised grantee by Sanad, it is not considered that the e.liena­" tion can be admitted otherwise than in his name, without · the " special sanction of Government ." 8. This Karya Chatta together with all the other jagirs (except Gugha and Sayadpur which were Sir Charles' Settlement; not found in the Mir's possession) were confirmed to Mir Alibakhsh by Sir Charles Napier, subject to the payment of one-fourth produce, according to the usual rule followed in the case of those grantees whose fathers had died fighting against the English at Mcani -or Dabba (vide Sanad No. 4). The Mir thus held 3,42,722 bigahs in all the three Districts. 9 In 1857 Mir Alibakhsh petitioned to be allowed to pay for a period of seven years a fixed money �ssessment in lieu of 
The Mir's petition for settlement o(Chowth and regarding the hardship or the Hakabo rules. 

the one.,.fourth share, his reasons being the vexations to which he was subjected, and the expense entailed on hj.m by the presence of the Government Karawahs upo� his grounds. This and other petitipns led to the adoption of the rule fixing the Chowth on a, teQ. years' average. He also made a long representation as to the hardship of paying 3 annas a bigah for Hakabo throughout his jagirs on Smlabi land, and 3½ rupees per Charkha or 1¼ per Hurla without reference to the amount of land brought under the operation of each. This complaint led to the framing of certain rules which have been detailed in the Chapter ragarding Hakabo in the first VolUIQ.e of this work, 



103 10. Under the Settlement of 1858, the Mir was confirmed in 
Gold 'd' Se 1 all his possessions at the Conquest on the fol­llDll s tt ement. lowing terms. His position was not to be interfered with for the term of his natural life, so long as he remained true and loyal. ( Vide Sanad No. 4 ). :But on his death 85,680 bigahs were to be deducted from his enormous holding of 3,42,722 bigahs on account of quarter-resumption, and 85,742 bigahs on account of one-third for uncultivated land, in all 1,17 ,422 bigahs. The remainder ( 1, 71,300 bigahs ) was to be regranted to his heir. The l\Iir's death and 

regrant. 
11. The Mir died on 30th October 1869. For particulars of regra.nt JTide Statement.• 

No. 9. MIR B UIJHO. 

Mir Budho was, according to Major Goldsmid, the head of Social position. the second or junior branch of the Shah-wanis, and a Sirdar held in high consideration by the people of 
Estate or the \fir's ra- Central Sind. Mir ·Budho's father Mir Mu­

tber (hereditary). hammad Ali was hereditarily confirmed in all his possessions detailed in columns 10 to 18 of the Statement,• by an Ahdnarnah executed by Mir Ghulam Ali which contained the words " His A.ul11,d (strictly male issue) shall " also become possessed of these Jagirs." �- Mir Budho was found in possession of the above holdings Th .. ,.,_, tate 8. at the Conquest, and was confirmed in them e =S es - 1r Charles' Settlement and by Sir Charles Napier in February 1846, Goldamid'L - · and by the Settlement of 1858, subject of course, to the ordinary liability o� regrant and to the usual terms. * Theee St.tements ..,, reaerved for t4e 3rd VolUJDe, 
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lvos. 10 t 11 .  MIR A.LIMURA.IJ walad MIR 
A.HMA.IJ A.NIJ MIR MUHAMMAD HASS.AN 

walad HA JI A.HM.A. D KH.d.N. 

Mir Murad Ali by a Sanad dated 28th July 1817 granted Estate. Mhurrah Bulakhan to Mir Haji Ahmad Khan, 
or Haji Ahmad Khan. the grandfather of Mir Ahmad Khan, besides Rs. 60 for ijara and other levies. By another Sanad dated 16th Original. July 1822, the Napierian t Nuraye . . .  Kathiari Y akhtiarwah � Mati . . .  5 New Kak Mhurrho Bula.khan. . .  . . .  Those f,irming his eh.a.re of his brother Mir Muhammad Khan's Jagirs divided between Karam Khan a�d Haji  Ahmad Khan. llunah ...  
A,...!i iu�:'�lili 

Husanwah 
Lakra ... 
Karya Rahman 

'� Chak ••• .... Thahri ..• Kha.broth Old ,Sanhro Old Kak Manjri Dodi 

. .. 

Bigahs. same Mir gran -3tl:f + 4,392 ed him Yakhtiar-
5,076 1 ,464 23,922 + 1 ,210 

wah in addition, and by a third dated 7th August 1822, two thou­sand Mir's bi­gahs in Gujah in 3,892 1 ,91:l 9,757 
5,010 5,200 3,402 5,003 3,781 6,190 6,955 811 + 236 

21,960 Mhurrah Bula­khan in J:ati. Re was also con• firmed in all his 
811 possessions mar­ginally noted by an Ahdnamah of the same Mir. 1 ,16,679 + 29,837 

2. On his death his son Ghulam Raider was regranted all his 
or Haji Ahmad K�an's jagirs by a Sanad dated 25th September eldest son Ghulam Haider. 1825. Another Sanad dated 8th July 1829 confirmed to Ghulam Haider the jafr of Khabroth " according to " possession in the time of :Mirs Fateh Ali and Ghulam Ali." 
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3. Ghulam Haid�r before his decease procured from Mi 
Nasir Khan a Sanad giving over his orig. 

or Ghulam Haider's son Mir Ahmad Khan, and his inal jagirs to his son Ahmad Khan. But brother Muhammad Has- Ahmad Khan who, accordin!? to Captain sau. � 
Rathborne, was a free-liver, after his father's 

death, made over to his uncle Muhammad Hassan (No. 11) a 
share of the family lands under an agreement for partition made 
with him. This division was afterwards confirmed by Mir Nasir 
Khan, (vide Captain 11,athborne'a letter No. 104, dated 11th 
Februaru 1846, to the Secretary to the Sind Government), who on 
¼ Munjri . 81 1 bigahs. 24ith July 1841, confirmed to Muham-�ew Kak . . . 1 ,464 " Kathiari • .• 4,300 ,, mad Hassan, No. 11, all the land mar-Ha.s.'i1mwah • . •  21,960 ., • l . Uuja and Ratol gmal y specified, and the rest of Mir in }lhurrho Bula- Ah d Kb , • · t hi d khan • . • 1,210 ,, ma an s Jag1rs o s gran son 

2u,sa1 Ahmad Khan· No. lO's father. This 
Sanad was sealed by the Governor and both the Mirs contin­
ued to hold their lands under it. 

4. It appeared from an endorsement on the Ahdnamah of 
. d Yakh . h Mir Murad Ali forwarded by Captain Rath-Mat1 an t1arwa = S 1:. h' . . ha Macheri and Ga.rra 5,076 borne to the ecretary ior 1s mspect10n, t t bigahs. Mir Ahmad Khan at the Conq nest was not 

found in possession of Mati or Yakhtiarwah, these having been 
exchanged by Mir Nur Muhammad for Macheri and Garr!l, and 
that the u Chaubandi ., of Ahmad Khan was excepted from the 
jagir of Kathinri handed over to Muhammad Hassan. The area 
of this " Chaubandi " was 1,161 Napierian bigahs and these be­
longed to Mir Ahmad Khan, 

5. Mir Ahmad Khan died on 23rd February 1856. Under the 
Estat.eof Ali Murad. Settlement of 1858 and the Sanad of 1861 his 

son Alimurad continued to enjoy the whole of the jagirs (1,16,679) 
subject to the payment of quarter-assessment, until 1875--76, when 
he applied for the permanent regrant,and was accordingly regranted 
his jagirs minus 38,879 bigahs, being one-third of this area on account 



106 of uncultivated land. Mir Muhammad Hassan was also confirm­ed in his possessions under the Settlement of 1858, but he agreed to take a pension of Rs. 125 per mensem in lieu of his jagirs, and this arrangement was sanctioned.-'Pide Gooernment ReaoluUon 2645, dated 24ith July 1860. He was described by Captain Rath. borne in November 1847 as "  a very good man in his way but " hopelessly involved in debt." 
SECTION III. The Kkanania. 

INTRODUCTION. " It is difficult," writes Major Goldsmid, " to account for " this term, for it is assumed by the descendants generally of Ali. " My ·  impression is that it is only strictly applicable as a warrant " for immunity, to the heads cf the families of Muksudo and " Aludo, sons of Mubarik," called Maksudanis and Aludanis. 2. Captain Rathborne's " Genealogical memorandum of the " Talpur family " (date unknown) makes Ghulam Haidar Khan, the head of the Ma1'sudani branch, and " Muhammad Khan or " Mir Muhammad Khan, of Jam Halla-ka-Tandat'' the head of the Aludanis. This latter occupied a higher social position among the Khananis than the former. 
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3. The following genealogical tree shows the lineage of the 
Khanani Jagirdars from Ali, ·the uncle of Shahdad :-

ALI. 
I 

Mubarik Khan. 
I 

Darya Khan. 

Maksudo. 

Ohulam 
Muhammad. 

I 
Aludo, 

I 
I I 

Mir Ohulam Shah. 
Mahrab. 
(No. 1 5.) 

I 
Tajo, 

'---------: 
I 

I I 
·1 Ohulam Shah. Aludo. Muhammad Ali, 

Jam. Sultan K.aim Bud.ho. J (No. 17.) 
I Ali. Khan. Mir ubarik, 

Muhammad (No. 16.) 
Khan (No. 12.) 

Wali :Muh�mad. I Sher :Muhammad (No. 14.) 
Jan :Muhammad 

I 
Ahmad Khan (No. 13.) 

I 
Shah Ali. Ali Khan. 
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r Ali. 
I 

Muhammad Khan. AhmJ Khan. 
(killed at :Meani.) ,--.---.--l ---'Tl--Al-,-l1.--, 

Shah Ah. Ohulam Ghu am Ahmed 

J Haidar, Ullah, Murad, Ali, 
A ullah. (No. 18.) (No. 19.) (No. 22.) (No. 20.) 

I I 
Jan Juharoroad. Wall Muhammad. 

Ali Mardan, 
I 

Bahawal. 
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No. 12. MIB MUHAMMAJJ KHAN, KHA.NANI. 

This Jagirdar's father Jam was one of the principal Sirdars 

�ocial position. in the Mirs' time. He founded Jam-jo-Tando 
on the way from Hyderabad to Tando Alah-

yar. 
2. On the death of Mir Budho, grandson of Aludo, his three 

sons Wall ::Muhammad, Jan Muhammad and 
Estate. Sher Muhammad, and his nephew, Muham­

mad Khan, divided their jagirs anew as fallows, and Mir Murad 
Ali by a Sanad confirmed the division :-

The 3 sons jointly. Makan Sha], Karya ::Muham-

l\{uhammad Khan. 

mad Khan J amali, 7 shares of 
Charrawo, ' Khebrani, Jhok, 3 
shares of W anejn, 3 shares of 
Makan Khanpur Jellori, Maddar, 
Bhattun, Dumano, Dambhrelo 
(granted in 1811 by Mir Ghulam 
Ali}, 3 shares of pay. 

(1). Makan Naheja except 
the Karya of Muhammad Khan 
Jamali (54,892 bigahs). 

N.B.-Tracea.ble as in possession of 
Mir Budho under a Sanad dated Septem­
ber 1810. 

(2). ¼th of Makan Charrawo 
(5,295 bigabs) . 

N.B.-Traceable as in possession of 
Mir Budho under a Sanad dated Sep­
tember 1810. 

(3). Jagir of Billa! (4,732 bi­
gahs) in lieu of one-fourth pay, 
&c. in possession of the deceased 
Mir Jam Khan, his father ; (the 
original grant for Billal is dated 
15th July 1831.) 
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(4) . ¼th Makan Khanpur 
Jellori, Maddar, Bhattun, Duma­
no. 

(5) .  fth of Waneja. 

3. Mir Hussen Ali Khan, by a Sanad dated 6th August 1841, 
granted another jagir, that of Bebri (4,000 lfirs' bigahs=2,928 
Napieriau bigahs) to :Mir Muhammad Khan. This jagir on 
measurement by Mr. Fernandez was found to contain 2,149 
bigahs, as stated in the column of remarks in the Sanad . 

4. At the Conquest, the· Mir was found in possession of all 
these lands except ¼th of Khanpur Jellori, 

Rir Charles' settlement 11,.- dd Bhatt d D d 1 h f' and l!ajor Gold:Ji:uid's. .i.n.a ar, un an umano an 4t o 
,v aneja, and was confirmed in the possession 

of all the lands he actually held. The settlement of 1858 made 
no alter�ation in the extent of his holding, but defined 42,000 
bigahs as the permanently regrantable area. Pide Statement. 

5. The Mir died on the 26th November 1880. According 

Mir's death. 

" character." 

to Captain Rathborne_ he was addicted to 
opium, but was " a quiet man of good 

No. 13. MIR A HMA D KHAY. 
No. 14. MIR SHER MUHAMMAIJ KHAN. 

It has been already stated (vide No. 12J what lands 
1-Atate of the sons of Mir were confirmed to Wali Muhammad, Jan 

Hudbo. Muhammad and Sher Muhammad, the sons 
of Mir Budho, by Mir Murad Ali. Mir Budho's sister was 
married to Mir Sobdar and was the mother of Mir Fateh Ali. Mir 
Budho's descendants among whom are Nos. 13 and 14 were 



110 sometimes called Budhanis. On the death of Mir Wali Muhammad the eldest, without issue, Mir Nasir Khan by an Ahdnama, not in t.he Koran but beginning with the sacred words " Al Hamd'' dated October 1841, granted the following lands to the surviving brothers, jointly without any detail of shares :-1 Karyn Muhammad Khan J amali 
2 Gango Batri 
3 Cherrawah 
4 K.ebrani . . . 
5 Jhok 
6 Kokur . . . 
7 ½ Barechani 
8 Dambhrela 
0 Ganharwah 

10 Shal 11 Wanija . . . 

. . . 
Bigahs. 3,118 3,370 45,335 59,231 16,358 3,025 1,331 8,623 1,40,391 40,461 . . . 41,305 5,946 ( Vide Major Goldsmid's No. 186, dated 19tli August M1·. Gibbs, .Assistant Commissioner in Sind) . 1858, to 

2. Of thP,sc 11 jagirs, six viz., Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5, 10 and 11 are mentioned in Mir Murad Ali's Sanad, which was quoted while treating of Mir Muhammad Khan's holdings. Koku r  was apparently a grant to Mir Ahmad Khan, Jan Muhammad's son by the later Talpurs, according to Major Goldsmid. Gango Batri, and ½ Barechani and Ganharwah were granted by Mir Ghulam Ali though why they were not included in Mir Murad. Ali's Sanad is not clear. Shal originally belonged to the Numrias. Mian N ur Muhammad Kalhora, made it over by Sa.natl to Malk Pahar Khan so far back as 1738, A. D. and the Numria Chief appears to have enjoyed the full benefits of the grant until the Talpur usurpation in 1783. He then with a view of conciliating the 



1 1 1  ruling powers (and probably to secure his own position) gave the Shal Jagir to Mir Budho's sister Mai Khairi, mother of Mir Fateh Ali. This lady made it over to her brother to cultivate on the same terms as those accepted by her, namely the giving of an eleventh share of produce to the legitimate owners. 
,v aneja was one of Mir Ghul&.m Ali's grants to Mir Hudho. 'fhree-fourths of it were granted afterwards by Mir Nasir Khan to Mir Sher Muhammad and one-fourth to Mir Muhammad Khan, but as the latter was not found in possession, the whole was given to tl1e former. (/Tide Major Goldsmid's No. 186, dated 19,k Angust 1858, to the Assista,nt . Commissioner.) 3 .  Mir Jan • Muhammad was killed at  Meani. 4. Jan Muhammad's brother Sher Muhammad Khan and his son Ahmad Khan, made Salaam, in June 1843, to the Governor. It appears from Captain E. J. Brown's letter to Captain Preedy, Collector of Karaclri, No. 475, dated 27th July 1843, that the jagir of Shal was handed over to Mir Sher Muhammad. Sir Charles Napier confirmed the two Mirs in their Sir Charles aettJ.ement. possessions, but Mir Ahmad Khan, was subjected to the payment of quarter-produce. (Pide Sanads Nos. 8 or 9.) Mir Nasir Khan's Ahdnama did not lJear the Governor's seal, but as it had been the basis of settle­ment ( Vide Captain Hardinge's trcinslation dated 3rd 1Jecembe1· 1847) in Sir Charles Napier's time, Major Goldsmid acted upon it in proposing the Settlement of 1858. 

* It is probably this Mir to whom Sir W. Napidr refers as "  Jehan Muhammad" in " his " Conquest of Sindh by Sir {;harles Napier," page 318. " Lieutenant McMurdo of the " General's Staff, a young man of an intrepid temper rode like Teasdale and Jackson down " upon the BeloocheeR in the bed of the Fullaili ; his horse was killed, yet he rose instantly " and meeting J ehaa Muhammad, one of the greatest and mll8t warlike of the chiefs slew him " hand to hand in the midst of his tribe. Then while engaged with several in 'rront, one " came behind an� struck fiercely, but a sergeant of the 22nd killed this enemy so in. " stantly, that hill blow fell harmless. Mc Murdo turned and did the same service for hill " preserv<:r, cl411ving to the brow a Belooch who was aiming at his back ; another fell beneath •• his whirling weapon in quick succel!l»ion, and thus he extricated himself from the " dangerous pres&. The tomb of Jehan a great one, has since been raised hy his JM:?Ple, " who with a warlike vanity have placed it not wh!)re he fell in the bottom of the F ulliuli, •• but suty yards be_youd the British lines where he never penetrated.'• 



112 5.  Captain Stack had recommended that Jan Muhammad's 
DiTision of the estate. lands be regranted to his son, he paying ¼th share, and that Sher Muhammad's be con­tinued to him. It had become therefore necesssary to divide the estates, and Mir Sher Muhammad and Ahmad Khan made an agreement under which the produce of jagirs Nos. 9, 10 and 11 fell to Sher Muhammad's share and of 1 to 8 to that of Ahmad Khan. The agreement was ratified, and these jagirs were accordingly continued to him, while the rest were continued to Ahmad Khan ptovisionally, subject to the Commissioner's confirmation. llut Ahmad Khan's San.ads, in common with many others, forwarded by Captain Stack were not confirmed, though he remained in possession . .  He paid Government " an annual " amount" of 150 Kharwars of grain, and cash Rs. 350, in lieu of 

The amount of Chowth. the ¾th of his produce, which Government claimes. as Pidari Raswai (punishment for his father's fighting against the English). The arrangement was entered into for 14 years in the year 18,Ji7-48 by Captain Rath­l>0rne, then Collector of Hyderabad. 6. After making the above arrangement Ahmad Khan, in 
Its increase. the season of Kharif 1266 cleared a new kariah, out of the Government Sarang Canal, whereupon half the produce of that kariah was taken by Gov­ernment as IIakabo. As the kariah was also a new source of revenue to the J agirdar since he had agreed to give the 150 abovemen-. Honed kharwars, one-fourth of the produce on it was taken for Pidari Riswai. (No. 162, dated 27th August 1858, from t'fie 

J)eputy Collector, Halla, to the Collector of Karachi). The Col­lector however, recommended to the Commissioner that " as " the ¼th share had been fixed at a certain amount by Captain " R!l.thborne, it should not be increased beca.use the J agirdar by " his own efforts and expen�e increases his cultivation." The Commissioner agreed with the Collector and wrote :-" Para. 1 " (regarding the levy of Pidari Riswai) seems indisputable, so 



113 " long as the arrangement made with Captain Rath borne for " 14 years shall hold good." (No. 198, dated 21st September 1858.) 
Settlement of 1851. 

7. The details of the settlement of 1858 will appear from the Statement. The per-manently regrantable area was fixed at 7,000 bigahs for Mir Ahmed Khan. 8. The Mir died on 24th January 1877, leaving male issue, 
Death oft.heJ . but Mir Sher Muhammad died on 5th No-

agirdara. vember 1876 without leaving such issue and his jagir was therefore resumed. Sher Muhammad, according to Captain Rathborne �as " much liked by the Baluchis" and bore a good character, but he was " unfortunately entangled in " a low connection which put him at constant feud with his re­" latives and much diminished the respect that would otherwise " have been paid to him." 
No. lo. MIR M..J..HBA.B. 

No. 16. MIR MUB..J..BIK SON OF GHULAM SHAH 

A.ND Gll..J..NJJSON OF MIR M..J..Hll..J..B. 

No. 17. MUH..J..MM..J..JJ .ALI SON OF 

MIR M..J..Hll..J..B. 

Mir Mahrab son of Aludo was granted 2 shares of Palleja and Soho (unmeasured) by a Sanad dated 24th 
E,ta�t.

No. 15 in 17118 October 1798. 3,000 Mirs' bigahs in the makans of Samarko, Chach and Niro in J ati by a Sanad ( dated February 1810) and 2,200 Mirs' bigahs in Bakhro and Reti in J ati by a Sanad dated N oTember 1816, and 5,800 Mirs' bigabs in Reti and Barkhah in J ati by a Sanad dated October 1818. 



114. 2. Mir Murad Ali by a Sanad dated 10th March 1824 granted 10,131-15 Mira' bigahs to Mir Mah-
Eatate of No. 15• and of rab J·om· tly w1'th Ghulam Shah d Al d • hia two eona Ghulam Shah an U O Ill 

and Aludo in 1824· Chachika (Badin). Of this 3,131 bigahs were shown as in lieu of pay to Mir Mahrab and lay partly in · Shah­wah. The remaining 7,000 were a new grant to Ghulam Shah and .A.ludo. 
EatAtie of No. 15 and 3. This grant was confirmed to Mir Mah. 

��!t
h
:iAfu::: 1��4.th8 rab and Ghulam. Shah, on the death of Mir 1834. Aludo, by .Mir N ur Muhammad on 15th April 4. Mir Nor Muhammad also executed an Ahdnama in the 

Estate of No. 15 and his Koran, securing to Mir Muhammad Khan, 
::S���i :ter � (No. 12) Mahrab Khan, Ghu.lam Shah and 
!for Mwwnmad. Muhammad Ali possession of all their former money.assignments and jagirs, and promising a higher position to them than was generally accorded to the Talpur Sirdars. Re­f erenoe is made in this to the presence of the English Envoy as though the agreement became thereby more binding. 5. Mir Shahdad by a Sanad dated Febru­

Kir .i!�rd 
gruta the ary i841 granted 4,200 Mirs' bigahs in Gangyari to Mahrab Khan and Ghulam Shah of which 8,000 were a new grant to the first and 1,200 in lieu of pay, to the second. In August 1841 the same Mir granted 4,000 Mira' bigahs to Mir Muhammad Ali in Shoreki and a few days later he granted by separate Sanads for each grant 4,131-18 Mirs' bigahs in Waryahki and 4,200 Mira' bigabs in Sayadpur and 8,000 Mirs' bigahs in Jhol to Mahra.b, Ghulam Shah and Muhammad Ali. In October 1841 two thousand more Mirs' bigahs in Jhol were given by the Mir to Muhammad Ali in lieu of the jagirs granted by the Sanads of 15th April 1834, February 1841, and August 1841. Of these 18,331 Mirs' bigahs, 6,131 belonged to Mir Mah­rab while Mir Ghulam Shah's share was 8,200 bigahs, and Muham­mad Ali's 4,000. :Mir Yahrab held besides 1,25,000 bigaha under 



115 the Sanad of 1798 confirmed by the Ahdnama of Mir N ur Huhammad. 
nea�h or Ghulam Shah 6. Ghulam Shah died in the battle of Me• •• •euu. ani and was succeeded by his son Mir Mubarik. 7. At the Conquest Mahrab was found 

Poaeaaion at the Conquest. • • f In posseSSlOil O -f Palleja J J 91 931 N · · Soho and · Halla,. . , apiena Karya Mahan Kinah. bigahs. In the Hyder. Dali (in Dobhah) 2,826 bigahs. abad District (No Sanad) 
· I ½ Barechani } (Gorchany '7 M ,, 
I {No Sa.natl) f Shahwah 2,292 ,, l Sayadpur 2,196 ,, (No Sanad) IntheKarachi f Jati Makan in the Jati Taluka. 5,490 District. ( 1,05,479 ,, 

while Mir Mubarik and Mir Muhammad Ali were in possession of 6,002 bigahs and 2,928 N apierian bigahs in Shoreki in Badin. 8. Mir Mahrab not having tendered his obeisance, his 
v-hrab 1_,. -L jagirs were, on his death which look place 
..... 'a ....,ure to 111 .... e 

Salam and how his eat&t.e about April 1844, liable to total resump-
1'1111 dealt witla on hia death. tion under a, rule then invariably observed. The Collector of Hyderabad in his No. 692, dated 17th Sep• tember 1846, to the Secretary to the Sind Government stated :­" the estates of . this family which were old estates uninterrupt­" edly in their possession since a period, previous to the " partition of Bind by Mir Fateh Ali arc :-



116 

" In Barechani 2,015 Mirs' bigahs. 
J 

Old Jagir 
,, Dali 3,860 ,, measure-
" Palleja and Soho 1,25,000 ,, ment. 

1,30,875 
" I have no doubt that they would have been made 

" virtually hereditary, as · they appear to have been granted on 
" the same footing as others, to men of similar rank among the 
" Talpurs, and which though not expressedly hereditary (for no 
" jagirs in Sind were) were regranted as a matter of course, on the 
'' death of the holder, to some one among his heirs. The other 
"jagirs held by Mir Mahrab Khan were part in lieu of pay and 
" partly gratuities." He recommended the regrant of the 
aboTe named jagirs leaving the question of one-fourth produce 
deduction to His Excellency the Governor. He also suggested 
that the regrant be made to the youngest son of the deceased, 
:M:uhammad Ali, and the son of his deceased eldest son, Mubarik 
in equal shares. His Excellency saw no reason for the regrant 
(vide No. 2463, dated 23rd September 1846, to the Collector, 
Hyderaba<l), but subsequent correspondence ensued on tae 

Regr&nt in equal sharea 
of 10,6i2 Napierian bigaha 
to MuhAmmad Ali and to 
�lir Mubarik in Pallejo and 
Soho. 

subject, resulting in the regrant free of 
taxation of 14,580 Jagir Measurement 
bigahs (=10,672 Napierian bigahs), of  cul­
vated land in Pallejo and Soho in favour. of 

these two heirs in consideration of Mir Mahrab's rank. (Letter 
to Collector, Hyderabad, No. 739, dated 24th March 1847.) Mir 
Mubarak's Sanad recites this fact as follows :-" On his (Mahrab's) 
" demise agreeably to the custom then prevalent, the amount of " 10,672 bigahs of productive land was made over in equal 
" shares to Mir Muhammad Ali his son and to yourself." 



117 9. Regarding Mir Mubarik's claim, to succeed to his father Ghulam Shah'sjagir, Sir Charles Napier wrote as follows,:-(letter 
No. 3233, dated 8th Nooember 1844, to the Oollector, Hgderahad), 

n_ f4S7 B " It appears that his uncle ( sic : father ) '"'grant o 5 . to • Muhami:nai_l out of his " Mir Ghulam Shah was killed when fighting �ther's Jagir. " for· · his Government. If, therefore, Mir 
ff Mubarik Khan is the heir of the deceased, His Excellency is " prepared to give to him the jagir of his uncle, on a small rent " being paid by him to Government." His E;cellency confirmed Mir Mubarik Khan in the p096ession ·of the ja.gir of 6,002 bigahs, less the lands held in lieu of pay which was 1,127 bigahs ( i.e., of 4,875 bigahs ) subject to payment of quarter-produce. Thus Mir Mubarik held in all 10,211 bigahs. ( Yule Sanad 10). 10. Sir Charles also confirmed Muhammad Ali on 23rd Sep­Possessions of Mir tember 1846 (letter No. 2463 of thia date, to Muhammad Ali. tke Oollector, Hgderahad) in the free posses-

Thus Mir Muhammad • f h" h ldin f 2 928 b" h • Sh Ali's poeseeeions amount- SlOn O 18 0 g O , 1ga S Ill ore-
ed in all to 8,246 N. B. ki. ( T"ide Sanad No. 11 ) .  11. Under the Settlement of 1858, the Mirs were confirmed in their respective holdings, but the per­Settlement of 1858. manently regrantable area fixed for Mir Mubarik was 7,786 bigahs, and for Muhammad Ali 7,286 bigahs. The Sanads of these Mira specify that these permanent regrants are to include the 5,336 bigahs of the jagir of Mir Mahrab "without " deduction." Thus the Mirs are not at liberty to resign waste land from this jagir. • 12. Mir Muhammad Ali died on the 7th February 1879. 

Death of Mir Muham- Mir Mubarik is still alive. Captain Rathbome 
mad Ali. described the latter in 1847 " as  a quiet boy " of good disposition apparently," and the former as " a  quiet " man of no remarkable character." 

* Vidd Commissioner's No. 3122, dated 11th August 1877, to the Manager, Encumbered .Estates, and previous col'l'811pondence. 
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,, 19. MTR GHULA.M ULLAH. 1,Calad ALJjA.�BA.M-No. 18. MIR G HUL.A.M B.A.ID.A.R.} " 20. MIR AHMAD A.LI. ,, 21. WIDOW OF MIR A.LI MUHAMMAD. ,, 22. A.LI HUB.J.D 1,Calad A.LI MUBA.MM..tJ..D. 

:Mir Ghulam Ha.idar, with his brothers Nos. 19, 20 Estate of Nos. 1s, 19, and 22, was in the service of Mir Sobdar 20 & 22 at the Conquest. from whom he held 3 Sanads dated respec-tively 2nd December 1837, 27th October 1838, and 20th June 1839, 
Beyla. Guja. Shahbuddiu. Nahiki. Sippaki. 

under which he was in possession at the Conquest, of the lands marginally noted, jointly · with his brothers. He made his Salam, and was confirmed in his possessions. 2. He died in July 1851. The Collector of Karachi, under sanction of the Commissioner, by Parwanah Death of No. 18 and • • • consequent diviaion or the dated the 30th July 1852, directed the d1v1-
jagir. sion of the jagir of Ghulam Haidar and his brothers, and fixed his share at 7,740 bigahs ( i.�., double that of his younger brother's ) of which he found 220 bigahs had been held for pay. The same Parwanah directed the resumption of 1,209 bigahs ( = 2,000 M.ir!i' bigahs) as punishment for including Ryoti land in bis holding. 3. Under Captain Pelly's sanctioned Settlement ¼th of 

Resumption on account the remainder, i.e., 1,633 bigahs bad also to of Chowth and on account be deducted on 1uccession Thus 2 842 of fraud, from No. 18's • ' 
share, and regrant of 3,898 bigahs were deducted and there remained bigahe to his soc; Jan Muhammad. 4,898 b1gahs for regrant, evidently out of N ahiki and Sippakf. 4. These were continued to his son Jan Muhammad in their 

Settlement or 185a. entirety by the Settlement of 1858, under which the &mount entered as resumable on 



119 regrant to the lineal male heirs of Jan Muhammad is 1,798 biga.hs, 
i.e., 220 bigahs held for pay, and tl,578 bigahs being one-third of the remainder, on account of uncultivated land. 5. Ghulam Haidar's brother Shah Ali had not been recog­nised as Jagirdar, having had no Salam Lapse of No. 20'8 share. certificate. His brother Ahmad Ali (No. 20) died on 5th June 1849 without heirs, and his share 3,870 bigahs, was resumed by Government. 6. Mir Ghulam Ullah died on 2nd N'ovember 1849, and left a son Mubarak, who however, through an error, 

Death of No. 19, and was not regranted any part of his father's 
�&!t1�m= :C�8:_

der share 3,870 bigahs. The mistake was rec-tified by the Settlement of 1858 under which the land he held for pay (110 bigahs) was deducted and also one­third of the remainder (in round numbers 1,260) on account of uncultivated land. The remaining 2,500 bigahs were granted to the Mir in perpetuity. 7. Ghulam Haidar's mother (No. 21) died on 10th November 1854 and her share 1,935 · bigahs was re-
Lapse of No. 2l's share. d sume . 8. Ghulam Haidar's remaining brother, Ali Murad, was con­firmed in his share of 3,870 bigahs, of Bey la, Possessions of No. 22 G . Sh hb dd' N h�l�: d s· ki at the Conquest and under UJa, a U m, a � an 1ppa , at Settlement of 1868· the Conquest (/Tide Sanad No. 13). The Settlement of 1858 continued him in its possession, but after his death 176 bigahs which were held by him in lieu of pay were to be resumed, and one.third of the remainder was to be deducted on account of uncultivated land. The balance of 2,450 bigahs was to be regranted to his lineal male heirs in perpetuity. (Sanad 

No. 13). Death of No. 22. 9. He died on 'the 30th October 1873. 
t This �s not exactly one-third of 4,676 biga.ha, but Major Ooldsmid increased it by 20 in order -to obtain the rep-antable area 3,100 bigabs, in round numbers. 
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SECTION IV. 

The Manikanu. 

INTRODUCTION. 

The reigning house of Mirpur belonged to this family. 
" Allahyar, eldest son of Manik, had three Imp<>rtance or the " sons Masu, Jada and RaJ· a. The descend-J adanis and Baganis. 
cc ants of the first are the Government pension-

" ers of Mirpur Khas. The families of the J adani and Bagani 
" Talpurs have both their origin in Jada, and the principal Jagir­
" dars of either class are of such importance, that it will be neces­
" sary to treat them as the heads of the whole Manikani tribe.' 
(Major Goldsmid' s report on Palpura). 

2. Mir Tharo, grandson of the eld0$t son of Manik, on the 

Mir Tbaro's share or the country conquered by the 
Talpurs in 1783. 

Chackka inch11ive of Kotri 
Mirpur Batoro ... 
Byrampur Sar&Di. •• 
Summawati . . .  
Tatta •. •  
Oodejani (in small part) ••• 
Mirpur Khas •.• • •• 
Allayar-k:a-Tanda Districts ... 

expulsion of the 
Kalhoras by the Tal­
purs in 1783 " re­
" ceived portions of 
cc the Districts as per 
" margin, lying to the 
" eastward and south­
" w�d of Hyderabad, 

'' and selecting the iort of Mirpur as his capital ruled there, he and 
" his lineal descendants, until the date of the Conquest." ( Oaptain 
Lewis Pelly's letter to the Oommisswner No. 2, dated 1st January 

1856). Tharo's brother, Allahyar, founded the Tando that bears 
his name. 

3. It was Tharo's grandson, Sher Muhammad, who fought 
the battle of Dabba, Nareja,.or Hyderabad, 

Sher Muhammacl' grand- as it is variously called on 24th March 1848 son or Tbaro. ' • 

On his defeat he betook himself to Mirpur 
where he was followed by Sir Charles. He then :fled to U mar­
kot, which belonged to him, but he was pursued there, and on the 



121 4th April Umarkot was taken, and Sher Muhammad became a wanderer in the north. He was there soon able to collect an army, and on the 6th of May therefore Sir Charles Napier sum­moned him to disband it, and to surrender. But it was not until 8th June that any fighting took place. On that date Shah Muhammatl, Sher's brother was defeated in a skirmish at Pir Arri near the Lakki bills, 14 miles from Sehwan, and his cannon and arms were captured. On the 13th June, General J acvb pus bing on to Shahdadpur was attacked by Sher Muhammad, but came off victorious. Sher Muha.m.mad thereupon fled and took refuge s1:1ccessively among the Brohi Baluchis, the Afghans, the Bugtis, the Dombkis, and other Hill tribes near Shikarpur, and :finally, on being refused permission to live with Mir Ali Murad of Khair­pur, in the Punjab. ( " Conquest of Sind " by Sir W. Napier) . He was allowed in March 1854, to return to Mirpur where he remained loyal to Government during the stirring days of the mutiny, and was rewarded with a. K. C. S. I. Through the inter­cession of Sir John Lawrence a pension of Rs. 1,000 per month was settled on him on the 8th of July 1847 ; and in 1863 his pension was increased to Rs. 2,000. He died at his Tando 2 miles from Mirpur on the 24th August 1871. --
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Geneological Tree of the Manikani Jagirdar,. M.umt. 
I 

I Tbaro. I Saindad. Chuto. 
MLik. 

I Masu. 
I 

I Jado. I r--'-'--.--1 ljo.Ali !than. �- Sultan. Fateh Khan. Abdullah. I L I Allahyar. I Tharo. 
I 

I Ahmad Khan. I Ya.lik Alah Muhammad. (No. 30). hulam Ali, I I 
I Ali Khan. Mnhammad 

I A111· Ghulam Ghulamullah, bdullah. Hauan. 
I Ghulam Ab (No. 31). !-!aidar. Murad. 

___ I __ _ 

I Sher Shah Khan Muhammad. Muhamwa<l. Muh,ammad. Muhammad Ali, (No. 29). 

j Muhammad. 
I 

K.haJ1 Muhammad. 
I 

Hamzo. Mirzo Khan, Sahib Kb1J.11. 

1 
Khan )luhammad. (�o, :.!3.) 

1-'eroz (ali<U Budho,. I Mir S•iudad. 
I I :Mir Haidnr I Ali (No. 28). Ghulam Jiamzo, Ali. I 

I Fazul Ali, r------, (No. 25) �I .l BuJho or Fat�h Khan, Bago. &h.adur. Biro Fero�. (So. 24) I Khan. lfot.o.mmad I Hal!l<all, Ali 
I Muhammad, Walia Khan (died (No. 27) without ma)e L illllue). Gbu m Huseen. 

Jdnhamtnatl Khan. 
I Ghulnm Muhau1mad, (So. 26). 



123 No. 23. MIB KHAN MUHAMMAD u,alad GHULAM ALI. No. 2J. MIB FA TEH KHAN u,alad, GHULAM ALL No. 25. FAZUL ALI walad H.J..MZO. :Mir Khan Muhammad was the head of the second house 
Social Position. 

of Manikanis, th�t descended from J ado. His father founded Tando Ghulam Ali · in the Dero Moh bat Taluk&. He was next to Mir Alibakbsh Shah-wani, holder of the most extensiV'e alienations in Sind. Mir Fateh Ali married Mir Ghulam Ali's sister, and Khan Muhammad Ghulam Ali's son was thus connected with the reigning house of Hyderabad. 2. Sir W. Napier in his Work on the administration of Sind, page 280, mentions one Khan Muhammad as "  the most " powerful Sirdar in Sind and a Talpur, being nephew to the " Lion ( Sher Muhammad) at whose side be had fought bravely " up to the latter's defeat by Jacob." Sher Muhammad had no nephew of the name of Khan Muhammad. Evidently this Chief was Mir Khan Muhammad son of Ghulam Ali, and a first­cousin of Sher Muhammad. Sir William mentions an offer by him during the preparations for the Sikh War in 1845 to bring 6,000 of his tenantry to the field at his own expense. The off er was courteously declined with thanks by Sir Charles Napier. 
Estate. 

3. The following is the translation of an Ahdnama of Mir Fateh Ali's, bearing no date, as usual with such documents :-" Since the undermentioned makans have been made over " in jagir to Feroz and Ghulam Ali, let them r.emain in possession " of the same. ItUJhalloh. They shall remain in accor<lance " herewith, posses&ed of these alienations from generation to ge­" neration. Although the Baganis may not include them among " themselves, ( i. e., should they at any time exclude them) we " will look upon them as our own brothers. There shall be no " deviation from this. 'Tis an oath in the Koran :-" 
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Detail of lands. ' Kambar Sahari. I Khairpur on the banks of the Nam and Kudan. 
Jtf akam in Kacho. • Drig (old). Nulli (Nurlee) and Haleli. Haleli and Tok Kasim. Lalur. Shadan and Wah Sobdar. Lalur (2nd) 

I Drig Kandiari with Chang. 
I Hardo Shori. Tor Atri, Kokhrani and Hidan. Jhalko. Malka and Pat Jara. Potha Drig. 

Jtlakam, on tke left bank of the Indus. Deh Malak. I Kabulpur. Nurayi. 1. Visarki. Katyar. Kochki." Deparja with Gharro and Dhiran. \ 
• The tract ekirting the hill, from Sehwan to the Sind Frontier, 
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,. The particulars of the remaining title-deeds of the ramily 
will appear from the following statement :-

Sanada and .d.AdnamtU, in fafJour of Mira GAulam 
.d.li and KAan Muhammad. 

�
_, __ 

Date. 
___ , __ 

o
_
1'11_tor_. _!_::_ran_:_ Datu orgran� 

1 4th Nff. 1705 ... Ill, F.W, .. . . .1 ..... .... .. . . . . . . Sillui .. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .  . 

Do. Do. 

325th Jl'eb. 1798_ 

11arab 17 

i tind  Sep. '1808. l&Ghulam 

Wahi Muhammad, 
Lund . . . . . . . . . . . . ... , . .  

Wahi 'Mangio and Cha 
Bhurgri . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  

Potho . . . . . . .. . . . . ... . . . .  . .  

ori . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

Lalur .. ..... . . . . . .. . . . . .  . .  

Do.. Nani ...... } 

Halleli ... .  . .  
in" Kach 

It:::: 
Ghulam Ali... . lpur ...... ·· 14 

. = :fl . . . . . . . . .  � 
Cbarrawo .. :i 

0 
Dabhro .. .  .a 

Do. i in Balla ..... 

Do. ·"· with 

I ... ... ·-
0� ... ..... 

Remarb. 

On the et�h or 
po88e88ion m the 
time of Mira Shah­
dad, Bahnt.m and 
Bijar. 

Do. 

New Gnni. 

In achanae for Nu • 
nJi ud1ubalpar . 

..... ,,.. ""·"" ......... 1 
--=----------....;:....-----
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���· __ a_ran_to_r_. __ . __ o_ran_tee. __ 1-_Details ___ �_aran __ t_l-__ Rem __ �_"_· __ 
i 28th Sep. 1821 .. Mir Murad Ali. 
T
'"""""" 

!• 28th June 1822. 
l O 3rd March 1823, 
l J 2ith Sep, 1824 .. 

1 2  Do. 
13 3rd Oct. 182L. 
H 4th Nov .. 182f .. , 
) 5 13th Feb. 1826 .. 
I 

Do. 
Do, 
Do. 
Do, 

Do. 
J)o. 

Do, 
Po. 

4,000Mira'bigahs in K&- 3,000 in°lieu of Vii!arki heri, Taluka. Ali Bahr. &: Dodelw, 1,000 new. Khnu Muham- 1,500 Mirs' biga.b.e in 1 ,000 in lieu of thel ,000 mad . . . . . . . . . . . .  Ali Bahr (Dero Moh- new grant in (7) and bat). 600 additional. Ghulam Ali and 5,000 Mirs' bigahs from In lieu of Viaarki and Khan Mu- Wah �i BaJu and 6� k.harwars of grain hammad . . . . . .  Kahen (Dero Moh- gtven to each. bat) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .. Ghula.m Ali an)2,802 Mirs' bigahs in In lieu of pay. SIUlgat (a.s de- Ali Bahr &: .Nurwah. tailed in the Sanad) . . . . . . . .  . Ohulam Ali . . .  i Choria . . .  t Ouni .. Jl'be other half (4,188 bigahs) waa granted to the Niamanis by llir Murad AJi, .A .  H. 1227. Junio Chang also had a Sanad dated 1234 from Murad Ali for 1, l 84 jireba without prejudice to the h&lf of NiamaniB. 
Khan ltluham- 2,000 M'.irB' blg&ba in New grant mad . . . . . . . . . . . . Imamwah a.nd Sann .. Ohulam Ali • . .  Makan Sann in addition ! to the grant to Khan Muhammad in Sann In Jhuda. (111M 12) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  Khan Muham- 1,000 1111'11' } DeroSeparatA!IJ out of the mad . . . . . . . . . . . . bigahs in Moh- �,000 in (12). Imamwah... bat . . .  Ghulam Ali.. . . . . l,000 additional Kira' bigaha in Ali Bahr .. .  



0 z Date. Grantor. 
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Grant.ee. Detail& of Grant. Remarb. 

16 8th May 1833 . . .  ,Mir Murad Ali.. Ghulam All . . • . . .  I½ Heran .. .  , Guni. The former land fell 
to Mir lt.uhammad 
Khan. Thillwugiveu 
under a new arrange­
ment. 

1 7  February 1840 .. Mir Nasir Khan. Khan Muham• Shol . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ½ to Khi.n· Muhammad 

18  21st March 1840 

19 April 18-l0 . . . . . .  

20  14th Feb. 1842.. 

l 

2 

Do. 

Do. 

Do. 

mad and his in lieu of Rs. i50 pay 
son Ghulam and grain of Dode-
Ali . .  . .. . . . . . . .  . .. jani Jagir, ½ in jagir 

to his son. 

K!:, }l��h�·,Chari* . . . .  "" l . . . 
Khan, Fateh 
Kh,m, Fazul Ali Sonhart . .  . . . .  Guni. 
andSangat . . . . . .  

• in  lieu of pay 1 ,500 
kora rupees . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

t In lieu of 30 kasas of 
grain given as pay .. 

Karli . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Khan Nuham- Makan A�� l · In lieu of 500 kora mad • .. . .. .. • • • 350 M.11'11 mGunl rupees • 
bigahs . . . . . .  I 

Do, 12,593 Mirs' Ligahs On Fateh Khan·,. 
from the Sa.rfraz.wah death Sarfru-wah 

and Karya Adu and 
Arrayi were found to 

Fateh Khan . . . . . .  4,000 ll!rs' bigahs out be Khan Muham-
of do . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . .  mad'll aha.re. 

Fazul Ali.. .  . . . . . .  1,407Mirs'bigahs( =851 
Napierianb igahs) out. 
of do . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  

O<>nfirmatory Ahdnama.a, 

Mir Sobdar . . . . . .  Khan Muham- No details given ; con-

Mira Nur 
:Muhammad 
and Nasir 
Khan ... . . . . . .  

mad, Feroz fi.nnB the grantees 
and Fateh in theirfonnergrante. 
Khan . . . . . .  : . .  

Do. Do, 
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5. It will be seen from this statement, that under some 
ic.J&tion of the co-grant.Na of the Sana�s, Khan Muhammad, or Ghu­

to t.he principal .Jagirdan. lam Ali, was not the sole grantee. The 
relation of the additional grantees to the principal J agirdar, 
will appe!lr from the following extract made from a letter or 
Captain Rathborne's, to the Collector of Karachi, No. 818, dated 
8th October 1850 :-

" It would appear from the Sanads, that Mir Fateh 
" Kha.n's portion in the jagirs in question was confined to 4,000 
" Mirs' bigahs share in the Sarfraz-wah Jagir in this Collectorate, 
" which sh'.1.re will, however, now lap3e being a grant in lieu of 
" pay, regrantable by Hii Excellency the. Governor for life only 

" Mir Feroz or Budho's portion is confined to a 2,000 
" Mirs' bigahs share in the grant of Chari, also in. this Collectorate. 

" The whole of the other grants appear to have been made 
" in the name of these Chiefs' father, Mir Ghularn Ali, a.nd after 
" his death all tlie grants to the father were regranted by the 
" Amirs to Mir Khan Muhammad in a Sanad dated Jama-di-ul-awal 
" .J.. H. 1252, his brothers being left dependent on him, as head 
" of the family, for such allowance, as he might think proper to 
" make to them. 

" It is obviously a matter of indifference to the Gov­
" ernment, how the division stands, for Mir Kh!ln Muhammad 
" being the oldest of the brothers, its chance of lapses are (.ric) 
" on the whole as good by leaving the whole dependent on his 
" life, as it would be were the risk divide:! among the three ; 
" but it might in the end, make a very material difference to 
" the others, whichever way their interest mly appear to be 
" now, and I have therefore required the brother Mir Feroz or 
" Budho, and the son of Mir Fateh Khan, Mir Sher Muhammad, 
" to attest the statement with their signatures, made in presence 
" of witnesses, so as effectunlly to bar any claims of a different 
" tenor hereafter, should the death of Mir Khan Muhammad 



129 '' or any differences of his with his brother or nephew, make it " their interest at any future time, to set up such." 6. At the Conquest, Mir Fazul Ali was confirmed in the possession of 851 N apierian bigahs held by 
Poueaaiona of Fazul Ali b . . 1· r · Ka s rf h d and Fateh Khan u the Con- Im In teU O pay In rya a 1'8.Z•Wa , an ;;:::; 

d
:� their lapse on Mir Fateh Khan, in that of 1,464 N apierian . bigahs held by him in lieu of pay. The latter died on 11th April 1850 and the jagir-holding was resumed. He was, according to Captain Rathborne, a man of rude animal spirits, given to sport and to con vi riality. The former died on 10th January 1853, and his jagir was also resumed. 7. Mir Khan Muhammad was, at the Conquest, confirmed 
Dhiran Moro ... 
and Halak Bigahs. in the possession of the 

18'686 lands and areas margin-! Ohara l 
Sann annexed to Imamwah .1t:� ally noted, amounting . Sarfraz-wah .. .  

� Karya Adu and I Arrayi 
.!3 t Choriah . . .  i5 Beran . . .  

] 
Chari Sonhllf . . .  

· · · • �:i�� to 3,13,248 bigahs. Of 
•t�i: these the jagirs marked• 

(Deducting 690 tai • • 
bigaha for Sangat buti con rung an area eqm-
including 1,464 bigahs .valent to 33,593 N apierian of Budho Kha.r..) ! 

� ... . .. ::: : st� bigahs, being held in lieu 
KiDara Khanwah and Akreji standing f in the name of hia BOD . . .  303 0 pay or grain were 
ltahrj, Ali Bahond Imamnh ...  8,710 granted only for · life. (Of whichS,001 

were in lieu of grain or 
pay, and 8,710 is the bal­
ance after deducting 
1,082bigahsforSanga,a 
deduction mllde on 12th 

--5 l Drig, lower ... 
.., Jhalka ... . . .  '.5 Narli __ ...  

A

1
.s ���-Tok � 

Khakhrani .. . 
Drig, upper . . . 
Shadan .. . 

l Wah Sobdar .. . 

llarch 1847). 

76,847 

69,117 
1,628 
2,418 

40,400 
3,143 
2,869 16,001 16,058 

10,958 

1,61,381 -

The Mir, however, set up two other claims one to 18,000 Mirs' bigahs in Ali Bahr, and another to 1,184 bigahs in Choria. As regards the first be relied on a note of one Khair Muhammad Thora, Mukhtyarkar of Mir Murad Ali dated 28th Shawal 1248, but this 
• All the 6gurea_marked thua • indicate bipha held ill liev. of grai? or pa7. The bigaba are all 

Napierian. 
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r ! Kambar, Si&ri and Ghelpur . . .  . Deh Khyrpur Nathu 

E Pat Jaro .•• 
�� Malka .. .  . . .  

14,500 3,000 3,125 15,13! 1,098 14,753 3,IH 
:!!I , Potho · . . .  . . .  53 j Shori . . .  . . .  Lalur . . .  . . .  lShol • . .  30,296 ( One-half of this was held for pay.) 

85,020 

claim was rejected by Sir Charles Napier (fJide hu 
No. 815, dated 30th March 1847, to Collector, Hyde1·a­
bad), and the Commis­sioner, Mr. Frere, refused to re-opon the question in 1852 (vide his No. 2055, 
dated 20th August 1852, 

to the Collector, Hyderabad). As regards the second the Mir said that he was entitled to one-half of the jagir and that as the Nizamanis, under a, Sanad of Mir · Murad Ali dated A. H. 1227 held 4,188 bi-
KhaQ Muhammad's 

further claims. gahs, and one J umo Chang under another Sanad dated .A .  H. 1234 held 1,184 bigahs, he was entitled to 4,188 + 1,184 bigahs, whil� he had been granted only 4,188 bigahs. Mr. Frere in the letter above quoted refused to recognise this claim on the ground that while the Sanad of Jumo Chang was expressly " without prej udice " to the holding of the Nizamanis, it was not expressly so as regards the Mir's holding, and that Sir Charles Napier, by adhering to a verbal promise made to the Mir had already granted him 2,000 lligahs more than he was entitled to in the same deb. 8. The Mir also claimed the fisheries of the Drig and Khair­pur tanks, on the strength of a Parwana addressed to "\V ali Muhammad Laghari under the hand and seal of Mir Murad Ali Khan Talpur purporting to grant the same. It was suspected that this Parwana had been tampered with by altering " Sirkar"' into " Shikar," ' Babut ' into " Mahi " and substituting " Taklif " for some other word. Certain Amils of Sehwan were asked as experts, to give their opinion and they declared that the docu­ment had been tampered with as suspected. . ( Vide letter from 
:Deputy Collector of Sehwan, to the_ Collector of Karachi, 
No. 486, dated 9th November 1849) , The Collector ordered an e nquiry, but the papers do not show what it resulted in. 



131 9. Under the Settlement of 1858 after deducting 33,593 
Settlement of 1858. bigahs held in lieu of pay or grain, one-third of the remainder, i. e., 93,155 bigahs were to be resumed on account of uncultivated land, and the balance 1,86,500 bigahs, was to be regranted in perpetuity. The option mentioned in the introduction was, of course, allowed. 10. A note dated 9th June 1863, signed by the Commissioner 
Addition in 1863. and attached to the Sanad, recites the fact that the produce of the jagir of Deparja had been assigned by Khan Muhammad to �fir Haidar Ali Khan for his maintenance, and that on this account the jagir had been wrongly entered in Mir Haidar Ali's name, who admitted he had no claim to it, and then adds 2,440 bigahs to the 1,86,500 regrant­able in perpetuity. 11. Mir Khan Muhammad died in 1872, 15th July. 

No. 26. MIR GHULLI.M MUH..dJJfM.J..D. A glance at the genealogical table will show that this Mir is grandson of Mirzo Khan ( one of this sons of Lineage and position. J ado) and nephew of Mir Bago from whom his family derived the title of Baganis. Mirzo Khan was one of the large landholders under the Kalhoras, and his son Bago was a distinguished Sirdar who took the country about Bago-ka-Tanda. Mir Ghulam Muhammad was maternal uncle of Mir Khan Muhammad. 2. An Ahdnama was executed in the Koran dated 14th July 1787, by the fourreigning Mirs, in which they set forth that they considered themselves one with Bago, the son of Mirzo; and bound themselves·to_ him ,and to his grandson Wallia, by solemn agreement, that the jagirs held by these ]\firs with Mirs Feroz and Saindad, shall remain free and unburthened, provided they confirmed the Derahs and Seris of the Baluchis, ( i. e., left them 
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without interference). Mir Bago was also exempted from pay­
ing any portion of the Kandahar tribute, the legacy of Nur 
Muhammad Kalhora to the rulers of Sind. 

8. " Ghulam Muhammad," writes Major Goldsmid, " is the 
" head of the Bagani section of Manikanis, and there is no appa­
" rent reason why that section should not be designated by the 
" more general name than for Khan Muhammad to be known only 
" as a Jadani." His high social position was testified to by 
Captain Pelly in his report of the 7th April 1855. (Appendix 
No. 2 to the Boll for the Jati Taluka) . 

4. All the jagirs except the last enumerated in column 10 
of the· statement,* were in the possession of 

Estate n
nd

er 
the 

Amira. the Mir under a Sanad of Mir Murad Ali's 
dated 19th Ramzan 1248 {31st May 1882), granted to his father 
Muhammad Khan, which confirmed to him the possessions of 
Wallia Khan. They had been originally granted by Mir Fateh 
Ali under 4 Sanads, one of which was dated 6th Mohurrum 1,218 
(April 1808) to Wallia Khan and Babadur Khan. The last 
(Khet and Barraho) was held under a Sanad of Mir Ghulam Ali 
dated 29th Jama-dil-sani, 1222 (February 1809) granted to Mir 
Muhammad Khan. 

5. He was confirmed in these possessions by Sir Charles 
Napier. ( '/Tide Sanad No. 16). The total 

Possessions at the Con- h quest. area t us confirmed to him was 4,600 bigahs 
in the Hyderabad District, and 1,185 in the 

Karachi District. 
Settlement of 1858. 6. Under the settlement of 1858 the 

permanent regrantable area was fixed at 81,400 bigahs. 
7. The Mir died on 18th March 1864. According to Captain 

Death of the Mir. Rathborne he was " a quiet man of no 
" remarkable character." 

* To be  prillted separately, 
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No 27. HIB A.LI HUHA.MM.4.JJ. 

This Mir was a son of Biro Khan who was 
GeneaJogy and poait.iou. a brother of Mir Ghulam Muhammad's father. and of Mir Bago. 2. He died in 1844, probably before the promise of the Governor, hence one-fourth of his share of 
Chowth fixed on hia th d f hi · • · t• f death in lSH. 8 pro UCe O S Jagir COilSlS mg O one-half of Khet in J ati and containing 581 bigahs was taken by Government. 3. As this chief was, however,• of considerable importance before the Conquest, and was left with a very 
Remitted under Settle- 11 t f • · • t h • 1 ment of 1858. Sma amoun O prOVlSIOn owmg O lS emo U• ments having consisted under the Mirs princi­pally of cash and grain payments, which were wholly discontinued after the Conquest, Major Goldsmid proposed to include the one­fourth of the land deducted in: lieu of quarter-produce in the deduction of one-third (181 bigahs) on account of waste to be made on regrant to the male heirs of Mir Ghulam Hussen. This was sanctioned, 'Dide Statement . . :ii. The San.ad of Mir Ghulam Hussen after reciting that 
Settlement of 1858 in his father Ali Muhammad was found, on 

f!lvour of llir Ghulam enquiry, to have been possessed, at the Con­
HU88en. quest, of the half jagir of Khet in Jati containing according to the Kardar's statement sent in 1855, 581 bigahs, &nd that the jagir was continued to Mir Ghulam Hussen by His Excellency Sir Charles Napier, grants him its possession for life and 400 bigahs on his death in perpetuity to his lineal male descendants or to those of his father. The payment of " an assessment equal to quarter-produce or resumption of a " quarter the whole amount of land" was foregone in this case, although the permanent settlement was postponed to the seoond succession. 
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No. 28. HIR 11..J..ID..J..B ..J..LI walad S..J.IND..J..D. 

This Mir was the grandaon of Mir Sahib Khan, 
Gene&IOIJ aad poaition. brother of Mirzo Khan, the ancestor of the Ba.ganis, and of Hamso, the great grand.father of ll.ir Khan :Muhammad. 2. The first Sanad produced by him in support of his claim was one by Mir Ghulam Ali dated 12th Feb­

M;!�!:'.: �
t.e under ruary 1806 confirming to him all the jagirs of his father Saindad. The next dated 23rd October 1809 (1223 A. H.) from the same 'Mir, gave him Makan Nirah " in accordance with the former possession of the deceased " Saindad." Subsequently by order of Mir Ghulam Ali, Khairo Talpur, the maternal uncle of Ha.idar Ali, was made a joint sharer in the estate, but no actual divisi�n of the estate took place­the revenues of the whole being divided into two equal shares. On the death of Khairo, which occurred in 1225 (A. D. 1811) his share of Nirah wa.s transferred to Ahmad Khan, Muhammad Khan, Ghulam Hussen, Bakar Khan and other Nizamanis. No actual division, however, took place. 3. In A. H, 1242, however, in consequence of some dispute 

H• ._ .. _ "- ..... amongst the Nizamanis with l!eferenoe to their 
11 es-.., un ..... r .11.ir 

Jilurad Ali and Hir�Ku- lands in Nirah, Mir Murad Ali issued a Sanad 
hammMi Khan. dated 19th Rabi-ul-awal 1242, confirming the four Nizamanis above mentioned in possession of one-half of the jagir of Nira.h formerly held by " Khairo Talpur''. On the d�th of Mir Murad Ali (Jama-diul-awal 1250) the whole parganna of Kudera (now Tando Bago) in which this jagir of Nirah was situated passed into the ha•ds of :Mir Mir Muhammad Khan 'fa.lpur. Compensation was, therefore, made to the four Nizama.nis by Mir N ur Muhammad, the son of their late master Mir Murad Ali, who gave them 5,000 bigahs in another pa.rganna in lieu of 



135 cc their share in Ganbadi Dormanah and ½ jagir of Nirah" which he afterwards (11th Rajib 1254) increased to:tS,892, distinctly speci­fying 6,838 Mirs' bigahs as being in lieu of the -l share of Nirah. Haidar Ali being a J adani, continued to hold without interrup­tion his half jagir, notwithstanding that_theJparganna had passed into the hands of Mir Muhammad. 4. On 12th Jama-diul-Sani 1250 A. H. Yusif Khizmatgar 
Cultinted landa in the the foster-brother and favourite of Mir Mir 

!�.lfir ����er Muhammad received from him a grant of 5,000 Mirs' bigahs to be taken from the parganna of Kudera. The cultivated land of the whole jagir of Nirah had been measured by order of Mir Mir Muhammad, and found to consist 9f 5,058 Mirs' bigahs exclusive of fallow and waste. Yusif therefore selected 2,529 bigahs of cultivated land from the jagir of Nirah, and 2,229 from other lands in the parganna, leaving thus a balance of 242 which he subsequently received in the pargan­na of Jati. Mir Haid.ar Ali continued to enjoy the remaining half of the jagir of  N irah. 5. By the Sanad of 13th February 1819 as already shown, Deparja with Dhiran and Gharro was granted 
aio;:1:1 =·• poaea- to Mian Gbulam Ali, father of Khan Muh&m­mad, but Mir Khan Muhammad assigned the produce of Deparja to Mir Haidar Ali who was found in its possession at the Conquest. 6. llir Haidar Ali was accordingly confirmed in the possee. ma . at the 

sion of both ½ of Nirah and Deparja. The 
conquee':':�

11
°:tore ilie latter contained 3,664 Napierian bigahs and 

SettJemeu\ of 1858. was subsequently handed over to Mir Khan :Muhammad, on Mir Haidar Ali's admission that he had no claim over it. The former was supposed to contain 2,529 bigahs, the area in pos�sion of Yusi£ Khizmatgar. The;Collector of Hyder­abad accordingly in April 1848 adjudged · this · muoh · to him without taking fallow and wasta Ia.nd into at(l()UJlt. The Mir 



136 petitioned against this decision, and the tact that Mir · N ur lluham­mad had specified 6,838 bigahs as equal to half of Nirah in the Sanad of the Nizam.anis, was in his favour. Captain Stack who report­ed on this case was of opinion that Yusif who was present at the measurement " wisely, though not honestly, got the Amins " to put down the one-half of Nirah, as containing only 2,529 bigabs " and so obtained the rest from other places." " I am told," he con­tinued " that to save their consciences, they used an extremely " long measuring rod, and it is probable they also left out much of the good land not cultivated." He recommended that an Amin be sent to measure the land and hand over one-half of it to the Mirs. Mr. Frere, in his No. 1582, dated 8th June 1853 to Captain Stack approved of this proposal, and directed that " care " should be taken not to disturb the land already assigned to the " Khizmatgar, and on the division of the land to have regard to " quality as well as to quantity.'' It appears from the Persian Sanad No. 18 that one Jan Muhammad Laghari was appointed Amin to.measure the land in accordance with Captain Stack's propo­sal, and that according to him the -area was 0,561 N apierian Bigahs. Under Major Goldsmid's Settlement, therefore, 6,800 bigahs out of the 10,225 held by the Mir were regrantable permanently� But as the Mir admitted he had no claim to the jagir of Deparja, the area in his possession was reduced by 3,664 bigahs, and the area regrantable by 2,440. At his death, therefore, on 26th February 1865 the Mir had only 6,561 bigahs in his possession (vide Note 
dated 9tk June 1863 annexed to his Sanad). 

No. 29. MIB MUH.A.MM.A.D .A.LI u,alad .A.LI KH.A.N. 

No. 30. MIB MUH.A.MJl.A.D H.A.SS.A.N 

uxilad .A.LL.A.HB.A.K.A.SH. No. 29 was the great grandson of Ali Khan, the 
G91let.lon and poei\ioii' 

grandson of Chuto, who was Mir Allabyar's - brother, and Manik's son, Mir Allahbakhsh 



137 No. 30's .father was the son of Sultan, a brother of Ali Khan. 2. Ali Khan and Allahbakhsh held the j agirs of Sonahr 
Eatate before the Con- in Badin in equal shares under a Parwana of 

quest held by the father Mir Sher Muhammad of Mirpur dated 20th uf No. 29 and of No. 30. Zul Haj 1252 {28th March 1837), -which con-tinued their original jagirs in this makan to them. 3. Mir Ali Khan was killed in battle shortly after the en­gagement at Meaiii and Allahbakhsh failed to 
Dea.th of No. 29's father d b · t th G F th at l\lca.ni and failure of ren er O e1sance O e OVernor. Or ese 

No. 3o·s father to make reasons their shares 1 129 bi0ahs each were Salam. ' ' o ' 

Regran�os. 29 and granted to their respective sons, Mirs Muham-
30 subject to Chowth. mad Ali and Muhammad Hassan, subject to the payment of one-fourth of the produce. 4. The Sanacl (No. 20) of Mir Muhammad Ali states that 

Settlement of 1858. this payment was remitted in his case (for reasons shown) . '  It sanctioned the grant of 
565 bigahs to his . lineal male descendants permanently. The Sanad of Mir Muhammad Hassan, on the contrary, while accord­ing the same area for permanent regrant to his heirs, did not dispense with the payment of quarter-produce. This, however, was subsequently remitted (vide Oommialio11er in Sind'a No. 11, dated 13th January 1865). 

Death of J a.gird.an. 18th June 187 4. 5. Mir Muhammad Ali died on 3rd De­cember 1874, and Mir Muhammad Hassan on 
No. 31, MIB .4.BJJ ULL.4. H. 

,.. __ , d "ti Mir Abdullah was the great grandson of Mir =-CV III poll on. Rajo, the brother of J ado and Masu the found-ers of the J adani and Mirpur families. 



138 2. A Sanad of Mir Nasir Khan dated Srd Saffar 1258 (16th 
Eatat.e before the Con- March 1842) granted alal ki8ab (i. e., in the 

quest of No. 31'• father. f d d . 
and regrant on his death way o a vance an on account) to Mir ��:O-:: No. al, aubject Ghulam Ali ¼ of • Khirdhai in the Badin Taluka. His father Ghulam Ali was killed at Dabba(or Mareja) in 1843. Abdullah made his Salam and obtain­ed his jagir, subject to the payment of quarter-produce (oide 

letter No. 965, dated 25tk April 1846). 8. Abdullah died on the 27th February 1857 leaving a son Ghulam Ali-a. child 7 1ears old to 
A��\n �5;e&th of whom his holding was regranted on the same terms, pending the final settlement of jagir enquiries. Supposing the net produce of the jagir, therefore, to be divided into 16 shares, there remained only 12 shares with Abdullah and 9 with his son. The Sana.d of Ghulam Ali, there­fore said with reference to the rule of taking land in lieu of the produce :-"The whole land in your possession (16,625 bigahs) " may thus be represented by nine out of 16 shares, the remain­" ing 7 lapsing in · the course of settlement." The Sanad promised that this position of the Jagirdar would not be interfered with for the term of his natural life, and that after his death 8,400 bigahs would be regrantable permanently. " In this amount," it continued, " after deduction of one-third (?) (in Persian it " is rightly one-fourth), land in lieu of a quarter-produce .exacted " from your late father, no more than one-third of your present " possessions will have been resumed on account of waste land " agreeably to custom under the late Governor His Excellency " Sir Charles Na pier." 
Charader. 

4. Mir Abdullah was thus described by Captain Rathborne in 184'7 :-
" .A quiet gentlemanly man or considerable ability, and much respected 

" in his neighbourhood. Now Kardar of .Mirpur. His father was nearly re-
" lated to Mir Sher Muhammad of Mirpur • • • • 
" He is far from wealthy." 



139 SECTION V. 
Sukrabanil and Thoranil. 

INTRODUCTION. We have already seen that Shahdad's son, Bahram, was murdered by the Kalhoras. His second son, Chakar from whom the . Suhrabanis a.re descended, became a considerable Zamindar in the districts into which his father· had emigrated. On the revolt of Mir Fateh Ali in 1783 proving successful, Suhrab, Cha­kar's son, and another chieftain named Thara, great-great-grand-son of Manik, were, it appears, subordinately 
�ccmon of tbe Suhrab- associated with him in power but they shortly au111.llo power. , left the capital, Suhrab en-route to Khairpur, and Thara towards Shahbandar in Lower Sind. 2. " Tradition varies," says Lieut. Lewis Pelly in his memoir of the Khairpur State submitted to Government in March 1854, " in its relation of the causes which induced this separation among "' the usurpers, but I am inclined to believ-e that it did not par­" take of the nature of a political rupture and flight, but was " rather the result of a family arrangement similar in .many " respects to that which Suhra.b himself subsequently made for ,, his own son, and whereby the territory at disposal was appor­" tioned between three Chiefs, among whom one was to be con­" sidered Rais or turban-holder, with additional land attached " to that dignity ; while every Chief was to be considered inde­" pendent, within tbe limits of his own territory." 3. " Suhrab repairing to the town of Khairpur declared him­" self Amir of the adjacent territories and a tri­su�� hia •· " butary of the King of Kabul. He succeeded " partly by force of arms and mainly by in­" trigue in expanding bis originally narrow tract until it reached 
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" Sabzalkot and Kashmor to the north, the J esalmir desert upon 
" the cast, and the border of Kachi Gandava towards the west. This 
" northern frontier he seems to have wrested from the Bahawalpur 
" State and to have introduced himself across the I:r:.dus by means 
" of Afghan indifference or avarice." 

4. " This avarice or indifference resulted in the incorporation 
" by the Khairpur Mir, of those districts upon 

. �nnexation of Burdika, " the riO'ht bank commonly known under the Shik.arpur, &c. o 
" name ::M:ughuli, and which comprise the two 

" divisions of Burdika or the land of the 'Burdi or Buldi Baluch, 
" and Shikarpur. These include also . Sukkur, Nau­
" shahro, and the tract formerly known as Ropa Chack, Magarcha, 
" Muhammadabagh, and Shah Bey la. The island of Bakkar fell to 
" the sword of Sohrab's son, Rustom • . . � The estate of 
" Sohija and Kalwari a little below Sukkur, were annexed to 
" Khairpur by Rustom's younger brother, Mu barik. The city of 
" Shikarpur became in 1823 joint prize among the Mirs of Hy­
" derabad and Khairpur, the latter's interest therein being }ths." 

5. " Towards the south, the town of Karachi was wrested by 

Share in Karachi. 
" the Talpurs from the Chief of Kalat, and of 
" this conquest the Khairpur Government ob­

" tained a share. The annexations of Suhrab lying eastward were 
" of trifling value considered fiscally." 

6. " In 1811 Buhrab wearied of public life, abdicated the 
" Raisat in favour of his son Mir Rustam, and 

• 
Abdication by Suhrab " retired to the fort of DiJ. i formerly called Ul 1811. J 

" Ahmadabad." 

7. " In or about 1813, the Amirs availing them.selves of the 
" crisis at Kabul, consequent 'upon the expulsion of the Saddozai 
" dynasty, and the establishment of the Barakzais in Afghanistan 
" refUBed to continue the tribute, which the Kalhoras and Te.lpun 
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" had inegularly paid up to that date ; and thenceforward Khair• 
" pur remained practically independent though 

K�� of • " its individuality was not recognised by the 
" English until April 1882, when a treaty was 

" concluded with it providing for the use of the river Indus and 
" the roads of Sind.,, 

Birth of Er JJi 11mac1 8. In 1815 Mir Ali Murad was born to 
ill 1815• Suhrab by the wife of his old age. 

9. '' In (July) 1830• Suhrab fell from a window of his palace 
" in Khairpur, and survived for a period only 

DeatihofSuhrabin 1830. • long enough to commend Ali Murad to the 
" care and protection of his elder brother M ubarik." 

10. During the years which intervened between the date of 
his abdication and of bis death, Suhrab had 

Pritiom made b1 issued many documents modifying and re-ap-
Subn.b beneen 1811 and • • • • 1aao. propnating his temtory. In these the name 

of Ali Murad found prominent insertion. By 
a will dated 18th May 1829, the country was apportioned �ng 
his three sons in fonr shares, ea.ch having one share as his pro­
perty, and Mir Rustam as Rais, holding the other share, in ad­
dition to his patrimony, with remainder to bis two brothers, M.irs 
M:ubari.k and Ali Murad. The whole revenue of the territory 

The date of hia death ia incllcat.ed by the word, ,t»I � . \ � wbioh b1 tlill 
Abjad calculation gina 1246 ..t. /I. I' J 



14.2 

eo apportioned may be roughly estimated at Ra. 20;89,000. The 
apportionment was u follows :-

Mir Bu.la,n'• •••· (N auahahro District 
I Kandiaro ,, RI. 3,50,000 ,, 1,75,000 Laddagagan .. (deducting grants to others) ,, 1,50,000 District " 30,000 Rohri· Ubauro " ,. 1,25,000 Districts . • . Bhung Bharra ,, Sabzalkote (trd) Burdika ......... .......... ..... . .. . ....... . Shikarpur and land thereof (¾tbs of fths) .... . .... ........ ..... .. . ..... .. . 
I 

Chuck Mazarcha .. .............. .... . .. L Other lands ............ . ...... . . . .. . .... . 

,, 
" 
" 

" 
" 
" 

25,000 25,000 60,000 
21,000 50,000 50,300 Khairpur Dahar .. .... .... . . .. . ... . .  . . .. ,, 1,20,000 '.l'he Na.ra:Regiatan and Bamburka... ,, 3,000 :Registan Forts . ..... .. ............. . .. .. . Share of Kobera ... .... . . ... . .. . ....... . 

Mir Jfvbari'le'• 11uJre, 

.. 
" 

6,000 10,000 l,20,000 
l Ghotki... ••• . .. .. . . .. . .. ... . . . . • .... .. . . . . ... Ba. 1,25,000 District• ... Mirpur Mathelo ... ...................... .. ,. 1,50,000 The lmamwah. •. ... .. .. . . .. . ... . . . ... . . .  ... ,. West Indus lands .•. . ... ........ ...... ... ,, Shikarpur (¼th of fths) .............. , ... ,, 
Sliare of K.ohem . . . . . . ... . . . . . . .  ••... .. . . . . " 

20,000 10,000 7,000 8,000 B,15,000 
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Mir .dli JC•rtul' • (pam--,) ,lar,. 

Diatrict of Gujri with the"'Mirwah Be. 2,75,000 Share of Daddagagan ... .. . . . . .. . .. . . .  . " West Indus lands . . . .. . . . .  ... . . . . .  . . .  . . . .  ,, 34,000 Aradin and Nara with Sherghar . . . . . .  Share of Kohera and neighbouring la.nds .... ..... ......... ... .............. . 
• " ,, 6,000 

5,000 
3,50,000 The last paper bearing Suhrab's seal is reported to have decreed that the turban should descend in the tlirect and not in the collateral line. 11. On Suhrab's death, Rustam and Mubarik seem to have combined to defraud Ali Murad of part of .Combination between Rust.am and Mubarik. his rightful inheritance. This Ali Murad never forgave. 12. On the 20th April 1838, the then Governor-General rati­

Treaty of 1838. fied a treaty, engaging on his part to use his good offices to adjust the differences sub­sisting between the .Amirs of Sind and Rnnjitsing, and providing for the establishment at the Court of Hyderabad of a British Resident. By the Tripartite Treaty of 26th June 1838, between the English, Shah Shujah, and Ranjitsing, " the contracting powers " agreed in the fourth article to f:\bide in respect of Shikarpur and '' the territory of Sind lying on the right bank of the Indus by " whatever might be settled as right and proper." 13. Sir A. Burnes was shortly afterwards deputed to Khair­pur, and there on the 25th of December fol. Treat, with Mir Rustam. 1 . t d • to t t 'th th th owmg, en ere m a rea y WI e en Rais, Mir Rustam, providing in a separate article for the occupa­tion by the British of the fort of Bukkur, " only during actual '' war and periods of preparing for war.,, The treaty further acknowledged the dependence of Khairpur upon the British 



144' protection, and as it was made out in the name of the Rais alone, documents were accorded to Mira Mubarik, Muhammad, and Ali Murad, engaging on the part of the East India. Company " never " to covet one • rea of the revenue " of the shares of Sind in their possessions respectively. 
Death of Mubarik in 1838. 14.. Mir Mubarik died on the 19th July 1838. 15. Sir A. Bumes was succeeded by Mr. Ross Bell as Poli­

Pblitical Agent.s at Khair- tical Agent at Khairpur, and Mr. Bell in pur, 1838-1841, 1841, by Major Outram. 16. Mir Ali Murad solicited Mr. Bell to cause his possessions to be restored to him or else allow him to The Nownihar Treaty. recover them by force. But on reference to the Supreme Government, Mr. Bell was directed to maintain friendly correspondence with Mir Ali Murad, but to postpone any final adjustment of terms. The family disunions, however, grew more violent, and the Khairpur Mira, (Rustam, .Ali Murad, and Mubarik's son, Nasir Khan), at length came to an open rup­ture, met in arms, and after a battle in which Ali :Murad had the advantage, signed, upon the field, a document in a copy of the Koran, since called the " Nownihar Treaty," which ceded certain lands enumerated in it to Mir Ali :Murad. 17. In the very month in which this treaty was signed, Sir Charles Napier arrived in Sind " invested 
Arrival of Sir Charles " with full powe"'S, whether ::Military or poli• Napier. -t " tical," and in the autumn of 1842 he reached Upper Sind. Mir Ali Murad at once renewed the re­quests he had ma.de to Mr. Bell, and the General quickly detected his mental vigour and his ambitious and subtle nature. Mir Ali Murad complained that Rustam, in contempt of the law of his dynasty, was arranging for the transfer, either during life or after death, of the turban of Upper Bind to his son Muham­mad Hassan. The General replied that he would, as bound by 

• ./«t.h Pill of a pie. 



145 treaty, abide by the law of the country, and support Mir Ali Murad's claim against his nephew, but not against his brother Mir Rustam. Mir Ali l\f urad was satisfied with this promise, and from that. moment he took the English side. 18. On the 18th of December following,. Mir Rustam now Reported abdication of Mir Rustam and capture of Ima.mghar in January 1843. 
eighty-five years of age, conscious of being suspected by the General of having written a treasonable letter to Shersing in the Punjab, and harassed by family discord and treachery, sent an offer to place himself under the General's protection, but Sir Charles Na pier recommended him rather to seek the protec­tion and advice of his brother Mir Ali Murad. Mir Rustam did • so, and shortly afterwards it was reported that he had resigned the turban of Upper Sind to that brother. On the 27th idem, the General proposed through the new Rais, to pay his respects to the aged chieftain, but the next morning it was discovered tbat he had decamped to the desert, whither many other Mirs had already sought refuge, and where they were collecting their followers in their strongholds, especially in Imamgbar. Sir Charles Ka pier considering that this fortress was in virtue of his Raisat, tho legal property of Mir Ali Murad, marched thither, with that An:iir's consent and personal co-operation, and destroyed it on the 13th January 1843. 19. The battles of Meani and Dabba fought on 17th Fe-

Consequence of the bat- bruary and 24th March 1843, respectively, tles of Meani and Da.bba. shortly afterwards place4, with the excep-tion of Mir Ali Murad's possessions, the country on both banks of the Indus from Sukkur to the sea at the disposal of the British Government. 20. Sit Charles Napier holding any retraction of Mir Rustam's resignation of the turban in favour of Ali Murad in­admissible, according to tho opinion of the :Muhammadan doctors consulted at Calcutta, allowed Ali :Murad to appropriate the 
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Recognition or Ali Mu- lands which had belonged to Mir Rustam rad as Rais. as Rais and as heir under Mir Suhrab's will, in so far as they were in Mir Rustam's rightful possession at the outbreak of the war. He also recognised Mir Ali Murad's right to all such lands as were in his own rightful possession at the same pe1 iod. All the rest Sir Charles Napier meant to retain (except­ing Sabzalkote and Bhung Bharra already granted to the Khan of Bahawalpur) for the British Government in right of conquest, or of forfeiture imposed on the Khairpur Amirs generally for breach of engagements previous to the war. 21. Before, however, this settlement could be made final, it was brought to the knowledge of Sir Charles Napier, that between May 1845 and January 1847 a forgery hai been com­itted by Mir Ali Murad in respect of the treaty of Nownihar. The forgery consisted in the leaf of the Koran, on which the treaty was written, having been destroyed and another substitu-Porgery detected in the ted, (on which the word ' village' was altered Nownibar treaty. to ' district' where both had the same name), and in certain other interpolations. The effect of the forgery was to place in 11ir Ali Murad's possession the pargannas of Mirpur Mathela and Maharki, instead of the villages of Mathela and Dadlo. 22. Early in 1850 a commission was appointed to enquire 
C . • • 1850 to into this accusation against Mir Ali Murad, omm11!81on m enquire into the forgery. he attending it in person. It ended in a verdict of ' guilty,' and in the issue of a proclamation on the 21st Annexation of certain January 1852 by the then Governor-General districts from Mir Ali Mu- of India the Marquis of Dalhousie which rad's territory (IU 21st ' ' January 1&1s. degraded the Mir from the rank of Rais, and deprived him of all his lands and territories, excepting those hereditary possessions left him by his father Mir Suhrab Khan. The proclamation, after reciting these facts, concludedasfollows :-

" The inhabitants of these territories are hereby called upon to 



147 " submit themselves peac�ably to the dominion under which they have " passed, in full reliance that they will be defended against their enemies, " and protected from ha.rm, and that unmolested in thei1 persons, in their " property, and their homes, they will be governed with juat and mild " authority." 23. The possessions so confiscated comprised the pargannas of Kandiaro and Naushahro (known as Sahiti) which subse­quently became a portion of the Hyderabad Collectorate, the 
Resumed Districts. then talukas of Burdika, Shahbela, Chak Saidabad, Ubauro, Mirpur and Ladho Gagan, together with the tapas of Alor, Bakkar and Bamburki, all of which were incorporated into the Shikarpur Collectorate. The total area of the districts so confiscated is computed at about 5,412 square miles. (Sind Gazetteer,pages 53 & 54) . Subsequently the portion of .Ladho Gagan comprising Khairpur was returned to the Mir. 24. In April 1856 Mir Ali Mu.rad proceeded to England to lay his grievances before the Home Gov-

Appeal of Mir Ali .Murad. • emment, but the result was unfavorable to him. 25. It will be seen from the following genealogical trees bow closely four of the J agirdar� treated of in this Section are allied, to the reigning family of Suhrabanis. The fifth is a Tha­rani and a relation of Sher Muhammad the " Lion of Sind." It is not necessary to say much about the Tharanis. 
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SIIAHDAD-G:a.umeo:N OF Kux:x:A. 

I 
I I 

Jam Ninda. Chakar (hence Chakranis) . 
I 

Vcroz. / I Sohrab. 
Khaira. ! 

,---, ---i ---1 
Mir Ali :Mir Ghulam Haidar. Mir Rustam. 
Murad. Chakar. 

I I I I 

I 
I 

Silleman. 
I 

Murid Haidar. 
(No. 34). 

Khuda Muhammad, 
(No. 32) . 

Ahmad, Ghulam Mustafa. 
Bakhsh. 

I 
.hm Nindo, 
(�o. 35). 

Tharo. 

Ali Murad. 

I 
Sher Muhammad. 

(No. 33) . 

}IA.NIK 801" OF KUKKA. 

I 
Allahyar. 

Masu. 

I 
Fateh Khan. 

Ahmad Khart .. 

I 
Ghulam Murtaza (predeceased his father). 

I 
Karam Khan (No. 36). 
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No,. 92 & 33. MIBS MUHAMMAD KB.d.N AND 

AHMAD KHAN, SONS .OF MIB GHUL�M HAIDA R. 

Ghulam Haidar dfod in A.  D. 1812 nine years prior to Mir Suhrab's first deed of partition. " But it is poeit?o4:.ealogy and social " not clear," writes Major Goldsmid, " that " had he survived, he would have been " considered an actual Hissadar or sharer in the country, as " were his brothers, Rustmn and M·ubarik, and half-brother " Ali Murad. As it is, the assignment of la.nd to his sons " Muhammad, Ahmad, and Ghulam Musta.:ffa is by Ahdnamah " or deed of agreement bearing the same date ( Rabi-ul,Sani 1237 " A. II. -;-September 1821 A. D. ) as the deed of partition, and " under the seals of Mir Suhrab, Rustam and Mubarik. 'l'hey " may be, therefore, looked upon as in a position superior to that " of ·ordinary Jagirdars, and little inferior to that of ruling Mirs. " It was this Mir Muhammad Khan whose possessions and " revenues were not · to be coveted by the East India. Company 
0 under the agreement of 29th December 1838 signed by Sir " Alexander Burnes. This agreement, however, like other " documents, must be held, as superseded by subsequent events, " for Mir Muhammad shared in the flight of Mir Rustam, and " is said to have taken part in battle against the English." 2.  For the nine years after the Conquest, that he was subject to the authority bf his uncle Mir Ali Murad, Resumptions by Mir Ali Murad from No. 32'a the latter deprived him of several valuable possessions. jagirs, among others, Bhirasill, Mullah lfahri, and Shekhpur, valued at above 5,000 Company's Rupees yearly. These are all specified in the Ahdnamah of Mir Suhrab. 



150 3.  On the resumption of the country from Mir Ali Murad . No. 32 confu:med !n in January 1852 this Mir was confirmed h1S actual posaes810D8 m ' 1852. in all the jagirs* he was found posses&ed 
* I 

�pproximate of under a Sanad of estimate made in 1856 Mir Ali .Murad dated Taluka. Name of Jagir. by Captain Pelly. 2nd August 1843. ----'.----------1----1 8hikarpur . . •  1 .  Half Chodio . . . • . . . . . . . . . . .  2. Deh Adamji. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
3. Hazara . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 4. Ja.malpur . . . . . ..... . . . . . . .  . 5. Munimabad . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  6.  Dhinganll with Ayo . .  . 7. Salihani . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 8. ·Hamid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 9. Tharejani . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  10. Panwhari . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

1 1 .  Kassimpw . . . • . . . . . . . . . . .  12. C.:ha.njni . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . .  . 13. Ka.lhori . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

Bigahs. 4,500 7,500 1,500 1 ,500 3,000 3,000 2,200 2,500 
4,000 10,000 2,000 700 250 Ladha. Gagan. 14. Ulra including Bela (forest) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  19,50C Total bigahs... 62,150 

4. The Settlement Settlement of 1858. 
proposed and sanc­tioned for him in 1858 was that,"on his death, " one-third be resumed "on account of unculti­" vated land, and the " rest regranted heredi­" tad.ly free of tax. " 

(Para . .fO of Mr. Eilis's 
letter). The Mir's Sanad (No. 79) accordingly secured his heirs 41,500 bigahs in perpetuity. 

5. In the column of remarks in tfle Schedule ( annexed to the Sanad ) of jagirs granted to the Mir, it is also stated that 3,323 bigahs from the makans of Tharejani, Panh wari and .Kalhori, Exchange of certain which wt,re within the limits of Shikargahs jagirs. were exchanged by the Mir for the sam0 amount of land in Kacho '.rharejani and Makan Bahman, with effect from Kharif 1270. 6. A note dated the 26th November 1863 and signed by Mr. Melvill is added in English to this Schedule, which runs as follows :-



151 " It having been found upon measurement by the Settlement Officer, that the land in the possession of Mir Muhammad Khan 'l'alpur measures " 1,27,210 bigahs, the said number of 1,27,210 bigahs is to be considered " as substituted for the number of bigahs originally entered in the Sanad, " in accordance with Government. Resolution No. �980, dated 11th November " 1863." The Persian note is fuller, and states sp�cificalJy the jagirs founJ in the Mirs' possession and their areas at the Survey. These particulars are entered in columns 10 to 13 of the State�ent. The differences between them and the list already given are that Kalhori and Salihani entered in the latter are found in the former, while " Pirpiah and Phulwhan e.nd Kacho Tharejani an<l " Bahman entered in the former find no place in the latter." The area of the Mirs' holdings being found much larger than it was estimated to be in 1856, the permanent 
Revision . o n  meuure- re(J'rantable area by a note in the Sanad meni of Jagir. o dated 26th November 1863 made under tho authority of Bombay Government Resolution No. 3980, dated 11th November 1863, was " increased to 84,807 bigahs accord­" ing to revised calculation consequent on measurement of the " Jagirdar'� holding by the Settlement Officer." 7. The Mir died on the 10th N6'Vember 1864. He was married to a daughter of Mir Rustam. Mr. Forbes, Resident at Khairpur, described him as follows in 1847 :-" He is a great miser and 'l from never killing sheep but liviI!,g entirely on bread; rice and " fowls, one of which he makes last him two days, he is always " called Mir Muhammad Kookri. • • · • He is rather a fine " looking old man. He formerly enjoyed an income of nearly a lac 

'' a year." 8. Mir Ahmad, Mir Muhammad's brother, since the out-break of the war in 1843, attached himself to 11�:0��:r �!! the interests of his uncle and brother-in-law 
pc,ese88iona. Mir Ali Murad, against whom he had no com-plaint to urge except as regards the loss of half the makan of Kotri in Kandiara. 



152 " If, as may be presumed," wrote Major Goldsmid in 1852, when Deputy Collector in Shikarpur, " impli­H� clau:n• to f&vourable " cit obedience to the authorities acknow}edc,ed eo11atdentio11. o " by the British Government from the outset " of the campaign in 184'8 up to the present period, be held " sufficient ca.use for the measure, Mir Ahmad Khan must re­" main in uninterrupted possession of these jagira which he " has so indllStriously contrived to retain. They m'.ty be valued " at the lea.st, at Company's rupees 14,000 annually e.s those or " his elder brother. That they are productive of a large revenue, " can only be regarded ai:i his peculiar good fortune. He may be " said to be one of the very few Jagirdars (almost the only one) " of the reigning family in Upper Sind, who have nearly derived " the benefits implied in the concluding part • " If :rou are tranquil " of His Excellency Sir Charles Napier's nnd return to your homes, 
y_onr Jagira and �- " orders of . the 3rd March 1843* before the M10ns shall be respected. " annexation of fhe country." m� pot18818iona confirm. 10. His possessions were :-e.1 by llr. Frere. Trimunh . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  } Char -· . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . .  . . .  . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . .  in Hisbani and the Deh11 included therein . .  . Rohri. 
.and were held under a Sanad of 'Mir ·Ali Murad dated 23rd De• cember 1842. They were confirmed and continued to him by Mr. Frere, under orders · from · Government. Their total estimated area was 16,600 bigahs. 11. Mr. IDlis wrote about this J agirdar as follows ;-" This Mir has al ways preserved his · good relations with the ruling " power, and being a careful and good manager, has , �ecommend•tion of Mr. " made the most of his jagirs. To resume so large F.lh, to reeum� only tth " a proportion as one-third, would probably be to for wute 11&nct1oned. • 11 l · ed d · · " resume more than 1s actua y uncu t1vat , an 1t 1s, " therefore, proposed to resume on his death only one-fifth, and regrant \he " rest hereditarily. I would state that in. any case, when.ever a J agirdar asserts 
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,, that his uncultivated land in the whole estate is less than the one-third 
" proposed to be deducted, I would allow him to demand a measurement by 
" which, of course, he sho.ild be made to abide. In the present case, a. 
" deduction of one-fifth would bear about the same proportion as one-third 
" in most jagirs, and I therefore suggest a modification in favour of Mir 
" Ahmad Khan, of the rule proposed · for the general settlement of these 
•• claims." This proposal was sanctioned. 12. In the remark column of the schedule (annexed to the Sanad) which exhibits the 8 jagirs named 

Debs Akbarpnr and b 'th th • 16 600 b'  h 't • 
Ahildi substituted for a OVe, Wl e1r area , 1ga s, I IS 

�� �J!/ven te stated that His Highness Mir Ali Murad having claimed the holding of Kur Langah, containing 1,688 bigahs, on the ground that it was situated within his territory, it was arranged, that it should be ma.de over to him, and that the . J agirdar Mir Ahm!l.d Khan be granted an equal area in Dehs Akbarpur and Ahildi. The arrangement was aanctioned in Govemment Resolution No. 8048,. dated 28th J oJ.y 1860, forwarded to the Collector with the Commissioner in Sind's No. 50, dated 11th August 1860, in the Political Department. 18. The Mir11 Sanad dated 4th May 1861, secured to his 
Final Settlemenl. 

heirs 18,300 bigahs in perpetuity, and to himself 16,600 bigahs. But the land in his possession was, on measurement, . found to be 70,096 bigah1, and as in the case of his elder brother, and on the authority of the same Govt?mment Resolution, this was substituted in the sche­dule annexed to his Sanad by a . note dated 26th November 1863, and· the total petmanent' regrantable area. was increased to 46,730 bigalu. 
No. 34. MIR MUBID HA.ID.dB-. 

--This Mir was grandson of Chakar, but " his father Sule. " man, though brother• to Mir Suhrab the Genealogy and position. · , · · · h " RaIS of the country, never seems to ave 
* Correctly half-brother (rnd, Major Goldamid'• report dat.ed 6th April 18U, forward­

ed to th• Collector of Upper tliDd wi� hia No, 23 of � same date). 
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" enjoyed much influence, or to have been looked upon with 
" much respect. The social posit.ion of Murid Haidar would, 
" therefore, be no more than that of an ordinary Baluch Sirdar." 
(Major Goldsmid'a report elated lat June 1858) . Murid Haidar 
" appears to have been attached to the household of his father's 
" fuU brother Ali Khan." After Ali Khan's death in June 1884, 
his possessions were claimed by Murid Haidar, but His Highness 
Mir Ali Murad produced a will under which he himself had been 
admitted as the Mir's heir. " Ii is possible that the knowledge of the position which he (llurid " Haidar) held in his uncle's regard, may have induced His Highness on " becoming paramount in 1S4!8 amid the broken native dynasties of Sind " to be somewhat lavish of hi1 gifts to this relation ; who, moreover, in " spite of his thwarted views of inheritance has been numbered among " the most devoted adherents of the Mir as Rais.'' (Major Goldamid'a report 4ated 6th April 1857). 

2. Murid IJ:aidar held the possessions marginally noted 
under a Sanad of 

His possesalona. Mir Ali Murad dated 1. Tatta Malhna, and all its Debs in the Ghotki 6th June 1845, in Taluka . . .  ... th d te • 2. Half of Aliwah (in Kobera) and Katra in Sakrand. e resume rntory, 
besides others in the 

Mir's territory. Tatta Malhna, according to Major Goldsm.id, was 
evidently an old alienation. The Kohera alienation was a half­
share of reven'Q.e nµued at Rs. 1,816, in an old parganna managed 
by the Government officials. Kalra was a small jagir valued at 
Rs. 290. All the ibove possessions were regranted to the Jagir. 
dar on resumptio:q. of Mir Ali )Jurad's t.erritory. 

Proposata regarding 3. Mr. Ellis wrote as follows regarding 1ettlement. this Ja.girdar ;-" In the case of Mir Hurid Haidar the 4pplication ol the usual rule has " been suggested so far as regards the Tatta Malhna holding. It is to be . . . " observed that besides *,. ,., th-, statement forwarded to Government m which " th I ..1 te ed · th tered B·-1.a 
e aD4Sen r In e were en -

le;
.....,, 

" tate t• h h ld Tatta lrlalhna Ul 500 s men e now o s Katra ,.; 1:000 " a  :share in the revenue - " of the Aliwa.h in Kalra. 19,600 " The management of " Kohera is entirely in the hands of Government, but one-half of the receipts " of \he Aliwah is pa.id to Mir Hurid Haidu, 



155 " There has been much correspondence regarding this estate. . Assum­,. ing aa correct the view most favourable to Murid Haidar, only one-foui th " of the Aliwah could be his, by inheritance, while one-half more (that which " he now holds) wu assigned to him by His Highness Mir .Ali Murad in jagir. " JJ a permanent alienation to bis lineal male heirs, one-fourth would be all " that he could reaeonably expect. This it islropoaed to allow, which would " give his son one-half of what is now enjoye . There are about 7,000 bi­" gabs of land in Kalera (Kalra) adjacent to the Aliwah, which u.nder this " arrangement, would be resumable altogether on the death of Hurid Haidar," (paras. 4! and 43), 
4. The Settlement, there!ore, propoaed and sanctioned was 

this. The Jagir of Tatta Malhna was re­l'ropoaata l&DOt.ionecl. grantable hereditarily, to the lineal male 
heirs of the Jagirdar subject to a deduction of ½rd {4.,166f). One­
half of his remaining possessions was also to be regranted to him , 
i. e., in all 7,832½ and 350 bigabs, or in round numbers 8,300. 
One-ha.If of Rs. 1,800 drawn from. his share in the jagir managed 
by Government was also to be regra,nted to his lineal male heirs. 
The land to be resumed was 11,200 bigahs, and the cash revenue 
to be resumed was ll,s. 900. · The proposal was 8$I1Ctioned. The 
8anad relates only to the land. It specifies one-half of Aliwah 
without giving its area or any further particulars. neath of the Mir, 5. The Mir died on the 6th November 

1869 without male jasue. 

No. 35. MIB JA.H NINDO. 

Thia Mir was great-great.grandson of his namesake, who 
'W'M ¥4' Chakar's brother, and therefore Mir 

GenealoU and poaition, Suhrab's uncle, a.nd who died at Mashed in 
Persia. where he had been taken as a. hostage by Nadirshah on his 
invasion of Bind in 174.0 A. D. 

2. His father Khudabakbsh held i of Derah Mohbat J atoi 
Biafatber'■..W.codrm- in Deh Yaru Derach, Taluka Kandiara, under 

• to bim m 1168, a Sana.d of Mir Ali Murad dated 9th 



156 Rabi-ul-awal A. H. 1260=January 1844). This grant was confirmed in full by the Commissioner on 8th March 1858 to Jam Nindo " subject to revision on his death." It contained an area of 2, 795 N a.pierian bigahs. Its annual value was estimated · at Rs. 2,000. 8. Mir Ali llurad's San.ad. referred to prior possession 011 

Aotiquit7 of the eetr.te. 
the part of Khudabakhsh's family, and this possession went back to July 1822 ·(seTen months after the supposed partition of Mir Suhrab's territory) we.en Mir Rust&m passed a deed of grant in favour of Mir Khudaba.khsh and his father. This deed refers to discontinued " pannahs,'' or allotments held by the grantees in place of which Deh Y aru Derach was alienated. 4. " As a Ta.lpur . Sirdar closely connected with the late 

settlemeut propoeed bJ' " rulers, his claim to permanent provision 
Kr. Ellia. '' appears very fairly established," wrote :Major Goldsmid, and llr. Ellis wrote as follows regarding this case :-" The case of No. 35, Mir Jam Nindo is a peculiar one, Besides the "ja.gir which he now enjoys, and of which the statement contains a record '' he receives a pension of Rs. 800 per menaem or Rs. 1,600, per annum. " The pension is for life. It was granted in lieu of the jagir of Sobba " Derah, which was in the possession of Jam Nindo when Mir Ali Murad " was deposed from the Rais-ship. This jagir should hate been continued " to Jam Nindo, being an old poasession of his family; but Government " out of consideration for the reduced circumstances of His Highnea Mir " Ali Murad, allowed him to resume the jagirs to which he had no right 
1' whatever, and compensate Jam Nindo for the loss by a pension. " Upon a reference from Government, the Commissioner in Sind " suggested that the pension should be for life. Mr. Frere on now revis­" ing the case expresses his coD.Yiction that he was in error, and that he " should, in justice, have recommended the pension, subject to the orders of " Government as to continuance or otherwise on the demise of the pensioner ; " for the pension should haTe followed the tenure of the jagir in lieu of " which it was bestowed. It would have been nQw proposed to continue " the jagir to some extent hereditarily, in conformity with the settlement " proposed for others of the Four Talpur families. 



157 " I  would, however, suggest that as the Sobha Derah Jagir has been " resumed, and tbe pension granted for life only, the best course is �o re­(' grant heredita.rily the whole of the Jagir referred to in the present report " without any dedttction whatever. It is a very recent grant of His High­,, ness Mir Ali Murad, and would not have been regrautable after tho demise " of Jam Nindo, but it is considerably less in value than Sobba Derab, and " may · not unfairly represent the portion of that estate, which would " have been regrn.nted, but for the circumstances above referred to. In the '' propriety of thi'3 settlement, I may add, Mr. Frere concurs." (paras. 44-to 47). 
o. The Bomb:i.y Government in their letter to the Govern­

ment of India dated 11th September 1858, observed, with reference 
to this case, that if Rs. 3,600 represented the 

Opinion °1 tbe Bombay annual rental of tho lands of which that chief Government. 
had been deprived, the confir�ation of a jagir 

of Rs. 2,000 annual value l\ardly compensated him for the loss ; 
but it was clear, that at least this jagir should be continued 
on the terms proposed, and the Government of India were in­
formed that it would at once be decided in the Political De­
partment, whether on the demise of Mir Jam Nindo, any and 
what proportion of the money-pension would be continued, and 
for how long. The Government were of opinion, that if two­
thirds were continued to the next generation, and one-third 
to the second, it would be sufficient. 

6. The Government of India in their reply No. 1633, dated 
Oovemmeut of India 0011• 27th October 1858, approved of the proposal 

cur. of the Bombay Government for the disposal 
of the case of Mir Jam Nindo. 

7. The J agirdar was accordingly confirmed by his Sanad in 
the possession of 2,795 bigahs which were to descend to his heirs 

without deduction. " In your case," the Sanad Delaila of settlement. 
went on, "the possession of 1852 must be held 

" to represent the year of conquest 1843 applicable to other ja­
" girs ; the only provision being that the permanent Jagir consist 
" of one consolidated and well defined land alienation.'' 

Dea�h. 8, The Mir died on the 3rd January 1884. 
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No. 36. MIR KAR.AM KHAN. 

This Mir was great-great-great grandson of Mir Allahyar from whom the Mirpur Mirs are descended. Genealogy and position. His grandfather, Ahmad Khan, was brother to Mir Sher Muhnmmad's grandfather }fir Tharo, and Mir Karam therefore was second-cousin of llir Sher Muhammad. 
2. A long list of mak:ms was produced afterwnrcls ih evi-

Xo sanads from the dencc of Ahmad Khan's possessions in the 
.\l irpur Rulers. days of Mir Ali l\Iura<l, father to Sher )[uhammad, but no Sanad was forthcoming, a defect accounted for by the comparatively loose method of alienated land regis­t ration prevalent at l\Iirpur, and the near relationship of the g-rantee to the grantor. 

3. Ahmad Khan's son., Ghulam Murtaza, predeceased him, le:rdng a son Karam Khan, but Ahmad Khan himself was liYing at the period of the Conquest. Ile had, however, in about ,Jun<' 1830, left h is relatirn of Mirpur to enlist under the banner of :\lir Knsi r Khan of Hyderabad. On the 25th of that month , a 
f : rants by the llytlrabad promissory deed was registered stating that 

House. there woulcl be accordecl to him and his grandson 7,000 bigahs, whereof 6,000 were for Ahmad Khan, indepen<lcntly of his place of residence. In n<ldition to this, 2,000 were to be fol' followers an� 3,000 for 1' asir Khan and Yar lluhammad, othtr members of the household. Further he is said to have received Rs. 3,74'4 in cash, nnd 1,000 kharwars of grain annually. 
•:t. At Dablm 

<jrnnts made by ?tl i r  
Ali  Murad at  the instance of Sir Charles �apier. 

again, Mir Ahmad and his grandson, Karam Khan,are asserted tohnvc been in the ranks of Mir Sher :Muhammad. After this battle they fled , and ere long tendered their suumission 
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I. Khah. 
2. Wa.ssan. 
3. BatiL 
4. Paojah. 
5. Khaira Derah. 
!l. Bindi in Gagree. 

(Revenue Rs. 1,168.) 

to the British author­ity. They accom­pained His Excell­ency the Governor on the Hill expe­dition, and Mir Ali Murad, at Sir Charles Napier's request, con­f errctl upon them the jagirs marginally noted. Ahmad Khan die<l soon afterwar<ls and on the representation of his grandson, the latter received a Parwan::i. of regrant in his own name. 5. On the resumption of Kandiaro and Naushahro the first 
Confirmed in the Jn,,cit five jngirs were confirmed to the J agirdar 

posses.'iions on annexation by the British Government. The last how- • of ?ilir Ali l\iurad's terri-
tory. ever was situated in a district which remain- · eel a part of  Mir Ali ftlurad's patrimonial possessions, and therefore when circumstances induced His Highness to resume it, the Commissioner declined to interfere in the matter. 6. Major Goldsmid pro}losed the following seitlement :-" Mir Karam Kh,rn now holds 1 3,112 bigahs yielding revenue av,,r­" aging Rs. 3,78!) per a11n 1 1m. It is proposed to all llw �ttlement _proposed by " his successor 2 000 of these chosen by· hirnsdf fron 1  
MaJor Goldsm1d. ' ' · " any of the dehs or rnakans, as a grant i 1 1  " perpetuum. This would be the exact amount, giving the acivantagc of' '' Napierian measurement, that Mir Nasir Khan himself assigned to thr, " present incumbent when a boy of some eight years of age, iu consideration " of family and position." He was led to make this recommendation, on the ground that the Mir's jagirs in the resumed districts were unques­tionably life grants. " They are quite recent possessions, and the words " ai1.uaz ilfulazhni" " from their mode of en try in the pa.rwana, seem to carry a marked meaniug " of-Vassalage and dependence. But the position of Karam Khan shows at '' the same time, one of those decided instances of Sirdarship where a gap " in possession may be fairly overlooked, and enquiry held as to former •• tenures under former masters." 



160 7.  Mr. Ellis wrote as follows :-" The last on the list, No. 36, is also a case that requires a special 
Mt. Ellis agrees. 

" settlement. In this case the J agirdar Mir Karam " Ali (? Khan) held when Mir Ali Murad was " deposed, no jagirs but those which had been recently granted by the Mir " at the instance of Sir Charles Na pier. The circumstances are explained " by Ma.jor Goldsmid, who shows that though there is no doubt the family " held jagirs and allowances in former times, yet the defective state of the " .Mirpur Mirs' records does not enable him to prove this satisfactorily. " But of the descent of the Jagirdar from the Talpur family, whence " the Amirs sprang, and of his social position up to this time, there can be " no doubt. On account of the very recent date of his present holdings, I " cannot recommend that precisely the same rule as has been suggested iu " other cases be applied to this ; but as some provision is necessary, I think " :Major Goldsmid's proposition to regraut hereditarily 2,000 bigahs out of " the 13,000 which he now holds should be adopted. This settlement " would be sufficiently liberal, and at the same time, would  not be a " great alienation of revenue in  favour of one who certainly has claims both " by family descent and social positiou." (paras. 48 and 49). 8. This settlement was sanctioned by the Government of India. The Mir's Sanad accordingly confirm-
Settlement sanctioned. d h' . h . f 13 112 b' h e 1m m t e possession o , 1ga s-the area of the 5 jagirs above specified� and sanctioned the grant of 2,000 bigahs to his heirs in perpetuity. The usua.l option was, 

however, given, to the first successor. 
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CHAPTER III-

M E M O I R S  O F  S I R D A R  J A G I R D A R S .  

INTRODUCTION. 
The Sirdars may be said to form the third sub-di vision of the hereditary class of Jagirdars. The first sub-division was composed of those Jagirdars whose possessions were traceable to the time of the Kalhoras. The second, unlike the first, d id not Jepcnd for their privileges on antiquity of holding,but upon social position as members of one or other of the Four Grca.L Talpur Families. The third again, unlike the second, depended upon both antiquity of tenure and social position .  The conces­sions made to each of these sub-divisions varieJ. mostly in degree and little in kind. None of the permanent grants was liable to any assessment except the 5 per cent. assessment and the customary water-rates, and every one of them was ,dcscendi­ble to the lineal male heirs of the grantee. But the first class jagirs devolved on the heirs in their entirety-the jagirs of the four FaTiiilies were liable to a, deduction of -}rd as a rule, and those of the Sirdars were liable to a still greater deduction accord­mg to the circumstances of each. In some cases Major G,>ld­smid fixed this deduction at one-half, in others, he applied the old principle of calculating the rcgrantable portion from the average produce of the estate, and even in these last cases lie was unwilling to recommend larger grants than those of 5 ,000 bigahs in pursuance of a rule of Sir Ch:irles Napier's. In­deed no Sirdar was allowed a larger permanent jagir than that of 5,000 bigahs, while twenty-six: outofthe thirty-six Jagir-dars of the Four Great Families were secured in possession of lands ranging between near two lacs of bigahs and over 5,000 bigahs. The 
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same fact may be illustrated by comparing the total amount 
held at the Conquest by the Sirdars and the Jagirdars of the 
Four Families respectively, and the total amount permanently 
secured to each. The former possessed 6,58,562 bigahs and were 
secured 1,06,375 big'.l.hs in perpetuity, or 16·2 per cent. The 
latter possessed 19,35,908 bigahs and were secured 9, 73,949 in per­
petuity, or 50·3 per cent. To distinguish the 3 sub-divisions of 
permanent Jagirdars, it may, therefore, be said that the 1st class 
Jagirdars were hereditarily granted cent per cent. of their posses­
sions at the Conquest-the Jagirdars of the Four Great Families 
as a class 50·3 per cent. and the Sirdars as a class 16·2 per cent. 

2. It was at first proposed to group all J agirdars owning 
grants made by either Mir Fateh Ali or Mir Ghulam Ali into the 
2nd class. But this hard and fast rule was found unsatisfac­
tory in two puticulars : it admitted too m1ny of those who were 
merely personal servants of  the llirs without any respectable 
standing in society, and it included m'.l.ny whose social position 
was very high-but whose possessions had not been continuous 
owing to variations in the mode of remunerating them or to acci­
dents in service. H was, therefore, determined to change the rule, 
and to apply a double remedy by lowering the unimport.ant 
grantees from the ftrst two Amirs to the 3rd class (a class of non­
permanent Jagirdars), without however subjecting them to the 
assessment payable, on regrant, to the second generation in that 
class, and by raising (1) all those who were not merely 
grantees from the first two Amirs, but were men of  unquestiona­
ble status in society, and (2) all those having such sbtus, but 
not any grant in uninterrupted possession from before the death 
of Mir Ghulam Ali in A. D. 1812, to the class of permanent 
J agirdars under the designation of Sirdars. 

3. It was not very difficult to select J agirdars having ancient 
holdings as well as a pre-eminent position among their respective 
tribes. But when the holding was ancient and the position not pre­
eminent, or the position pre-eminent but the holding not ancient, 



163 great difficulty was experienced in coming to a, conclusion on the merits. In his Taluka. Rolls, Captain Pelly had classified every jagir according to its antiquity but had sometimes, in con­eideration of the Jagirdar's standing in society, raised him to the 2nd class, although his possessions were in the 3rd class, and sometimes lowered an unimportant J agirdar to the 3rd class although his possessions were in the 2nd class. Major Gold­smid was not authorized to disturb Captain Pelly's Rolls which · had been sanctioned by the Commissioner, except as to errors of fact, and on this account he generally accepted those Jagirdars as Sirdars whom Captain Pelly had recorded as deserving of that privilege, and did not include those who had been lowered to the 3rd class, in his list of Sirdars, unless their claim was very strong. But Captain Pelly's entries as to Sirdars in his Taluka. Rolls were very few, although there was a Persian list prepared by Munshi Menghraj, evidently under his instructions, which was a pretty full one. M1jor Golds mid made use of this list as well as of Captain Rathborne;s Roll of men of rank, Lieutenent Burton's list of tribes, and Lieutenant Leech's printed reports on the Sinclian Army written before the Conquest, in ascertaining the legitimate position of those Jagirdars about whom he felt any doubt. And in the same m1nner he resort­ed to the transcripts of th.a old Sanads and to Captain Stack's registers, whenever the elevated position of  a Jagirdar made him doubt Captain Pelly's jagir classification. From the Sanads he discovered that some of the Jagirdars registered in the 3rd class were descended from old Deradars in the the time of the Kalh.oras, and such men Mr. Ellis and the Commissioner generally concurrei in ad.mitting to the class of Sirdars. Others were hc:i.d� of princip 1l trib:.H a::d n:>t of m9re trib:1.l sections, or descendants of foanders of important Tandas, and of Mukh­tyarkars, Generals .and Ambassadors of the Amirs. Such men were enrolled as Sirda.rs although their possessions were not older than the time of Mir Ka.ram Ali or Murad Ali, and in a few, cases even later. 
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:t, Besides these, some Talpurs belonging to the Four Great 1-'amilies who bad not been ranked in the second sub-division of per­:n�ncnt Jagirdars were enrolled as Sircfars, just as those 2nd class ,fogirdars who w0re not enrolled as Sirdars ·were ·m:ide a pri­,: i legcd 3rd class exempt from the liability of paying any assessment. 5 .  Following the procedm·c as above described, 74 Jagirdars were selcJted for enrolment as Sird1r.,, and their selection was con firmed by the Supreme G,wernment and the Secretary of State for India. 'fhe Sanads granted to these Sirdars contained 
the same clauses as those granted to the Jagirdars of the Four Great Families. 

N. B. In the following pages 13 or bigahs sfands for N apierian bi gabs, unless the context. shows to the contrary. M. B.=Mirs ' bigahs. Heirs-= Lineal m!tle heirs. Usu1.l option=l'he option to t.he immediate successor of the original grautec found in possession at the Conquest to hold all the lands descending .to heirs, on  payment 
of qu:1rter-asscssment or surrender of }th or" the lan d. Quarter-produce.=Quarter-assessment. 
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SECTION I. 

Talpur,. 

The annexed genealogical table will show the descent of the fourteen Sirdars selected out of this tribe. Three of them, fJiz., Muhammad Khan, Ahmad Khan, and Nasir Khan had been at first included in the list of Jagirdars of the Four Great Talpur Families, but were afterwards classsed as Sirdars. The remain­ing Sirdars are ftom the Ba.haranis, Muradanis, Halelanis, Jiwananis and Thora Jiandanis. The :6.rst three of these tribal sect.ions are descended from Halel great-great-grandson of Bijar, the great-great-grandfather of Kakka to whom the Four Great Talpur Families trace their lineage. The Jiwananis are descend­ed from Jiwan, the brother of Manik, Ali and Hotak, and the Thora Jiandanis from Jiand, great-grandson of the aforesaid Bijar. " The Thoras seem to have been established in Bind so " far back as the days of Mir Fateh Ali, in two distinct families " called respectively, Jiandanis and Ahmadani or Adamani. The " latter are said to be the true ' Thoras', from alliance and inter­" marriage with whom, the former have borrowed the appel­" lation. The story goes that Adam Khan, Talpur, progenitor of " the ' Adamanis,' was the :6.rst of his house who came to Sind and " took service ; that he was remarkable for natural baldness, and " in consequence of this appearance, somewhat rare in these " regions, he received the not unfamiliar designation of ' Thora' " or Anglice ' the Bald.' His descendants produce the older " Sanads for the several alienations of which this division of " Talpurs was generally possessed at the Conquest, and have 
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" since continued in possession : but the sub-division of ' Jiand­
" anis' had gradually increased in personal influence under the 
" reign of the Amirs, and on ·the introduction of British authority 
" in 1848, this influence seemed to have attained its climax. 
" That of the ' Adamanis' · had, perhaps, become lessened in 
" similar ratio. The custom of the Mire, and of the country, 
" was naturally studied by Government, in estimating the social 
"' position of each particular member of the Bind B.obility, and, 
" up to the present time, none of the lineal descendants of Adam 
" the Bald can be compared, in status and influence with N awab 
'' Muhammad .Khan, Jiandani, and his immediate relatives and 
" .connexions." 
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No. 1. H.LI.S.d..N .LI.LI B.d.H.d.B.d.NI. 

Major Goldsmid wrote about this J agirdar as follows :-" Captain Rathborne, Collector of Hvderabad, has recorded that, of the " Baharanis, Hasan .A li Khan, Talpur a poor Sirdar, with 
Position. " a  small jagir, living at Jan Mubammad-ka-Gote, " and Muhammad Khan, t Talpur, Kardar of Sarfraz, " and a Jagirdar, are the beads . 

• • • • • • • • " Hasan Ali holds jagirs to the extent of 2,342 bigahs. (in the " Hyderabad district). These are all in the 3rd class, and, under present " rules, would be regrantable for one generation, less 1th 
Antiquity of estate. " or to the amount of 1,757 bigahs. But the old man " has strong claims to consideration on the score of " prior high position and ancient tenure. He bas shown me a Sanad of " Abdul Nabi Kalhora (A. D. 1777) which proves his grandfather, Sayad " Khan, to have been a Derahdar before the Talpur invasion, and his other " Sa.nads of the same dynasty lead io the conclusion that his father and " grandfather, were, even in those days objects of the rulers' special regard. " There is registered a Sanad of Mir Fateb Ali, giving 3,0(?0 Mirs' bigabs " ( =2,196 Napierian bigahs) from Makan Garhar to his father, Jan Muham­" mad, and this is shortly after, doubled in amounfby the same Mir. And " although the chain of possession was broken by the substitution, in after " years, of pay grants, yet the 'retJfflnl of the aforesaid jagir of " Garhar" to " the family, by Mirs Karam Ali and Murad Ali, in lieu of Seri, should not be " uunoticed. • • • • • • • • " It will not be necessary to enter into the several a lienations " which Hasan Ali and his father have, from time to time, enjoyed prior to " the British Conquest, the present enquiry being rather one of consolidation " than of restoration. Suffice it to say that the volumes of title deeds in " the Jagir office bear testimony to their extent and variety. " The residence of Hasan Ali, is, as of old, at Jan Mubammad-ka­" Tanda, a large and populous village in the Mirpur flis-

Propoeal. " trict named after his father, its founder. It ia in the " neighbourhood of the Garhar Jagir, and immediately 80 " to the 146 bigahs granted to the Jagirdar on the bank of the Puran. The " dry bed of this once fine river has been long used for cultivation , but the " soil of the upper plains is of that nature that a supply of water would fertil­" ize every acre. In making the small allotment contiguous to the village " a grant in perpetuum, it is proposed to add 80 much of the Makan • Garhar " as would constitute a tenure of 1,000 bigahs. Option would, however, be " given to the first regrantee, to retain for his own life, the whole jagir, on " an asse!'lsment equal to the ¼ th share of produce. t Son of Lukman who wu a peraon of aome distinction under lllir Sohrab of Xhairpur. 
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" Hasan Ali has a nephew, Murad Ali, who has also 2,196 bigahs " adjoining, and in fact appertaining to the jagir of the former. But eleva­" tion to 2nd class of one in this particular branch of Bahn.rauis, is held to be " a  sufficient prol"ision for their future maintenance in respectability. '' Murad A li is a poor blind man and has no family. Hasan Ali himself " about 60, has three sons, the eldest of whom is a man of middle age." 
2. Major Goldsmid's proposal was sanctioned by Govern­

ment, and the Sanad (No. 25) granted to the Sirdar on 28th 

Settlement with 
Jagird�r. 

March 1861, accordingly confirmed him in the 
possession of Garhar (2,196 B.) and the jagir on 
the bank of the Puran (146 B.) and accorded 

1,000 bigahs to his lineal male heirs in perpetuity with an option 
to his immediate successor to continue in possession of all the 
lands held at the Conquest, " on p'.l.yment of an assessment equal 
to quarter produce or on resumption of a quarter the whole 
amount of land." 

Duthof Jaflrd:ar. 3. The Mir died on the 15th October 1878. 

No. !J. AHMAD KHAN, BA.HA.BANI. 

The possessions of this Sirdar were 4S4 
Jagirdar'a estate& bigahs in Charrao in Hala, and 1,4-31 in Khuda. 

bad in J ohi. • They were both posterior to the death of Mir 
Ghulam Ali, and were therefore registered in Captain Pelly's­
'faluka Rolls in the 3rd class. 

ll&ior Goldsmid'■ pro- 2. Major Goldsmid wrote about this Jagir• 
poaa1a. dar as follows :-" The following five individuals were sharers in two jagirs under a " S11.nad which placed the whole grant in the 3rd class :-Haji Ghulam Muhammad. } brothers ofGhulam Hu11Sen Ghulam Haidar .. . . . .  . . . . . .  walad Lukman Khan. Nawa� Muhammad Khan, } (sons of Lukman). Mubarik Khan . .. . . • . . .... Ahmad Khan walad Gh11lam Hussen . ... . .  "' 

• ID the Jobi 'l\lub iD 1869. U ia llOW ill tile Dac1u TIIUD. 



1'10 " Of these, it is ascertained, that the sbares"of the two first, and of Mubarik " Khan, were confiscated at tho Conquest. Ghulam. Haidar died in 1842, " and his brother and bis cousin Mubarik fell a year later at Meani. " This information is corroborated by a Parwanah of the Collector o( " Karachi dated 4th April 1846, acknowledging the visit of Muhammad " Khan, and recording bis statement that his co-sharer, Ahmad Khan, to­.. getber with Ghulam Haidar's son, Jan Muhammad, and .M.ubarik's aon, " Nasir, bad made their salams to the Governor, without receiving the " necessary certificates. The Collector confirmed the shares of the sur­.. vivors, .Muhammad and Ahmad Khan, and promised a regrant to the '· sons of Ghulam Haidar and M.ubarik, respectively, whenever they could " produce the Salam Sanads. " On the death of Nawab Muhamm.ad Khan in 1850, without leaving " a son, his share was resumed in each Collectorate. The sole remaining � Jagirdar of the original five co-sharers, waa therefore, Ahmad Khan. • • • • " The question of whether or no he tendered Salam has been left " open by Ctt.ptain Pelly, But in consideration that Naw1tb Muhammad " Khan received himself a Salam Certificate on the 27th May 1844, and " that of the four co-sharers, Ahmad Khan, is the only one at all removed " from the degree of relationship contemplated in para. 41 of the Com­" missioner's letter to Government No. 171 of the 19th May 1853 ; more­" over, that under the present rules the confiscated shares of Mubarik and " Gbulam·Haidar would have been regranted, less ¼th to their heirs, it is " suggested that his own declaration, recorded by the Collector eleven years " ago, of having proffered allegiance be accepted He could barely have " been ten years old at the Conquest, and must have been quite a child when " his name was included in the Sanad bearing the Governor's seal. There " is nothing, however, suspicious in this circumstance, from the description " of the nominees, who would be provided for, as a Family, above the po­" sition of ordinary retainers. " It is not quite clear how this branch. has title to adopt the name • of ' Bahar,' the descent b«}ing shown from the brother of that personage. " But the family has been known to the authorities for several years, aa •• Baharanis, and this fact may be held sufficiently conclusive." 
3. :Major Goldsmid recommended that a permanent 

provision of 1,000 bjgahs be made for · this ae:,.�•• wWi Jagu-. Jagirda.r. This was agreed to. The Sanad of 
1861 (No. 26) accordingly confirmed the Ja.­

girdar in his existing possession and accorded 1,000 bigahs to hia 
male heirs, with the usual option and on the usual terms. 
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No. 8. KHUD.4. BA.KHSH BA.HA.BA.NI. 

This Sirdar held 909 bigahs in Jhol llakan in the Badin Eat.at.& Taluka which were classed by Captain PelJy in the 3rd class. 2. Major Goldsmid wrote about him as follows :-" An intelligent, and a much esteemed old man of prepossessing ap-11a· Ooldam.d' 1 " pe11rance and manner. He holds a Salam certi-�or 1 8 propoea · " ficate fropi His Excellency the Governor. He is " one of a large number of incumbents in a grant of 2,903 bigabs, Mirs' " measurement ; and the chief of four co-sharers whose shares have been " declared regrantable, in the 3rd class, for one generation. " His descent from Ba.bar is clear and satisfactory ; and his name " is found in a rough Persian Roll of prop<>sed Sirdars, prepared, about a " year ago, under my predecessor's instructions by the late Head Munshi of •• the Jagir office. But Khuda B.i.kbsh has, in my opinion, good claims to " advance, by Sanads as well as position. 
f' On the 5th October 1834, Mir Nur Muhammad confers upon him " 4,00 Mirs' bigahs in Chachkan. This was in lieu of 600 Mira' bigabs held " under Mir Murad Ali, then lately deceased, in Kuddero, which parganna " had fallen to the lot of Mir Mir Muhammad. The reduction was shown " to be owing to the better description of soil in the new grant. Now Cap­" tain Stack, in his registered list of 36 8a.nads, clearly proved this amount " of 600 Mirs' bigahs to have been derived from a Sana<l of Mir Fateh Ali " to Kbuda Bakhsh, his father, and his relatives Ghulam Ali and Karim " Dad, dattld 12th October 1798, for 500 Mirs' bigahs from Imamwah ; '' and from another Sanad by Mir Ghulam Ali to Khuda Bakhsh's father, " dated 20th July 1804, for 100 Mirs' bigahs from Kuddero, referred " to in subsequent Sann.els of Mir Murad Ali. The latter Mir afterwards " restored 100 of the 200 deducted 011 account of quality of soil. These " grants are all registered in the J agir office. " Should a regrant in perpetuum, be accorded, it is recommended that " it be limited to 500 bigahs, the exact amount of his own 2nd class hold:­•' ings, giving him the benefit of Napieria.n measurement. " Having performed the pilgrimage to Mecca, Khuda. Bakhsb is " generally known by the appellation of " Haji." He resides at, a village " bearing his own name in the ta.luka. of Badin. The eldest of his four " sons ts about 50 yea.rs of age." 

8. In accordance with Major Goldsmid's proposal, the 
Settlement. 

J agirdar' s Sanad {No. 27) confirmed him in the possession of 909 bigahs in Jhol, and 



1'12 accorded to his male heirs 500 bigahs with the usual option and on the usual terms. 
Otatb. 4. He died on the 22nd August 1871. 

No. 4. PIA.RO KHAN JIWANANI, 

commonly called 

PIA. RO KHAN KANA.NI. 

Estate. 
This Sirdar held 1,282 bigahs in Ka.ndri 

in Tando Ba.go. They wera classed in the Ta.Iuka Rolls as a. 3rd class jagir. 

2. Major Goldsmid wrote about this J agirdar as follows :-" Jivan, brother of Manik, and son of Kaka, the progenitor of the cbieC " Talpur Families of Sind, left sons, four of whom o.re M•jor Goldamid'a pro• " mentioned by Captain Rathborne, late Collector of J><>!Wll. " Hyderabad, in his Geneological Tree. From these " fonr came th� 1. " Shahaliani Branch, of which Lal Khan, a poor old man, was " described as the head. 2. " Rajwani Branch, the head of which was Sirdar Khan of Subha " Derah. 3. " Sbukulani Branch, the head of which was Mubarik Khan oC " the same place. 4. " Yarani Branch, of which Piaro Khan, living at Dabareh, was " the head. " Lal Khan, Shahaliani, died on the 27th April 1851. He had a jagir " of 1,250 bigahs in Hala, of which 290 were regranted to his son Kha.iro, " under orders of the Commissioner in Sind (No. 1282 of the 14th May " 1853). This tenure was pronounced to be in the 3rd class, by Captain " Pelly, in his Taluka Settlement for Hala, and such would appear to be " the due classification of the grant, whether with reference to the position '' of the grantee, or the date of the Sanads in support of his claim. Sirdar " and Mubarik Khan do not hold jagirs under the British Government. " Piaro is a Jagirdar whom it is considered that position and tenure •' render it but an act of justice to place in the 2nd class. For although 



173 " in the Collectorate RoU, the shares in this grant, of Piaro, Yaru and Ali " are placed in the 3rd class, (the last to lapse with the life of regrantee) " a reference to the Taluka Settlement will show that 2,000 out of the 3,000 " �irs' bigahs discussed, are actually 2nd cla.88 by rule, " There were in fact, 2nd, 3rd and 4th class grants comprised in " this one enquiry. Captain Pelly, not being able ' to recommend these " ' Talpurs for permanent alienations,' suggested that ' as an e.J'ceptive case, " ' a medium classification be adopted, and that all the tenures be placed in '' ' in the 3rd class.' " This disposal of the question, however, keeps out of sight, one of its, " to me, most important features. Piaro, independently of being a a,-facto " Jagirdar in the 2nd class, was a tk-jvre member of the Mme, as the head " of a Branch of Jiwanani Talpurs. He is, moreover, a respectable, well " disposed mBn, who seems quite worthy to retain his legitimate position of " Sirdar.'' " Further, a reference to Captain Stack's report, No. 56 of 29th April " 1853, which forms the basis of Captain Pelly's decision, shows that 2,700 " and not 2,000 of the 3,500 Mira' bigahs were in the 2nd elate. A third of " this, or Piaro's share, 900 Mirs' bigahs would give 613 bigabs, Napierian " measurement. Allowing some deduction for waste land and excluding " aJl 3rd and 4th class grants, it is recommended that 500 bigahs be allowed " to the family in perpetuum. 3. In accordance with this proposal, the Jagirdar's Sanad (No. 
Settlement. 28) confirmed him in the possession of his 1,282 N apierian bigahs, and accorded to his lineal male heirs 500 bigahs in perpetuity with the usual option, and on the usual terms. 
J.girdar'1 d•tb. 4. He died on the 15th November 1877. 

No. 6. IJH.J. G .A.LI H.A.LLEL.J.NI, JJEOE.J.SEJJ, 

SUOOEEJJEJJ IJ Y  HIS SON GHUL.J.H .A.LI. 

This Jagirdar held in Gotano in the Hyderabad Taluka 1,997 N apierian bigahs in the 2nd class, 8,470 bigahs in the 3rd class, and 272 bigahs in the 4th class, in all 10,739 bigahs. 



174 2. Major Goldsmid wrote about Bhag Ali as follows: -
" He was the Chiei oi the Hallelani Talpurs, and on his death in  

M . G ldam'd' ---i " December last (1856), his son, Ghulam Ali, 
•Jor O 1 8 proyv-, " succeeded to the turban of Sirdarship. The 

" latter is but a boy in years, and can hardly be . expP.cted to furnish much 
" information on his position and pedigree. There is no doubt, however, oi the 
" importance of this family under the former Government. Bhag Ali had 
" the title of Mir, until circumstances reduced him to comparative poverty. 
" His grand-fatlier, Fazul, gave the name to a well-known Tanda near 
'' Hyderabad, containing many vestiges of former state and prosperity. 

" My opinion is, that he is entitled to receive in perpetuity, at 
" least all the jagirs in the 2nd class, irrespective of waste land. This 
" arrangemen� would cut off in toto, 8,742 bigahs, 3rd and 4th class grants ; 
'' and it would, therefore, seem but reasonable to let the family have a 
" consolidated jagir of 2,000 bigahs in perpetuum, from any pa.rt of the 
" whole land in present possession which they may wish to select . • • • • • • • 

" Of the three sons, the eldest Ghulam Ali who inherits the estate, is 
" a  sickly, undeveloped looking lad of fourteen, and illiterate : the second 
'' M uhammad Ali, is taller, of more comely appearance, and might easily be 
" taken for the elder. They allege that he was born only three months 
" after his brother, but his mother being a Sindhi courtezan, he is not much 
" regarded by the Baluchis. He could do nothing in the way of literary 
" performances with the ' Gulistan,' but stated that he could read the easier 
'' book the ' Karima.' The third son is little more than a child. 

" The family reside a.t Faza.1-Ka-Tanda, which village is in the 
" same talnka., though not part of the same land, as their ja.gir of Ima.mwab. 
" Bindeh known by the name of Ghota.na." 3. Major Goldsmid's recommendation was approved by 

Settlement. 
Government, and accordingly a Sanad (No. 29) was issued to Ghulam Ali, which after rociting that his father was found possessed of certain land, and that on his death in 1856 a small portion of it being in the 4th class lapsed to Government, and the remainder being 10,461 big!l.hs in Ghota.na was re-granted to Ghulam Ali, on the condition of resuming ¼th produce, confirmed him in this position, and accorded to his heirs 2,000 bigahs in perpetuity on the usual terms, without of cours�, a.ny option to his immediate heir. 
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No. 6. NA W .AB MUH.AMM.AJJ -KHAN THOR.A. 

The Nawab held 3,859 Napierian bigahs in Jati, and 1,231 in 

Estate. 
Matari which were registered by Captain 
Pelly in the 3rd class. He likewise held ex­

tensive jagirs in the 4th class as detailed below :-
J ohi . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . .  . . . . . . • • •  52,55�� B. 
Hyderabad . . . . . •  . . . . . . . . . 10,770 
Tando Bago . . . . .  . . . • . . . . . .  6,158 
Dero Moh bat. . . . . . . . . . . .  5,718 
Tatta . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
Jati . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
Jhuda . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

3,621 
717 
680 

" 
,, 
,, 
,, 
" 

His total possessions were the ref ore 60,749 bigahs in the Karachi 
District, and 2 1',557 bigahs in the Hyderabad District-in all 
85,306 bigahs. 

2. Captain Rathborne described the Nawab in his list of 

Position. men of rank sent to the Commissioner in 
November 1847, as " the man of the greatest 

" influence " in Sind, and bearing " a high character among all 
" classes, not however without the imputation of having used his 
" power too much to his own profit, and the aggrandizement of his 
" family." According to Major Goldsmid, the chief of the Thora 
family of Jiandanis in the time of the Mirs, was Darya Khan who 
under Mirs Karam Ali and Murad Ali was Kardar of Samtani. 
" Khair Muhammad, his first cousin, afterwards attained higher 
" posts of confidence, and became Mukhtyarkar to Mir Murad 
" Ali." Nawab Muhammad Khan was Klrn.ir Muhammad's 
nephew. He " enjoyed the confidence of Mir Mir Muhammad 
Khan • . • •  to an almost unlimited extent," and obtained numerous 
jagirs from this Mir. His older possessions came to him from his 
brother, Fateh Khan, who died childless, 



176 3. The Nawab having no son was anxious to name his daughter's husband as his heir, and Major 
Alajor Goldsmid's pro- Goldsmid considered that " if a high position posal. " under the Mirs, coupled with loyal and use-" fnl adherence to the British Government, gave claim to unusual " indulgence, this wish might be favourably considered." Mr. Ellis accordingly, proposed that 4,000 bigahs might be accorded to the Nawab's son-in-law in perpetuity after the Nawab's death. 4. This deviation from the usual rule of succession was 

Settlement. 
sanctioned, and the Jagirdar's Sanad (No. 30) accordingly granted 4,000 bigahs permanent­ly to the Nawab's male heirs with the usual option, and failing them to his son-in-law, Khair Muhammad, as a special favour, without such option. It also confirmed the N awab in the possession of the jagirs amounting to 85,806 bigahs as detailed in the statement (with this difference that in the Sanad there were mentioned two Guja Phaties, one in Tando Bago (8,064 B.) and another in Jhuda (680 B) , and that Rai and Mathis were shown together as contain. ing 5,718 B. in Dero Mohbat.) 5. The Nawab died on the 9th August 1863. His family 

Death. residence was at Tajpur, the village of Nawab Muhammad Khan Laghari, brother-in-law of Doat Ali Thora-but he used generally to live at Hyderabad. 
No. 7. IJOSP ALI, PHO.R..d.. Dost Ali's father, Khair Muhammad, occupied a high 

Poeition. position under Mir Mir Muhammad. On Khair Muhammad's death, Dost Ali was ap­pointed Mukhtyarkar to Mir Nur Muhammad, and he subse­quently filled the same office with Mir Nur Muhammad's son and successor Mir Hussen Ali. Dost Ali's son, Khair Muhammad, was married to Nawab Muhammad Khan Thom's daughter. 



177 2. Captain Pelly registered this Jagirdar as possessed of 
Estate. 

23,197 Napierian bigahs in the 3rd class in Sakrand. But as a matter of fact he possess­ed 800 M. B. in his jagir of Bhambai in the 2nd class, as it had been granted between 1783 A. D. and 1812 A. D. 3.  In the statement of proposed settlemt3nts 800 Napierian 
Settlement. 

bigahs were recommended to be confirmed to this Sirdar permanently, and his Sanad (No. 31) accordingly accorded this amount to his lineal male heirs in perpetuity, with the usual option, and on the usual terms, while confirming him in _the possession of the jagirs held by him. 
No. 8. JAFFAR KHAN THORA. 

This Jagirda-r was son of Darya Khan before mentioned ; 
Position. 

Major Goldsmid had no doubt that he was the Thora most in estimation among the Baluchis till some years back. 2. Major Goldsmid wrote as follows about this Sirdar's estate :-" Darya Khan died in A. D. 1845, possessed of jagirs as per margin, " in the Karachi Collectorate. These were regranted Estate. " by his Excellency the Governor to Jaffar Khan, his Jampur .-.. - . . .  5,500 " only son, minus the ¼th share of produce. But the 
Uer&b Hamzo ... 2,500 " Governor's proclamation· of March 1847, afterwards 
Chimni . . . I,500 " came into operation. and was brought to bear re-Total 9500 " trospectively upon the settlement. His ¼th share ' " rent was changed to a levy of 2 annas per bigah, " and the consequence WI¥! that six years later, in 1853, he petitioned for " leave either to abandon ¼th of his land in lieu of the rent paid thereon, or " that Government would resume bis whole alienation, and accord him a " pension equal to the sum it cost him in the two items of fixed assessment " and water-rnte ! That there were grounds foe his complaint may be " gathered from the fact that before urging it, he had already given " up . . . . . . . . • . • more than half, from inability to pay the Government " demand per bigah. 



178 " In the Shikarpur Collectorate, Jatiar Khan enjoys a jagir or his own " in M:ehar, amounting to 2,928 bigahs. This is a recent grant of Mir Mir " Muhammad. " Captain Pelly has placed all the tenures in the 4th class ; those in " Karachi as being regrants of the 3rd ond 4th ; those in Shikarpur according " to date of Sanad." 3. Oa. investigating the case, however, Major Goldsmid found that out of the 4,000 Napierian bigahs 
Major Goldamid'e propoeal. • th . . f G &c l 000 b' h m e Jag1r o anyar . , 1ga s were in the 2nd class, and he recommend that this amount should be permanently regrantable. This recommendation was sanctioned. 4. The Sanad of Jaffar Khan (No.) 32) accordingJy, afoor 

Settlement. 
reciting that Darya Khan, his father, and he himself were found at the Conquest in possession of cert;ain lands, that on Darya Khan's death Jaffar Khan was regranted his jagir subject to an assessment of 2 annas per bigah, and that owing to this assessment Jaffar Khan relin­quished, a portion preferring t.o pay ¼ th amount of produce on the residue, confirmed him in the possession of the jagirs specified in columns 9 to 12 of the Statement and accorded 1,000 bigahs to his heirs in perpetuity without any option and on the usual terms. " No separate arrangement" ran the Sa.natl, " is made for " the continuance to your heirs of your own original jagirs, as " they are under rule not re-grantable being in the 4th class.'' 

No. 9. ALI B.LI.KHSH THOB.4.. 

This.Jagi.rd&r held 1,025 Napierian bigahs in the 2nd class in the Shahdadpur Taluka, 57 bigahs in the 3rd class in the Hala TaJ.uka, and 5,386 bigaba in the same class in the Mehar Taluka. 



179 

2. Major Goldsmid wrote about him as follows :-" This is another of those cases where it does not appear desirable to P . . " lower the genuine 2nd class grants. The Sanads 0111tion. " and position of this Ja,,.uirdar would almost, separ-" ately, warrant a settlement m permanency ; when coupled together, they " present an undeniably strong claim. " It is recommended that 1,000 bigahs out o! the 1,025 in the 2nd • Goldamii' __ , " class, be allowed to lineal male heirs, with the llaJor • pro_.... " option, usual on first regrant." This proposal was approved. 3. The Sanad of Alibux (No. 33) accordingly confirms 
Settlement. 

him in the possession of the jagirs specified in columns 9 to 12 of the Statement, and accords 1,000 bigahs to his heirs with the usual option and on the usual terms. 
Death. 

4. Ali Bakhsh died on the 24th May 1867. 
No. 10. KHAN MUHA..MMA.D 'l'HOBA., DEOEA.SED, 

SUOOEEDED B Y  JAN MUHAMMAD. 

No. 11. SHEB MUJU..MMA..D THORA, DECEASED, 

S UOOEEDED B Y  A.LI MURAD. Khan Muhammad was found at the Conques� in pos­session of the jagirs marginally Khan lluhmammad'• eatate ud it.a regrant. noted. He was recognized by Sir Puchri llaauwah .. .  1,391 Had war •. • . . . ••• 67 i Karia llitbo Zanaejo and llllkan Kurkut ••• ... 3,90j Charles Napier, and confirmed in his possessions. He died in 1845, and, on his death, his jagirs were 6,352 J regranted to his son, an Muham-mad, subject to the payment of ¼th produce. 2. Khan Muhammad's brother, Sher Muhammad, was found at the Conquest in possession of Sher Muhammad's eatat.e and it.a regranfl. the jagirs . marginally noted. He Puchri :Maauwah, l Karia Kit.ho Zan• d gejo and Hu.an Kurkut, and certain •� too was confirme in his pos-
claaa jagire. sessions. He died in 1855, and, on 
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his death, his 4th class ja.girs lapsed to Government, and the 
remainder were regranted to his son Ali Murad " under the terms 
" of ¼th resumption." U oder this regrant 27 5 bigahs of Puchri 
Ma.suwah, and 2,928 bigahs of the 2nd jagir remained in the pos­
session of the regrantee. 

3. Captain Pelly registered Jan Muhammad as possessed 
Captain Pelly'a clauilication of the re- of 1,391 B. in  the 2nd class in 

grt.utel estates. ShahdAdpur, besides other jagirs in 
the 4th cl�s, and Ali Murad as possessed of 275 B. in the same 
class and in the same taluka, and of 2,928 B. in the 4th class in  
the Mehar Talu.ka. 

4. :Majqr Goldsmid wrote as follows about Jan Muhammad 
and Ali Murad :-" Sons of two brothers of considerable note among the Adamani " Thoras. For the reasons stated 

Major Goldsmid'a proposals. " in the precedincr case it is recom-"' ' " mended that permanency be accorded to the 2nd class grants in tbeir '· po,Bession, to the extent of l,OJ.)0 bigahs out of. 1,391 held by Jan Muham­" ma(l , and the whole amount of 275 bigahs of Ali .Murad. All their other " j.16ir11 would lapse to Goverument on demise of present incumbents." 
5. These recomm�udations were, however, modified on 

Proposala revised. 

to the heirs of each. 

revision, and 1,000 bigabs were re­
commended for a permanent regrant 6. The Sanads issued to these Jagirdars, accordingly, (Nos. 

Settlement. 
3i and 35) accorded this amount 
to the heirs of each permanently, 

without any option, while they confirmed the incumbents them­
selves in their respective possessions, 5,352 and 3,203 B. Jan 
Muhammad was, of course, confirmed subject to the payment 
of  ¼th produce, but this condition could not be imposed upon Ali 
Murad, a. fourth of whose 3rd class jsgirs had been already 
resumed. 
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• ff- MIR BA.JO KHAN (DEOEA.SEDJ 

SUOOEEDED B Y  MIR MUHAMMAD KHAN 

DAR YA KHA.NANI. 

Captain Whitlock, Assistant Political Agent, Hyderabad, in 
Position. a memo. dated 6th February 1841, estimated the yearly revenues of Mir Rajo Khan at Rs. 30,000. The Mir's sister was the mother of Mir Sher Muham­mad the Ex-Amir of Mirpur. Captain Rathborne stated that this Mir and Ahmad Khan " a  small J agirdar living at Allahabad­" ka-Got " were the chiefs of the Darya Khanani Branch of the Talpurs. There was no proof, according to Major Goldsmid, that Rajo Khan was the son of an original Derahdar under tho Kalhoras. But Captain Stack stated that the first Sanad to his family spoke " of the lands having been previously enjoyed by " the Mir." No previous Sanad was, however, discovered or foun<l referred to, by Major Gold.smid. But Muhammad Khan and his brother informed Major Goldsmid " that the grant was originally " made in 1790 by Mir Thara, the first reigning Mir at Mirpur, " to Muhammad Khan, the father of Ra.jo, and that the deed of " grant was written in a Koran. Rajo was left a mere boy on " his father's death, and the Koran, in some way got lost by his " servants." 

" If this story," continued Major Goldsmid, " be  correct (and I have no 
" reason to think it otherwise), I can well account fer no reference being 
" made to the previous document in the Sanad (of Mir Sher Muhammad 
" dated 11th March 1809), · by the fact that snch papers were always much 
" more loosely worded and much more carelessly prepared in the Daftar of 
" the .Mirpur Amirs than at Hyderabad." 

* 12 is the current No. and 72 is the number in the Statement prepared by Major Goldsmid for eubmiBSion to Government. Noa. 72, 73 and 74, were added in a eupple­n1ent to the list of Sardare in accordance with, .Mr. Ellia'a inetruct.iODS contained in bis No. 24, dated 21st September 1868. 
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2. Mir Rajo at the Conquest was found in possession of the 

Estate. 
jagirs marginally no-

I. Manahki 
2. Pannira 
3. Annthari 
4. Duma.ni 

Bigab.s. 
8,922 
3,612 
2,038 
2,1 21 

16,693 

ted, measuring 16,693 
N apierian bigahs. All 
these four jagirs were 
held under Mir Sher 
Xuhammad's Sanad 

dated 11th March 1809. 

3. Mir Rajo died on the 20th November t1852. On his 

It.-. rcgrau t to Mir 
Uajo'::1 sou. 

death Captain Stack, under the Commis­
sioner's sanction, regranted his father's lands 
to Mir Muhammad Khan, after deduction of 

5,413 bigahs on account of waste, and subject to the payment of 
{th produce. Captain Goldsmid modified the settlement, under the 
Commissioner's sanction No. 4137, dated 13th February 1854, by 
fixing an assessment of Rs. 330 per annum in lieu of ¼th produce. 
]Jesides the 11,280* bigahs thus regranted to Mir Muhammad 

{ 
Manahki * Tando Ba.go .. .  Paunira 
A.nathari 

Bigahs. Khan, there were two 
7,fi&5 
l ,5i-i7 other jagirs in Badin 
2,038 

originally held by 
1 1 ,200 liim under 2 Sanads 

of Mir Sher Muhammad dated 25th Zilhaj 1256, and 24th Zilkaid 
1257, respectively, a:ad confirmed to him in 

Pana. Mnzri . . .  91 8  B. the usual manner after Salam. These are Kangau Khadi. 126 ,, 
marginally noted. 

4. Captain Pelly registered the 11,280 bigahs in Tando 
Captain Pelly's classi- Bago in the 2nd class, and the 1,044 bigahs 

fi.c-ation. in Badin in the 4th class. 

Ma.jor Ooldsmid's ancJ 
Mr. Ellia'• prop<,lllll. 

5. The proposal submitted to Govern­
ment was that 5,000 Napierian bigahs should 
be permanently granted to the Jagirdar. 



183 6.  Accordingly tho Mir's Sanad (No. 36) while confirming 
Settlement. 

him in the possession of all his jagirs mea­suring 12,824 B. subject to the existing t.erms, accorded 5,000 B. to his heirs permanently, without any option to the immediate heir. 
DeMh. 

7. Mir Muhammad Khan died on the 6th June 1870. 
No. ·½¾ AHMAD KHAN DAR YA KHA.NANI. 

Potritio11, 
This Mir was the head of the house of Allahdad, brother of Mir Rajo. 2. Ile was found at the Conquest in possession of two jagirs 

FAla!e. Napier. 
Captain Pellf 1 

dasdiJication. 

Proposal of Major Gold• 
■mid and Mr. Ellia. 

in Badin measuring 922 and 525 B. respectively, and was confirmed in them by Sir Charles 3. Captnin Pelly registered the 525 B. in the 2nd class and the 922 B. in the 4th class. 4. The proposal submitted to Government and sanctioned by them was that 500 B. should be permanently granted. 5. Accordingly the Mir'sSanad (No.37)accorded this amount to his lineal male heirs with the usual option and on the usual 
Settlement. 

terms, while it confirmed him in the possession of the jagirs held by him. The area of these in the Sanad is entered as 1,00S and 439, respectively, and is taken from the Kardar's statements of areas sent in 1853. In the Taluka Roll of Badin, however, the areas entered are as above stated. 
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No. H N.A.SIB KH4.N KH.A.N.4.NI. 

Nasir Khan, son of Mubarik, was grandson on his mother's 
Poaition. 

side of Ahmad Khan Manikani, brother to Mir Thara, the ruler of Mirpur. Ahmad Khan took service under Mir Nasir Khan of Hyderabad, owing to a difference that arose between him and Mir Sher Muhammad of Mirpur, his grand-nephew. Nasir Khan's position was not such as to enable him to be ranked among the J agirdars of the Four Great Families, but he was of sufficient importance to be classed as a Sirdar. 
2. On the 27th Zulkaid 1251 A. H. Mir Nasir Khan granted to Nasir Khan Khanani 3,000 M. B. (=1,815 

J.:State and cluaification. N. B.) from Otki in Deh Kamaroh in Ropa. Captain Pelly, in consideration of this Ja.girdar's descent, recom­mended that he might be allowed to bold this grant as a 2nd class Jagirdar, though he did not " possess adequate title deeds." He seems afterwards to have changed his opinion, and ranked the J agirdar in the 3rd class. Major Goldsmid and Mr. Ellis, under these circumstances, proposed that the J agirdar should have 500 B. permanently. 3. Accordingly this amount was secured to him by his Sanad 
Seitlement. 

(No. 38) which, however, gave the usual option to his immediate heir to hold all the 1,815 B. on payment of the usual assessment. or surrender of the llsual quantity of land. 
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The Nizamani Prihe. 

Maj or Goldsmid described this tribe in the following 
terms :-

" There is something distinctive about this large and important 
" Baluch tribe. Ruder and more sullen in manners, they are yet better 
" and more generally educated, and more skilled in matters of worldly 
" business than the Marris, Lagharis, Jamalis, or even Talpurs. Nor is this 
" distinctiveness confined to their mode of life. It is visible in the face and 
" features. A squareness of countenance, and flatness of cheek, combined 
" with a nose often Grecian and seldom aquiline, are points of contrast to 
" the ordinary Baluch of other tribes, which can scarcely fail to present 
" themselves to the observer's notice. 

" 1:he Nizamani has played a prominent part in the Jagir question. 
" At one time there was an expreased inclination on their part to avail 
" themselves of the offer of His Excellency the Governor to make over to 
" them their lands in perpetuity, provided they gave up at once the waste and 
" uncul�ivated portions. But this proposal was never carried out, and may 
" be satd to have become absorbed in the recent enquiries. It; was one 
" never thoroughly appreciated by the Jagirdars, who preferred and still 
" prefer large tracts, however waste, to small patches, however fertile. 

" Not many years ago, the tribe professedly petitioned through ten of 
" its me mbers for the removal of certain levies upon their jagirs consequent 
" upon regrants, the use of Government canals, &c. 

" The petition was characteristic of the tribe. While reasonable in some 
" of its clauses, it showed a mere love of complaint in others. The Niza­
" mania have certainly not suffered any disproportionate loss in their treat­
" ment, compared to other Baluchis, but they always - have been, and still 
" are foremost in urging supposed rights and privileges. Neither the chief 
" of the Kurmani or Bhalelani division appears to have affixed his name to 
" the document in question. Yet the first pays a ¼th share on a very large 
" Jagir. 

" The tribe is divided into a number of families, who have in time 
" become again sub-divided, each division or sub-division adopting a titfo of 
" its own." 

2. The families from whom Sirdars were selected were the 
Ismailanis, the Mubarikanis, the Phatuanis, the Aludanis, the 
Lashkarianis, the Karmanis, and the Bhalelanis. All these ex­
cept the last were descended from Nizam, himself a descendant 
of Rind. Rind was the eldest son of Jalal Khan and is the 



186 ancestor, .of the tribe of Rinds, of Marris, J"amalis, and of the greater part of the Ba.Inch tribes. His brothers Lashari and Korai are the ancestors of the Lasharis and the Korais, respective­ly, while to Hot, another of his brothers, is Mcribed the lineage of the Chandias, the Karmatis, and, by some, of the Talpurs them­selves. Hot's sister, Jetto, was the ancestress of the Jatoi tribe. Thus all these tribes trace their parentage from one common source. 3. Of the founders of the six Nizam.ani families from whom Bird.a.rs were selected, Phatu and Lashkari were great-grandsons of Nizam, while Ismail, Mubarik, Aludo and Karam Khan were his great-great-grandsons. Bhalil, the founder of the Bhalelani family, was great-great.grandson of Gagan who was Nizam's l>rother. 4. Lieutenant Leech at page 72 of bis printed report on the Sindian army in 1�39, states that the Nizamanis did not inter­marry with the Talpurs. This was evidently written under some misapprehension, since many of the Khairpur Mirs baa� Niza .. :mani wives. 
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Genealogical Pree of the Nizamani Pribt. 

. I Rmd. 
Hence 
Rinds, 
Marris, 

Hence 
Lasharis, 

Nimmanis, 
and the 

greater part 
o( the 
Ba.luch 
tribes. 

RIND. 

I 
Mir 

Hassan. 

I Pahhrao. 

I 
Notak. 

I 
Sohag. 

I 
Ismail. 

I 
Bahlil. 

I 
Jrluhammad, 

JELLAL KHAN. 

I 
I • 

Korai. 
Hence 
Korais. 

I 
Hot. 

Hence 
Jamalis, 

Chandias, 
Karmattis, 
and some 
say, the 
Talpurs 

also. 

Non. 

Jetto a 
daughter, 

Hence 
Jettois. 

From after Mnbammad Vtdl next 
page. But there appears to be some 
generations misaad from Rind to Muham­
mad. 
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H1Q Mt-
Ismail I I Mubarak, 

Masu. I 
l� r-

Gbulam Bakir I HU88en. Khan. I 

I
I I Gawhar, 

( 16). 

��- �::. I 
(16). Hassan 

Ali. 

Genealogical Tree o.f the 

l 
Shadma.n.. 

Nol 

l. 
I 

. ..LJ ... 
J, i 

Muham- Muham-
mad. mad 

t Khan. 
Ghulam 1 

Ali. h 

Kuham­mad Husaen. 

Bakhsho. 
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Nizamani T1-ibe-Continued. 

M UJLUf'MAD from Rind. See preceding Tree. 

I Murad. 
I Gul Muham­mad. 
I Fair. Muham. mad. 

Jaker Khan. 
Hassan Khan. Allah Bakhah. 

I Lall Khan. 
I . Shah Jtluharn­mad, (17). 

I Nizam. 
I 
I Shah 

Ali. 

I Bussen. '·------Fathu. 
I 

I I Jellal Bahadur. Khan. I I Ghulam 
I I Ali. Ahmad. Shah Abcilila. I Ali. Muaa. I I 
j Sher Ghulam Ahmad Muham- Allah, Khan. mad, (18). (19). 

-I 
-Garbo. 

I Alluda. 
I 

I Ghulam Muham­mad. 
I Al\ah Ahlad Dad. Khan. 
Jir Jtlubam­mad. 

I 

I Khyra Khan. 
I Muham­mad Khan. 
,-Khyser. Ghliam 

Ali. 
I Khuda Ba.khah. Ohim 

Ali. 

I Shahda.n. 
I I 
Beg. 
I 

Azmat. 

I Sumra. 
I 

I I Babadur. lluham-1 mad. Sula. 
All� Ka.im. Bakhsh. 
I Ghulam Muham­mad. 

I Baluch Khan. Lashkar Khan. I Bangul Atlm Khan. 
J I ar. Fateh 

I Khan. Jaffer I Khan. Muha.m­
l mad Bakar Khan. 

Khan. I 
Ahmed 
Khan, 
(SI). 

f 
Gagan. 

I Mehro. 
I Kham­miso. Baklshc,. 
I Bhalil. lbraLm. 

lu Bakhsh, 
(23). 

I 
I Ahmad Khan, (24). 
I 

. Ghulam Muh&lllma.d, 
-, Hyder. 

I Thara. 
I Bussen Khan. Karim Khan. 
I .  Dana Khan. 
i Bakhah. 
Ja1i Muham­mad, 
(U). 
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No. H ..I..LL..1..HIJ..1..D ISM..1..ILI. 

A.llahdad was a great grandson of Ismail. Iamail's son, Masu, had two sons, Ghula.m Bussen and Bakar Khan, who were Kardars under Mir N ur Huhammad. The first, 
Poatioa. however, is said to have been the more regarded. He was a Kardar of Wallasa, while his brother had the adjacent district of Kaddan. Both the brothers lost their livea at the battle of Meani. 2. After the Conquest, Allahdad, son of Ghulam Bussen, and 
Bltate. 

Darya Khan, son of Bakar Khan, were confirm­ed, respectively, in their paternal ja.girs minus ¼th share of the produce. One was Kardar of J udeh, and the other Kardar of U markot, under the British Government. Allahdad held 1,418 B. in the 2nd class and 4.,072 B. inthe 4th class,- and Darya Khan 1�4.17 B. in the , 2nd class and 230 B. in the 4th class. 
l'lo,-1. 

3. Major Goldsmid's proposal was as follows :-•• I am or opinion that sufficient favour will have been 11hown to the " lsmailanis, to accord a grant in perpetuity to one of the number. or the " two, Allabdad is the acknowledged bead or the division ; and I would, " therefore, propose that on his death his 4th class jagir be resumed, and " those in the 2nd class treated thus :-" Amount or bigahs ..... ... ....... . . .... .. .......... . . .  l,4'18-5-0 " Deduct the ¾th now levied on produce............ 3�10-0 
" Balance ...... 1,063-15-0 " or which 700 bigahs free of all assessment and selected by the proposed new " incumbent himaelC, would seem to constitu'8 a fair permanent provision." 4'. This proposal was sa.nctioned and Allah dad's Sanad (No. 39} acoordingly oonftrmed him in the poaseaaion of 5,4.90 bigahs 



191 in�Shahwah in the Guni Taluka held by him at the Conquest, subject to the payment of ¼th produce, and accorded to his heirs 700 biga.hs in perpetuity with­out any option to bis immediate heir. 
No. ti TA.LAH KHAN MUBARIKANI, (DEOEASED) SUOOEEDED B Y  GO WHA R KHAN. 

Talah" Khan was grandson of Mubarik. He was, ac­" cording to Major Goldsmid, " a  confidential employe of Mir 
Position. " Nur Muhammad both in his feudal capacity " as leader of a Sangat, and as comptroller " in: matters of revenue and interior economy. That he was a " person of consequence is evident from the style of t}le very re­" cent Sanad of :Mir Shahdad, in August 1841, reciting that he " and his brotherhood held more than 1,200 bigahs under :Mir " N ur Muhammad. The tenure is derived from an " alienation in jagir by Mir Ghulam Ali to a party of Nizamanis, " among whom Gowhar's father, Talah Khan, was the chief. " Though not a Kardar, he is stated to have been no whit inferior " in status to either Ghulam Hussen or Bakar Kh!Ln, mentioned under the last number." 2. Talah Khan died in October 1844, and on his death his son, Gowhar Khan, was confirmed in hisjagir by 

Death of Talah and re-
grant by sir Charlea Na- His Excellency the Governor on the usual con-
pier tA> Gowhar Khan. dition of paying the Chowth. ( Pide No. 527, dated 3rd March 1846, to the Oollector of Hyderabad). 3. Captain Pelly registered the J agirdar CaJ>tt:in Pelly'• claaii- as possessed in Guni of 1 626 B in the 2nd cation. ' • class, and 121 in the 4sth, and in Badin of 2,312 B. in the 2nd class and 172 bigahs in the 4th. 



192 4. Major Goldsmid wrote about thii 
:M��;

aJ

_Goldsmid'e pro- Jagirdar as follows :-" Gowhar Khan is a man of about 28, who appears to know something " of his own affairs. He does not reside on his jagir, but his position doubt­" less gives him a claim to consideration on the score of future maintenance. " He has been very desirous, for some time, to exchange four of his five " sep:i.rate alienations for one consolidated tract in makan Liski. But " there are no more than 552 B. in thl\t particular allotment, of which " some 38 are in the 4th class, so that it has been found impracticable to " comply with his request. 
" I  am of opinion that it would not be too much to grant 1,500 " bigahs in permanency to this family of which Gowhur · Khan is the undoubted " head." 5. Gowhar Khan's Sanad (No. 40) accordingly confirmed him 

!'{ettlemeut. 
in the possession of 4,231 bigahs specified in the statement, subject to the payment of quarter-produce, and accorded to his heirs 1,500 bigahs unassessed and free in perpetuity, but without any option to his immediate heir, as he himself was a regrantee. 

No. ti LAL KHAN PHA TUANI (JJEOEASEJJJ 
S UOOEEJJEJJ B Y  HIS SON SHAH 

MUHAMMAJJ. 

Lal Khan was a great-grandson bf Phatu. In Captain Rath­horne's Roll of the Hyderabad Collectorate Jagirdars, the follow­ing remark is found against the name of Lal Khan :-" Lal Khan is dead. His son, Shah Muhammad, a child, is looked on as " a  chief by this branch (Phatuani) of the tribe. By the mother's side he is " grandson of Shah Ali Khan," (No. H). 2 .  On the death of Lal Khan in August 1848, all his cul­turable lands were regranted to his son at Lal Kha�'s death and re- an assessment of 2 annas per bigah the waste grant to his son. ' land being resumed. But Shah Muhammad preferred to abandon a portion of his land in lieu of payment of 



193 the cash-rate, and to receive the remainder unassessed. The extent of jagir regranted under this arrangement, was 521 bigahs in Duaba, and 562 bigahs in Dero Mohbat. Ca.ptain Pelly's classi- 3. Captain Pelly registered both these tica.tiou. grants in the 4th class. 4 .  But, according to Major Goldsmid, the 562 bigahs in Mohbat Dero were strictly 2nd class, being Major Goldsmid's pro• derived from a grant by Mir Karam Ali p081W:1. passed in the lifetime of Mir Fateh Ali, and about 20 years be'fore the death of Mir Ghulam Ali. His jagir in Duaba originated in a Sanad of Mir Karam Ali granted after the demise of Mir Ghulam Ali, and was thus strictly in the 3rd class. Major Goldsmid therefore recommended that 500 bigahs he g.ranted permtlY\ently to him. Shah Muhammad was 22 years of age, when Y Jr Goldsmid wrote, and was " nut wholly illiter­" ate. ' '  He r .... v1ded at Matheli at some distance from his jagir. 5. Major Goldsmi<l.'s proposal being sanctioned, the Jagir­Settlement. dar's Sanad (No. 41) confirmed him in bis possessions, and accorded to his heirs 500 bi­
gahs permanently, without of course, any option . 

.:No. H- SHAH A.LI PH.A. TUA.NI, DECEASED, SUOOEEDBD B Y  SHER MUHAMMAD. 
Shah Ali was grandson of Phatu. Under the Talpurs, he 

POt1ition. 
was, according to Major Goldsmid, " a  person " of trust and a confidential employe. His " services were given to Mir Sobdar for _whom his father, Jelal " Khan, is said to have majntained a force of 2,000 men • . . • • • . Under the British Government Shah Ali was " in constant requisition as an Amin, in boundary and other land 
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" disputes. He was appointed Kardar of Ninda Shahr, when that 
" tapa formed one of the Sind Karda.rates. He was called by 
" Captain Rathborne ' a  respectable Baluch and Chief of this 
" '  (viz. , the Phatuani) branch -of Nizamanis.' " 

2. Shah Ali possessed• 1.596 B. in Shahdadpur and 318 
B. in Hala, which were all registered by 

Captain Pelly'a classification 
Captain Pelly in the 2nd class. He also 

possessed 214 B. in Hala, and 2,918 B. in 'l'atta, which were 
Jcgistcred by the same officer in the 3rd class. The 1,9H, B. 
in the 2nd class were traced up to the time of Mir Fateh Ali. 

3. Shah Ali died in March 1857, and the regrant of h i s · 
Rl iah Ali's death and re- jagi rs to his son Sher Muhi.1mmad was graut to Sber Muhammad. made provisionally in the usual manner, 

that is, minus quarter proceeds . 
. 1,. On  revising Captain Pelly's classification, Major Goldsmid 

l:evi�ion of Captain Pclly's found 953 B. i n  Shahdadpur and 1,207 in 
cl a,,�iticntion. Tatta in the 2nd class, and he recommendccl 
that 800 B. might be permanently granted. 

5. Sher Muhammad's Sanad (No. 42) accordingly confirmed 

Settlement. 
to the existing 
perpetuity. 

him in the possession of the jagirs specified 
in columns 9 to 12 of the Statement, subject 

terms, and accorded to his heirs 800 bigahs in 

t!. G UHL.AH ALI PHA TUANI, 

(DECEASED) SUCCEEDED B Y  HIS GRANDSON, 

Gll UL.J.M ULLAH. 

Ghula.m Ali was Phatu'1 grandson. He was a Sirdar of high 
distinction. Lieutenant Leech in his report 
on the Sindian Army printed in 1839, states 
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t.hat this Chief then eerved Mir N ur Muhammad with 4,000 men. 
His rejection of an offer of family alliance on the part of that Mir, 
no doubt occasioned the remark in the same report, .that this 
particular clan does " not intermarry with the Talpurs." 

2. Ghulam Ali died in 1845, and his son, Abdullah, having 

Estate. died at Meani, the jagirs were regranted to 
the grandson, Ghulam Ullah, minus ¾th pro­

duce. ( Vide No. 1203, dated 25tlt May 1846, from lite Secretm·y to 
tlte Sind Government to tlte Collector of Hyderabad) . 

3. ()aptain Pelly registered 5�552 B. in Badin anJ 1,759 
B. in Guni belonging to the J agirdar, in �npt.a.in Pelly's classi!· the 2nd class and O 410 B. in Badin 

eatluu. ' ' ' 

2,983 B. in Guni and 306 B. in l\Ioro also 
Lelonging to him, in the 3rd class. 

Major Ooldtimid's pro- 4. Major Goldsmid's proposa.1 was as follows:­posal. 

" Thejagirs in  the 2nJ class amount to 7,3 1 1  higahs. Of these .:;,5.i �  
" arc in  BaJin District i n  makans Sanoaki, Durmano anll Khirdahi .  If  
" the lower class bigahs be ad<le<l he would be in possession of the wliole of  
" Sandaki and Durmano, the former consisting of 5,537 bigahs, anti the 
" latter of 4,234.-. I should recommend that 2,000 bigahs, in either of the two 
" nu.1kans, be allowed as a.n alienation in perpetui ty, Ghulam Ullah continu­
" ing to eujoy his present hol<ling during l ife. He is � well-looking you11g 
" man about 25 yea.rs of age, residing at Mathcli. 

" There were co-sharers in tho large Badin Jagir, who held com­
" paratively small allotments. Their shares were, however, .  confiscated on 
" accoun.t of frau,l, agreeably to my -recommendation which met with the 
" Commissiouer's concurrence on the 17th January 1855 (No. 161 )." 

Set.tlement. 
Durmanah . . . . . . . . . .  . 
Sa.ndaki . . . . . . . . . .. . .  . .  
Khirdahi . . . . . . . . . .  . . Ji,ili . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 
Muah . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
l4irpur Khiita . . . .  . .  

5 .  Ghulam Ullah's Sanad (No. 43) con-
4,:m firmed him in the possession of the land mar-
5,637 

5,197 ginally noted, subject to the payment of quarter-
2,09s 
1,744 produce, and accorded to his heirs 2,000 bigahs 

396 
in perpetuity without, of course, any option to 

Total . . . . . .  20,106 h . . d' te h , """""""' 1s 1mme ia cir. 
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No. ti A HMAD KHAN AL UDA NI. 

--Ahmad Khan was grandson of Aludo. He is called by 
Poeition. 

Captain Rathborne " a very respectable '' Sirdar, and Chief of this branch of the " Nizamanis, connected by marriage with the late reigning " family" Ahmad Khan was Kardar of Shahdadpur under the British Government. 
Estate. 

('!aMilication and proposal. 

2. He held 2,013 bigahs in Shahdadpur, and 1,321 bigahs in Ghorahari. 3. Major Goldsmid wrote about this Jagirdar as follows :-" Much time and attention bas been given to the revision o f  this '· case. '£he tenures of these Aludanis had been placed by me in the 3rd •· dass in the Shahdadpur Roll. My views had been followed by Captain " Pelly in his Ghorabari classification, though he spoke of provision under " �lir Ghulam Ali. Further reference shows that the alienations originate '· in Sanads by both Mirs Fateh and Ghulam Ali ; but dispossession during " a season by the substitution of pay and produce equivalent to th!lt of a " certain specified makan, will still support my former recommendation. " ( may add that, . . . . . . . the production of the earlier Sanads " at a late period of the enquiry had caused a revision in Captain Stack's " Roll which escaped my notice. Still, taking into consideration the high " respectability of this family and antiquity of their jagirs, and setting aside " the one season of discontinuance on the death of Mir Ghulam Ali, I would " �olicit permission to amend my proposed settlement on behalf of Ahmad " Khan, . . . • . It would seem to me reasonable to allow the retention " hy his lineal male descendants, of ' 1 ,000 bigahs from the whoJe grant of " !l,334 bigahs, Ahmad Khan's share in both Ghorabari and Shahdadpur. " The shares of his co-sharers or 10,645 bigahs would lapse to Government on " the death of incumbents after one regrant . . • . ." 4. Ahmad Khan's English Sanad (No. 44) after reciting the fact that his father was killed at Meani, and he himself was found on enquiry to have b�en possessed of 3,334, bigahs (detailed in columns 9 to 12 of the Statement) and that these were con­tinued to Ahmad Khan by Sir Charles Napier subject to the payment of quarter-produce, confirmed him in this position, and 



197 accorded to his heirs 1,000 bigahs in perpetuity without any option. But the Persian Sanad grants the option, and, as will be seen from the ·rem.a.rks in the Statement, advantage was taken of it. And this Sanad, moreover, declares · that Ahmad Khan was himself found in possession of the land (3,834 bigahs), and does not say a word about any regrant to him on terms of quarter. resumption of produce. 

Mir. 

Death. 
5. Ahmad° Khan died on the 23rd November 1878. 

No. tt .A.H.Jl.A..D KH.A..N L.A..SHK.A..BI.A..NI. 

This Jagirdar's father, Mahmud, held a high position under Mir Nur Muhammad. He himself was a 
Position. Baluchi of distinction in the service of this 2. Mahmud died in the battle of Meani, and Sir Charles Napier continued his jagir of Cha.uri and 

Death of his father at 
n · Deh Oharakandah in Badin measuring 2,624 
m.ean1. ter produce. B. to his son, subject to the payment of quar-3. Captain Pelly registered 888 B. belonging to this Jagir­dar in Badin, in the 2nd class, and 2,286 

Captain Pell..,a claaai-
ficatioo. 

1 · B. belonging to him in the same taluka, in the 3rd class. 4. Major Goldsmid had at first not included this Jagirdar 
Proposal. 

in his list of Sirdars, as it w� supposed that he had committed an act of fraud regarding a share in his jagir, but Mr. Ellis, holding no direct act proved, recommended him for a hereditary provision of 500 B. and this was sanctioned. 



198 5. Accordingly the Jagirdar's Persian Sanad (No. 45) con­
SettltmeDL 

firmed him in his possessions subject to the existing terms, and accorded to his heirs 500 B. permanently without, of course, any option. The English Sana.d agrees with the Persian one, except in not mentioning the terms of the regrant made by Sir Charles Napier. 
No. ff TIT ALI MUHAMHAD KA.BM.A.NI. 

Wall Mubammn.d, son of Ali Bakhsh, was great-grandson of Karam Khan. Ali Bakhsh's father, Darya Khan, was Mukhtyar­kar under Mir Murad Ali. Darya Khan was killed in the battle in which the Talpur Mirs and their followers engaged the levies of Shah Shuja, in the neighbotJ.rhood of Sukkur in 1884, A. D. Ali Bakhsh, after his father's death, held the office of Mukhtyarkar under Mir N ur 'Muhammad. He is the same Chief who is mentioned 
Poaition. in Lieutenant Leech's report on the Sindian armies as having 400 men near W angi east of Ha.la.. He was killed, according to Major Goldsmid, at Mea.ni, • and in January 184.6 his jagirs were regranted finally to his son, Wali Muhammad, by His Excellency the Governor, less ¼th produce. Captain Rathborne registered Wall Muhammad as Chief of the Karmanis. 2. Wali Muhammad held jagirs in Moro, Guni, and Badin of which 1,079 B. in Moro were registered by 

Eatate and itl clamfi- Captain Pelly in the 2nd class. His remaining cation. possessions, oiz., 8,930 B. in Moro, 6,515 B. in Guni, and 3,660 B. in Badin were registered in the 4th class. 
• Acoording t.c, Captain BatJiborDe at Dabba. 



199 8. Major Goldsmid's proposal about this Jagirdar was that, in consideration of his respectability and his 
Major Goldamid'• �- te • h ldin h h •-ld be rd d ex ns1ve o gs, e s ow acco e a permanent estate of 3,000 bigahs. 4. In accordance with this proposal, Wali Muhammad's 

Settlement. 
Sanad (No. 46) confirmed him in the position held by him under Sir Charles.Napier's regra.nt, and secured to his heirs 3,000 :B. in.perpetuity without, of course, any option. 

No. ff ..d..LI B..d..KHSH 
J BH..d..LBL..d..NIS. 

No. tf ..d..HH..d..D KH..d..N 

These Jagirda.rs were grandsons of Bhalil who was descended 
Position. 

from Nizam's brother, Gagan. Their father, Ibrahim Khan, was registered as Chief Qf the Bhalelanis, by Captain Rathborne. 2. Ali Bakhsh held 2,443 B. in the Karachi Collectora.te and 1,502 B. in the Hyderabad Collector-Estate and classification. t • 11 g 9A I!! b. 
a, h Ah d Kh a e, m a , ,., 10a s .  ma an held 2,022 B. in the K.araohi Collectorate and 1,244 B. in the Hyderabad Collectorate in all 3,266 bigahs. The total holdings of both these brothers, 7,211 bigahs, were registered by Captain Pelly in the 2nd class, who proposed that the whole of this amount should be regranted hereafter as 2nd class jagirs to the lineal male heirs in perpetuity, subject, on the first succession, to a resumption of waste land and ¼ th assessment. 
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3. Major Goldsmid submitted the follow­
ing proposal with reference to Captain Pelly's 
classification :-" Total amount Napierian bigahs ••• 7,2ll  "Deduat ¼th ...... ............... 1,803 " Balance...... 5,408 "Deduct i for waste land ...... 2,704. " Balance ...... 2,704, 

" Now, if 1,500 bigahs be set aside for Ali &k.hsh and his heirs, and " 1,000 to Ahmad Khan a.nd his heirs, out of any one ma.kan in the posses­" sion of each, respectively, (inclusive of the jagir of residence), I am of " opinion that the terms of proposed settlement would be strictly carried " out. " But my own suggestion would be to make out the �� grant in " the name of Ali Bakhsh and bis heirs only, entering if n , a proviso " for the maintenance of the brother and his descebdants. This system " seems to me more in accordance with the spirit of the regulations, and is " more indicative of the acknowledgment of a Sirdar in the tribe division. " Should the latter view be approved Ahmad Khan's heir would, on the " demise of his father, receive the latter's share as a life-grant free from " assessment." 
4. By Sa.nad (No. 47) Ali Bakhsh and Ahmad Khan were 

Settlement. 
confirmed in the possession of the jagirs 
specified in columns 9 to 12 of the State­

ment. The Sanad was in the name of Ali Bakhsh and ac_corded to 
hj� heirs !,500 bigahs in perpetuity, with the usual option. The 
foHowing note was annexed to it in Major Gold,!imid's hand­
writing :-" A younger brother of Ali Bakhsh, named Ahmad 
" Khan, is a sharer with the former in his full jagirs, agreeably to 
" the account shown in the schedule, (t,iz., 3,945 bigahs with Ali 
" Bakhsh and 3,266 with Ahmad · Khan). His lineal male heir 
" has been declared to be entitled to the regrant of Ahmad 
" Khan's portion for one generation, on the father's decease • 

. " After the regrant as aforesaid, and lapse of alienation to the 
" State, Ali Ba.khsh or his descendant in possession of the share 
" conferred by the foregoing Sanad, will be liable to maintain to 
" the best of his ability, th� descendants from the third generation 
" inclusive, of Ahmad Khan." 

Deat.b. t. Ali Bakhsh died on the 16th January 1878. 
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The Laghari Sirdara. 

The annexed genealogical tree of this tribe is far less com­
plete than that of �he Nizamanis. " Their descent," writes Major 
Goldsmid, "is from Rind, and the story goes that MirChakar, oneof 
" the earliest and most noted heads of that particular tribe,' gave 
" them the name Vtghar from the soiled and unwashed character 
" of their garments. This can scarcely be from the Baluch word 
" translated by Leech as ' poor,' which throws the accent on the 
" first syllable, but it may have a yet stronger and not more 
" �omplimentary ·signifi-natio:n." Major Goldsmid himself took 
the word to be the Persian � J laghir=weak or thin. 

2. Nawab Ahmad Khan informed Major Goldsmid that the 
original place of residence of the tribe was at Choti near Dera 
Ghazi Khan, and that Jamal and Jellal Khan, two Sirdars of his 
generation, were yet located there. 

2. The Lagharis are sub-divided into many families of 
whom the Bozdars, the Alianis, the Brahmanis, the Isanis, and 
the Kachais were in possession of jagirs. The Alianis and Isanis 
are <!alled after their ancestors Ali and Isan. The Kachais are 
called after their place of residence Kacho, literally the armpit 
of hills/as they lived near the sources of the Gaj, and were frontier 
chiefs. Bozdar would seem to mean a goatherd, but the real 
significance of this tribal name as well of Brahmani is doubtful. 
There is, however, little doubt that the head of the whole Laghari 
tribe is in the Aliani division, althougl). the Bozdars contain 
the most influential Chiefs. Manik Aliani was formerly the 
cliief Sirdar of the whole tribe, and on hfs death, the turban 
of Chieftainship was transferred to his brother, Muhammad Khan, 
whose son, U med Ali, was employed as a. Kardar under the British 
Government but held no jagir. 



202 4. "The Lagharis, "writes Major Goldsmid, "unlike the Marris, " Nizamanis and J ellalanis, have not given their daughters in " marriage to the Talpurs. It is reported that some years before " the Conquest, Mir Wall Muhammad, brother of Mir Sher " Muhammad Khanani Talpur, Jagirdar of Shal, obt.ained by " agreement the hand of a daughter of this · tribe, and that the " circumstance occasioned extraordinary excitement. The quarrel " that ensued was of a serious and determined nature, and only " appeased at cost, I am assured, of the affianced lady's life." 
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No. ff- NA W AB AHMAD KHAN tcalad WA.LI 

MUH.d..MJU..D BOZD.d..B. 

1. Burnes in his • Visit to the Court of Sind,' after stat. 
Poaition of Wali Jrtuham- ing that Wall Muhammad and Sa.yad 

mad. Ismail Shah were the chief Ministers of the Amirs, and that they both received high salaries from Govern­ment and had palanquins and bearers maintained for them, " an " honor which they shared unrivalled by any other subject in the " country", proceeds to delineate the character and position of the former as follows :-
" The Nawab, Wali Muhammad Khan Laghari, is by the Amirs them­

" selves termed the Vazir of Sind, and, next to the principal members of the 
" Talpur Family, must be considered the most important personage under 
" their Government. Being himself the head of a powerful Bal.uch tribe 
" which contributed in the field to the elevation of the present rulers, be has 
" ever since been their faithful and able servant, and seems to enjoy not 
" only the entire confidence of his masters but what is rare indeed in a 
" despotic Government, the esteem and respect of the people. lie is the 
" adviser of the Amirs in the management of the internal affairs of the 
'' State ; and by his adroitness and mild demeanour, has it often in his power 
" and seldom loses an opportunity to avert or mitigate the effect of those 
'' shocks of tyranny and oppression which emanate from their Durbar. 

" A  sincere regard for the interest of bis masterR has taught thia old 
" and respectable individual the necessity of maintaining a friendly inter­
" cou rse with the British Government . , , . . . • . • . Wali 
'' Muhammad Khan mrlst have attained the age of �eventy, and i t  is to be 
•· feared, therefore, that death ma_y soon deprive the .Ami.rs of their best 
'' serva.nt, .a.nd the people of Sind of teeir kindest· protector. His son, Ahmad 
" Khan; a dissipated young man about thirty: yeara of age, possesses none of 
�e v�ues- of his parent. The Nawab is a poet of no mean excellence ; 
" and although4,is verses ffl'e filled with adulation, it woulJ be unfair to 
'' detract from his merits on this account, or to condemn him for following 
" the example of ev�ry Persian writer. He has composed also several large 
'' folios on the subject of Medicine, gleaned chiefly from the dreams and 
" theories of the ancients, but which, being su pposed original, have gained 
" for him the character of a sage in Sind. Amongst his works I must not 
" omit to mention a small book on the cure of diseases, written in the 
'' name of Mir Murad Ali Khan, the merit of which is claimed by that 
" prince." 
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2. Then after describing Sayad Ismail Shah, he thus con­
trasts the two :-" They are enemies or ea.ch other's fame as men or science, and " especially as physicians. Both are authors, and exceedingly vain of their " own productions, and without deciding here on their respective merits, on " which I always evaded giving an opinion to themselves, I may observe " that the Amirs have shown a correct discrimination in awarding to Ismail " Shah the emolument, and to the Nawab, the reputation. In their moral " qualities they can bear no comparison. The Amiro repose implicit con­" fidence in Wali Muhammad Khan, but doubt, with justice, the integrity of " his rival. In the letter of advice Mir Murad Ali llad prepared for his " children, . . . . . . . . he urged them to follow implicitly the " couusel of Wali Muhammad, but cautioned them to beware of Mir Ismail ' " Shah. The former is upright and charitable, the latter proud and penu­" rious ; the one esteemed, the other feared ; the Sa.yad owing his elavation . " and importance chiefly to birth and popular prejudice, and the Khan to a. " long life qf fidelity and virtue which, it is some credit to Sind to say, have " met their reward." 

3. · It was Wall Muhammad who surprisei the city of 
Shikarpur in 1823, A. D. and who built the walls of Naushahro 
Abro. He died in 1832, " full of  years and honor, having retain­
" ed the confidence of his masters, and the love of the people to 
" the  last."* The whole annual revenue of the possessions trans. 
mitted to his heir, did not, according to Burnes, exceed £ 3,000 
sterling. 

4. lie laft foul' sons, Ahmad Khan, Muhammad Khan, 
.Allahdad Khan and Ghulam Haidar Khan. Position of Ahmad Khan. Ahmad Khan, as stated by Burnes, was given 

to di&:Jipation. He caused his father many a pang, :ind at one time 
was himself forced to stay a�ay from Sind for som� years, in order 
to escape the vengeance of Bahadur Khan Kokur, " the bravest 
" of' the Baluchis," one of whose dancing girls he had seduced.. 
" The unfortunate female," says Burnes, " was of course instant .• 
" ly put to death without remorse, while her paramour betook 
" himself to L'.1.hore, but nothing could soothe the wounded pride, 
'' and insulted honor of the indignant Kokur, except the humi !i­
" tory spectacle of the ladies of Ahm'l.d Kh'.l.n, and his rclnth·c 

* Burnes. 



208 " Wali Muhammad Khan's families, proceeding in a body to his " house to implore pardon for the offender, and to offer them­" selves as an atonement for his crime. After this public ex­" posure, than which nothing could be more degrading in a " Muhammadan country, Bahadur Khan extended tha hand of " forgiveness, but retained for his harem one of Ahmad Khan's " sisters, who bas never since been heard of." 5. Ahmad -Khan, however, tumed out a brave soldier. It was he who led the attack on the Residency. He was in the thickest of the battle at Meani, and after the action was lost, he joined. }fir Sher Muhammad, and his tribe and the Nizamanis made a very good stand at Dabba. He followed the fortunes of Mir Sher 'Muhammad, and tried to stir up the mountain Baluch tribes and the Afghans of Kandahar to war on Bind. It was only when Mir Sher Muhammad on asking leave to reside with Mir Ali Murad was called upon to " surrender," and thereupon went to the Pun­jab, " that Ahmad Khan seeing all hope gone, yielded, pleading " truly that he had only obeyed the prince's orders in his previous " career. "t 6. In his " Conquest of Sind," Sir William Napier thus relates the treatment accorded to this Chief by Sir Charles -:Kapier : 
" There was still another great Chief to be dealt with. This was Ahmad 

" Khan, the head of the LS\gharis, whose dwellings are on the right bank of 
" the Indus. They had fought well and suffered severely in the battles, but 
" it was at their head that Ahmad Khan attacked the Residency. This 
" offence was grave, yet as he had acted under the orders of his sovereigns, 
" and had bravely exposed his own person while those sovereigns stood aloof 
.. from danger, the General was inclined to favor him. In fine, be was a gallant 
" barbarian who did not fear to fight or to trust his conqueror, and the latt�r 
" though he could not promise him pardon, would not hurt him or lead him 
" into danger, but thus stated his true position, leaving the Chief himself to 
'' determine bis own course :-

" ' I  honor a brave soldier, but I have no authority to forgive you. 
" ' You attacked the residence of the British Envoy Outram : your princes 
" ' themselves accuse you. The Oovemor-Oeneral is in wrath at this insult 

t Sir William Napier's ' Conquest of Bind.' 
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" ' offered to the British GoTernment, and has ordered me to make the Amir " '  Shahdad and yourself prisoners. I must therefore appeal to the Governor­•• ' General, and I will plead your cause with him. I hope to gain your " ' pardon ; but I will not pledge myself to anything which I may not be " ' able to perform. If you come and reside here, I will receive you until his " ' Lordship's pleasure be known ; and if be refuses pardon, I will give you " '-48 hours to depart unmolested.' " The Laghari chiefs pardon was obtain­" ed and he became a friend." 7. The Sanad of Ahmad Khan (No. 108, dated ltth July 

1.hmad Khan's est.ate. 
1862),afterthe usual preamble, recites what was done by Sir Charles Na pier and later authorities in connection with his jagir, as follows :-" Now you, " Ahmad Khan Laghari, having been found on enquiry to have " been possessed at the Conquest of jagir lands in this province for " some years unclaimed, were, on your having made Salam in 1847, " granted by His Excellency, the late Governor, SirCharles Napier, " from the whole of your possessions an area of 2,000 bigahs " according to the measurement prevailing in the time of the Mirs, " and equivalent to 2,205 bigahs according to the N apierian stand­" ard less one-fourth, situated in :Makan Duaba Potah, Taluka Lar­" kana, Zilla Shikarpur. In lieu of the resumption of the one-fourth " share above noted, Government fixed on the whole grant an '' assessment of 2 annas on each biga.h amounting to Rs. 250 per " annum. But in 1852 by the decision of the Commissioner tho " annual · (assessment) of Rs. 250 was remitted,, and the whole " jagir remained in your possession unassessed." 8. Captain Pelly registered the 2,205 bigahs held by the Nawab in the 2nd class, and recommended 

Captain Pelly'a clasaifica• accordingly that they be continued heredi­tion . tarily, subject to a resumption of waste land upon demise of the present incumbent. This proposal met with the Commissioner's sanction. 9. Major Goldsmid in 1858 wrote about the Na.wab's case as follows :- " As regards the Nawab Ahmad M,1,jor Ooldsmid's propoaal. " Khan Laghari now drawing a pension of " Rs.  100 monthly from Government, I submit that as it is con-



!310 " sidered the pension will lapse on his demise his full jagir be con­" sidered a hereditary alienation." This proposal was sanctioned. 10. This part of the history of the jagir is not recited in the Sanad, which however relates what 
Modification of settlement. took place after the sanction of Major Gold-smid's settlement :-

" Aftrrwa.rJs with the desire of obtaining the ja.gir of ?4irzanpur, 
" situate 1 i n  Taluka. Sakrand, Zilla Hyderabad, whichja.gir you had possesseJ 
" during the Government of the Mirs, and in which you now reside in lieu 
" of the above named jagir of Duaba. Potah, you petitioned Government : 
·' thereupon by pL•rmission of the Government of India communicated to t he 
" Government of Bombay in tlwir letter No. 4004 of the 20th July 1861, the 
" exchange was sanctioned, and the jagir of Mirzanpur with the forest of the 
•· same uaine, containing by estimate 25,000 Napierian bigah� was granted 
" to you." The Sannd confirms him in this possession, and accords to his heirs 15,000 bigahs out of it in perpetuity. I t  further con. ta.ins the following clause :-

" In consideration of your advanced age, and as a special case, an 
" arrang•-�meht has been sanctionad by which the whole of the land of Mirzan­
" pur you now hold shall rema.in undiminished during your l i fe and that of 
" your eldest son, W ali Muhammad, but after the death of your eldest son 
" l .j ,000 biga.hs as before mentioned will be continued to his lineal male heir, 
" and the rema1 nder will be resumed by Government, provided, it, be not the 
" wish of tbe heir to purchllSe the whole or part of such resumable land in 
" accordance with the rules laid down by the Government of India regardin!? 
" the sale of waste land, at such rate as the Collector of Hyderabad shall 
" consider equitable. The hereditary allotment may be chosen by yourself, 
" and marked off in communication with the Government Settlement Officer." Thus this Sanad exempted the first heir of the incum­bent from the payment of chowth, and gave a right of purchase to he second heir. All other clauses were the same as those of other Sanads. There is some ambiguity arjsing from the grant ltt'1irst of 15,000 bigahs in perpetuity to Ahmad Khan's heirs and then to his son, Wall !Muhammad's heirs. But if Ahmad Khan had no other son besides Wali Muhammad, the wording of the tSanad could hardly have been expected to cause any difficulty. 

Death. 11. Ahmad Khan died on the 21st February 1870. 
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No. ff NA. 1P AB MUHAMMAD KHAN tcalad NA. WAB 
WA.LI MUHAMMAD KHAN BOZDAR. 

Position. This J agirdar was, like the last, a son of the -celebrated Wali Muhammad. 2 .  Like his brother he held 2,205 bigahs in Duaba Poto 
Estat.e. 

in the Larkana Taluka. He also held 1,537 bigahs in Wariahki in the Guni Taluka. Both thesa possessions remained unclaimed until 1846, when they were granted to the Jagirdar by Sir Charles Napier, subject to the payment of }rd of the produce (a condition afterwards modified by the substitution of Chowth). This penalty was imposed owing to failure of Chief to make Salam. 
Captain Pelly's cl888ifi• cation. the 4th class. 3. Captain Pelly classed the 2,205 bigahs in the 2nd class, and the 1,537 bigahs in 
Major Goldamid'e pro- 4. Major Goldsmid proposed a permanent 

posaI. provision to the extent of 1,500 bigahs. 
5. The Jagirdar's Sanad (No. 48), accordingly, while confirming 

Settlement. 
him in his possessions subject to tlie subsisting liability, accorded to his heirs this amount of bigahs with the usual option. " In your case" the Sanad conti­nued, " the resumption would be a double one, the lands when " given over to yo� by Government being subjected to a certain " payment of rent"-i. e. if the heir elected to retain the whole Jagir area he would have to pay double the amount of Chowth 

now paid. 
No. ll ALLAHDA.D KHAN BOZDA R. 

This J agirdar was also W ali Muhammad's third son. 



212 2. He held 1,544 bigahs in the Larkana Taluka, and 512 
Estate. 

bigahs in the Mehar Taluka. His jagir also remained unclaimed, until 1846 when Sir Charles Napier granted it t0 him subject to the payment of ½rd produce in a lump sum (afterwards modified into ¼th produce) owing to his failure to make Salam. 
Captain Pelly's cla88ifi- 8. Captain Pelly classified both the hold-cation. ings of the N awab in the 2nd class. 4. Major Goldsmid proposed i,500 bigahs as a fair here­ditary provision in his case. Nawab Allah­Major Gold.amid'• pro- dad's Sanad (No 90 dated 24th May 1861 ) pusal. • ' , accordingly, while confirming him in his po-sition for his life, accorded to his heirs 1,500 bigahs in perpetuity with the usual option. In his case also the Sanad stat�d the re­sumption would be a double one in case the option was availed of. 

Death. 5. The Jagirdar died on the 29th No-vember 1882. 
No. t! GHULAH HAIJJAR BOZJJAR. 

This Jagirdar was Nawab Wali Muhammad's fourth son. 2. He held 2,205 bigahs in the Larkan.a Taluka. His jagir also Estate claasification and remained unclaimed until 1846, when it was 
proposed settlement. granted to him by Sir Charles Napier subject �the payment of ½rd of the produce, afterwards modified into ¼th produce. The Jagirdar's holding was registered in the 2nd class by Captain Pelly, and Major Goldsmid recommended that 1,000 bigahs out of it should be granted permanently. 8. His Sanad (No. 49) , dated 28th March 1861, accordingly 

'Settlement. provided for a permanent grant of this amount with the usual option, while it confirmed Ghulam Haidar 



213 in his existing possessions under the existing terms. In his case also, the resumption was to be a double one, if the option was availed of. 
Dee;th. 4. He died on the 28th June 1866. 

No. H HAID.AR ALI KHAN. 

This Jagirdar was, according to Major Goldsmid, " a  near " relative of the above four Sirdars, as well as connection by " marriage, being brother-in-law 'to the old N awab Wali Muham­" mad." Burnes at page 27 of his book mentions a " Haidar " Khan, Laghari, the Governor of the Province of Jati, and nephew " of the principal Vazir." Probably he meant Haidar Ali Khan. 2. Captain Pelly in his Taluka Roll of Larkana Jagirs re-
Estate and classification. commended that, " Haidar Ali be treated " in like manner with his relatives, sons of Nawab Wali }Iu. 
Deh Hasanwah 1,103 B. " hammad, and that his jagir (in Larkana) " be confirmed to his lineal heirs male in perpetuity, subject to a " resumption of waste land upon demise of present incumbent." This proposal was approved by the Commissioner. Haidar Ali Khan had also a jagir of 366 bigahs in Makan Charah in Mehar which was· also in the 2nd class. Like his relatives, it had not been until 1846 that Haidar Ali had claimed his jagirs, and Sir Charles Napier had granted them to him under the same condi­tions. 3. Major Goldsmid's proposal regarding him was as fol. 

:Major Goldsmi.Fs proposal. lows :-" On the demise of Ha.idar Khan " (Haidar Ali K.han) I would allow his heir to receive 800 bigahs " as a free hereditary grant, resuming 803 on account of¼ th share " and the 866 bigabs in .Mehar on account of waste land." 
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4. His Sanad (No. 50) accordingly, while it confirmed him 
in his existing position, secured 800 bigahs to his heirs with the 
usual option, and contained the addition made in the case of Mu­
hammad Khan, Allah Dad Khan and Ghulam Haidar Khan. 

Death. 5. Haidar Ali Khan died on the 15th December 
1864. 

No. ff GHULAM SHAH BOZDAR. 

Ghulam Shah's father was Nawab Wali Muhammad's brother, 

Position. 
and was Mukbtyarkar to Mirs Karam Ali and 
Murad Ali, and Governor of Parkar. ( JTide 

also Burnes, page 104.) Ghulam Shah was the envoy sent by Mir 
Shahdad to meet Sir Charles Napier at Sukkur in 1842 A. D. 
He became thus known to His Excellency, and after the Con­
quest he entered the British service in which he remained for 
8 years. Ile was Kai-dar of Jehuki, Katri, Wallasa, Agri and 
Moro, successively. Ghu]am Shah's son was married to Nawab 
Ahmad Khan Laghari's daughter. 

&tate. 2. Ghulam Shah held the fo1lowing 
Jagirs :-

B. 

Ripp in Badin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,452 
Jiat in ,, . . .  . .  . .  . . . . .  . .  . 4,640 
Thall in U markot . . .  . . .  . . .  915 

3. Capt.a.in Pelly placed Ripp in the 2nd class, Thali in 
captain Pelly'• clauifi.ca- the 3rd class, and Jiat in the 4th class, but 

tion. he recorded that Ghulam. Shah's case would 
be considered by him in framing his list of Sirdars. Ghulam 

Appeal agaimt the c:Jam. Shah, however, appealed agaitist the classifi-
fication. cation of Jiat. He had served Mir Nasir 



215 Khan, Mir Hussen Ali and Mir Shahdad, and had changed his possession.I with every change of service. His father was a grantee of land from Mir Karam Ali, and had settled a portion of it upon him, and Major Goldsmid therefore found that 1,035 B. in Jiat were in the 3rd class and the rest in the 4th class. 4. Major Goldsmid under these circumstances proposed 
ll•jor Goldamid'• propoeal. " to treat the 3rd and 4th class grants as " those of ordinary J agirdars • . • • . • and to set aside " 1,800 B. from the 2,452 for a hereditary grant." 5. Ghulam Shah's Sanad (No. 5 1) accordingly confirmed 

Sett.lement.. him in the possession of 8,007 B. in Badin and Umarkot, and accorded 1,800 B. to his heirs with the usual option. 6. Ghulam Shah died on the 19th April 1861. He was, 
Death. according to Captain Rathborne, " a  quiet, " gentlemanly, sensible man," and bore " a most excellent 

cc character among all." 
No. ff- KHAN HUHA.HHA.D BOZDA.B .A.ND 

HIS SON GHUL.A.H H.A.ST.A.FA.. 

POii.non. 
Khan Muhammad was the eldest son or Ghulam Ullah, the brother of Nawab Wall Muhammad. 2. He and his son, Ghulam Mastafa, were possessed �f 2,942 N. B. in Matari, 756 N. B. in U markot, and 605 N. B. in Larkana. They were confirmed in these possessions at the Conquest. 8. Khan Muhammad died in 1845, an� his jagirs were 

o.th of Khan Kuham· regranted to Ghulam Mastafa on an assess-
mad ud regnm,. ment of two annas a bigah for a certain portion, and l6VY of ¼th produce on the remainder. 
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Captain Pelly'a claaaitica• tion. 4. Captain Pelly registered the Matari jagir in the 3rd class, and the remaining two in the 4th class. 5. It appears from Mr. Ellis's No. 22, dated 20th Sep­tember 1858, to the address of the Commis­sioner that for reasons orally discussed Proposal. between them, it was resolved to recommend this Jagirdar for a permanent provision to the extent of 500 bigabs. The Sirdar was a resident Jagirdar and a man of position. 6. This recommendation was sanctioned, and his Sanad (No. Settlement. 52) accorded to his heirs this amount without any option, while confirming him in his possessions subject to the existing liability. 
No. ff G HULAM MUHAMMAD BOZJJAR. 

Ghulam Muhammad's father, Ali Muhammad, was the elder Position. brother of Nawab Wali Muhammad, and Ghu­lam Ullah. Ghulam Muhammad himself was a leader of repute, and joined Mir Jan Muhammad, Mir Khan Muhammad, and Yakhtiar Khan Laghari in counselling resist­ance to the English. 2. He held 6,660 B. in Tajpur in Matari which were . continued to him by Sir Cg.arles Napier Eait'o� and claaaitica- and registered by Captain Pelly in the 3rd class. He, however, produced before Major Goldsmid, two Sanads (professedly original), of Mir Ghulam Ali and Murad Ali, each of which bore the large seal and the small seal generally used in sealing Sanads. The first was dated 19th August 1808, and gave Ali Muhammad Laghari 2,958 llirs' 



bigahs in Tajpur in lieu of Seri ; the second was dated 19th No .. 
vember 1812, and gave the same person 1,100 }firs' higahs in 
addition to the original Jagir in 'fajpur. None of them, how­
ever,. coulcl be traced among the J agir office records or in the 
transcript volumes of d�eds of the elder Mirs. 'fheir non-pro­
duction before Captain Pelly threw moreover " a doubt on the 
" matter which even the position and respectability of the Ja­
" girdar" did not, Major Goldsmid thought, warrant him in setting 
aside that officer's classification, even if he had been authorized 
to disturb it. 

3.  In the geneological tree as  at  first framecl by Major 
Goldsmid, Ghulam Shah and not Ghulam Mu-

Proposal. 
ham mad had been shown as the only son of 

Ali Muhammad. Ile, however, discovered that this was a mis­
take, and therefore recommended " the hereditary assignment of 
" 800 bigahs on the ground of Ghulam Muhammad's position." 
( Vide M1·. Ellis's No. 22 of 1858, to tlie Commissioner) . This re­
commendation was supported by Mr. Ellis, and as it was approvecl 
by the Commissioner, it was included in the list submitted to 
Government, and finally sanctioned. 

Settlement. 
4. The Jagirdar's Sanad (No. 53) accordingly 
accorded this amount to his heirs with the 

usual option, while it confirmed him in his possession. 

5. He died on the 2nd December 1862, He was described by 

Death. 
Captain Rathborne in 1847 as " of rude, bois­
" terous manners but of a good disposition, IUOrc 

" liberal than his means admitted of, and much liked, but 
" rather involved." 
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No. i! B UJ>HO A.LIA.NI. 

According to Captain Rathbome, the Jagirdar in question 
POBition. " tribe in Sind." was, though in redu�ed circumstances, " by birth, at the head of all the Laghari 

" I have known him for some yea.rs," wrote Major Goldsmid, "  and have 
" reason to believe .the Collector's statement is quite the opinion among 
" Balnchis to the present day. Were the whole t ribe called out, Budho' 
" Laghari would be the Sirdar-in-Chief, without let from the more aristo­
" cmtic Bozdars." 

Estate. the Conquest. 2. He held 3,566 N apierian bigahs in Tando Bago, and was confirmed in them at 3. On these, however, Ckowtk was imposed owing to an alteration having been made in a 8anad in Imposition or  Chowth on 
it .  owing to a1teratiou in a his possession. The circumstance was 
l:lanad. brought to His Excellency the Governot·'s notice by the Collector of Hyderabad, and the jagirs were retained in Goverement hands pending orders. At 

No. 1215 or the 4th llfay , • 
1SH, from the Secretary to length they were released upon forfeiture of 
(h,ve1 nrnent. • t th produce, though no satisfactory account of the a.Iteration f'Ver seems to have been obtained. 4. Captain Pelly registered the jagir in the 2nd class. 

Proposal. 
5.  :Major Goldsmid's proposal was ns follows :-

" Deducting the ¼th we should have-
35,661-8,915=26,7 46. 

" But the Jagirdar complains that his jagir never yields him Rupees 500 
" annually, and has already petitioned for 12,000 biga.hs in any other spot, 
" in lieu of the present whole jagir. 

" As a special case, I would recommend that 3,000 bigahs be made 
" the hereditary amount, if taken elsewhere ; or 5,000 if from the Bago• 
" ka.-Tando alienation, The selection to be made and carried out by 



219 " Budho himself, otherwise the hereditary regrant to be limited to 3,000 " bigahs, to take eff13ct in the second generation after his demise. The first " succession would receive the jagir on the same terms as now ·accorded to " present incumbents." 
6. Budho Khan's Sanad (No. 54) confirmed him in hi! 

Settlement. 
possessions subject to the payment of ¼th 
produce, and accorded to his heirs 5,000 

l)igahs in perpetuity without specifying whence they were to be 
taken, but with the usual option. 

Death. 
7.  Budho Khan died on the 27th of 

l\Iarch 1883. 

No. lt H USSEN KHA N BRAHMA.NI. 

Captain 

Position. 

Rathborne r�gistered this Jagirdar as Chief o f  
the Brahmanis, and Major Goldsmid describ­
ed him as follows :- " A fine, old, well-bred 

" Baluch Sirdar, of prepossessing exterior, far advanced in years. 
" Resides at his own jagir on the banks of the Guni near Muham­
" mad Khan's Tanda." 

2. He held 2,928 B. in G uni, and 867 B. 
Etitateand cJasgification. in Mirpur Batoro. 975 B.  out of the Guni 

Jagir were registered by Captain Pelly in the 2nd class, and the 
remainder in Guni as wcJl as the Mirpur Batoro Jagir, in the 
3rd class. 

Proposal-
3. " It is, in my opinion", (wrote- Major 

Goldsmid) " very desirable that this descrip-
" tion of resident Jagirdar should be maintained in comparative 
" ease, if not affluence, " and he, therefore, recommended a per­
manent grant to his heirs of 100 B. 

4. His Sanad (No. 55) accordingly while it confirmed him 

Settlement. 

option. 

in his possessions (3,795 bigahs) , accorded 
1,000 bigahs to his heirs with the usual 

».tb. ..5. He died on the 21st November 1862. 
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No. ii IKHTIA.B KHAN.ISA.NI, GRAND­

SON OF IS.J.N. 

This J agirdar held, according to Lieutenant Leech's report, 
Position. 

800 men at. Mir Sobdar's disposal in Lakhat. He occupied a high position under this Mir, and is styled " an influential Laghari Chief" by . Captain Rath­borne. " On the death of Mir Murad Ali," writes Major Gold­smid, " Ikhtiar Khan went from one young Mir to anothel" " obtaining golden swords and honours from each. He eventu. " ally became a partisan of Mir Sobdar." 2. He possessed 10,231 B. in Shabdadpur, &!ta� and cl888i6• 1 373 B in Hala and 17 568 B in Mehar in cat1on. ' • , , • , all 29,172. All these were registered in the 2nd class. 3. Major Gol<lsmid valued the Shahdadpur alienation at Rs. 866, the Hala one at Rs. 176, and the Me:-
PropOBal. har one at Rs. 2,585, on a 5 years' average of income. The Mehar jagir had yielded a considerable produce to Ikhtiar Khan for one or two seasons, and Major Goldsmid doubted whether setting aside actual pay, Ikhtiar Khan was not better off in a pecuniary point of view at such times than he was under the rule of the Mirs. His family resi�ed at Sak­rand and not upon any one of the jagirs, though Ikhtiar's eldest son, Ghulam Shah, appeared to be a man of business and to take some interest in his father's lands. Major Goldsmid, under all these circumstances, recommended a permanent pro .. Yision of 5,000 B. Settlement. 4. The Jagirdar's Sanad (No. 56) accord .. ingly accorded this amount to his heir with the usual option, while it confirmed him in his possessions. 
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No. ii G UL M UHA.MM.AD KA. OH.A.I (DEOEA.SEDJ 

S UOOEEDED B Y  SHAHDA D. 

Gul Muhammad was the Sirdar of the Lagharis of Kacha. 
P'oaitioo. His village was a well-known resort n.ear 

the sources of the Gaj. His family were the old defenders of the 
western approaches to Sind on the Mallar and Johi boundaries, and 
j ust a few months before the Conquest, his jagirs were, according 
to Captain Pelly, increased by the Mirs to 20,000 M. B .  

2 .  Gul Muhamma.d possessed i n  all 13,498 B. on the bank 
Ee�te a.od clasai4catioo. of the Nara in Ta]uka Baghban, of which 

4,869-13 B. were placed_in the 3rd class, and the rest (excepting 
a garden of 20 B. which was placad in the 2nd class of jagirs) in 
the 4th class. 

3. On Gui Muhammad's death in January 1857, his 4th 
Death of Oul Huhamm.d class jagirs lapsed to Gllvernment, and _his 

and regraot. 3rd class possessions were regranted to his 
son Sha.hdad, " less ¼th resumption." Under this regrant Shahdad 
held 2,673 B. which were according to the rules tenable only for 
life. 

Proposal. 

this dase :-
4. M ljor G.:>ldimid wrote as follows abJut 

" The present incumbent is a. mere boy, illiterate, and quite unfit 
" from tender years to attend to his own affairs. His cousin and a co-sharer 
" in the jagir, Lal Bakhsh,• act·.ompanied him to my tent, and was the spokes­
" man on his behalf . . . . Should the Commissioner see fit to �ord 
" a small hereditary grant to the Sirdar or the Kacha Laghe.ris . . . . . 
" it would be an act or grace." 

5. · It appears from Mr. Ellis's No. 22 of 1858, that the 
Commissioner was willing to recommand the J agirdar for a 

• Bia oaae waa eepuatel7 deal, with b7 Captain Pell7. 
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permanent grant of 1,000 B., and accordingly, this amount was 
shown in the statement submitted to Government and sanctioned 
by them. 

6. The J agirdar's Sanad (No. 81, dated 4th May 1861), con• 
Sett.lement. firmed him in his possession of 2,673 B. and 

accorded to his heirs 1 ,000 B. in perpetuity without, of course, 
any option. 

The Marri Tribe. 

There was no occasion to sub.divide this large and aristocra. 
tic tribe for jagir purposes. The one family known as Haj izai 
comprised all the names included in the List of Sirdars. 

2. The Marris became much connected by marriage with 
the reigning Talpurs, and this alliance extending to both 
Upper and Lower Sind, naturally raised their influence and 
authority among the people of the country. They were formerly 
among the best and foremost soldiers of the State, and greatly 
distinguished themselves in the struggle with Shah Shuja in 
1833, and the previous feud between Mir Ghulam Ali and Mir 
Thara. 

3 .  Haji Khan, the founder of the Ilajizai house, was 
fourteenth in descent from Rind, and had two wives, one belonging 
to th.,.e Badanis and the other to the Loh a ran is. He had four 
sons by each wife. The Sirdars, Nos. 37-41 (both inclusive), are 
descended from Masti and Jaffar, the eldest and the second son 
of Haji by his Badani wife, and the Sirdars, Nos. 42-44 (both 
inclusive), from his second and fourth son by his Loharani wife. 
His eldest son's progeny was not sufficiently important, and his 
third son died without issue. 







sJah Dad. 
. 1  P1aro. 
I Nasll'. 
I 

I I Ohulam Muham-Sidik. mad 
I Sidik. Ali I Murad. Imam Bakhsh. 

P. 1  ,roz Khan. 
Mohbat Khan. I . 1  P1roz. Bilawal 

Shadman. 

I Khan Muham­mad. 
sJah 
Beg. 

siu!ii Beg. 
I 

Khan. 
I 

Pir Sher Muham- Muham-mad. mad. 

N. 1  mdo, 42. 
' Ohulam Hydar, 43. 

225 

HAn. By hi, Loharani Wife (fnd.) 
I 

Daulat. I Shukul. Sah�. 

I 
• .J_, Khan. 

I Rohal. 
I Shadi. 

Allah Dad. 
I 

I Khero. 
Shubi. 

I Chapar Khan. 
Jhal Khan. 

I I Ahmad Umed Khan. Ali. 
t!h ,--!1---Ghulam Ohulam Sher Ali. HU8118n, Muham-

BaiLur Khan. 
I 

, I I hhulam Bahadnr Murtr.a, Khan. 
44. 

mad. 

ML 
.AH. 

Mir Muham­mad. 
I Murad Ali. I 11L. A1 Jabi 

:Bakhah. l3akhab. mad Husao. 



226 

[ No. ft HU[lBAT KHAN H..J.JIZAI (DECEASED) 
SUOOBEDBD BY WA.DERO MIR 

MUHAMMAD KH.4.ll 

:Muhbat Khan was great-grandson of Masti Khan, the �ldest 

Position. 
son of Haji Khan, by his Badani wife. 
Masti Khan's Tando is still a flourishing 

village near the old capital of the Kha.irpur house. It was to 
this house that Muhbat Khan, the father of Wadero Mir Muham­
mad Khan, was attached. He was a military chief and confiden­
tial adviser of Mir Sohrab, on whose death he continued, with 
little interruption, in the service of Mir Sohrab's son and successor, 
:M:ir Rustarn. Mir Rustam's third son, Ali Mardan, married his 
daugµter, and this family alliance augmented his importance. 

2. Muhbat Khan had no Sanads from Mir Rustam, but 

Eat.ate. 
this fact was attributed by Major Goldsmid 
to the position of the Marri Chief being 

above that of any Jagirdar, �nd to the want of system and organ­
ization in the Upper Sind Government records. Mir Ali 
Mardan, Muhbat Khan's son-in-law, conferred upon him large 
jagirs in Naushabro and Kandiaro for which Sanads were forth­
coming. But the territory of which these Pargannas formed 
a part camA into the hands of Mir A li Murad after the flight of 
Mir Rustam. The battle of Meani . and the British Conquest 
followed, and Muhbat Khan with other Chiefs paid their 
allegiance to the new Rais. It was not, however, until 1849 that 
the latter alienated in his favour thejagirs of Mulhan and Pannah 
YaaPub both in the Naushahro, District and found afterwards to 
be 2,310 B. and 583 B. in extent l'espectively, in all 2,893 .8. 

3. Of these two allotments Muhbat Khan was found in 
. . possession, on the resumption of a part of Mir 

J:atate ID po8118alOn on resumption of Hir Ali Mu- Ali Murad's country in 1852, and they were 
rad'a territor,. 

confirmed to him for life by the Commis. 
sioner's order of the 21st September of that year, No. 2350. 



227 4. Subsequent .enquiries, however, caused the Commissioner to modify the terms upon which this con-
llluhb&t Khan's death and 

imposition of 01uw,111, 011 firmation had been extended to the Marri 
regrant. Chief, and upon the death of Muhbat Khan on the 27th July 1856; a year's produce of his jagir was allowed to his son, Wadero Mir Muhammad, and on the 28th October 1857, orders were given to release iths of the same pending Settlement. 5. Major Goldsmid • recommended that the present in­

Set.tlemen.t. 
cumbent might be allowed to retain for life the alienation then in his wssession, and that on his demise 1,000 bigahs from Pannah Yacub be retained · as a hereditary grant in the family. Mir Muhammad's Sanad 

Pannah Yacub . . .  2,ato (No. 57) continued him in the possession of 
Makan Mulhar 

. .  · � hi& two jagirs above mentioned " less quarter-
1,893 " produce," and accorded to his heirs 1,000 bigahs in perpetuity. 
No. ff ..4.LI KB...4.N BAJIZ..4.I. 

P0&ition. 
Ali Khan was great-great-grandson of Masti Khan. His father, Kamal Khan, occupied a high position, and lost his life at the battle of Dabba. 2. Kamal held 6,048 B. in Tando Bago and 1,007 in Bala. rhese were continued to his son . by Sir Charies Napier, subject to the payment of quarter-produce. 3. Captain Pelly noted in his Tando Bago Roll against this 

Cl&Nificat.ion. 
and the next Jagirdar's names as follows :­" These grantees are in the position of Sirdars 

F'icw Roll {or Talub Nauthahro No. 2, pvt.. 2, in the Commillioner'■ office. 



228 " of their tribe, an.d will be included aocordingly in my Roll " of permanent Jagirdars. Their title deeds are not as yet forth­" coming." Major Goldsmid, under the instructions conveyed in the Commissioner's endorsement No. 2124 of 25th iugust 18�8 to the Special Commissioner's letter No. 19 of 24th August. classified the jagirs as follows :-Bago Ta.ndo Jagir . . . . . • 3,028 B. in the 2nd class. 
Halla Jagir . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,837 R 11 3rd ,, 183 B. 

275 B. 732 R 
7,055 B. 

.. 
" 
.. 

4th ,, 
2nd ,. 3rd , • 

4t. The J agirdar lived near Tando Adam Khan and not on 
Propoeal. 

his jagir. Major Goldsmid considering this fact and his rank, recommended a hereditary provision to the extent of 1,500 B. which was sanctioned. 5. The Jagirdar's Sanad (No. 58) accordingly accorded this 
Settlement. 

amount to his heirs without of course any op­tion, while confirming him in the position he­occupied under Sir Charles Napier's regrant. 
Death. 

6. Ali Khan died on the 21st N OTember-1870, without heirs. 
No. ff DA. U KHAN HA.J'IZA.I. 

This Jagirdar was son of Khair Muhammad, w ho was Ali Khan's cousin, and died with his paternal uncle, Kamal, at the battle of Dabba. 



229 2. Mir Fateh Ali's book of Sanads showed a grant on the 
F.atate. 

4th :March 1794, to Dau Khan Marri and two others in Tando Bago. This Dau Khan was Khair Muhammad's grand-father. Khair Muhammad and his son held 6,048 B. in Tando Bago, 2,013 in Hala, and 605 in Tando Adam, in all 8,666 B. Sir Charles Napier continued these jagirs to Khair .Muhammad's son, D!lu Khan, subject to the payment of Ohowtk. 3. Major Goldsmid, under the Commissioner's orders, 
Clauifl.catioo. 

classified the jagirs, and found 3,028 B. of the Tando Bago Jagir · and 550 B. of the Hala Jagir, in the 2nd class. 4. Major Goldsmid therefore recommended him, like Ali Proposal. Khan, for a permanent grant of 1,500 bigahs, and this was sanctioned. 5. Dau Khan's Sanad No. 59 accordingly secured this 
Settlement. 

amount to his heirs without of course any option, while it confirmed him in his posses­sions. It added " No separate arrangement is made for the " continuance to your heirs of your own original jagirs as these " are under rule not regrantable, being in the 4th class." 
No. ti BASHID KHAN HAJIZ.A.I. 

This Jagirdar's father, Gawhar, died at the battle of :Meani. 
Position. Gawhar was great-great-grandson of Jaffar Khan, the second son of Haji by his Badani wife. Rashid and tbe next Jagirdar were classed. " Sirdars or " their tribe " by Captain Pelly. 



230 2 .  Gawhar held 897 B. in Guni, 152 B. in Badin, and 
Estate. 

14,818 B. in Sehwan. His son, Rashid, was continued in these jagirs by Sir Charles Napier, subject to the payment of Chowth. 
Classification. 

3. Captain Pelly registered the Sehwan possessions of Rashid in the 2nd claS&, and the rest in the 4th class. 4. Rashid did not reside on his jagir but in Gorechani. 
Proposal 

But his second class land lay in Manjhand, and no more than a quarter of it was culti­Yable. :Major Goldsmid, under these circumstances, proposed a permanent grant of 2,500 B., but this was increased on revi­sion by :Mr .. Ellis to 3,000 B. and the increased grant was sanc­tioned. 5. The Jagirdar's Sanad {No. 60) accordingly accorded this 
Settlell).ent, amount to his heirs, without, of course, any option, while it confirmed him in his posses­&ion of 15,867 B .  subject to the existing liability. 

Position. 

Esta�e. 

No. !¼ 4.HM4.I> KH4.N HLI.JIZ.d.I. 

Ahmad Khan was Gawhar's brother, and was registered as a Sirdar by Captain Pelly. 2. He held 14,818 B. in Sehwan, 897 B. in Guni, and 973 B. in Badin. 3. The first of these jagirs was registered in the 2nd class, 
Clasification. in the 4th. the second in the 3rd, and out of the fourth 648 B. were registered in the 3rd an.d the rest 



231 4. Major Goldsmid proposed the same amount of perma­
Proposal. nent provision for this Jagirdar as for Rashid Khan, mz., 2,500 B. ; but Mr. Ellis was of opinion that Rashid Khan was the elder brother's son and that Ahmad Khan was not entitled to an equal amount, and he therefore recommended 2,000 B. to be permanently granted. 5. This amount was sanctioned, but Ahmad Khan died on 

Settlement. the 16th February 1861 before the Sanads were issued, and as he died without any lineal tnale heirs, his jagir lapsed to Government (vide Assistant Com­missioner in Sind's No. 181, dated 25th March 1861, and No. 3�9, dated 7th May 1861. 
No. ff NINIJO KHAN HARRI ANIJ HIS TWO 

SONS ALI BAKHSH AN.D NA.BI BAKHSH. 

Nindo Khan was great-grandson of Haji by his Loharani wife. 
Position. He is spoken of in Lieutenant Leech's report as commanding 1,200 of his tribe under Mir Nur Muhammad, and holding land in jagir near Tando Allahyar and Hyderabad. He was nearly 100 years of age in 1858, and his two sons also were " grey-bearded men, weU advanced in life, " each a fine specimen of the Baluch Chief." They resided in Bila­wal-ka-Got near Adam Khan's Tanda, but at some distance fr.om their jagir. 

Estate. 
2. Nindo Khan and his sons held 6,006 B. in Tando Bago in equal shares. 3. This jagil' was classified by Captain Pelly in the 2nd class. The first Sanad registered by Captain Classification and pro- Stack was that of Mir Ghulam Ali to Nindo's posal. father, Bilawal, but the grant was traced 



232 to Mir Fateh Ali's time by Major Goldsmid. This officer pro­posed to grant permanently 1,500 B. to Ali Bakhsh's heirs and 1,000 to N abi Bakhsh's. But Mr. Ellis proposed 1,200 for the elder son, and 800 for the younger. 4. This proposal was sanctioned. The Sanad (No. 61) issued 
Settlement. 

to Nindo, Ali Bakhsh, and Nabi Bakhsh recites that the three were continued in 
Deh Phatu. 2,2.002

002 
possession of the jagirs marginally noted by Do. 

Do. 2,002 Sir Charles Napier, and that it had b�n a,ooo. " found necessary to apportion and settle ==- " the particular rights and shares to which " they were " respectively claimants." Then it declares that with regard, to each of them, " as  an individual shareholder the Gov­" ernment had determined that their position shall not be inter­" fered with for the term of their natural life," and that 2,002 bi­gabs would be accorded to their heirs in perpetuity. " That is " to say, the share of Nindo would be regrantable without assess­" ment except as above (i. e., except 5 per cent. cess) to his eldest " son, ·Ali Bakhsh, whose share would thus consist of 4,004 bigahs. '' In the event of Ali Bakhsh predeceasing his younger brother, the " latter would become possessed of the same amount in like course " of s�ccession. • And of whatever number of bigahs of land Ali " Bakhsh may die possessed, the a.mount of 1,200 bigahs is declared " to be the hereditary grant above authorized. And of whatever " n um her of bigahs of land N abi Bakhsh may die possessed, the said " grant will consist of 800 bigahs." The next clause grants the usual option to the immediate heir. 5 .  Nindo died on the 29th December 1861, Ali Bakhsh 
Death. 

on the 11th June 1870, and Nabi Bakhsh on the 18th August 1883. 
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No. ff G HUL..J.M H..J.ID..J.B. 

Ghulam Haidar was the youngest of the three sons of Bilawal, 
Polit.ion. 

the eldest and the second being Shah Beg and Nindo Khan respectively. Captain Rathborne calls him Chief of the Shadiani branch of Marris, but from what Major Goldsmid could gather in the way of oral evidence, it appeared that on Shah Beg'sdeath, NindoKhan became the headman of the family and not Ghulam Haidar. This was corroborated by an original Hukami Parwana of Mirs Karam Ali and Murad Ali dated the 7th April 1822, dividing the " Wijuhat" (maintenance) g;:anted to Bilawal then deceased, be­tween his sons agreeably to their request. It ruled :-(1) That Shah Beg was to keep what he formerly held on his own account during his father's life-time ; (2) That whatever Bilawal was in the habit of giving to Nindo and Ghulam Haidar should be continued ; and (3) That whatever Bilawal himself enjoyed should .be divided into 17 shares, of which 12 were for Shah Beg and his sons, and 5 for Nindo. Shah Beg had three sons, Nindo two, and Ghulam Haidar one. 2. Ghulam Haidar's name was mentioned in one of Mir 
Bit.ate. 

Fateh Ali's Sanads, but this did-not " link " on" with the Sanad of Mir �m .Ali, granting to Ghulam Haidar 4,392 B. in Shahdadpur, 1,211 B. in Tando Allahyar, and 3,158 B. in Mirpur Khas. These jagirs were, however, mainly derived from a grant to his father, Bilawal, and were therefore registered in the Taluka. Roll s in the 2nd class, with the trilling exception of SOS B. in Taudo Allahyar which were registered in the 3rd class. 



234 3. Major Goldsmid was of op1ruon that although this 
Proposal. 

Jagirdar's possessions were more extensive than Nindo Khan's, yet there :was nothing in his social position " to w.arrant a special recommendation for " hereditary privileges". Mr. Ellis, however, on revision, recom­mended him for a .permanent grant of 1,000 B. 
4. His Sanad (No. 62) accordingly accorded this amount 

Settlement. 

Death. 

to his heirs with the usual option, while it confirmed him in his jagirs (8,761 B). 5. Ghulam Haidar died on the 7th December 1862. 

No. tf GHUL.tf..M MUBTAZA HAJIZAL 

This J agirdar was descended from the younge&t son of Haji 
Position. by his Loharani wife. B is father, Misri Khan, was Kardar of Ropa under Mirs Karam Ali and Murad Ali, and his mother was sister to one of the cousins of the latter Mir. He was, according to Major Goldsmid " a  man of re­" spectable position." 
Ei!tate. 2. Ghulam Murtaza held 4,849 B. in Dadu. 

Classification and proposal. 3. Captain Pelly registered these in the 3rd class, but Major Goldsmid wrote as follows regarding them :-
" It would seem from Captain Pelly's summary and recommendation to 

" his c�e No. 1 1. in the Johi Roll, that he might have accorded to him t he 
'· benefits of 2nd class bigahs, could he have ascertained that the document­
" ary evidence admitted of such classification. 

" Had this case originally come before me for settlement, I should 
" ha\"e accepted at once a Sanad of Mir Karam Ali registered in the lif�-time 
" of Mir Ghulam Ali, which ha11 since been discovered, in evidence of a greater 



235 " antiquity to this tenure than that mabliahed by the acLing 1st Assistant " Commissioner. But there is no doubt that the bundi or batch of deeds in " which this document has appeared, should have been forthcoming on first " enquiry ; and I do not therefore feel at liberty to disturb the settle­" ment." Having however been permitted to revise the classifica­tion, he put the J agirdar's possessions in tbe 2nd class, and recommended a grant in perpetuity of 500 bigahs which was increased to 1,000 B. by Mr. Ellis in the statement submitted to Government. 4. Ghulam MurtazR.'s Sanad (No. 63) confirmed him in his 
Settlement. possessions (4,849 B), and accorded to his heirs 1,000 bigahs in perpetuity with the usual option, 

Death. 5. Ghulam Murtaza died · on the 26th :March 1867. 
The Jamalis. 

The J amalis are descended from Jamal, grandson of Rind, though according to some they are descended from Hot, a brother of Rind. The four sub-divisions of this tribe from which the Sirdars were selected were the Muridanis, the Jalbanis, the Bakhshanis and the Sukhwanis. The Muridanis were called after Murid, fifth in direct lineal descent from Ismail, son of Jamal. The remaining three were called after Jalal, Bakhsho and Sukh­wan, likewise direct lineal descendants from Jamal. Their pedigree, however, is not like that of Muriel. traceable in an un­broken chain from Jamal, several links being missing. 2. The genealogical tree which follows shows, besides these sub.divisions a few others of less importance holding minor jagirs. 
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Genealogical Pree of the Jamallani . Tribe. 

JALLAL. 

I Rinda Khan. 
I Zirak. 

Jamal. 
I 

Osa. 
Hilab .. 
I Shukul. 

I Bijar. Ismail. 
I Harun. 

Ouzaro. 
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No. ff. B..d.KHSHO KHAN MUBID..d.NI. 

This Jagirdar was filth in descent from Murid, and Major Poaition. Goldsmid felt no doubt that his family were 
the same old J amali Deradars referred to in 

Mir Fateh Ali's book of Sanads, and that he himself was " the 
" chief Sirdar of the whole tribe". Estate and clasi.fi. cation. 2. His jagir lay in J ohi, and was 6,020 B. 

in extent. It was registered in the 3rd class. 
3. There was good documentary evidence that Bakhsho Proposal. held ¼ th of Deh Phulji under Mir Murad Ali, 

and that he had been granted 500 B.  in 
the same deh as a place of residence by Mir Nur Muhammad. 
Major Goldsmid recommended that the permanent grant should 
be at least 500 B., but Mr. Ellis in the Statement he sent to the 
Commissioner with his No. 22 of 1858, iucreased this amount to 
1,200 B. This amount was further increased to 5,000 B. in the 
revised statement prepared in communication with Mr. Ellis, 
under the Commissioner's endorsment No. 2;124 of 1858, author­
izing Major Goldsmid to correct errors of fact in Captain Pelly's 
classifications. 

4. The Jagirdar's Sanad (No. 91) dated 24th May 1861 

Settlement. 
accordingly accorded this amount to his heirs 
with the usual option, while it confirmed him 

in his possessions. 
Death, 5. Bakhsho died on the 7th March 1878. 
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No. tf. JJ.A.TO KH.A.N J.A.LB.A.NI. 

Dato was great-grandson of J allal. His family were Deradars 
Position, 

of Ropa at one time. Dato was described by Major Goldsmid as " a  very unobjectionable " old gentleman of nearly 60, a plain Zamindar without polish or " learning, but at the same time without undue assumption of " importance."  
Eatate. 

2. He held 9,805 B. in Tando Bago, 878 B. · in Due.ha and 652 B. in Dero Muhbat, in all 11,885 B. 3. Captain Pelly left �o materials by which to arrive at the classification of the jagirs held by this 
Classification and proposal incumbent as registered in the Collectorate Roll, beyond the statement. that Dato and Fateh Khan were Sirdars. But Captain Stack had kept a detailed record of his Sanads, and Mnjor Goldsmid on referring to the Sanads them­selves, placed the Tando Bago jagir in the 2nd class, and the remainder in the 8rd.�class. This classification did not materially differ from tha.t in the Collectorate Roll. Considering the large number of bigahs held by the Jagirdar in the 2nd class, and the fact that he was a resident Jagirdar, Major Goldsmid recom• mended him for a permanent grant of 3,000 B. 4. This was accordingly secured to his heirs with the usual 

Settlement. 
option by his Sanad (No. 64), which confirm­ed him in his possessions. 

No. ft. S.A.INJJ.A.JJ BA.KESHA.NI. 

Saindad was great-grandson of Bakhsho. Captain Rath-
Poaition. borne had designated the whole party of which Saindad was chief, " small Jagirdars," and on this account 
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Captain Pelly placed Saindad in the 3rd class of Jagirdars and 
not in the class of Sirdars, although he was not $8.tisfled in 
his own mind that Saindad was not by social position entitled to 
rank as a Sirdar. 

2. Saindad held 1,018 B. in Shah Bandar which were really 
Estate, cluaificatiou, and in the 2nd class-though lowered to the 

propoeal. 3rd class by Captain Pelly on the ground 
above stated. On revising the classification under the Commis­
sioner's orders, Major Goldsmid recommended in consultation 
with Mr. Ellis, that 400 B. might be permanently granted· to the 
Jagirdar. 

3. This recommendation oeing approved, a Sa.nad (No. 92) 
Settlement. dated 24th May 1861, was formally issued 

according this amount to his heirs with the usual option and con­
firming him in his possessions. 

Death. 3. The J agirdar died on the 13th 
December 1867. 

No. ff. GHUL"1.M "1.LI SUKHW ANI. 

Lieutenant Leech in his report says :-" There are two thousand 

POlitioD. 
" Jam.alls with Ghulam Ali under Mir S&bdar 
" having lands in Lima-jo-kumb near Hala on 

" the north.'' He was fifth in descent from Sukhwan, the founder 
of the family. " I am personally acquainted with Ghulam Ali," 
wrote Major Goldsmid, " and though he bears the stamp of a 
" man in not very affluent circumstances, there is something 
cc of better ·times in his manner and deportment. He is still to 
,. be found at Lima-jo-kumb, his old place of residence, under 
" the :Mira." 



242 2. He held 3,490 B. in Hala and 3,848 B. 
Estate and classiAca• in J ohi. Captain Pelly registered both these t,ion. jagirs in the 3rd class, excepting 59 B. in the former which he registered_in the 4t.h. 3. Major Goldsmid did not feel himseif at liberty to recom­

Proposal 
mend a hereditary grant to this J agirdar, as none of his lands had been registered in the 2nd class, and they appeared all to have been given in lieu of pay by Mir Karam Ali. This last, however, would not have been a fatal objection had there been a more favourable classification. Mr. Ellis, however, in communication with the Commissioner, determined to recommend him for 800 B., and this grant was sanctioned. 4. His Sanad (No. 65) accordingly secured this amount to 

Settlement. 

Death. 

his heirs with the usual option, while it con­firmed him in his possessions. 5. He died on the 16th November 1870. 
Pke Bkurgri Baluckia. 

Major Goldsmid wrote as follows about this tribe :-" The Bhurgris are strictly Talpurs, but it has become usual to con­" sider them M distinct. There are various quaint derivations of the name " given to the tribe, none of which, however, bears the stamp of liklihood. " The Islamanis of Mehar and the Morais of Ninda Shabr, are per­" haps the most peculiar of the sub-divisions of Bhurgris. Of the former " there are no less than 20, and of the lntter 32 co-sharers of jagir. To " attempt to settle permanently their internal territorial disputes, indepen­" dently of Government arrangements, is next to vain. Their land tenure is a, " perpetual source of contention, and no one of the number appears to " possess imfficient authority to command the obedience of his brotherhood. " It would have been gratifying to have acknowledged a Sirdar among them, " if only to make him a responsible Head. Yet there is a frankness and goed " humour shown by these litigants which makes temporary adjustment a no " very difficult matter. 



243 " The particular class now alluded to, exhibits, generally speaking " a fine body of men, including the handsome old patriarch, the robust " middle-aged cultivator, and the well-featured beardless youth. They have " alienations of very ancient date, but are not included in the present en­" quiry, from want of social position." 
2. The J'agirdars recommended to Government for per­

manent grants were five in number, four of them· being descended 
from Gaji, a grandson of Zangi, and the 5th from Shahdad, an­
other grandson of Zangi. 
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:No. ti. AHMAIJ KHAN BHUR GRI. 

--
This Jagirdar was sixth in descent from Gaji, and wns Sirdar of the whole tribe ; and Captain Rath borne designated him " a " most respActable Chief, connected by marriage with the late " reigning family" 2. Ahmad Khan's father, Haidar Khan, was an officer of 

Poaition. 
great distinction under Mir Ghulam Ali, from whom he received both pay and jagirs. He filled the office of the Mir's Mukhtyarkar, much in the same light as Wali Muhammad Laghari, when serving Mirs Karam Ali and Murad Ali. Ahmad Khan was himself employed as Mukhtyar­kar under Mir Nasir Khan. 

J-:•tate and cl&saifi. 3. He held 3,767 B. in the Hyderab!lcl Taluka which were registered in the 2nd class. C'&tiun. 4. Ahmad Khan resided in his father's Tando near his jagirs 
J'rnpoeal and settle- though not in them. He was about 50 years old 

ment. in 1858 A. D. and had no son. IT e was under these circumstances recommended for a permanent grant of 1,500 13. which was sanctioned, but Ahmad Khnn died on the 8th of :March 1861 before the Sanads were issued, and as he left no lineal heir male, his estate lapsed to Government. 

No. -M-. GHUL.A.M MUHA.MMA.IJ BHUR GRI 
and 

No. ¾¼- FA TEH KHAN BHUR G BI. 

:Both these were sons of Fazul Muhammad and second­cousins of Ahmad Khan Bhurgri. Fazul Muhammad, like Ahmad Khan, was sixth in descent from Gagi. 
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2. Eaah of the brothers held 807 B. in Hyderabad and 
5,844 B. in Shahdadpur, in all 13,302 B. 

Estate a.nd claesi.fioationa. Captain Pelly registered the 807 B. of each 
in the ith class, and the Sha.hdadpur possessions in• the 3rd class. 

3. Major Goldsmid's proposal was as follows :-
" Without re-opening the settlement in this case, it may be 

" remarked that the classification is according to the 
Proposal. 

" strict letter of documentary evidence, but that the 
" position of Fazul Muhammad, father. of present incumbents and grantee 
" under Mir Ali Murad, leads to the inference that there were prior 
" grants to the family which would, if proved, create a title to permanent 
" consideration. 

" Captain Pelly has, moreover, entered in his Summary and recom­
" menda.tion to No. 26 in the Duaba Roll, with reference to · the two 
" Bhm·gris :-' The:ie a.re Sirdars' and this would seem to imply intended 
" revisal of settlement on their behalf. 

" Upon the whole, I am of opinion that in  default of a son to 
" succeed to the jagir of Ahmad Khan, the hereditary grant of 1 ,500 bigahs 
" might be allowt\d to the lineal heirs male of his relative Ghulam Muluµn­" mad out of the bigahs in his possession, the remainder Qf his jagir being 
" treated as already proposed. 

" Ghulam Muhammad resides with Ahmad Khan, but not on hie 
" jagir.'' 

4. On revising the classification, however, under the Com. 
missioner's orders, Major Goldsmid thouih� 

Revision of claasific:ation. it just to place 1,535 B. of each of tho 
brothers in the 2nd class,' and recommended Ghulam Muha:qiµiad 
for a permanent grant of 1,500 B. jointly with his . relative 
Ahm!ld Khan, and Fateh Khan for one of 500 B. These were 
sanctioned. 

5. Ahmad Khan having died, Ghulam Muhammad ·was by 

Settlement. 
Sanad (No. 66) confirmed in the pos�ssion 
of 6,651 B. held by him, while his heirs 

were accorded 1,500 B. in perpetuity with the usuaf option. 
Fateh Khan's S�nad (No. 67) likewise confirmed him iI1 his 
possessions and accorded to his heirs 500 B. with the usual 
option. 

Death. 
6. Ghulam Muh9:mmad died on the 

4th February 1875, and Fateh Khan on the 
10th August 1879. 
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No. ff. J.tl..FF..d..B KH..d..N BHUBGBL 

This Jagirdar was seventh in descent from Gaji. His position, Position. according to Major Goldsmid, was not supe­rior to that of " the headmen or Patells of '' tribes such as the Nundanis, Notakanis and Chelgiris." 2. He held 1,059 B. in llala and 61 in Hyderabad. Both these were registered by Captain Pelly Eitate, cla.,sification and · n the .{ th class but accordin O' to MaJ· or propo11al. 1 , o Goldsm.id the Hala tenure was " clearly " traceable to a grant of Mir Ghulam Ali made to the grand-" father " of Jaffar Khan in 1806. Mr. Ellis, therefore, in his No. 22 of 1858 agreed with Major Goldsmid that J affar Khan t1hould have a permanent grant of 500 B. This was sanctioned. 8. 'But before the Sanads were issued, J affar Khan died on 

Settlement. 
the 3rd June 1860, leaving a son, Muham­mad Hassan Khan. The Sanad was conse-quently issued in his name and confirmed to him the whole of •his father's jagir without any deduction and free of assessment, �xcept the life-grant of 61 bigahs, which lapsed to Government, anti a9corded to bis heirs 500 bigahs in perpetuity, without of course any option. 

N•. jf. MEHR.dB KHAN BHURGRI (IJEOE..J..SEJJJ 
SUOOEEJJED B Y  SIRJJAR KHAN. 

Mehrab Khan, Bhurgri, was sixth in descent from _Shahdad, a 
Poeition. grandson of Zangi. He was the associate of his relative Hassan Khan, Killadar of Karachi. Of the two Chiefs, Hassan :l.han was the more distinguished. But he appears to have incurr�d the displeasure of His Excellency 
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the Governor, owing to his treatment of British Officers in 1837 ; 
and to have been summoned in after years 

To Secretary to Govern- • • 
ment No. 14 of 5th Janu- to Karachi to answer for his conduct. The 
ary 1848· Collector of Shikarpur in reporting on 
this subject, stated :-" His Excellency pa.rdoned him and gave orders that he should not be " deprived of his ja.g1r." (No. l;I.<, dated 5th Janu,ary 18i8, to the Commi,­
siontr). 

Hassan Khan died in July 1853, and in October of the 
following year, his eldest son, B:1hawal, petitioned for regrant of 
his father's alienation. Major G()ldsmid in reporting upon the 
case on the 2nd of November 185:t, (No. 366) , stated that the 
<leeeascd was the Sirdar of the Blmgia branch of his tribe. A 
portion of the tenure was decided to be in the 2nd class, but by 
after settlements the whole amount" alienate·d was resumed on the 
decease of B:ihawal in 1856. As Major Goldsmid fOnsidered 
Hassan Khan " the first person for consideration among his clans­
" men," he did not recommend �ny permanent grant for Sirdar 
Khan. 

2. Lieutenant Leech, however, speaking of the Bhugias had 
said :-" Their chiefs are Mehrab Khan, Bhawal and Hassan Khan.'' 

The Bhugias were called after Bhogi, grandfather of Has­
san Khan and great-grandfather of Mehrab Khan. On the death 
of Hassan's father Zahari, his widow, married Mirza, Mehrab's 
father, and Hassan and Mehrab were thus born of th,1 same mother, 
th01igh the father of the one was uncle to the father of the other. 

3. Mehrab Khan, besides gardens, held (1) 774. B. i n  
Estate and classification. M.akan Kalachi i n  Mehar, (2) 146 B .  i n  

Thalla i n  Mehar, and (3) 780 B. in Larkana-· in all 1,700 B. 
The first of these jagirs had been placed in the 4th class, in the 
absence of any Sa.nad in support of the grant, the second in the 
3rd class, and the last " as a life-grant under the Governor's 
" Sanad.'' 
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4. " Or the above", wrote Major Goldsmid :-
" No. I is the only one which seems to call for remark, but I am of 

Propow. " opinion it is derived fn,m a very ancient ten llre. 
" The book of Sanads of M ir Fateh A li shows the 

: names �f Mehr�? Khi\n's ancestors, but the body of the deed in which the_v 
. appear 1s lost. Sirdar Khan has proJuced two Hukumi Parwa.nahs, one of 

" Mir Murad Ali, and one of .M ir Mir The Hukum� Parwanabs do not grant jagirs, " Muhammad. The first is dl'.l.ted 1st but confirm prior grants or define shares. " M h 18 1  '' d · M l b I · arc ,>, an \:rives · e 1ra 11s 
" share in Aliwa.1, agreeably to original San:ds. The date of the second is 
" illegible, but it appears to b.a a partition of shares in the same jagir." 

'· Sir<lar Khan has also produced an original Sanad of Mir Ghula.m Ali 
" but though the names of • JoJi Blmrgri, and Alliwal occur in it , i ts 
" meaning is not sufficiently clear to be accepted in evidence. Nor is the 
" S:1.na,d itself discoverable in Mir Ghulam Ali's book of Sanads" 1Jnder these circumstances Major Goldsmid merely re­cqmmended that the Kalachi jagir might be given to Sirdar Khan for life, less ¼th, as he was not at liberty to re-open the settlement. 5. }Ir. Ellis, ho'w-ever, with the approval of the Com­mission'er, recommended a pe;manent provision to ihe extent of 150 B. in favour of Sirdar Khan. After this recommendation 
W&S submitted to Government, it was discovered th�t Sirclar Khan was hi possession of 73 B. in Deh Pan in his own right. The Sa.natl (No. 82) accordingly recited that Mehrab and Sirdar Khnn were both f�und in possession of certain jagirs at the Conquest ; thnt on Mchrab's death " such portions of his jagir as were npt regrantable were wholly resumed, while such portions as were regrantable under the rules were regranted, less ¼th resumed in land"-and that the jagirs now in possession of Sirdar Khan and confirmed to him were as follows :-

( Deh Ka1achi. 580 
l\iehar Taluka ..• � Deh Thalla ............ 110 

" Deb Pan , .. . . . . .• . . . . . . 73 
bigahs (i. e. ¾ths of the area) . bigahs (i. e. ¾th s of the area). bigahs. 

763 bigahs. 



250 No option was allowed to his immediate heir and no separate arrangement was made for the continuance to his heirs of his own original jagir, as this was " under rule not regrantable, being " the 4th class". 
1879. 0ea111. 6. Sirdar Khan died on the 19th August 

The Bagranis. 

The genealogical tree of this tribe is not as complete as could be desired. Major Goldsmid could not obtain sufficient information to connect Mewa Khan and Sawai Khan with Zangi, whose descendants they appear to have been according to Captain Rath borne. Under the early Hyderabad Amirs these two cousins were the Chiefs of the · tribe, while another branch descended from Karam Khan took service under the Khairpur Amirs. 2 .  The Sirdar admitted to a, permanent grant was t.aken. from the :Mewais. 
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No. ff. ALI MUBAIJ BA. GB.A.NI. Ali Murad, son of Hamzo, was third in descent from Mewa 
Position. 

Khan. In his Shahdadpur Roll, Major Gold­smid recorded that he was " a  respectable " Jagirdar," and Captain _Pelly in his Hala Roll recorded a similar opm1on. He was one of those privileged to wear a golden sword, and was Mir Nasir Khan's Kardar at Ali Bahr in Shahdadpur. 
2 . Ali Murad held 1,614 B. in Shahdadpur, and 1,109 B.  in Hala. On his father's death, Mir Murad 

E�tate and classification. Al' h d fi d K ,,.,.. h . Shal 1 a con rine aryo .1.u1t o m 1-dadpur to him, and, according to Captain Stack, the family had doubtless held alienated land for a long period. Captain Pelly had registered Ali Murad'.s jagirs in the 4th class, though he had admitted . that the alienations of Ali Murad's relations, Ahmad Khan and Muhammad Khan Bagr�nis, were deducible from a 2nd class Sanad, and had recommended that Ali Murad might be made a 3rd class Jagir<V,r. Major Goldsmid held that this Sanad was the one which reg�ted th� classification of Ali Murad's jagirs. The name of Karyo Mitho, morveover, gave strong evi­dence of title, as Mitho was gr�clfather to Ali Murad and. dug the canal for agricultural purposes. 3. M1jor Goldsmid therefore recommended the Jagirdar for a perm1nent gmnt of 600 }}., but the 
Proposal and settlement. 

J 
. d -� d . J 1860 • d h' �g1r ar uie m anuary , an on 1s demise, " according to tlie custom then. prevalent, all his alien.a­" tioni in the 3rd class (under the terms of quarter-resumption) " and such portion as wai found to be in the superior class, was " regranted to " his son Hamzo. The Sanad (No. 69) issued to Hamzo confirmed him in the-possession of 1,358 B. in Shahdadpur and 657 in Ha.la, in all 2,015 B., and accorded to his heirs 600 B. in perpetuity without, of course, any option. 

* According to the Persian Sa.nad. The English Sanad says " June 1860." 
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Tke Binda. 

The Rinds are the only descendants of Mir Chakar, w_ho have retained the designation of their ancestor. In naming the various tribes which were created by his children, he retained to himself the affix of Rind. Mir Chakar, Rind is thus syno­nymous with Rind, son of J allal, to be found in the Nizamani Genealogical Tree. 2. There are very few of this once celebrated tribe who hold jagirs in Sind. Mir Murad Ali married into this family, having chosen a wife from the daughters of Taj Muhammad, great-uncle to Bahawal Khan. There is a Tandra now near Hyderabad bearing the name of the Mir's mother-in-law, Mai Mahun. 
Geneawgical Tree of the Bind Tribe. 

--
W ADERO NUR MUHAJOIAD, 

I Mira. Dulil. 
I Yar Muhammad. 

Mir M:Jammad. 

I A daughter who married Miri Khan Rind. 
I Oul Muhammad. 

I 
I Bahawal Khan. 

I 
I I Nihal Khan, Fateh Khan. Dad Muhammad. 

I Yar Muhammad. 
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No. ff. BAHA W..d..L KHAN BIND. 

No. ff. G UL MUHAMMAD BIND . 

.Bahawal Khan was a son of Mir Muhammad who was third 
in descent from ·wadero Nur Muhammad. This Wadero was 

Position. never in the service of the Talpur Chiefs, but 
of the Brohis. Ris younger ·son, Dalil, and his grandson, Yar 
Muhammad, however, joined Mir Fateh Ali Talpur in Sind. This 
Datil was Gul Muhammad's maternal grandfather. · There is extant 
a Sanad of Mir Fateh Ali, dated 5th September 1800, confirming 
Wadero Dalil Khan in his jagirs jointly with Yar Muhammad 
and .his son Mir Muhammad. · Mir Muhammad died about A. D. 
1830. His son, Bu.hawal, seems then to have occupied the posi­
tion of Sirda.r of that portion of his tribe which served under the 
''.falpurs. He is spoken of by Lieutenant Leech as having 400 
men at the disposal o� Mir N ur. Muhammad. 

2. .Bahawal Khan as well as Gul Muhammad held each 
Estate and cla118ifi"-ti11n. 3,478 B. near Jhangar in the Sehwan Hills. 

These were registered in the 2nd class by Captain Pelly. 
3. Bahawal Khan resided on his jagir, and considering this 

Proposal and Settlement. fact as well as his position, Major Goldsm.id 
recommended him for a permanent grant of 2,000 B. He was, 
however, not prepared to recommend Gul Muhammad for enrol­
ment among Birdars. .But Mr. Ellis was of a different opinion, 
and he recommended Gul Muhammad for a permanent grant of 
500 B., while he increased Bahawal Khan's prop�sed° grant to 
2,500 B. These recommendations were approved, and Sanads 
Nos. 93 and 94 accorded these several amounts to the heirs of 
Gul Muhammad and Bahawal Khan respectively, with the usual 
option, while they confirmed the Jagirdars themselves in their 
possessions. 

Death. 4. Gul Muhammad died on the 24th 
October 1862. 
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The Ohangs. 

This tribe is stated by Lieutenant Leech to have been form­
erly at enmity with the Jats. Their Sirdar's name was Sher 
Khan. They mustered 900 men and were under Mir N ur Muham­
mad. 

2. The sub-division represented by Sher Khan does not, 
however, appear to have included those members of the tribe 
who were held in the highest estimation on aooount of social 
position. " They may be designated," writes Major Ooldsmi�, " for the sake of dis­" tinction, the Sa.njaranis and the Kachais. Unfori.unately they must remain " separate, for I have not been able to get the information necessary to- l ink " the two together. " The Cbangs are quite a. fighting tribe, though in after years many have " become cultivators." 

Murad Ali. 
I Pairoz Shah. 

Tree of the Ohang Tribe. 

SANJARANJ. 

Ji wan. 
I Murad Ali. 

. l 
J1wa.n. 

Nassir Khan. 
Allah B�khsh. 

Shahuk. 
I Sher Khan. 
I Saindad. 

Ghazi Khan. 
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No. ff. MURAD ALI OH.A.NG (JXEOBA.SBJJJ SUO­

OBBJJBJJ B Y  PAIROZ SHAH. 

Murad Ali was the eldest son of Sanjar, the founder of the 
Position. 

Sanjarani family. Captain Pelly called him a, Sirdar of the Changs. Murad Ali possessed Estate and regrant. 4,036 B. in the Gnni Taluka. He died in July 1854, and on his death his life-grants were resumed, and the rest of his jagirs were regranted _to his son Pairoz Shah " less ¼th resumption." Under this regrant Pairoz Shah received 3,006 B. in all. 3. Captain Pelly registered these possessions in the 2nd class excepting 679 B. which he registered in the Clasaification and 4th class Maior Goldsmid therefore recom-proposal. • • ., ' ' mended the Jagirdar for a permanent grant of 1,200 B. specially as he resided on one of his jagirs. 4. This proposal was sanctioned, and the Jagirdar's Sanad Settlement: (No. 90) accordingly secured this amount to his heirs, without of course any option, while it confirmed him in his holding. Death. 5. Pairoz Shah died on the 16th No .. vember 1883. 
No. ff. ALLAH BAKHSH OH.A.NG. 

This J agirdar was son of Nasir Khan the brother of Sanjar. 
Poaition. 

Nasir Khan died at the battle of Meani. Allah Be.khsh was recorded by Captain Pelly as a Sirdar of the Changs in La.r. He was next in importance to 'Murad Ali. 



257 2. Nasir Khan held 4,817• B. in the Guni. Taluka, which 
Estate and regraot.. 

on his death, were regranted to his son sub­ject to the payment of ¼th produce. 3. Captain Pelly registered 2,569 out of these 4,817 B. in the 2nd class, and the rest in the 4th class. 
:ificat.ioo and pro- The J agirdar resided upon one of his jagirs, and Major Goldsmid taking all these facts into his consideration, recommended him for a permanent grant of 800 B. 4. The Sanad (No. 71) granted to him, accordingly secured 

Settlement. 
this amount to his heirs, without of course any option, while it confirmed him in the position he held under Sir Charles Na pier's regrant. 

Death. 5. Pairozshah died on the 16th N ovem­ber 1883. 
No. if, SAINIJAD OHA.NG (DEOEASED) SUOCEEDED 

B Y  GHAZI KHAN. 

Saindad belonged to the Kachai branch of the Changs. His 
PositiOD. 

father, Sher Khan, was Chief of the Kachai Changs under the Amirs. 2. Saindad held 2,355 B. in Ghorabari at the Conquest. He died on the 31st December 1855, and 
F,state and ita regrant. his jagir was regranted to his son, Ghazi Khan, less one-fourth, i. e., in all l,'767 B. 
* In the sta.temeni sent to Government the amount held at the Conquest was shown as 6,190 B: How this was reduced to 4,817 B. in 18a8 does not appear. The state­ment in the te�t ia ta.ken from \be final S&llad issued to Allah Bakhsh. 
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3. Captain Pelly fouud Saindad's possession� of sufficient 

Claaailication. 
antiquity to be ranked in the 2nd class, but 
as he thought that Saindad's position did 

not warrant a grant in perpetuity, he lowered his 2nd class alien­
ations to the 3rd class. 

4 " I should have been glad," wrote Major Goldsmid, Propoaal. " tq recommend a hereditary grant of 
" 500 .B. in favour of this branch of a large 

" family . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  But he (the incumbent) does not 
" reside on his jagir, and I do not therefore feel at · liberty to 
" suggest any alteration of the settlement now recorded". Mr. 
Ellis, however, proposed a permanent grant of 400 B. which was 
sanctioned. 

5. The Sanad (No. 95) dated 24th May 1861, secured this 

Settlement. 

s ions (1,767 B.) 

amount to the Jagirdar's heirs without op­
tion, while it confirmed him in his posses-

The NundanilJ. 

No Genealogical tree of this tribe was prepared by Major 
Goldsmid. The tribe was not of great importance, and Major 
Goldsmid did not consider any one in . it as deserving of a per­
manent grant. Mr. Ellis, however, rejecting the claims of the Chel­
gris included one of the Nundanis among the Sirdars. That one 
was :Muhammad Khan. 
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No. ff. RA.HA WAL: KHAN NUNJ)A.NI (DECE.A.SEJ)) 

S UCCEEDED B Y  MUHA.MMA.J) KHA.N. 

" The only Jagirdar," wrote Major Goldsmid, " of any pre­
Poeition. 

" tensions to Sirdarship in this tribe was Baba­" wal who died in 1 857." 2. Bahawal held a. jagir in Shahdadpur which was regranted less one-fourth, to his son, Bilawal. But Bilawa.l 
�c!6J:;/qrant, and clae- himself died shortly afterwards in November 1857, and his young grandson, Muhammad Khan, became the headman of the whole tribe. Under the Com­missioner's instructions (No, 22, dated 7th January 1858) , the the jagirs to be granted to him were only to be for his life, and his case was considered finally disposed of. But on revising this case, under Mr. ElJis's orders, and with the sanction of the Commissioner, out of the 511 bigahs held by tho Jagirdar, 293 were found in the 2nd class, and the remaining 218 in the 3rd. Sixty-one bigahs (somewhat more than one.fourth of the 3rd class jagir) were therefore resumed on account of Government, and the rest provisionally regranted to Muhammad Khan free of assessment permanently. 3. The provisional arrangement being sanctioned, the Ja­

Settlement. 
girdar's &nad (No. 72) accorded to his \leirs 460 B. without, of ·course, any option, and con­firmed him in his possession. 
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The following is taken from Appendix 'l'. to :Major Goldmid's report on the Sirdars :-" According to Lieutenant Postans, the Khosas, in 1840, were a " numerous tribe of cultivating Baluchis inhabiting the intervening country " between Sukkur and the Sind canal towards Shikarpur, and from thence " to the westward of Rojhan along the edge ,of the " Desert." He further " states that they are not a predatory tribe, but employ themselves generally " as cultivators. Major Jacob's Report of 1854, makes them plunderers, " cultivators, soldiers or shepherds, according to circumstances. It is, more­" over, a significant fact that �n W,alker's Sindhi V ocabularly the word " ' Khosa,' is translated ' plunderer, robber.' " Lieutenant Leech states that such portion of the tribe as were under " the Hyderabad Government had two Sirdars, Jam Chatta and Alam Khan. " Their jagirs were south of Larkana and they could_ count 1 ,300 men. " In connection herewith, I gather the following from the Khosas' own " statements. " The old Rohil l  Khan came to Sind in the days of Mian Elias Kalhorn, " who flourished in the seventeenth century. It is said that Na.sir Muhammad, " son of Elias, conferred upon him land in jagir. Raja, son of Ro hill, in like " manner, is said to have held_ land in alienation from Mian Nur Muhammad " Kalhorn, and Sher Khan, son of Rohill, from Mian Ghulam Shah. Sher " Khan had two sons, Rohill and Alam Khan, the former of whom is said to " have been in the service of Abdul Nabbi Kalhorn, who conferred jagirs on " him. He died in the time of Mir. Ghulam Nabbi, leaving a son, Jam " Chatta." 2. The J agirdars enrolled as Sirdars from amongst Khosas were :-Rajah, son of Alam Khan, and Dilawa.r, grandson of Jam Chatt.a: It will be unnecessary therefore to my anything in respect of their position in the sub-sections devoted to them. Jam Chatta, it may, however, be added was, according to :Major Goldlmid, a Kardar under the British Government. He had been convicted of fraud and died while expiating his offence in prison. This conviction was not held to operate to the detrimeni of his successors. 
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Genealogical Xree of tke Khoaa Tribe. 

lSKAIL, 

I Rohill. 
Jj .. 
I There. 
I 

. 1  
J1wan. 

MirL. 
Kadt Bakhsh, 

Bijar. 

I Emam Bakh1h. 

Rolu .. I 
Alam Khan. Batm. 

I 
Jam Chata. 

I 
Raja, (61). 

Rohul, 
. . , D1llawar, (62). 
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No. ff. A.LAH KH�N KHOSO (DEOEA.SED) 

SUOOEEDED .B"t RAJAH. 

1. Alam Khan was found at the Conquest in possession of cer- . tain jagirs in La.rkana and_ Baghba,a which were continued to him. state atui its re- He died in 1849 or 1850, but there-grant then made 
gran., to his son,' Rajah, was (according to the Sanad finally issued) " for certain reasons can<>,elled". But the case com­ing again under enq11iry in 1854, Mr. Frere, Commissioner in Sind, restored the jagirs upon the principle then in vogue of calculat­ing the re-grantahle portion on the average yearly produce, and resuming the remainder as waste, or, in. rain lands, making over ¾ths of the former jagir and deducting the Bigabs. 

1. Deb Tulh in Larlcaua 60Z remaining one-fourth. In respect of the 
.2. Haleja iu Bagbbau . . .  67' first descripti�n of these lands an asse.ss­

',l'otal . . .  1,ora - ment was fixed as rent equal to a quarter of the net produce of the regranted jagir. The jagirs re-granted are noted marginall7 2.  The Baghban J a.gir was registered in the 2nd class, and 
Cluaification ai;id 

proposal. 

the Larkana one in the 4th class. Major Goldsmid there£ ore proposed a permanant grant of 560 B. to the J agirdar which, however, was reduced to 400 by Mr. Ellis �nd the Commissioner. His Sanad (No. 87) accordingly secured 400 B .  to his heirs, while it confirmed him. in his possessions (1,076 B). Settlement. 
3. 
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No. ff. JAM OHATPA AN.D ROHIL KHOSAS 
(.DEOEASED) SUOOEE.DED B Y  JJILA WAR. 

Jam Chatta and his son, Rlhil, were, like Ala.m Khan, found 
possessed, at the Conquest of certain jagirs which were continued 
to them by Sir Charles Napier. Ja.m Cha.tta died in January 1851, 

but the regrant to his son was withheld, and 
Estate and ita regrant. 

Rohil's own jagirs were at the same time 
confiscated. But the ease coming again under enquiry in 1854 
Mr. Frere decided on restoring to Rohil his owu jagirs 
entirely, and of his father, upon the principle applied 
D h T lb T - k 7 to Alam Khan's estate. Before however e u , ,...r ana . . . 53 
Haleja, Baghban . . .  1 ,021 the decision could be carried out, Rohil died, 

1•774 and the regrant anthorized for him was trans­
ferred as a spacial case to his son, Dilawa.r. The regranted lands 
are noted in the margin. Ont or these 1, 77JJ  B. 861 in Baghba.n 

Cla&,i6cation. 
,vere registered in the 2nd class and the 
whole of the remainder in the 4th class. 

2. The produce depended upon rainfall and was -conse­

Settlement. 
quently an uncertain provision. Mr. Ellis 
reduced the amount recommended by :Major 

Goldsmid (viz., 840 bigahs) to 600, and as the Sanad (No. 88) 
that was issued after the grant was sanctioned did not specify 
from what jagir the permanent area was to be selected, llr. 
Ellis' proposition was not much different from that of �fajor 
Goldsmid who had recommended that the permanent grant might 
be carved out of the Larkana. · jagir, and the Sannd (No. 88) 
secured this 600 B. to the heirs, without of course, any option, 
while it confirmed the Jagirdar in his possessions. 
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Pke Mugris. " The Mugsis may rather be considered inhabitants of Kachi " than of Sind, but they are of some importance to the latter " Province in connection with the Frontier Tribes. · Their Chief " is said to be Ahma.d Khan, but he does not appear in the list " of J agirdars. 2. " The Mugsis are noted for enmity to the Chandias, " whose land they adjoin, a feeling which may be held reciprocal. " The feuds of these classes have become almost proverbial ; nor " are the Rinda on the best of terms with the Mugsis, but their " divisions have been of a less determined kind."• 3. No complete Genealogical tree of this tribe could be obtained by Major Goldsmid. 

No. ff. G UL MUHAMMAD MUGS I. 

Position. 
Gui Muhammad, according to Major Gold­smid, had !' some pretensions to superior re­" spectability and social position." 2. He had in Mehar, 379 B. of which 220 had been declared a life-grant, and 159 regrantable for one 

Estate and classification. generation, less ¼th. 
Proposal. 

3. " As a well-known Zamindar resident " on his jagir," wrote Major Goldsmid :-�• perhaps the Commissioner might feel disposed to allow to the lineal " male heirs of Gui Muhammad 120 B. out of the whole 379, as a hereditary " alienation. This would be just the amount of the regrantable 159¼th or " 159-39=120." 4. Accordingly Gui Muhammad's Sanad (No. 83) confirmed 
Settlement. usual option. him in the possession of his jagirs 379 B. and accorded to his heirs 120 B. with the 

* Major Goldamid'e Appendu N, to wa report OJ1 tbe Sirdm. 
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Pke Kkokars. 

The Khokars are rather a Sindhi than a Baluch tribe. Lieute­nant Leech in his report on the Sindian armies stated that their jagir was east of Hyderabad, that their Sirdar's name was Ghulam Haidar, and that they mustered 1,000 strong. 2. Ghulaa Haidar's father, Bira, was the associate of the Talpurs in the war with the Kalhoras, and enjoyed the favours of the early Mirs when the country fell in their possession. His nephew, Bahadur Khan, rose to a high position at the same court. He was distinguished by Mir Murad Ali with the title of " Amir Kabir," the great nobleman, on the death of the Na­wab Wali Muhammad, and succeeded to the office of the latter Chief as Governor of Larkana. B ut notwithstanding the im­portance of the post offered, it required much pressing to prevail upon the Nawab Bahadur Khan to accept the honour.• 3. When Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk availing himself of Mir Murad Ali's invitation reached Saikarpur in 1832-33, and the Pathans of Moguly flocked to his standard, Mir N ur Muhammad sent Bahadur Khan in. the name of the other Mirs of Hyderabad to induce the Shah to proceed on his expedition against Kan­dahar. '11he Shah agreed to do so on payment of seven lakhs as tribute, and on promise of surrender of Moguly by the Amirs in the event of his establishing himself at Kandahar. He took Ba­hadur Khan with him to Kandahar, but failed in his attempt. 
(Major Goldneg's No. 32, dated 13th No'Dember 1847, to the Com­missioner in Sind). On Bahadur Khan's return to Hyderabad he was received with great ceremony by Mir Nasir Khan, who sent his son, Mir Hassan Ali, to meet him. He died a few years after­wards, and his jagirs were given to his cousin, Ghulam Haidar, before mentroned. 

* Major Goldamid'a Appoudix W. t.o hia repon on the Sirdara. 
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No. ff. G HUL.A.M H.A.ID.A.B KHOKA.R (DEOE.ASED) 
S UOOEEDED JJ Y  JJIB.A KH.A.N. 

Positiion. Ghulam Haidar was the undoubted head of the Khokar tribe. 2. He was found at the Oonquest in possession of 16,380 B.  
:Eat.ate and regrant. in Jhuda and 2,171 B. in Sehwan, in all 18,551 B. After his death which took place in 1845, his jagirs were regranted to Bira Khan, one portion subject to an assessment of 2 annas per bigah, and another subject to the payment of quarter-produce. 3, Captain Pelly registered the Sehwan J agir in the 3rd 

Classification. class, and 6,954 B, out of the Jhuda J agir in the 2nd class. The rest he registered in the 4th class. The Sehwan Jagir, however, was really in the 2nd class, and it was lowered to the 3rd " owing to Bira Khan's concealment of a Sanad which accorded. h3,lf the land to a relative." 4.. The Jagirdar lived on the Sarfraz-wah, one or his jagirs. 
Prop011al a.nd settlement. Major Goldsmid proposed that he should have 3,000 B. out of this jagir, but Hr. Ellis, with the Commis­sioner's approval, increased the amount to 4,000 B. to be selected, as usual, by the Jagirdar out of his estates. The Jagirdar's Sanad accordingly secured this amount to his heirs, without of course any optjon, while it confirmed. him in his possessions nnder the regrant of Sir Charles Na.pier subject to his existing liabilities. 5. Bira Khan died on the 21st February 1879. He was, 

Death. according to Captain Ra.th borne, " of amiable disposition and good character, but of straitened means." 
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No. {f. R UST.AM KHAN KHOKAll (DEOE,A.SED) 
S UOOEEDED B Y  MUBAllIK KHAN. 

Poaition. Bahadur Khan. Rustam Khan was grandson of Karim.­dad, who was one of the uncles of Nawab 2. Rustam Khan was, at the Conquest, found in possession 
Estat.e and regrant. 

of certain jagirs in Guni and Larkana which "'.'ere continued to him by Sir Charles Napier. He died in November 1851, and his jagirs were re­granted to his son, Mubarik, upon the principle then in vogue of calculating the regrantable portion upon the average yearly produce and resuming the remainder as waste. An assessment equal to ¼th of the net produce of the regranted jagir was also fixed. The regranted land was 1,322 B. in Guni and 1,427 B.  in Larkana. 
Clasaifica.tion. 

Proposal. 

3. Captain Pelly classed both these possessions in the 2nd class. 4. Major Goldsmid's proposal regard­ing this J agirdar was as follows :-" Mubarik has petitioned that land may be taken in lieu of the " assessment in Guni. I would recommend that such arrangement have " effect with both grants, reducing that in Larkana to 1,427-357=1,070, and that in Guni to J ,822-333= 989 Total 2,059 "" These might be converted into two unassessed grants of 1,000 biga.hs each. " Mubarik is a well-looking boy about 10 years of age, and will, it is hoped, " attePd the school proposed to be maintained at the dllage in which be " resides, and for which maintenance his payments to the .road and school " Fund would in part provide." He did not reside on any one of his J agirs. 5 .  Mubarik's Sanad confirmed him in his possessions subject 
Settlement. 

Death. 

to their subsisting liability, and granted to his heirs 2,000 bigahs without the option. 6: - · Mubarik died on the 24th of March 1879. 
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No. ff. KHAIB MUHA.MJL.1.IJ KHOKA.B (IJECEA.SBIJ) 

BUOOEEIJEIJ :B Y  BA. TT,1.. 

PGliUon. Khair Muhammad was son of Ratta who was an uncle of Nawab Bahadur Khan. 2. He was found at the Conquest in possession of 13,764 B. 
Ba1at.e audnpant. 

which were continued to him by Sir Charles Napier. He died in February 1852 and his jagirs were regrant.ed to his son Ratta. on the principle applied to Mubarik's case. The assessment fixed was, however, afterwards cancelled by a quarter land resumption effected at Ratta's own request in 1857. Thejagir land in possession of Ratta. in 1853 was 3,082 B. 
ClaDification aud 

ptoposal. 
S. Major Golclsmid wrote about this case as follows :-" This jagir being recorded in the ,th Class, I can oft'er no recommend­" ation on the subject. Ra.tta is a S1rdar, but his position is not such that· " he could be proposed for hereditary provision, without documentary evidence " of 2nd class". 4. Mr. Ellis, however, with the Commissioner's sanction, recommended him for a permanent grant of 1,500 bignhs, 

SetUemenl. 
without of course any option, and his Sanad accordingly contained this provision, while it continued Batta himself in'his possession of 3,082 B. 



270 fie Abra,. 
This is an ancient Sindhi tribe, and not like the Gopangs, Rajas, Chachars, and Oma.rs, confounded with Baluchis. They occupy Naushahro Abro, some of them being also sprinkled west of Larkana.. 

" The fa.me of this cJan," writes Major Goldsmid, " is celebrated {ar and 
" wide in legend and tradition. Jam Abro or Abro Abrami, the Sam ma ruler of 
" Ka.chi, whose deeds of prowess are sung in the Poem of Dodo and Chanessar, 
" may be reckoned· the most noted of their ancestry. Proofs might be ad­
" duced that the same Jam Abra is, moreover, the Samma ruler of Sind 
" spoken of by Ferishta.. Captain Burton goes so fa.r as to state that the 
" Abras despise all other clans because they do not belong to the same 
" name. 

" Eight generations before the present Jagirdar, and pending the in­
" cumbency in Sind of the Viceroys of India, lived Mir Muhammad, Chief 
" of the Abras. He and his brother, Jam Muhammad Sidik, possessed the 
" three ta.pas of Bakka.pur, Fatehpur and Khanwah in Larkana. His son, 
" Allah Wassa.yo, succeeded to the first of these. Jalal Khan was the next 
" lineal successor, and held also Sharifpur, now called Na.u Derah, and Jalal­
" pur, the present Naushahro; besides Ada.mji, Madeji, Aura.ngabad and 
" Umroos. 

" Fateh Khan, his eldest son, was in Ka.chi when Jalal Khan died. 
" Kamal Khan, brother of the deceased, received in consequence the Tur­
" ban of Family supremacy. But Fateh Khan soon returned with a retinue 
" to claim his rights, and ·Kamal Khan fled. Jalal Khan's three brothers 
" who had held Ba.kka.pur, during the late Chief's life time, were now com­
" pelled to give up that possession also to their nephew. 

" Pir Muhammad succeeded Fateh Khan, and opposed the inroads o{ 
" the Kalhoras, who had overrun the country, on the west bank of the 
" Indus below Shikarpur, so far back as under Nasir Muhammad. The 
" Powhars of Khodad had given way before them, and the ft '·ra Chief was 
" also compelled to yield. The victors restored to him fths of his old tenures. 
" On his demise, his son, Fateh Khan, quite a lad, received a grant of Seri 
" valued at Rupees 500 per annum. 

'' The next in succession, Jalal Khan Abra, was a person of great dis­
,, tinction under the Kalhor9, dynasty. Upon the extinction of that regime 
" Mir F1>-teh Ali endeavoured to persuade him to join the Talpur Court, but 
" he declined the honour, prefetring an honourable seclusion in his own village. 
" The Mir conferred upon him Seri and Mamul grants, and he in turn at­
" tended the ruler in time of war." This account Major Goldsmid obtained from Ali Mardan, the son of ,Jalal, who further added that his father received a golden sword from M.ir Nasir Khan. 
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No. ff . .A.LI MA.BIJ.J..N KHAN .A.BBO. 

Ali :Mardan was head of all the Abras. According to 
POllition. Captain Goldney, he was " rated as able to 

" produce some 8,000 to 10,000 men,'' and was " a quiet, inoffensive 
" man oooupying himself in agriculture." He cc dug a canal above 
cc twenty-two miles long, in 1844-45," (cide al.lo .Major Goldmid,'s 
.Memoir of Skikarpur, page 44, Sind Sekcti<>na No. XVII). 

2. It was unnecessary to ascertain the truth of the asserted 
Estate and claaaiilcation. grants of Seri and Mamul under Mir Fateh 

Ali, as these could not be taken into account for classification of 
jagirs. Ali Mardan posses$ed 786½ B. in two separate grants of 
726 and 60½ bigahs each. This latter was granted as grazing 
land for Ali Mardan's horses at Ta.rai, the old dwelling place of 
the Abra Chief. The former was in continuation of a prior grant 
by Mir Murad Ali which was however discontinued by Mir Nasir 
Khan for a few months. A reference to Mir Nasir Khan's 
accoµnts shows that Ali Mardan received 971 Shikarpur rupees 
and 100 Kharwars of rice yearly. Captain Pelly registered the 
Jagirdar's possessions in the 4th class. 

Propoaal and settlement. 

Goldsmid :-
3. " lly own opinion is," wrote Major 

" that while Government can scarcely be expected to accord more to " any Ja.girda.r for ..hereditary maintenance, than the provision of which he " was found to be in possession at the Conquest, yet that in the present case " a  confirmation in frvour of Ali Mardan and his lineal male heirs of, say, " 750 of his 786½ B. hlight be recommended." 
This was approved and the Sanad (No. 84) contained the 

necessary provision with the usual ,option. 

1884. 
Death. 4. He died on the 13th November 

--
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The KAatianB. 

This is a semi-Pathan, semi-Baluch race, occupying the country northward of the Bhugti territory, near the Upper Sind Frontier. They are classed by Lieutenant Postans with five other Afghan and Pathan Tribes " skirting the hills and in the low " country between Sibi and Dadar." " They appear," writes Major Goldsmid, " to have attached themselves " from an early date to the fortunes of the Talpurs, under whom many of their " Chiefs became J agirdars of note and influence. Ismail and Musa were, " perhaps, the more distinguished, yet I have been unable to trace a Sanad " in favour of either, granted by the elder Mirs. According to Captain " Pelly, the latter was a famous Lion-slayer and friend of .Mir Fa.teh Ali." 2. The Sirdars selected from this tribe were all grandsons of Ismail. 
Genealogical Tree of the Kkatian Tribe. 

I 
Talib. 

Ka.LL 
I 

Kl 
I 

Muham­
mad 

Araf. 

GhJam 
Muham-

mad. 
I 

I I 
Khuda Khair 
:Bakhal.. Muham­

mad. 

A.Dill. 
I 

ML 
I 

r-1 
Ghulam Ghulam 
Muham- Shah. 

mad, 
(68). 

Ghim 
Bydar. 

I 
BAmza. 

� 
:Muham- Nuar 

mad Ali, 
Hasan, (70). 
(69). 

I 
Bamsa. 
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No. ff. G HULA.M XUHA.MM.J..D. 

He was an old servant of Mir Nur Muhammad. Accord­

Position. 
ing to Lieutenant Leech l)e had " 1,000 
" Rupees a month, and �O jagirs, besides 

" 100 Kharwas of grain," for which he was required to furnish 
1,000 men in time of war. 

2. Of the 68,221 biga'lls held by him in Badin, llala, 
Sa.krand, Sehwan and Ta.tta, Captain Pellv 

Bltate and oJaaaidoation. " 

follows :-
registered 65,803 B. in the 2nd class • as 

In Hyderabad • . • ••• ••• ... . • • . • • . • • 41,861 
In Karachi... . .. ... ... ... ... ... . . . . .. 23,4'42 

65,303 

3. The estimated annual produce of the Hyderabad 2nd 
class jagir was 5,157 Rs. and of the Karachi 

Propoeal and aettlement. ones Rs. 3,390, in all Rs. 8,547. Under the 
ordinary rules deducting a quarter (Rs. 2,137) and allowing one 
Rupee to represent one bigah of cultivated land and two of fallow 
land, there would have had to be regranted 19,230 B. But Major 
Goldsmid, r ollowing the spirit of a rule laid down by Sir Charles 
Napier, was ·of opinion that no hereditary grant should be larger 
than 5,000 B. " e�pt in special cases such as 1st class or Four 
" Great Family grants," and he therefore recommended. this 
amount for a, .  permanent provision. The Sanad (No. 76) of the 
J agirda.r accordingly secured it to his heirs with the usual option, 
while it confirmed ·him in his possessions. 

Deatb. 4i. He died on the 20th November 1872. 
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No. ff. Jtf.UH..J..HJf..J..D H..J..SS..J..N KH..J.. TI..J..N. 

No. ff. N..J..Z..J..B .J.LI KJIA TI..J..N. 

Pomtion. j'hese two brothers were sona of Hamza. 
the uncle of Ghulam Muliammad. 

2. They held one large jagir of ZB,904 B. in Raia in the 
Eatue an,d clallification. proportion of 2 to 1. Capta� P�y regis-

tered their ja.gir in the 3rd class, as he was unable to ascertain 
whether the grants made b1 Mir Murad Ali were " original or 
" c�ntinuative grants." He did not propose to include them in his 
list of Sirdars. 

3. Major Goldsmid, however, showed that the Sanad. upon 
Proposal ud eeW.ement. which Captain Pelly had placed Ghulam 

Muhammad's jagirs in the 2nd class was one giving the jagirs of 
the deceased Musa (Gula.m Muhammad's father) to his son, " his 
brothers and nephews;" that on the death of Mir Murad Ali who 
issued that Sanad, Ghulam Muhammad went to Mir Nur 
Muhammad, and bis uncle, Hamza, to Mir Nasir Khan ; that it 
then became evident who w.ere the sharers and what their parti. 
cular shares were ; that when Hamza died, Mir Nasir Khan 
regranted half of his sh&re to his sons ; and that as a matter of 
fact, their jagirs stood 011 the same footing as Gu.lam Muhammad's. 
Mr. Ellis, on these grounds, with the sanction of the Commis­
sioner, recommended Mu.ham.mad Il$Ssan for a permanent aliena­
tion of 2,000 B. and Nazar Ali for that of 1,000 B. Their Sanads 
(Nos. '77 •nd 78) accordingly { while confirming them in their pos­
s.essions ii,. C4erawa and Jakri) oocorded to their heirs 2,000 
o.nd 1,000 biga.hs respectively with the usual option, 

Dea� 4. }luhammad. Hassan died on the 19th 
October 1871. 
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Hucellaneou, Sirdars. 

The Jagirdars grouped under this head were a Husseni Say. 
ad, two grandsons of Pir Sirhindi, and a Barakzai Pathan. Their 
Genealogical trees were as follows :-

8A.YAD KA.IM SHAH HUSSENI. 

I 
I Ghulam Rasul Shah. I Sirdar Shah. I Kadir Bakhsh Shah, 
I 

(«lead), 

. I Pir Bakhsh. Ghulam (Died in 1887). 
. I 

Fa1z Muham-

Nabi. 
mad. 



276 

Pree qf Pir Sarl.ifldi J agirdara. 

PIB, GHULAM MAmY-UD-DIN. 

I 
PUC Nil-ud-dlll, 

PUC l-ud-dUI. 

I Pir Fida llahiy-ud-din. 
PUC Mubamlad Ashrat 

I 
Pir Pir Baha-ud- Shams-ud-din. din. (dead). (Present Jagirdar). 

I Pir Nurud-a­din. Pir Shoua-ud­din. 
I 

Pir Ohulam Nak11h­band. (Present Jagirdar). 
Pree of the Afgha,n Barakzai Jagirdara. 

ABDULAH KHAN, 

I Abdulah Khan. 
I Atta Alah Khan. (Present Jagirdar). 

I Juma Khan. 
I Kher Alah Khan. 

Usman Khan. 
Abdul Rahman Khan. (Present Jagirdar), 

l Unknown. 
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No. H, SA YAJJ KAIM SHAH HUSSBNI {JJBOB..d..SBJJ) 

8UOOEBDBJJ B Y  SA YAJJ GHUL..d..M B..d..SUL. 

Kahn Shah's father, Imam Ali, "  held a very high position 

POlition. 
" under Mir Karam Ali, and was long con .. 
" fidentially employed by that Mir as Mukh­

tyarkar. His son, Kailn Shah, was also after his father's death 
" employed by Mir Nasir Khan in the . same manner, and at the 
" Conquest had charge of Samtani and other Pargannas in that 
" neighbourhood belonging to that Amir. He collected a con­
" siderable force to aid his master in the war,"• which however, 
was dispersed after Meani, without having been brought into 
action. 

2. Captain Stack adds that Sayad Imam Ali had only re• 
. . ceived money and grain pay, but that Mir 

Eatate and claaei1ication. v . Kha . Ka' Shah • • • ddi �asir n gave un a, JBgtr m a -
tion. This jagir, withheld at the Conquest and for some years 
after, from various causes, was regranted by the Commissioner 
so late as October 1858, under the orders of the Bombay Gov­
ernment ( Vide Sanad No, 96). By the regrant, five co-sharers 
were put in possession t,iz :-

Sayad Kaim Shah. ,, Ghola.m Rasul. 
} " Sirdar Shah. 

,, Kadar Bakhsh. 
his sons. 

,, Pir Bakhsh, his grandson, 
Their shares not being defined, were �idered equal, and 

were all entered under the Srd class. The last measurement 
of the jagir showed it to consist of 25,206 N. B., whereof 12,515 
were salt and utterly waste. The balance (12,691) divided by 5 
would represent the shares of each holder. 

Captain Stack's Memotandum !fo. 1ft, dated 9Ua September 1863. 
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3. KaiJn Shah died in November 1866, and his share was 

Begraot. 
regranted to his eldest son minus a fourth 
(which however, was farmed out to him as 

Government land) for life. 

Proposal. 
4. " The only addition which I would 

" submit," wrote Major Goldsmid :-
" to the tenns of this settlement would be that, on the death of Sayad 

" Ghulam Rasul, in lieu of a regrant to a son of his own aha.re less ¼th, the next 
" incumbent be allowed to choose 1,800 B. of the 4,442 for a hereditary posses­
" sion. This recommendation is made in consideration of the very high 
" position of the Sasads under the Mira, and not with reference to ancient 
" tenure, although the latter is 11upported, in some wa.y, by a deed of Mir 
" Fateb Ali to Sayad Ghulam Shah, the father of Sayad Imam Ali afore• 
" said. 

" The J agirdars reside at a,bou.t 2 koss distance Crom their jagirs. They 
'' are persons of great influence, and well-known at Sehwan." 

5. Sayad Ghulam Rasul's Banad (No. 96) confirmed him in 

Settlement,. 

:Makana Theri 11,11d Akri,. 6,876 B, 

the posse&sions of the lands margin­
ally noted, and accorded to his heirs 
1,800 B. with the usual option. 
He had of course to pay a lump 

assessment (Rs. 155) annually on that portion of the 5,076 B. 
which had been farmed out to him. 
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No. ff. PIB NIZ...4.M- UJJ-DIN SIRHINJJI (JJBOB...4.SBJJ} 

SUOOBBDBJJ B Y  PIB IMAM- UD-DIN. 

[ No. ·f!. PIB FIDA MUHIY-:- UD-DIN SIBHINDI 

(DBOBASBD) S UOOBBDBD B Y  PIR MUHAMMAD 
.A.SHEAF. 

For many years prior to the Conquest of Bind, the brothers, 
POiiti.on. 

Nizam-ud-din and Fida Muhiy-ud-din, had been well known in the present Shikarpur Coliector­ate as Pirs of considerable repute. Pir Nizam-ud-din laid claim to an A.rah descent, adding that his ancestor, Ferrukh Shah, settled in Kabul and converted many of the inhabitants of that city to Muhammadanism. The family went from thence to Sirhind, and settled there, building a town. They had followers in Balkb, Bokhara, Kabul and Peshawar, and numbered among their Murids the soTereigns of Hindustan, and Ahmad Shah Abdali. Nizam­'Ud-din further inf or med Major Goldsmid that the latter monarch brought back some of his ancestors from Sirhind· to Kabul. His father, Ghulam Muhiy-ud-din, came from Peshawar to Sind in A. D. 1790, and repeated his visit&. In 1806, he abandoned ,Peshawar, and, at the instigation of the Amirs and owing to the Sikh movement, took up his abode in this Province. 2. The A.mire of Sind gave the family 5,000 B. of land, and Azim Khan Barakzai and Ayub Shah aided more favours. On the death of Ghulam Muhiy­ud-din, Mir&bdar gave Ni.iam-ud-din and his brother 800 bigahs in Silrah and 8 Kharwars of grain from Larkana. Pir Nizam-ud-din assured Major Goldsmid that the Hyderabad Mira bestowed money and jewels upon them .to a very, large amount, Mir :Mir Muhammad Khan making an annual payment of Rupees 800 and 4 Kharwars �f Sugdasi rice. There is no occasion, however, 



280 to detail the jagirs, money, and grain, of which possession is asserted to·have been held under the Afghan Kings, Timur, Zeman and Muhammad Shah ; suffice it to say that at the Conquest the two brothers were confirmed in the alienations of which they were found in possession. 3. Fida Muhiy-ud-din died in 1853. It was assumed that 
Regrant to Muhammad he and his brother had held their alienations 

Ashraf ud c:i-ific&tion. in equal shares, and consequently under the rules then in force, ·Fida's son, Pir Muhammad Ashraf, was re-
In Larbna, Selro . . . . . .  235 B. granted one-half of the total alienations 

· In Sbibrpur, Guja .. .  m B. after deduction of waste, subject to an " Dalilpur . . .  lth 

Ir, Naushah!"!b:, .. . lth assessment fixed in lieu of Chowth. Captain 
Kot Hr.bib . . . . . . . . .  1,2,e Stack recorded his opinion that Muhammad Ashraf's possessions should be " in perpetuity," and para. 6 of the Commissioner's decision on the subject (No. 3366, dated 16th November 1853), seemed to confirm such proposed treatment. Muhammad Ashraf under the regrant held the possessions marginally noted. They were registered in the 4th class by Captain Pelly, who apparently had not Captain Stack's report before him. 4. Captain Pelly in 1855, while classifying Pir Muhammad 
Regrant to Imamud-din Ashraf's jagirs, arranged prospectively for 

and clamification. Nizam-ud-din's share, as a 3rd class alienation, under the then ·regulations of a quarter land resumption without reference to waste land ; and on Pir Nizam-rn Larbna, Selro .. . 220 B. 
In Shibrpur, Guja . . . 527 B. ud-din's demise this arrangement came in ,,. Dalilpur .. .  lth 

In Nauahah�aJll:,, 
. . . ltb force. Under it Pir Imam-ud-din obtained 

Kot H•bib . . . . . . . . . eso B. the possessions marginally noted. 5. Muhammad Ashraf and Imam-ud-din had each a "  more " than commonly large number of brothers 
Major Goldlmid'a propoal. cc b .d th la . . . es1 es many o er re tives to maintain," and the estates were deeply burdened with debt. 



281 " If the present two Jagirdars," wrote Major Goldsmid, " be the last of " their race, respectively, ruin stares the whole of these young men in the " face. The younger ones are at school, the eldE:r are not used or mu!lh " qnalified to earn a respectable livelihood, a greater evil than all is an " intense jealousy of the senior brother to whom Government has awarded " the jagir, and perpetual bickerings arise on account of shares of main­" tenance. It would be difficult to conceive a more divided brotherhood " than that of the sons of Fida Muhiy-ud-din, and the sons of Nizam-ud-din " are too ready to enter the field on behalf of the more discontented of their " cou,gins. " On the death of Muhammad Ashraf, the whole maintenance of " one branch of the family would cease. That of the other branch is equally " dependent on the life of Imam-ud-din. " The social position of the Jagirdars is not only such as would warrant " hereditary confirmation of grants which would be hereditary by rule, but " it would almost warrant an exception in their favour, in the event of fail ­" ure of documentary evidence. It  is, however, necessary in the first in­" stance to analyze the tenures of Ouja, Dalilpur and Kot Habib. " The first and la.st though in the Shikarpur Collectorate, are grant.q of " Mir Murad Ali and conseqnently 3rd class, but the grant of Dalilpur is by " the Afghan Government, and the point to be decided is whether such " grant should be guided by the rules which apply to the Hyderabad or to " the Upper Sind Mirs ? If to the latter, it would be 2nd, if to the former " a 3rd cla&1 grant. My opinion is that the particular part of the country " whence this alienated revenue is derived, having subsequently come into " the share of the Hyderabad Suba, the Afghan Sanads should be considered " as of that branch of the Talpurs, and should, therefore, not entitle the " holder to superior trel\tment." 
The jagir of Silro was a grant by Mir Sobdar but registered 

in the Collectorate Roll in the 2nd class, on the ground of Sir­
darship of the grantees. 

There being no documentary evidence to justify the classifi­
cation of the holdings as hereditary, Major Goldsmid, on the 
strength of the J agirdars' local posit.ion and in order to provida for 
their numerous families, made the following proposal which was 
not strictly according to rule :-" On the dee.th ·of either of present incumbents, I would resume the " half alienation in the name of deceased, and allow a, money grant from the " revenues of Dalilpur for the maintenance of the surviving family. On the " demise of the second incumbent, I would resume the remainder of the aliena­" tion and. double the money grant, to provide for the additional number of " dependents on Government bounty. This should be a fixed and permanent " pt:lnsion for lineal heirs male of Pirs Nizam-ud-din and Fida Muhiy-ud-din, 
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" in trust with the Collector, and payable in such portions to such members 
" of the family in the direct descent as he may think, on political or purely 
".charitable grounds, merit the bounty." Mr. Ellis, however, did not approve of this proposal. He re­commended that Pir Imam-ud-din and Pir 

11
:et:�::,!:.°poaa1 and Muhammad Ashraf should each receive an hereditary assignment of 1,000 B., and this was sanctioned. Accordingly their Sanads (Nos. 86 and 85 respect­ively) secured this provision to their heirs without of course any option, while they confirmed them in their possessions under their respective regrants. 

No. ff. ABD ULLAH KHAN PA. THAN. 

" The social position of Abdullah Khan," wrote Major Gold­
Position. 

smid, " is in my opinion, that of a Sirdar, " inasmuch as he is an Afghan gentleman " of the Barakzai family, related to Dost Muhammad Khan of " Kabul: His father, Juma Khan, was a person under tho Afghan '' Government, and was the ambassador or agent employed on " behalf of his countrymen in negotiating with the Sindhi Nawab " Wali Muhammad, for the cession of that city to the Mirs " in A. D. 1824. He still remains at the old paternal residence " o( Garhi Yasin, about 8 miles from Shikarpur, whence he " derives his share of revenues. He is thus a resident Jagir­,. dar or Pattadar by whichever term he may be designated, and " he attends himself to the creation and increas� of his own means " of maintenance, by cultivation and agricultural improvements. 
ii It is to this very place Garhi Yasin, that Abdul Mansur, last " of the Afghan Governors of Shikarpur, retired as a last resource, " when expelled the Sindian territory." 



283 2. It appears from a deed of Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk dated 
Eatate. 

August 1810, that Ahmad Khan, brother of Juma. Khan, had received remission of 75 Tomauns upon the Government share of purchased lands and canals in his possession, in lieu of pay. Owing to the death or Ahmad Khan, the revenues of certain lands were alienated in favor of Juma Khan, in lieu of the said money remission. A deed of Muhammad Shah, bearing date the same month and year and much to the same purport, is also among the jagir re­cords. Major Goldsmid did not in his Appendix: Z. to his report on the Sirdars attempt to explain the double Sanad farther than by citing the historical information, that about the time each was granted Shah Shuja. became a wanderer, and Shah Muhammad occupied the throne of Kabul in his stead. 
" Two later deeds of grant were by Sirdar Muhammad Azim, and by 

" Sher Dil Khan of Kandahar respectively, aud were both of the same date 
" (viz, A. D. 1821) and to the same purport. This repetition of a double 
" Sanad seems to have been occasioned by the divided interests existing at 
" the time in Afghanistan, and a wish to secure the alienations recorded to 
" the grantees under any circumstances of future revolution. These docu­
" ments confirm to J uma Khan Bara.kzai two out of three shares of the Gar hi 
" Y a.-,in revenues, in accordance with former usage, and for the grantee's 
" own cultivation. The wording of each Sanad leads to the belief that half 
" the whole revenues was intended, and that there was consequently a fourth 
" share unmentioned. For two out of four shares is the gist of the claim, and 
" this is just what Mir Nasir Khan accorded on the 5th .April 1842. 

" In 1842 the British Government proposed to the Mirs to farm tho 
" District in which was Abdullah Khan's jagir, or rather, as it was then 
" designated, the jagir of the sons of Juma Khan. A question as to its re­
" sumption was then under discussion, and a letter of Mir Hussen Ali is 
" in existence to show that the British authorities interfered on behalf of 
" the Jagirdars. The matter remained in abeyance, pending enquiry: The 
" .Assistant Political .Agent, Shikarpur, has however recorded• his opinion 
" in the following terms :- ' There never was a question of the right of 
" ' J uma Khan to his possessions, until the transfer of these districts to us was 
" ' agitated, and we a.re con&equontly considered as connected with the pro­
" ' ceedings. The only other jagirs thus held by the Pir Nizam-ud-din have 
" ' not been interfered with, and there certainly appears no reason why those 
" ' of J uma Khan should not be as heretofore.' " 

Lieutenant Postans io .Major Outram, No. 121, dawcl 23rd January 184i. 



284 3. Lieutenant Postans had also issued a Parwana to Abdullah Khan that, he would " not be deprived of his rights by the British " Government." Subsequently, the negotiations for the transfer of Shikarpur were broken off, and in the beginning of the ensu­ing year, occurred the battle of Meani and the conquest of Sind. But in the meanwhile, Mir K asir Khan had placed Abdullah Khan and his brother in possession of new Sanads dated in April and May 1842. 4. These revenues continued to be thus alienated under Brit­ish Collectors until the end of 1845, when Major Goldney called attention to the dispossession of 1841, admitting however, restora­tion in 1842. Much stress was laid upon the term " For service " used in the several Deeds of grant. 5. Enquiry was directed to be made from the Hyderabad records, and the result was that His Excellency the Governor re­granted the two shares less ¼th only, or three out of eight shares. 6. In his report No. 22, dated 7th February 1854, on Patta­
Classification. 

daris, Major Goldsmid treated Abdullah Khan as a Pattadar though he recorded that the share of revenue had been alienated as jagir. In the Nau­shahro Abro Roll occurs the following passage :-
" The earliest title deed forthcoming for this tenure is that of Jema-di-ul­

" Sani 1236, which describes it as a jagir on account of service. It would he 
" more correct, however, to describe the tenure as a Hissadari. As however, 
" there is some doubt on the point, and as the Sanad of 1236 refers to a 
" former grant, I recommend that the tenure be allowed the advantages of a. 
" 3rd class jagir grant, regrantable for one generation." In the Collectorato 
Roll, .on the other hand, it is classified as a Pattadari in the 3rd class, and 
consequently a life-grant. 7. On these facts Mr. Ellis recommended, Abdullah 

Propoaal and aettlemeu,. Khan and his brother, Khairulla Khan, for a permanent grant of ¾ths of the village. Their Sanad (No. 89) thus recites the facts bearing on their position in 1858, in whicl1 they were confirmed :-
" N_o'_V it has been found on enquiry that at the Conquest of Sind, you 

" were Jointly possessed of half the jagirs in Dch Garhi Yasin, T�luka 



286 " Naushahro Abro, which were continued to you by His Excellency the " Governor, Sir Charles Napier. But in tht:i year 1846, after enquiry into " former possession, it was decided for good and sufficient reasons to resume " one quarter of the produce and to reserve to you three shares of the eight " divisions comprising the entire deh." The Sanad accords to their heirs the amount of three out of the eight shares in the above deh, of course without option. 
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CHAPTER IV. 

FIRST OLA.SS KHA.IBA.TJJABS. 

No. 1. M.J.KBD UM ABDUL KRALIK (DEOE.4.SE.D) 

SUCCEEDED B Y  MA.KHD UM MUHAMMAD A.KIL, 

a·nd 

MUEIA.MM.dD R.dFIK A.ND MUHAMMAD A.BID. 

Genealogy &ad Positoa. 
Th� genealogy of this Khairatdar is as 

follows :-
MIAN AHMADI (died before 1802 A. D.) 

Muhammad Akil. 

Abdul Khalik and others. 

Muhammad Akil. 

I 
Muhammad Rank. 

I 
Muhammad. 

. I 
:Muhammad Ab1d. Muhammad 

Kasim (deceased.) 
* There is a separate Chapter (Chapter iii) (Cl Khairats in the first volume " Alieoa­., tions in Sind. n lwfereuce is invited to that Chapter for an account of the Khairntdari " aettleuieut. 



287 Mukhdum Mian Ahmadi was a person or unurual respecta­ability in the time or the Afghan Government. His family had a reputation for holiness and learning. 2. The first Sanad given to this family was one by Ahmad Shah Durani on the 12th November 1761 con-
Title. firming certain remissions on the villages of Bawati, Mirzapur, and Jerinja " agreeably to former custom.'' Mian Ahmadi, the grantee, appears to have been owner of the land. The rest were by Timur Shah (in 1780), by Zaman Shah (1787), by Muhammad Shah {1802), by Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk (1219 A. H.), by Mir Rustam {1813), an,d by Mir Sohrab in 1828 and 1828. The Sanads of the Afghan kings granted remissions the value of which was dependant on the quantity of grain produ�ed or the number of bigahs cultivated-the Government tax being restricted to /0th share of the former, and to one Rupee for each bigah of cash assessment. Mir So4rab's Sanad in 1828, however, which was granted to Abdul Khalik, :made an eq'!lal division of revenue between him and the Government,· or the lands held by him under the first Sanad of his family and of Musapur, a dependency of Deh Mirzapur. Mir Sohrab's last Sanad was sealed and confirmed by Sir Charles Na pier: His Sanad in 1823 fixed the shares of Abdul Khalik at tths and or Muhammad Rafik and Muhammad Abid at ¼th each. The tot!\l value of these shares was Rs. 1,378. 8. Abdul Khalik died on the 11th of May 1852, and Major Goldsmid •recommended that as the tenure 

Regrant •nd Settlement. was more than 60 years old, it should be con-firmed to Muhammad Akil agreeably to the terms of Mir Sohrab's Sanad in 1823, in order to put an end to all future litigation, there having arisen a great deal of it on the death Abdul Khalik. The Commissioner concurred with Major Goldsmid 
• No. 293, dated 26th August 1864, to the Commissioner. 



288 that the rights · of the co-sharers being defined in a Sanad of a former ruler, should be enforced against the head of the 
a family by the Collector without the interveption of the Civil Courts, and that the claim should be confirmed heredita.rily• " to " the legitimate lineal male descendants of the original grantee, " llian Ahmadi in the names of Muhammad Akil. . . . . " and of his co-sharers Muhammad Rafi.k: and Muhammad A bid." t The Bombay Govemment in their Resolution No. 5479, dated 18th December 1854, agreed to the confirmation of the grant " as " proposed," and it was further confirmed at the final Settlement. Its value was then stated to have been Rs. 599 and the area of the lands as 3,000 bigahs. 

* No. 3251, dated 30th October 1854, to the Aaaiatant Commiesioner. 
t No. 359, dated 30th October 1854, from :Mr. Frere to the Bomba7 Govenmaent. 
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No. !J. S..I.. Y.4.JJ GHUL.4.M SH..J..H SIRD..d.R, 
( JJEOEA.SED ) S UOOEEJJEJJ B Y  SA YAD MIA.N 

NUB HUSSEN. 

Genealogy. The genealogy of this Khairatdar was as follows :-

SAYAD MUSTAFA, (1). 

I Sayad Murw.a, (2). 
I Sayad Muhammad Sayad, (+). 
I Sayad Mir Ghulam .M.urtaza Sirdar, (6). 
I Sa.yad Mir Muhammad Sa.yad Sirdar, (8). 
I Sa.yad Mir Gbulam Murtaza or Ohulam Shah Sird!U', (10). 

Sayad IDr Luhommad Sa.yad or Sayad Mir Sayad Khan, Sirdar, (12). 
I Sa.yad Mir Ghulam Murtaza. or Sa.yad Ghula.m Shah, Sirdar, (14), (died without issue on the 26th September 1852), Married to the daught.er of No. 11. 

I 
I Sayad Muhammad lsha.k, (3). 
I Sayad Allah Ba.khsh, (5). 

Sa.yJ LuLf Ali, (7). 

I Sayad Mia.n Bakhsh Ali, (9). 

I Sayad Mian Nur Husse11, (11), married to the daughter of No. 8. 
Sayad Ldar .Bakhsh, (13). 

I 
I Sayad Ghulam Bussen, (15). 



290 2. Sayad Ghulam Shah " was the head and representative 
Position and Title. 

" of a large fraternity of Sayads "• who had settled in Sayadpur which derived its name from their number and influence-at the beginning of the 17th century A. D. At the Conquest Sa.yad Ghulam Shah Sirdar (14) was fouud. in possession of ¼th revenues of 1Jiaji,t Panah AkiJ, Sarai Sarkhu, Nindapur, and Burst-of ¼th revenues of Deh· Hengorawahan, Nauraja., and Bani Kharkasa-and of ¼th reve­nues of Shafiabad. All these are mentio�ed as portions of Sayad. pur in a Sanad of Mir Rustam dated 23_rd May 1817 to Sayad Ghulam Shah (10) and his brotherhood, which granted ¼th reve­nues (Munafa) of Sayadpur, and in a Sanad of Mir Mubarik dated 30th April 1822 to the same grantee and of the same pur­port. Two earlier Sanads of Mir Sohrab to Mir Ghulam Shah alone had also confirmed these revenues in :May 1799 and May 1802, and Major Goldsmid t was further of opinion that a Sanad of Khuda Yar Khan Abbasi (Nur Muhammad) dated May 1738 continuing the " Mamul Mahsul of Ta pas and Mauzas as before " to Mir Ghulam Murtaza and other Sayads referred probably to tht,se same possessions, which he conjectured from two other Sanads of doubtful purport granted by the Emperors Jahangir and Shah Jahan in 1611 and 1619 A. D. respectively, were very ancient. 3. Sayad Ghulam Shah who had been confirmed in his possessions at the Conquest in 1845 died on 
Regra.nt and Settlement. • • • , the 26th September 1852, and his S1rdar1 or Dastar descended by the common consent of the family upon his great-uncle and father-in-law, Sayad Mian N ur Hussen. " The turban," wrote Captain Goldsmid, " seems to generalize the grant, 

* No. 50, dated 11th January 1853, from Lieutenant Lester, Deputy Collector, Left 
Bank, to the Collector of Sbikarpur. 

t In the Saoad this ia written Bazidji. 

l No, 192, dated 14th June 1864, to the Commiaaioner. 



291 

" and provide for the § sub-divisions, without the interference of 
" Government," and on this account he recommended II that 
Sayad Mian Nur Hussen who undertook to be responsible to 
Government for the arrears due to Government from his prede­
cessor should be regranted the revenues in perpetuity. :Mr. Frere 
accordingly recommended 'f to Government the confirmation of 
the shares of revenue enjoyed by the deceased " to  Nur Hussen 
" the present Sirdar, and to the Sirdar for the time being, for 
" himself and brotherhood." A deduction of 6 per cent. was 
however, to be made annually and " credited to_ Government as 
" his share of the district expenses." The confirmation was ac­
corded by Bombay Government . Resolution No. 705, dated 15tb 
February 1855, a.nd eventua.lly at the final Settlement. 

§ Besides Nur Hmaen \he following had shares ('1id, Lieutenant Lester'• letter quot. 
ed at page 290} :� 

Sayad Subban Shah. 
Fazul Shah. 
Kambar Ali Shah. 
Hayat Ali Shah. 
Lian Ali Shah. 
Hamz Ali Shah. 
�hair Muhammad. 
Sab Peyah Shah. 
Sataru Shah. 
Sadik Ali Shah. 
Himayat Ali Shah. 
AisaD Ali Shah. 

D No. 192, dated 14th June 1� to \he Commiuioner. 

,. Appendix to No. 440, dat.ed 18th Deoember 1854, to Gomument. 
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:Kawam• 
ud-din. 

Shams• 
ud-din. 

I 
Ghulam 

Nabi. 
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Genealogical Tree of Nos. 8 and 4. 

I 
Mir 

Tan-ud-din. 
I 

I Kubam• 
mad 

Kuim. 

1hr 
Sayad 
Khan. 

Jrr 
Andal 
Shah. 

I 
Sayad 
Nabi 

Bakliah. 

I 
Sayad 
Muham• 

mad 
Shah. 

I 
Ghulam 
BU88ell, 
(No, 8). 

Abdul 
Rasul 

Ghuhull 
Ali 

Shah, 

Allab­
clitto. 

SAYAD ABDUL AWAL. 
I 

�-
ud-din. 

I 
Abdul 
Kadur. 

I 
Jir 

Huham­
mad 
Ali. 

Ghulam 
Haidat-. 

llurid 
Ali 

Shae. 

I 
Mir 

A.akar 
Ali. 

Nural 
Shah. 

I 
1adu1 
Shah. 

I 
Ohulam 
Shah. 

I 
Sayad 

){nbamroad. 

1 
Se.yad 
Ahmad 
Shah. 

Mir 
Hamid. 

I 
Mir 

Akbar 
Ali. 

I llrr 
Bakhah 

Ali. 

I 
Mir 

Fazul 
Ali. 

Mir 
Sayad 

Ali 
Shah. 

Daim 
Ali 

Shah. 

Sayad 
llahmad. 

Mir 
Muhammad 

Azim. 

Mir 
Muharomad 

AfzuL 

lfir 
Bakar 
Shah. 

I 
Morand 

Shah. 

xulmaa 
Shah. 
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No. 3. GHULAM HUSSEN SllAH SA YA.D. 

This Khairatdar was at the Conquest in possession of t'!ith of 
Title. 

the revenues of Dehs Sultanpur,. Sanjari and Amirabad. The oldest Sanad in his possession was one by Ahmad Shah Durani in A. D. 1850, granted to Sayads Muhammad Kazim, and Kuwam-ud-din, the great grand-father of the Khairatdar. · It stated that these Sayads having represented that they had certaib' hereditary landed property in Alore and Mathela, and gardens in Jatoi and Sayadabad for which they had been in the habit of paying a low rent, their prayer for the retention of their former privilegea and remissions had been granted. A Parwana of Abdul Nabi Kalhorn dated 15th October 1777, confirmed a previous Parwana by Muhammad Sarfraz Kalhora securing to Sayad Kuwam-ud-din ¼th share of Sultanpur and Sanjari, which were in the old pargana of Alore- On the 23rcl January 1708, M:ir Sohrab passed a Sanad to Sayad M:ir Shams­ud-din, Kuwam-ud-din's son-setting forth that the Sayad had oqtained f�om Kharif 1207, l2-th share of the revenues of Sultanpur, Sanjari, and Amirabad by way of remission or reduced assess­ment agreeably to former custom-that he had sought a renewal of the favour-that his request had been granted- and that he was to pray for the grantor's pr9sperity. This grant was confirmed to Shams-ud-din's son, Sayad Ghulam Nabi, on the �th of May 1824i by Mir Muharik and regrantied to Sayad Ghu­lam Hussen-Ghulam Nabi's nephew, by :Mir M.ubarik's. son, Mir Fazul Muhammad. 2. The tenure being more than &O years old, Major Golds­
Settlement. 

mid in his report which was the basis of the final settlement, recommended the holder for admission to the class of permanent Khairatdars, and his re­
commendation was approved. 
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No. 4. SA Y .A.JJ G HU LAM ALI SHAH. 

Tho earliest Sanad in the possession of this Sayad was one 
Title. by Muzaffar Khan under the Emperor Shah 

Jahan, dated 16.tl A. D., giving the Mauza. of Kuddehri independ­
ently of four charitable assignments to ·Mir Abdul Amal, in 
ponsideration of his large family and their many wants. This 
Sanad was confirmed by Izzat Khan under Alamgir (A. D. 1661). 
The grant was enjoyed in the time of the Kalhoras as appears 
from a Sanad of Muhammad Sarfrat Khan, dated 19th October 
1772, which recites that Mir Kuwam-ud-din and MitShams-ud-din 
had been in its possession, subject to a, payment of Rs. 162-5-6 
to Government as Nazarana per annum. After the devastations 
Cf)mmitted by lfaddad Khan Afghan, whose inroad had almost 
depopulated the land, Mir Sohrab renewed the old agreement 
by a Parwana dated 5th March 1792, in the name of 
Shams-ud-din. In February 1801 there appears to . have been an 
alteration in the agreement, and in Mir Rustam's time, a partition 
under which Sayad Ghulam Ali Shah received the share of the 
revenues of Kuddehri enjoy.ed by the family. 

2. This share was, according to Major Goldsmid's statement 
Settlement. �ent up to Government in 1859, Rs. 374, and 

it was at the settlement, confirmed permanently to Ghulnm Ali 
Shah. 

----



295 

:No. 5. NUB HUSSEN SHAH AND 
SADIK ALI SHAH. 

The genealogy of N ur Hussen Shah has been already given 

Pedigree. 
(vide No. 2)-but for a complete genealogy 
of these Khairatdars reference must be made 

to Major Goldsmid's Memoir on the Sayads of Rohri and Bukkur 
printed at page 73 of " Selections from the records of the Bom­
" bay Governmep.t, No. XVII, New series." Suffice it to say that 
Nur Hussen Shah was sixteenth and Sadik Ali Shah eighteenth 
in descent from the celebrated Sayad Muhammad Makkai, Ruzavi, 
the ancestor of the numerous Sayads of Rohri and llukkur. 

2. Sayad Muhammad Makkai was the son of Sayad Muham­

Position. 
mad Sujah, an inhabitant of }Iashid, who was 
called " Sultan ul-Arifi.n," and married, on 

his way to Mecca, a daughter of a noted Shekh of Sbekhs in Bagli­
dad, Shahab-ud-di� Sohurwardi the Murshid of Shekh Bahaw-ud­
din Zakaria of Multan. Sayad Muhammad was born at Mecca and 
was hence called Makkai. After his father's death, and perhaps 
in consequence of the invasion of Chengiz Khan, he removed to 
Bukkur about 1260 A. D. whence his descendants spread to Ooch, 
Gujerat and Hindustan generally, and attained great eminence by 
their piety and learning. 

3, The Deh Ali W a.ban in possession of those of his de­

Title. 
scendants who remained at Bukkur is of un­
eqalled antiquity in Sind. 

" The oldest document produced in support of the claim," wrote Mr. 
Frere to Government i n  his No. 440, dated 18th December 1854, " is a Fir­
,. man of Shah Jahan dated 1637 A. D. which recites that the Deh of Ali 
" Wahan had been given wholly as .Maddad Muash (for maintenance and 
" support) to the body of.Sayads of Bukkur, children of Muhammad M.akkai 
" of Rohri deceased, from, the days of Alla-ud-din Ghilzi (1294 A. D. to 1316 
" A. D.) This would carry back the date of the grant to about the year 
" 1300. At the date of the Firman the arrangement was still in force, an<l 
" was accordiogl1 confirmed with the same- object by Shah Jahan. a'he 
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" ancient grant thus confirmed by the Delhi Emperor was subsequentlv 
" strengthened by additional orders of the same tenor from the Kalhorn 
" rulers of Sind (by Ghulam Shah in 1765 A. D.) and frorn their successors, 
" the Talpurs (Mir Sohrab Khan in 1791 and in 1820). The grant and con­
" firmation by competent authority may thus be said to ·have extended over 
" a  period of five centuries and a half prior to the British Conquest, or 
" dating only from the earliest document produced, of upwards of two 
" hundred years. 

" Nor can the existence of lineal descendants of the original grantee 
'' be for a moment questioned. The children of Muhammad Makkai may 
" be counted by hundreds, and some idea may be formed of their number 
" from the fact that au abridged English Genealogical Tree of this family 
" compiled by the Assistant Commissioner for Jagirs occupies 23 pages of 
"foolscap, while the Persian one is still more voluminous." 

4. The annual value of the grant was Rs. 1,525, and the Settlement. extent about 3,000 B. of which about i tbs 
were culturahle. Mr. Frere's recommend­

ation was that the grant should be " continued permanently to the 
" body of Sayads, descendants of Muhammad l\fakkai.";t And 
this recommendation was-approved in Bombay Government Re­
solution No. 705,_ dated 15th February 1855. At the final Settle­
ment the grant was entered in the name of N ur Ilussen Shah 
and Sadik Ali Shah-the extent of land being shown as 3,000 .B. 
and the amount of shares in revenue possessed by them being 
shown as Rs. 168. 

• The following extract from Captain Goldsmid's Memoir on the Sayads 
of Rohri and Bukkur is important :-" To examine the position of the holders of Ali W aban at the present day would be to " dis�over a joint tenure, in which thirty-seven individuals ha.e fixed shares, varying in " proportions from 2,356 to 4,000. It is not important to unravel the mystery of this " maximum and minimum as the division is quite a private affair, which it would he im­" possible to recognize as affecting regrants. Indeed, were such recognition attempted, " it would he necessary to shut out a large number of lawful claimants, who could at any " time prove a title to consideration, by lineal descent from the grantees of the fourteeuth " century." 
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No. 6. S.4.IJIK .4.LI SH.4.H. 

This Khairatdar's genealogy was as follows :-
SAYAD YAKUB SHAH. 

Ssyad Yakub Khan. 
I 

1 .  I Sadik Fazal Ali Ali Shah. Shah. 
I I Yakub Wahid Khan. Bakhsh. 
I I Sadik Hassan Ali Ali, Shah. 

Sayad Sadik Ali Shah. 
I 

I Andal Shah. 
Imam Ali Shah. 

Sayad Jaffar Ali Shah. 
Sham­sher Ali Shah. 
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2. The Int docu.m.ent prodacecl by him. in proof of his 

Title. 
claim to Deh Durrah . or Banif Wahan was a 
Sanacl of the Bmperor A)amgir, dated 168, 

A. D., granting as Inam to the familJ of Sayad Yacub villages 
including Hanif Wahan and HU88eD.-beli. Portions of this alien­
ation were confirmed by Ghulam Shah Kalhora, the occasion 
being the recession of the river from lands which had been sub­
merged, when additional title deeds were solicited for the portion 
thus recovered. The rights of the Sayads were further confirmed 
by Mir Sohrab Khan in 1792.• Besides Deh Durrah the Xbairat­
dar claimed a grant in Kot Y acub, in support of which he pro­
duced a Sanad of the Emperor Alamgir, dated 1672 A. D., assign­
ing 995 bigahs to the family of Sayad Y acub for maintenance. 
(..;\- ., �> 

3. The value of the grant of Deb Durrah was in 1854. stated 
to be Rs. 1,230, and its extent about 2,000 bi­
gahs, of which about frds were estimated aa 

culturable. " After the succession of several generations," wrote 
Mr. Frere, " Hanif Wahan is still held by the lineal descendants 
" of Mir Y acu.b Khan, the original grantee. • • • And it is accord­
" ingly recommended that the alienation be confirmed hereditarily 
" to the lineal male descendants of Mir Y acub Khan and continued 
" in the names of Sadik Ali, Bussen Ali, and Imam Ali Shah, the 
" representatives of the family." He made the same recommend­
ation regarding Kot Y acub the value of which was shown as Rs. 
40. These recommendations were approved by the Bombay Gov­
ernment in their Resolution No. 705, dated 15th February 1855. 
At ·the final Settlement, the grant was shown as consisting of 
Durrah (2,000 bigahs) and Kot Yacub (995) and entered in 
the name of Sadik Ali Shah alone. The amount of shares in 
revenue waa entered as Rs. 418 in Durrah, and Rs. 7 in Kot 
Yacub. 

* Bo. '-'O, dated 18\b Deoember 181>4, fnlm llr. Fl'9N to the Bomba7 Gcmnammt. 
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No. 7. JEUJ!U..JIMAJJ B.A.ZA, .A.MIB A:LI SHAH AND 

.4.:L:LAH "IP .A.B.A. YO. 

These K.hairatdars were descended from 
Ali Muh&rnrnad, a relative of Yakub Khan, 

(oide No. 6.) 
2. The claim or these Khairatdars to Deb HU88en-beli was 

Title. 
based on the Sanad of the Emperor Alamgir 
mentioned in the last case (No. 6). This 

Sanad was corroborated by an order of Nur Mt1barnmad Kal­
hora in 1788, and Mir Rust.a.m subsequently reduced from Rs. 
95 to Rs. 60 a cess which was payable by the grantees. The word­
ing of the original grant showed that it was made not to Mir 
Yakub personally-but to his family ( l.:J� )  or more literally 
tq those connected with Mir Y akub, and subsequent to the 
Kalhora order, collateral descendants were found in possession. 
Thus Mir .Rustam's order was in favour of Nizam Shah and 
Darwesh Muhammad-the former of whom belonged to the colla­
teral branch descended · from Ali Muhammad whose lineal 
successors (Allah Wars.yo, Raza Muhammad and Amir Ali Shah) 
were found to have been con.fumed in possession by the British 
authoriti�s subsequent to the Conquest. Major Goldsmid, 
therefore, in his report on the Sayads of Rohri and Bukkur, 
registered the grant as one in perp,tuum to the descendants of 
Sayad Ali :Muhammad Shah. 

Settlement. 3. Mr. Frere • made the following 'pro-
posah 

" Two courses are open. The confirmation. may be to Sadik Ali Shah 
" and other lineal descendants of Mir Y akub Khan-at the same time making 
" it imperative on them to continue undisturbed the poeseesion of their colla.­
" teral kinsmen, in which case Government would interfere only in the 

• Kr. Frere'■ No f40, dated 18th December 1864, to Qcmmment 



800 '' event (very unlikely) of the extinction of the line of Mir Y akub Khan. " The alternative is to confirm the possession of the collateral heirs who have " evidently for l!ome years pa.st superseded the other branch of tlie family, '' and in that case the alienation might be confirmed in the names of Amir Ali '· Shah, Muhammad Raza, Allah Wa.rayo, and other lineal descendants of '' Ali Muhammad . . . . . with remainder to the lineal descendants of '' Yakub Khan. This latter course as being most in accordance with past '' usages is the one I would recommend. I would also.recommend that the '' amount payable to Governm-.?nt annually be Rs. 60, the sum fixed in the• " Sanad of Mir Rustam Khan." 4. This last recommendation was approved in Bombay Gov­ernment Resolution No. 705, dated 15th February 1855. At the final settlement the extent of the grant was shown as 1,500 lJigahs, and it was entered in the n!lmes of Muhammad Raza and Khair Muhammad Shah, whose shares in the revenue were stated to be Rs. 86. Mr. Frere in 1854, had shown the value as Rs. 400 per annum of which Rs. 86 were payable to Government and the extent as 1,500 bigahs. 5. " But it wa!I found that no sooner had the name of Say ad " Khair Muhammad appeared as the one acknowledged grantee, " than those who had shared under the former Government, and " even under our own, pending inquiry into all Sind alienations, " were ousted from their presumed rights, and, as it were, disin­" herited." " Under these circumstances," wrote Major Goldiimid, " I held a formal Af r t· " inquiry in the matter at Sukkur, and t-0ok evi-ter comp ica ions. " dence. There was found a lien upon the grant in " the shape of a deed of purchase dated 37 years before the Conquest. This " had apparently been respected up to the period of the more recent Set­" tlement. It had only been set aside and disregarded when our rule of in­" heritance and practice of allowing but one nominee \o appear in the Gov• " ernment books, bad taken effect. Our object had been to graft justice up­" on irregul&rity, but we did no more than introduce an equitable theory " with an inapt illustration. · I then directed the old condition to hold· good " as regards admission of the shareholders by purchase, at least during the " lives of present incumbents." ( VidB No. 2�9, dated ht October 1861). 
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No. 8. SHAH HARDAN AND ALI A.SKAR 

(DEOEA.SEDJ. 

Genealogy. These were descended from Mir Bakhari. 2. The earliest documentary proof adduced by them in sup. 
Title. 

port of their claim to the tapa of Bakhar, consisting in 1854 of 31 debs, with an esti­mated extent of 6,000 bigahs and valued at Rs. 7,500, was a Fir­man of the Delhi Emperqr Alam Shah, dated in 1709, or 134s years before the British Conquest. This document recited that the tapa had before been given in Inam to Sayad Mir Raz:1vi Bak­kari-but that a Firman having become necessary, it was granted confirming the said tapa as lnam � the Sayads and their children. It was clear from this document that the intention of the donor was to make the grant permanent, and independently of the terms of the grant, the prescriptive title acquired during nn en­joyment of 134 years through successive generations, was suffi­cient to ensure confirmation hereditarily. The Emperor's Firman was further strengthened by confirmatory orders from Mian Sarfraz Khan Kalbora, Mir Sohrab Khan Talpur, and Mir Ali Murad Khan,' which were in favour of the whole body of Sayads and not of any particular individnal, the alienation being evident­ly to the whole community of Bukkur Sayads. • 8. Mr. Frere, on these facts, recommended• that the Tapa 
Settlement. 

Bukkur should be confirmed to the lineal male descendants of Mir Bakhari (in other words to the community known as the Sayads of Bukkur)' nnd continued in the names of Shah Mardan and Ali Askar their Chiefs. The recommendation was approved in Bombay Govern­ment Resolution No. 705 of 1855. At the final Settlement, the grant was entered in the names of Shah Mardan and Muhammad Makkai, and shown as 54,139 bigahs in extent, and Rs. 4,881 in value. 
* No. 440, dated 18th December 1854, from Mr. Frere to Government. 
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NQ. 9. SA YAD SADIK ALI SHAH, SA Y.AD IH.A.M 

ALI SH.AH, .AND SYAD WA.HID B.AKHSH 

(DECEASED) SUCCEEDED B Y  SA. YAD 

.&.SS.d.N ALI SHAH. 

Gen en.logy. 
The genealogy of these Khairatdars 

will be found in No. 6. 
2 . These claimants of ½th share of the revenue of Duhar 

,v alurn were not able to produce any ancient Sanads until 1855, 
when they produced the following :-(I )  A deed of confirmation of customary charitable assignments enjoyed by Mir Yakub Khan in  this Deh and in Khanpur, Sayad Sul tan, nnd Hanif Wahan, <lated li48 A.  D., under the seal of Khuda Yar Khan Abbasi, better known as Mir Muhammad Kalhora. (2) An order dated March liS6 of Mir Fateh Ali, in favour of �adik Ali, to release the estate of Dubar Wahan from the annoyance of Dcrahdari. (3) A similar order by Mir Sohrab in the following year. (4-) A Parwana of Mir Rustam, dated ith June 1819, giving Jth of Dubar Wahan by virtue of Zemindari to Yakub Ali Khan, Wahid Ba.khsh anti Anual Shah. 

3. Neither Major Goldsmid nor Mr. Ellis had any reason to 

HetUement. 
doubt the authenticity of these documen,ts, 
and they therefore recommended that, tlie, . 

;;hare resumed on the death of Wahid Bakhsh should be restored 
withoµt arrears, and the whole grant confirmed heriditarily. • The 
recommendation was the basis of the final sE:ttlement. 

• Major Ooldamid's report appended to hia liaal Settlement of lthalratdara aud llr, Ellie'• para. 
3S of No. 30, dated 10th November 1868, 
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No. 10. SA YA.D IDAL SHAH, SON OF FATEH 

..d.LI SHA H. 

'This Sayad had 20 bigahs in Zamanpur, Abijana, and Abdul 

Title. 
Salempur in Ladhagagan, which had been 
granted to his father by the Kalhoras. This 

was proved by a Sanad of Abdul Nabi in 1779, and a confirma­
tory deed of Mir Sohrab in 1788, which recited the fact of prior 
possession. 

2. As the grant was therefore 60 years old at the date of 

Settlement. 
the resumption of Ladhagagan from His 
Highness Mir Ali Murad in 1852, Mr. Frere 

recommended* its hereditary confirmation, which was accorded 
by Bombay Government Resolution No. 3575, dated 31st July 
18iH, and by the final Settlement. 

No. 11. THE MUZA W:-ARS OP THE TO¥B OF 
YAR J.lfUHAMMA.D KALHORA. 

These enjoyed 165 bigahs yielding a revenue of Rs. 62 in 

Title. 
Phaka in Jobi, t and produced in support of 
this grant a Sanad of Mir Nasir Khan, dated 

14th October 1835, which was expressly in continuation of previous 
<lceds granted by Mir Murad Ali and his predecessors, probably 
antedating from the death of' the Kalhora Chief in honour of 

* No. 176, dated 1st July 1857, to Government: 
t It is now in the Dadu Talulr.a. and not in tbe Jobi Taluka. The mausoleum now sadly 

1"equirea repairs-but the .Muu.war le too poor to carry them out. The dome i.s likely tu fall in a 
iew yean, uuletB it is IIOOD repaired. 



304 whose remains the Muzawar's appointment was made. Yar Muhammad, brother to Din Muhammad, and son of Nasir Muham. mad Kalhora was first rendered famous in the annals of Sind by his opposition to the force of Prince Moiz-o-din, son of Shalt Alam, of Delhi. He subsequently tendered his allegiance to the Court, and received the imperial title afterwards conferred upon his son Nur Muhammad also,. of Khuda Yar Khan Abbasi. He died in A. D. 1719. 2. Supposing then a period of 124 years before the Conquest, 
Settlement. 

and taking into account the historical asso­ciations connected with this grant, Major Goldsmid recommended that the alienation " be considered heredi­" tary to the office of guardian to the tomb,'' and his recom­mendation was the basis of the final Settlement. 
No. 12. PINIA.L MUZA. WAR OF THE SHRINE 

OF KHWAJA KHIZR. 

This shrine is " one of the most picturesque spots in Sind. " It is also called the abode of Jind Pir 
Title. '' ( corruption of Zindah Pir-the Living " Saint)-a kind of river god whose life is exemplified in the " ever-flowing waters of the Indus."• An annual fair is held at the . island, in which the shrine is situate, at which thousands attend from the neighbourhood and from neighbouring countries. The claimant had been confirmed in the enjoyment of 4 bigahs in Bindi Manu Dhareja at Sukkur, in 1845, by Captain Townsend, Deputy Collector of Sukkur, on being satisfied as to his prior possession under a Sanad of Mir Nasir Khan. This Saoad, however, could not be produced in 1858. 

• Major Goldamid's report annged to hie Statement of 1858. 
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2. Nevertheless in consideration of the trifling nature of 

Settlement. 
the grant, and of the fact that the grantee 
catered " to the natural curiosity of myriads 

of travellers in a place or very general resort," Major Goldsmid 
recommended that the holding be confirmed in perpetuity to the 
Muza�ars for the time being. The r�commendation was ap­
proved at the final Settlement. 

No. 13. KAMB.AB .ALI SHAH. 

Tb.is Kbaira.tdar claimed 5 jirebs of land in Abaji in Nau­

Title. 
shahro in the Hyderabad District. The 
rental of the grant was Rs. 6-14-0 in 1853. 

He produced Sanads bearing the seal of Muhammad Khan Kal­
hora, dated 1774 A.  D., and or Abdul Nabi Kalhora., dated 1780 
and 1781 A. D. with several other documents, including confirma­
tory title deeds by Mir Sohrab, Mir R.ustam and Mir Ali Murad. 
The amount of the original grant was 12 j irebs, and the original 
grantee was Hussen Shah, the claimant being his lineal 
descendant. 

2. Mr. Frere 

Settlement. 

therefore recommended• that, the 5 jirebs 
enjoyed by Kambar Ali Shah to the last be 
confirmed to him, and " to the lineal male 

" decendants of the original grantee" hereditarily. The Govern­
ment t inquired if the Sanads contained any specific words • of 
hereditary import. Mr. Frere replied t that they did not, but 
that it was not usual to bestow title deeds for charitable gifts in 
that form, and that the specific ground for his recommendation was 

• No. 3S4, dated 15th September 1863, to Government. 
t No. 6321, dated 28th October 1863. 
:t No. 445, dated 11th November 1863. 



306 that the grant had been held since 1780; in other words, for 72 years before the cession of the District of Nausharo to the British Government (1852)-and that even looking to the number of generations that had succeeded the original grantee the claimant was entitled to hereditary confirmation under the Amended Rules of 11342. The Bombay Government accordingly con­firmed* the grant, and the final Settlement did not disturb this confi.rma tion. 
No. 14. SREB MUB.A.MJf.A.D SH.A.H. 

This Sayad of Mitani, grandson of Sher Muhammad, the 
Title. 

original grantee, claimed 10 jirebs, 5 of which were garden land-the whole being of the annual value of Rs. 20. He produced a Sanad of Mir Fateh Ali Khan, dated 1784 A. D., which continued to the grantee this )and originally confirmed to him by some other authority, whose name was too much obliterated in the Sal!ad to be legible. 2. Mir Ali Murad had confirmed this grant, and in 
Settlement. 

consideration of his uninterrupted long enjoyment, Mr. Frere recommendedt that it should be confirmed hereditarily to the claimant and the lineal male descendants of the original grantee. 3. The confirmation was accorded by Bombay Government Re�olution No. 7072, dated 7th December 1853. In the Statement of Khairats submitted to Government in 1858 for final settlement the extent of the grant was shown as 5 bigahs-the garden land having been s�own in the statement of garden grants. The grant was confirmed at the final settlement. 
• No. 7072, dated 7th Decem1'er 1853. t No. 364., dated 16th September 1863. 



307 

No. 15. IMAM BAKHSH AND BA OHAL SHAH (DB­
OE.A.SED) S UOOEEDED B Y  F.A. TEH JfUH.A.M­

M.A.D SHAH, OUSPODI.AN OF THE TAKI.A. 
OF H.A.JI SHAH. 

Imam Bakhsh was a lineal descendant of Pir IIaji Shah, at 

Title. 
whose tomb accommodation was provided 
for poor travellers. The grantee claimed 82 

jeribs and 5 visvas, which were attached to one well and to one 
wheel. The grant was an ancient one dating from the time of 
the Kalhoras, but the old Sanads having been burnt, the only 
Sanad forthcoming was one in renewal of them passed by Mir Ali 
Murad in 1843. 

2. The grant 'being evidently one intended by the grantor 

Settlement. 
to be of a permanent character, Mr. Frere 
recommended that it might " be continued 

" rent free for the maintenance of the tomb and the entertain-
" ment of poor travellers." The Bombay Government confirm­
ed the grant,• and the final Settlement did not disturb the con­
:6.rmation. 

No. 16. LALDAS FAKIR UD.A.SL 

This Khairatdar claimed 8 jeribs of land in Moro (four cul­

Title. 
turable in the Kharif and four in the Rabi 
season) valued at Rs. 12-8-0 in 1853.t His 

original title deeds were not forthcoming-but he produced a 

• :Bombay Government BeaolutiOD No. 6321, dated 28th October 1863. 
t In 1868 at Rs. 14. 
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Sanad of Mir Sohmb, dated 1793 A. D., which proved the grant to 
have existed before, and which had been confirmed by Mir Rus­
tam and by Mir Ali Murad. The succession was from disciple 
to disciple, and this principle had been recognized by former rul­
ers. 

2. The incumbent maintained a resting-place for travellers 

Settlement. 
at Moro, and as the grant had been enjoyed 
for a long term of years, Mr. Frere recom­

mended " its continuance on the same tenure, so long as the in­
,, cumbent maintained a. resting-place for poor travellers." 

It was accordini;ly so confirmed by Bombay Government 
Resolution No. 6321, dated 28th October 1853, and at the final 
Settlement. 

No. 1 7. IJA R VESHAN NANJKSHA HI OF 

HALANI, KANIJIARO. 

These Hindu Fakirs claimed rent-free certain lands. attached 
to one well and to one wheel in Deh Hala.ni con-

Title. sisting of 40 jeribs and 8 viswas, and other land 
attached to one wheel in Deh Kandiaro consisting of 20 jeribs. 
The value of the former in 1853• was Rs. 60-3-2 and of the latter 
Rs. 24-8-0. The first grant was made by Mir Rustam while Rais 
of Upper Bind in 1839, anJ. was confirmed by Mir Ali Murad (the 
locality being changed.) No Sanad was forthcoming for the 
second grant-but Lieutenant Jameson ascertained that it · had 
been: enjoyed for 40 years.t 

* In 1858 Re. 59 and 89 NJBpectivel7. 
t No. 854, dated llit.h September .181i8, to Go·temme11•. 
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Seuleme11t. 2. Mr. Frere's proposal was as follows :-" The grantees are much respected by the influential sect or Nanik '' Shahis to which they belong, and they maintain by virtue ol this and " other grants a ' Tikana' or resting-place for travellers, and besides " support there a number or blind and lame people. They appear truly to '' maintain the objects for which the grant was made, and as that object '' was evidently of a permanent character, it is recommended that this claim " be confirmed, and the grant continued rermanently, on the condition of " the maintenance of the present Tikana.' 
This confirmation was accorded by Bombay Government 

Resolution No. 6321, dated 28th October 1853, and at the final 
Settlement. 

No. 18. SA YAD WABA YO SH..J..H. 

The grant to this Sayad for a well and 12 bigahs in Hum. 
Title. munlo in Ladh8t,11'8.gan, though unsupported 

by Sanads, was '' clearly proved to be an inheritance of old date 
" and traceable to a holding enjoyed under Delhi and Kalhoro 
'' warrants, by one U nis Fakir whose disciple, Shah Muhammad, 
" became his son-in-law and inherited his property." 

2. Warayo Shah was the wearer of Shah Muhammad's ' Das- · 
Seltlement. tar' in the seventh generation, and Mr. Frere 

therefore recommended that the above small land allotment 
might be confirmed to him, and· to " his lineal male heirs upon 
" condition of the well being kept in repair, and cultivation 
" maintained." Mr. Frere's recommendation was appro"(ed in 
Bombay Government Resolution No. 3575, dated 31st July 1857, 
and the grant was·also made hereditary at the final Settlement. 

• Kr. Frere'a No. 176, dated lat Jul7 1867. 
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No. 19. KAZI HUHAMMAJJ SHARIF. 

This Kazi, of Larkana, drew two grain allowances worth 

Title. Rs. 2-12-0 and 4 annas respectively, in all 
Rs. 3 monthly-the former by virtue of a 

Sanad under the seal of Mirs Shahdad, Mir Muhammad, Nasir 
Khan and Fateh Ali (son of Mir Sobdar), dated the 3rd of April 
1836, and the latter under a Sana.cl of Mir Fa.teh Ali, dated 6th 
May 1801, in favour of a predecessor in the Kaziship, Muhammad 
Afzal. On the death of Muhammad Afzal, Nawab Wali Muham­
mad Laghari appears to 'have made over his office to Ahmadi, the 
father of Muhammad Sharif. Ahmadi died in 1825, and his son 
became bis successor. 

" There is no question," wrote• Major Goldsmid, " that the 

Settlement. 
" stipend was attached to the office, and not 
" to the individual. The later Sanad. is 

., quite unmistakeable on this point. But a. claimant to a share 
·" in the 4 annas has lately appeared in the person of one Ramzan, 
" grandson of Muhammad Afzal, the original grantee, and the 
,c litigants appear to have compromised the matter by an equal 
" dhision. I do not think Government need interfere in this tri­
ce :fling arrangement." In his opinion the grant came within the 
meaning of clause VIII of the .Amended Rules of 1842, and he 
therefore recommended that the monthl1 sum of Rs. 3 should 
�' be confirmed ·to the present ineumbent and his successor in per­
" petuity." The recommendation was approved at the final Set­
tlement. But under the orders of the Government of India, 
give; in the letter sanctioning this a.mount, the allowance was 
commuted with the holder's cousent for a plot of 36 bigahs in 
Deh Dandana, Taluka Larkana, which, taking into consideration 
the fallows required for this class of land and its then assessment, 
corresponded in vaiue M nearly as possible with the annual money 
grant of Rs • .  36. t 

• Report appended to his statement of Khairatdan. 
t Vitk Mr. Frere'11 No. 1637, dated 8th July 1859, to the Collector of Sbikarpur, the 

,11lector'11 reply No. 313, dated 27th August 1869, and the Commiaaioner'• deciaion 
o. �76, dated 16th September 1869. 
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No. 20. KAIM KALHORO (DECEASED) SUOOEEDED 

B Y  DA UD. 

This man was -guardian of the tomb (in Larkana) of Muham-
• Title. mad Elias Kalhoro, " one of the early Kalhora 

" Chiefs who flourished in A. D. 1620, when his brethren were 
" making those early encroachments upon Sind territory, which 
" led to their eventual usurpation of the whole ·country."• 

2. He enjoyed a money allowance of half a Rupee per men-
Settlemen� sem, and on his death Mr. Frere recommended 

that, being " a  very ancient grant for a perfectly_ unobjectionable 
" object,''  it should be confirmed hereditarily. This confirmation 
was accorded by Bombay Government Resolution No. 3 825, dated 
20th November 1858, and by the final Settlement. But, like case 
No. 19, the allowance was commuted with the holder's consent 
for 10 bigahs in Deh Faridabad, Taluka Larkana, which tallied 
with the money payment. ( Yide foot note to case No. 19.) 

No. 31 • .A.HHAD HUZA WAR (DECEASED) SUO­

OEEDED B Y  JUHA, HIS SON. 

This man held charge of the tombs of the Daudpotras in 
Title. Shikarpur, cc who fell, it is said, in conflict 

cc with the Persian troops sent by Nadir Shah against them, in about 
'' A. D. 1745, under Sirdar Tamasp or Askar Beg. Nadir, it is re­
" corded, had bestowed Shikarpur upon the Daudpotras on return­
" ing from U markot en route to Persia, but they soon became 

• Kr. Frere'a No. 384, dated ilet October 1858, to Government. (Mr.jor Goldsmid'a 
draft.) 



312 " refractory and refused to meet the exactions of the Court . . . . . . . . . . . •  " There are 19 graves in one spot, and a small mosque at the en­" trance of the cemetery. Until lately a small pittance was received " by the Muzawar from the Bahawulpur Na.wab, whose ances�rs " belonged to the same tribe."• The M uzawar enjoyed a money grant of Re 1-12-0, per month from the time of the Kalhoras. 2. On his death, Mr. Frere recommended its permanent 
Settlement. continuance which was sanctioned by the Reso-lution quoted in the last case, and by the final Settlement. 

No. £2. MIBZ.4. APA JfUH..d.MM..d.D. 

In his letter No. 384', dated 21st October 1858, Mr. Frere 
Title and BettJement. · wrote as follows about this Khairatdar :-" Of the personal grants to individuals there is but one (Rs. 4., per " mensem to Mirza Ata Muhammad) which I would recommend for con­" firmation hereditarily. This allowance . . . . is now held by " Mirza Ata Muhammad, a man of distinguished learning, at Shikar­" pur. He is a grandson of the original grantee, Abdul Rahim, in " whose name a. certain amount of ghi and wheat flour was bestowed as " a. charitable allowance by Shah W ali Khan, the V azier of Ahmad Shah " in 1762, when Shikarpur was under the rule of the Afghans. (The com­" petency of an Afghan Vazir to alienate need not be questioned.) This " grant thus bestowed was continued by confirmatory Sanads from the Mirs " :Nur Muhammad and Nasir Khan . . . and its equivalE:nt (Company's " Rs. 4 per mensem) was confirmed by the British to the present incumbent. " Uninterrupted enjoyment for a period of 81 years, and the possession " h,y a grandson of the original grantee at the time of the British Conquest " being thus proved, the allowance should be confirmed heredita.rily to the " present incumbent and his lineal male heirs hereditarily. This would " be the case whether under the Amended Rules of 1842 or under the modi­" fied rules proposed for the province in my letter No. 1720 of 1853." The Bombay Government confirmed the proposed settlement in their No. 534, dated 7th February 1855, and the final Settle­ment accorded a fresh confirmation to the grant. 



313 

No. 23. MULL.d .d.LLAH B.J.KSH. 

Thia Mulla enjoyed certain grain assignments which were 
Title ud Settlemeni. commuted in 1853 into a. cash allowance of Rs. 54 annually. The assignments had been made for tho care of the mosque of Nawab Ibrahim Khan Nurzai, and dated from . A. H. 1174 (A. D. 1760). Mr. Frere thought �he grant came unJer Section VII of the Amended Rules of 1842, and was entitled to a permanent confirmation (No. 99, dated 12th Marci,, 1855, to GOfJernment) which was accordingly sanctioned by Bombay Government Resolution No. 1755, dated 28th .4.pril 1855, and at the fi.nal Settlement. 

No. 1!4. F.d.Klll B.d.KHSH. 

This man enjoyed certain assignments worth Rs. 78 per 
Title and Settlemenl>. 

annum. The grant had been made for " the " care of the only Dharmsala situated in the '� city of Shikarpur," which was of a very old date and much used by travellers. This case was recommended for permanent con­firmation on the same ground :is the last case, and confirmed in the aame Resolution as well as at the Settlement. 
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No. 25. MUJ'TI NASR ULLAH. 

This Mufti also enjoyed certain allowances fixed in 1853 at 

TitJe and Settlement. 
Rs. 63. The grant differed slightly from 
those coming regularly under Section VII of 

the Amended Rules of 1842, but Mr. Frere still considered it 
worthy of permanent confirmation. " The original �rantee," he wrote, • " the great grandfather of the pre­" sent recipient obtamed a Sanad from Ahmad Shah Durani in H. 1177 " (A. D. 1763) by which the Office of Mufti t was conferred upon him, and " therewith a specific grant of money for keeping up a mosque. There is " still a small one lighted and kept by the present holder, who is looked " upon as the most learned man, next to his uncla in Shika.rpor ; and " although the building is very small and chiefly used for the purposes of ·a " school, I agree with Captain Goldsmid in thinking that there are peculiar " circumstances which call for an hereditary confirmation of this small " grant, to the family upon whom the mantle of the muftiship has unmis­" takeably fallen." 

The confirmation was accorded by Bombay Government 
Resolution No. 1755, dated 28th April 1855, and by the final 
Settlement. 

No. 26. SHAH MUHAMMAD SA Y.d.D. 
This Sayad enjoyed an allowance of Re. 1-12-0 per month 

Title and Settlement. (Rs. 21 per year) for the maintenance of 
the shrine (which had no mosque or dome) 

of Pir Muhammn.d. Jasrani, a disciple of Shah Kha.ir-ud-din, and a 
devotee of renown who was said in 1854 to have died 250 
yea.rs ago. Hit1 grant was recommended for permanency under 
Section 7 of the Rules by Mr. Frere in the letter quoted in the 
last case, and confirmed accordingly by the s!lme Government 
Resolution as well as by the :final Settlement. 

• No. 99, dated 12th March 1855, to Government. t His l:iusiness was " to re�ter and legalize marriages and affix his aeaJ to deeds 
" and c"ntra.cts or Yaried descriptions, among the inhabitants of the city." Captain Gold­
BDlid therefore thought that the office involved no positive " service to the State," and 
" from local �. was meant to be permanent" within the meaning of Sect.ion VIII of 
the Rules. ( Yide Iii& .Memorandum witlw-ut elate or numb,r forward«l to � tMt4 
Commiuiotier', No. 368 of 1864.) 
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No. 27. G ULZ4.R F4.KIR. 

This Fakir resided on the rock known as the Than of Sattis near Rohri " a curious and beautiful monu-TiUe and SetUemenl " ment,"• of which he was the custodian. · He produced a. Sanad of Mir Sohra.b, dated 16th Jamadi-ul-Awal 1220, granting him 4 annas Kora per diem equal to Rs. 5-2-0 per men­sem, which shortly before the Conquest was reduced to Rs. 2 per mensem. This sum continued to be paid 15 months after the Conquest;-.:but then it ceased. Captain ];'elly on investigating the case in 1855• recommended the permanent confirmation of the grant for the maintenance and care of the tombs. On the 29th June 1857, Mr. Frere in his No. 169, solicited Government sanc­tion to.this conflrm�tion which was accorded in Bombay Govern­ment Resohltion No. 3890, dated 21st July 1857. 
* Captain Pelly'a No. 117, dated 28th March 1855. 
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CHAPTER V. 

MEMOIBS OF' P .A.TP4.DA.R8. 

---
L.J.TIF KH.4.N 4.NIJ MTJHBI.L.L4.H. 

The following is the genealogy of these Pa.tta­
dars. 

Al.ULLA PIR M:UJlA.MHAD DUJUNI ISJllltZJ.I. 

t I Muhammad Fa.zul. Mulla M uhan:nnad Faruk. 
I I 

Ghulam Khan. 
I .I Latif Khan. Mubbillab. 

2. The oldest Sanad produced by this family was one by 
Estate nnd Title. 

Shah Zaman dated 7th Zikaid 1208 (l794r 
A D.)  to Mulla Muhammad Faruk. It • • 

recitPd tlnt. th,, grantee possessed " certain lands and a garden 
"&c.," as his property ( -!..(L.\ ) in Shikarpur, and paid revenue on 

, them, in accordance with ancient Sana.ds which it confirmed. The 
wording of the Sanad leads to the inference that the assessment was 
low, and that what tbe sovereign promised was that it would not 
be enhanced. The next Sanad-that of Mir Mubarik, dated 
25th Rabiul sani 1227. A. H. (8th May 1812)-oonfirmed the 
" Pattas of the :Mauzas (�\,-. ) of Shah Kalipur, Soheja,, :Mari, 
Kot Habib, and Obamra", And lutly, Mir Na,ir Kh&ll 
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I Hafz-ullah. 

sis 

Pke Ulaoi, Pattadara. 

No. fJ. BA.DI- UD-DIN BUCOEEDED BY Z.d.HUR-UD-DIN. 

F.d.KHR- UD-DIN 

SHA.RF- UD-DIN. 

No. 3. ABDUL A.HAD. 

" SH.4HN A. W .4Z. 

No. ,I.. NUR AHMAD SUCCEEDED BY MUHAMMAD �Y.4P 
A.ND GHULA.M .MUHA...MMA.D. 

No. 5. FA.IZ- ULLA.H. 

BA.SR- ULLAH (DECEASED). 

The Genealogiw Tree of these Ula vi Pattadars is as follows :-

2 

Hamid­ul­Bak. Ab�ul Abad, (3). 

Fukrullah Ulavi. 3 4 5 1 
I 1 .  Nasrr- Shahab- S· '  · I 1raJ- ur--ul­Bak. lnayat­ullah. 

ud­din. ud-din. ud-din 
I Has- Zain­Fa.iz- Azim- san. ul-abi-ul- ud-din. I din. Bak. I a daugh- , I Ghu- ter. ,--, lam Nur Abdul I Mu- i---1 Ah- Hamid. ham- Mian Faiz-

Muss­lah­ud-din. 

mad. I mad. Hamid, ullah. :----:----.------: __ ,__ (died 
I I I I I I I before I I I Taj- Ba.di- Fakhr- Sharf- Mu- Mian M1an 1843). Sayad- Nur- Naar-ud- ud- ud- ud- ham- Ghu- Abdul ullah, ullah, ullah. din. din, din, din, mad 1am Hak. (died (died 

(2). (2). (2). Hayat. Na.bi. before before 
I I 1848). Feb-&hur- Fakr- ruary ud- ulla.h 1843). din. alias I 

Shah- a daughter, nawaz, 
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2. Hnji Fukrullah was the a.ncestol' of the Pattadars numbered 
2, 3, 4 and 5. He was a religious charncter 

Ti�e of the ancestors of note and was holder by purchase of Fa-Noi . ..  , 3, C and 5, ' 

kirahad and old Kalwari and Sahkji and Thenda, 
some lands in Ropah, and some pieces in the city of Shikarpm 
and Sukkur. A Sanad of Timur Shah, dated 8th Rajah 1186, 
remi tted to him -h-th of the Government dues in kind, and 500 
dinars o f  the Government dues per every cropped- jireb paying 
assessment in cash. Another Snnad, that of Shah Zaman, dated 
Safar 1213, confirmed the above, together with Riayatpur to 
Z!l.inul Abidin and the othcir sons of the deceased Fakrullah, 
and empowered them to enjoy the whole of the revenue " after 
" paying 100 Tumans Tabrizi every year to the Government 
" Treasury," in accordance with the division made by their father. 
Of these 100 Tuma.ns - Mahmud Shah, by a. Sanad, dated 
1st Safar 1217, settled 25 as lmda-d on Siraj-ud-din and 5 on 
:Mulla Abdullah ; and Shah Shuja-ul-mulk, by a Sanad, elated 
1219, settled 5 more on the latter as Imdad and the remaining 
65 on Hafzullah as :Madad Muash. ( u!il- ..,�) In Shaiban 1231 
Mahmud Shah remitted the whole of the Government re­
venue excepting lll Tumans (Rs. 230) on certain land bought 
by H afzullah, and in the same year he remitted even this re­
served revenue, as Madad Muash. 

3. On the 2nd of Safar 1237, Mir Rustam, who was entitled 
as his father's successor on the Khafrpur 

No. 2. Treatment by the • 
Talpun and eettlement by throne to lths of the revenues of Slnkarpur, 
the British. "tted h lf f h"  d • f f rem1 one- a o 1s ues m avo.ur o 
Badi-ud-din on his lands of Jagan and Jahin. Taj-ud-din having 
died-Badi-ud-din was the eldest of the surviving brothers, and 
evidently this Sanad, though in his name, was intended for all the 
brothers. Fakhr-ud-din made his Salam to His Excellency the 
Governor who sealed Mir Rustam's Sanad. Fakhr-ud-din died on 
31st October 1854 and Ba<li-ud-din on 7th March 1858. In 
view of the 1'ncient possessions of }'akrull�h, Captain Pelly, �nq 
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after him Major Goldsmid, recommended that Ilafzullah's de­
scendants should be confirmed as hereditary Pattadars, and ac­
cord?ngly bis survi ving son, Sharf-ud-din, and his grandsons, Za­
hur-u<l-din and �hah N nvaz (sons of Badi-ud-din and Fakhr-ud-din 
r('i,;pectively}, were so confirmed at the final Settlemfmt. 

4 'l,he 2nd, :3rd, an<l 4th sons of Fakrullah received a Sa-
No. a. Treatmeut by the natl from M ir Mubarik on the 11th Shawa l Talpura and settl<1ment by 

the British. 1227, granting them Rs. 1,040 from the Gov-
ernment revenue of the Mauzas of Kalwari and its appurtenances, 
a nd one-half of the remaining dues. They appear also to havo 
cultivated 402 bigahs them�elves, and out of  these the Mir 
granted them 100 biga.hs as Seri, and reserved only ¼th share 
of the produce of the remainder to himself. On t� 8th of 
Rabi-ul-sani 1258, Mir Muhammad Ali Khan, Talpur, confirmed 
Hamid-ul-Hak's son, Abdul Ah:id, " in the enjoyment of ¼th shar,! 
" of the produce in cash as well as in kind of Kalwari and Jhulli" 
(this being the share enjoyed by him-at that date) and of 10 bi­
gabs as Seri. Abdul Ahad received a Sabm Parwana, dated 7th 
May 1843, and he, like the heirs of Hafzullah, was recommended 
both by f'aptain Pelly and Major Goldsmid for hereditary 
confirmation. He was accordingly so confirmed at the final 
Settlement. 

5. The next two sons of Fakrullah, Shahab-ud-din and 
Faizal Rak, appear to have died before the 

T�;�� �:�r!n:t �; 21st Rajib 1841, for on that date we find a 
tbe Brit.isb. Sa.natl from :Mir llubarik Khan Talpur and 
Mir .Nasir Khan Khairpuri to their respective sons, Mir Ahmad 
and Ghulam Nabi, and to their brother, Nur-ud-din Hassan and 
two others (not in the genealogical tree). This Sanad granted 
half the .Government dues of Deb Sahkji and Ghaghro, after 
deducting the portion already granted in equal moieties to Rawat 
Khan and Abdullah Khan Bagranis-and it was confirmed by 
His Excellency the Governor in the name of N ur Ahmad, who 
made his Salam, Ghulam Nabi and Nur-ud-din Hassan having 



321 both died before this time. The latter had left a daughter who was married to Nur Ahmad, and had bequeathed his share to his son-in-law. This was confirmed to Nur Ahmad by a Parwana, dated · 12th August 184t4, of Captain Townsend, Collector of Shikarpur. Nur Ahmad died in 1851 without any male issue, and his share was enjoyed by his widow. In April 1 858, the Deputy Collector of Shikarpur and Sukkur, acting doubtless under the­orders of the Collector, issued an order to the Kardar of Nau­shabro confirming also the the shares of the survivors in Deh Sakhji, and regranting those of the deceased, subject to a deduc­tion of one-fourth, to Muhammad Hayat and Ghulam Muhammad, sons of Faizal Rak and Siraj-ud-din. But all the survivors havin� died before 1858, Major Goldsmid in his Statement of Pattadars, submitted to Government, recommended that the original half share. should be granted to these two individuals, and his recommendation was finally sanctioned at the Settlement. 6. The remaining two sons of Fakrullah, Zain-ul-Abdin 
No. 5. 

and Musslah-ud-din appear to have died before Rabiul Sani 124t3 A. H., for in that month we find a Sanad by Mir Muhammad Ali Khan to their respective sons, Faizullah and N urullah, granting them one-third of the. Government dues, after deducting Rs. 150, of Deb Maka. and Riayatpur, and 10 bigahs as Seri. On the 22nd of Safar 1249-, Mir Nasir Khan remitted to them ¼th of the revenue due to him from Deb Saba, and on the 27th Safar 12!S4, ¥ir Fazul Muham­mad Khan (son of Mir Mubarak) renewed the Pattadari of Maka (the enjoyment of which and Riayatpur had been interrupted)­but restricted it to -½-th instead of: ½rd. Sir Charles Kapier re­ceived Faizullah's Salam, and confirmed to him and to Nasrullah {the surviving brother of Nurullab, deceased) ¼th share of the revenues of Deh Saba and -½th of Mab. Nasrullah died on the 30th of March 1850, and it was reported that up to that period the tenure had been equally divided by the two Pattadars, the 
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deceased's one-half having been sub-divided into 5 shares as follows :- N asrullah . . .  . . . • . . 2 His sister... ... . .. 1 
f Saif ullah ••. . . . • . .  1 His sons . . .  Ubidullah . . . . . . . .. 1 The Commissioner, Mr. Pringle, having directed• Nas­rullah's portion to be resumed owing to failure of Salam on his part, the sons petitioned for a regrant, urging that their's were • Pattadari rights derived from ancestral purchased property-. but their restoration was not authorized ,  and three yea.rs later the Commissioner µi a lettert to the ColJe�tor distinctly ruled the prior resumption to be in force. But the resumption made by the local officers was not one-half of the Pattadari, but /6ths of  i t  of the value of Rs. 31. Captain Pelly in his Roll of  Naushahro Abro ·could not understand this procedure for which he �ould find �o authorityt and M�jor Goldsmid holding it to be irregular was of opinion that it would have been more just to confirm Nasrullah's one-half to his sons. But under the circumstances lie was " inclined to include Faizullah with the rest as a 1st '"' �lass l'attadar, whatever m.ight be the extent of his hold_ing." Mr. Ellis wrote on this subject a1 follows :-" In one or two " cases the subordinate shares bf deceased Pattadars have been " erroneously resumed by the l�cal authorities. The whole should " be left intact so long as a 1 ineal descendant of the original '' grantee survives, and the shares of the Pattada.rs among them­.,, selves should no� be interfered with. If the general Settle­" ment now proposed be sanctioned, a share of the estimated " value of Rs. 31 per annum resumed by the late Commissioner, �, will be restored to the surviving shareholders." The Govern­ment of India were pleased to order the restoration of this share. 

(Para. 8 of No. 711, dated 6th April 1869). 

* No. 740, dated 22nd April 1800. 
t No. 3391, dated 17th November 1.863. 
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No. 6. H.A.PZULL.A.H (DEOE.A.8J1D) (SUOOBEDED B Y  
SB.AH MUHAMMAD). 

H.A.BIB ULLAH (DECEASED) S UCCEEDED B Y  
. TIMUB KHAN AND SHUJ..A. WAL KHAN. 

No. 7. NA.ZAR MUHAHHA.D • 

. No. 8. BA. OH.AL. 
GHUL..A.M SHA H. 
GH ULAM KADIB (DECEASED). 

Oenealogy. The genealogy of these Pattadars is given below :-

SAIFULLAB. 

I 
Nasrullah. 

I 
I I l I I At.a- Faiz- Said- Rah- Hayat-ullah. ullah. ull.ah. mat• ullah. 
I I I ullah. Aman- Habib-

ullah. ullah, 
I died Shuja­Hafz- 27th wal, ullab, Sep- (6). (6). tember 
I 1ss1 , 

Shah (6). Mu- I ham- Timur mad. Khan. 

I 
I Nurullah. 
L 

1-,-1 Gbu- Gbu- Gbu­lam lam lam Ali. Safdar. Mur-
i I taza. 

Bacha.I, I (8). 'Ghu- Ghu-lam lam Shah, Ka.dir, 
(8). died 

I Jan Muhammad. 
I Do�t Nazar Muham, M.uham- mad. mad. I Mir Alam alias (Miral). 

12th 
September 1859, without male issue. (8). 



324 2. The first Sanad- produced by this family was one issued to Sayad Saifullah by Ahmad Shah in Title of Noe. 6, 7, and 8. Shawal 1176 A H., confirming previous re-missions enjoyed by him on his Zar Kharid lands of " Karia " Bagirji, Mubarikpur, Ropah and other Mahals." To these Timur Shah appears to have added Sayad Abad in 11,94 A. H. and his Sanad was confirmed by Shah Zaman in 1208. 3. In Ramzan 1246, Mir Nasir Khan granted a fourth share of the revenues of Bagirji, Ghumro and Dhe­
No. 6. Treatment by theT.i. dana to " Aman Ullah and his brotherhood." pun and final Settlement. Aman Ullah himself appears not to have been alive at the date .of the Conquest, and the Salam Parwana was issued to his son, Hafzullah, who himself died in 1849. The Commissioner comfirmed his share to his son, Shah Muhammad, in. July 1850. Habib Ullah died on the 27th September 1851, and it was reported by the Kardar that his share in Bagirji, &c., was ·enjoyed by his son, Timur Khan, under an order of Mr. Di.ckson, Deputy Collector, Sukkur. As Shah .Muhammad, Timur Khan and Shujawal appeared to represent the grantees under Mir Nasir Khan's Sanad, Major Goldsmid recommended that all the three should be registered as 1st ciass Pattadars of the lands mentioned in that Sana.d. This was finally sanctioned, 4. On the 11th Rabi-ul-Awal 1255, Mir Muhammad Ali, 

b h son of Mir Mubarik, granted to Nazar Mu­No. 7. Trf'atmeni y t  e 
Talpurs and final Settle- hammad ¼th of the revenues of Kazi W ahan rnent. • • • • (mcludmg Mubarikpur) and Kuler1.• In these he \vas confirmed at the Conquest by virtue of his Salam Par­wana, dated 28th May 1844. Both Captain Pelly and Major Goldsmid recommended that he should be registered as a first class Pattadar-and their recommendation was fi.naJly approved and the settlement made accordingly. 

* So called by Captain Pells. Major Goldamid called it Keneri. 



325 5. As of the earlier possessions of Saifullab, Bagirji fell to the share of N asrullah's descendants, and :M:u­
No. 8. 'l'reatment by tbe 

Talpura and final Settle- barikpur to Jan Muhammad's-so Sa.yadabad 
ment. • • fell to the share of Nurullah's. Mir Rustam Khan by a Sanad, dated 22nd Mohurram 1249, confirmed one-half of the revenues of Sayadabarl Arai to " Ghulam Murtaza Khan " and other Pathans," subject to the payment of Rs. 500 as ' Nazrana'. per annum. This Sayad was confirmed in Rajib 1254 A. H. by Mir Ali Murad, on the resumption of a portion of whose territory in 1852, Ghulam Kadir Khan, Bacha} Khan, and Ghulam Shah appear to have been registered as Pattadars. They claimed " l revenue of the village including taxes," in all Rs. 865 per annum-but as of these they had to pay Rs. 500 every year to the Government, their claim was reduced to Rs. 865. Mr. Frere in his No. 405, dated 30th November 1854, recommended the continuance of the Pattadari to this extent " hereditarily to the " claimants and to other lineal legitimate male descendants of Sa­" yad Saifullah, the original grantee,'' on the ground of ancient pos­session. He described the Pattadari tenure as one " peculiar to " Upper Sind, the claimants to which possessed special claims to " favourable oonsideration from their position, which was usually '' that of substantial landholclers, and from the antiquity of their " title deeds, which in most cases dateu from the time of the " Afghan Dynasty;'' The Bombay Government in their Resolu­tion No. 575, dated 9th February 1855, sanctioned the settlement proposed by Mr. Frere. Their names were entered in the list of hereditary Pattadars, sent up to Government in 1858, and finally, sanctioned by the Govemment of India and the Secretary of State in 1859. 
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No. 9. GHULAM MUHAMMAD 

and 

SULEHAN KHAN (lJEOEASEJJJ SUOOEEDED 

B Y  KURBAN KHAN. 

Gen•logy. The Genealogy of these Pattadars is given 
below :-

ALI KHAN. 

__ __,I __ I I I 
Ohulam Sulema.n Khan. and five other sons. 

Muhammad. 

I 
Azim Khan. Kurban Khan. 

2. The oldest deed produced by Kurban Khan was a, Parwana 

Title. 
of Mir Sohrab Khan, dated 15th Shaiban 1234, 
( =9th June 1819) addressed " to the Kardars 

" of Bichanji." The following abstract of it was given by Major 
Goldsmid :-

" Ali Khan, Ohulam Muhammad and Suleman Khan had made a re­
" presentation on account of their sources of subsistence-lnam, Mafi, and 
" 7th share of inherited Pattas, agreeably to ' Anjamnamah'-Battai (grain 
" valuationj and Za.bti (cash valuation) as of old, and in the time of the 
" Afghans. They required confirmation hereof from Rabi 1230. The whole 
" of the above have been granted as · requested. The ' Wijuhat,' ' Inam,' 
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" 7th share, and Ma.ii of wells and garden, with 6 Charkhas of juari-Batta.i " and Zabti according to former customs to be considered ' Free' as below " specified :-1.  The 7th share, &c., and Hawai, Feroi, a.s before. 2. Ma.ii of 3 wells as before, in each sea.<Jon. 3. Garden with paka well walled in, as before. 4. Six Charkhas for juari ' Imda<l' for Kharif of 1 ,230 (being) Khud Ka.sht. 5. Zamindari, money and kind, as before. ( '  Pinl�i' is the term here idiomatically 'UBed-the act'IJ,(ll meaning of which is the 640th part of a Kharwar.) 6. Battai and Zabti and Batti of cotton, a.s before. This Parwana was _confirmed by Mir Ali Murad Khan on the 8th Zilkaid 1266, (15th September 1850) . On the death of Ali Khan (about 1236 Fasli year) his 7 sons, by a deed bearing the seal of the Kazi, divided the proceeds of the grant into 11½ shares which they allotted for the support of tho various members of the family, Suleman Khan as the eldest son enjoying two of them.• 3. On Sulcman's  death, the question arose whether the subdi-

Settlement. vision should be recognized, and whether chowth should be taken. Azim Khan, son of Ghulam Muhammad, on being examined, stated that Ali Khan came originally from Persia- -that the Ta.pa of Bichanji and its dependencies were then waste and mi.­productive-that he laid out thousands of Rupees in fertilizing the land by means of irrigation, &c.,-that on this account Timur Shah gave him the 7th share as a Pattadari inheritance, and also 3 wells and a, garden and well-that Shah Shujah afterwards confi;med the grant-bu.t that all the royal grants had been burnt (about 1788 A. D) at the old Bichanji. 'rhis Bichanji was carried away by the inroads of the river, and Ali Khan then cultivated another portion which also was lost in the same manner. Shah Shujah's grant was 
--------------- -- - - - -- --- -- -- - -

• No. 80, dated 18th Afril 1863, f1om Lieutenant Webeter, Deputy Collector, Sullur aud 
Sbilwpur, to the Collector o Shibrpur. 
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the one that had been confirmed by Mir Sohrab. The remaining 6 
shares of Bichanji belonged to Pir Dost Khan and Ghafur Khan, 
Duranis, who had spent 1,000 Rs. on the land, and had received 
the shares from Timur Shah as Pattadari . 

4. The 6 Charkhas of juari were struck off by Major Gold­
smid from the claim made by the Pattadars on the ground 
that they were " mere grants for cultivation or similar purposes. 
as ' Inam' or ' Imdad' " which could be dealt with · by the Re­
venue Officers. The value of the 7th share and of the M�fi of 
the 4 wells was Rs. 554-8 ; but as Rs. 50 were proved to have 
been paid to Mir Ali Murad, the claim was reduced to Rs. 504-8-0. 
Mr. Frere was convinced that the grant was an ancient one, and 
looking to " the nature of the original grant, its continuance 
through two Dynasties so opposite in character as those of the 
Afghans and the Mirs, and the character of the holders" whom, 
he said, it was " desirable (as a fiscal arrangement, even apart 
from considerations of equity) to encourage," he recommended 
that it  should be confirmed hereditarily as in the case of No. 8. • 
This recommendation· was approved by the Government of 
Bombay in their Resolution No. 575, dated 9th February 1855. 
It is not clear how, in the statement of Pattadars made by Major 
Goldsmicl in 1858, he entered the value of the fth share of the 
revenues of Deh Bichanji as Rs. 402, and omitted all mention 
of the wells. The Pattadari as entered in his statement was 
finally sanctioned by the Supreme Government. 

• So. {05, dated 30th !'l'ovember 1854, frolll Mr. Frere t.o tbe Bomba7 Oovernmen� 
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KHUJJA.DA.JJ KHA N. D URA.NiS. 
No. to. MA.DAD KHAN. 

J S..tl.LIK MUHA.MM.AD KH.J. N. 

Genealogy. The genealogy of these Pattadars is as follows :-
PIR DOST KHAN. 

I 
I Mil7.a Khan. Mauladad Khan. Madad Khan, (IO). 

Salih Kh•l Muhammad, ( 10). 
I 

f Khudadad Khan, (10). 
Abdul Mansur Khan. 2. 'l'he title of these Pattadars depended upon the same 

Title. 
grants as those relied on by No. 9. Their ancestor and Gbufur Khan Durani appear to have assisted Ali Khan and his sons in fertilizing the land, and received from Timur Shah 6 out of the 7 shares of the revenues of Bichanji. Mir Sohrab confirmed this grant, and in 1234 A. H. recognized its validity by purchasing 3 shares out of the 6 for Rs. 4,500. The proprietors are stated in the deed executed in that year, as "  Khyrullah Khan, Mirza Khan, Mauladad Khan, " Abdul Majid Khan, Madad Khan, Ata Muhammad Khan, Ali " Khan, Murad Khan, Muhammad Rahim Khan, &c." 'Ihe remaining 8 shares were divided into 17. From these lliths were also sold to Mir Sohrab. Thus supposing the whole value of Bichanji to be Rs. 700 the shares would be as follows :-Jths . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .  = Rs. 600 

i of fths bought by Mir Sohrab . . . . . . . . . .  • . = ,, 300 nth share of the remainder . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  = ,. 300 
- =17-10-4, 
17 rr x 111 (bought also b1 Mir Sohrab) =17-10-4. x 111 = 204.-8-1 

n x 5f (remaining to the Pattadan) =17-10-4, x 5f=9t-18-7 " tth and trd of + th of the roveDUM of the ,iUa1e," 



330 3. The value of the Pattadari left to these claimants was 
Settlement. 

Rs. 260, and Mr. Frere in his No. 405, dated 30th November 1854, recommended to Gov­ernment for the reasons advanced by him in the case of No. 9, that it might be confirmed hereditarily. The recommendation was approved by Government in their Resolution No. 575, dated 9th Fabruary 1855. Salih Muhammad died in February 1858, without issue-but Major Goldsmid in his Statement of here­ditary Pattadars did not on this account reduce the Pattadari. He described it as 5fths out of 17 shares, and valued it at Rs. 249. This whole Statement was sanctioned by the Supreme Govern­ment as already stated. 
No. 11. BHA. U KHAN MISRI. 

GHULA.M SHLI..H KHLI..TIA.N. 

Genealogy. The genealogy of these Pattadars was as follows :-
SHER KHAN' MISRI. Musa Khan. 

I Bhau Khan. 
, I Alidullah Khan. 

I Bhau Khan. Isa Khan, and 4 other sons. 

I 
I Jan Muham-mad. 
I 

AllJdad 
I Muhammad Khan. 
I Allahdad. 

ADAM, KHA.TIAN. 
I Baga. 
I Musa. 
I Ismail. 

I Musa Khan, Ahmad Khan. Khatian. 
I 

I I 
Ghulam Ghulam Shah. Muhammad. ( Vide Jagirdars of the Sirdar class). 
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2. Abdullah Khan, Allabdad and Ahmad Khan purchased 
Title. from Mulla N ur Muhammad> son of Ibrahim Khan, Afghan, half Say&dpur and Fatehpur, now known as Izmat­pur for Rs. 1,000 in 1172 A. H. The Afghan Government fl.xed upon this land a yearly assei:Jsment of Rs. 1,000, and took Rs. 160, more or less, for various fees-but the Nawab Wali Muhammad, by an agreement, dated the 26th August 1825, assessed all the Mirs' demands at Rs. 1,000 3 .  The Pattadars in possession at the Conquest were-Blu�u 

Treatment at the Conqueat. Khan and Ghulam Shah. It is not clear how the latter came to have :i. share in it. They appear to have made their Salam rather late, and hence probably an additional sum of Rs. 500 was stipulated for a regrant. • 4. The Pattadari land was a township, the exact _ extent of 
Dispute aa to .Uuvion. which was ascertained to be 12,000 bigahs. It was surrounded, with the exception of a very small piece, by His Highness Mir Ali Murad's land. The river in or about 1847, encroaching upon it, carried away first the Mir's land on the east side, and subsequently 800 biga.hs of the Pa.ttadari estate. In 1850, however, the river receded, and left this extent, together with a little in excess, which was claimed by His Highness the Mir in virtue of the river being his recognized boundary. This, the Collector thought, was perhaps the best proof of the original Q.rea of the Pattadari land that could be had. " As far as I can " learn," he continued, " in cases of this nature when a portion " of the possession was destroyed by the river, the Mirs generally " made some amends for the loss incurred. It appears to, me " therefore that the land in question should be given up to the " Pattadar."t Mr. Frere, after calling for reports from other Collectors, t was of opinion that as the Pattadar's " right was to 

* No. 550, dated 7th August 185 1 ,  from the Collector or Sbilw'pur to the Oommia-aioner. 
t No. 450, dated 7th August 181H, to the Oommiaaioner. 
i Vide page 393 of " Alienations in Sind." 
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" the r,c,llage, without specification of extent of land;' and that 
as in cases like the present, " the new land left by a river when 
" it formed the boundary of a village was considered by custom 
" to  belong to that village," the 800 bigahs of alluvion should be 
handed over to the Pattadars. • 

5. In 1858 Allahdad, son of Muhammad Khan, inhat)ltant 
of Kbairpur, filed a suit for a. share of the Pattadari on the 
ground that Allahdad's grandfather was one of the originial pur. 
chasers, that his father had mortgaged jrd of the property, and 
farmed the other ½rd to Ghulam Shah, Khatian, and tbat Bhau 
Khan had j-rd only. The claim was thrown out owing to the 
non-appearance of the plaintiff-but as Major Goldsmid had no 
doubt that the case was open to further investigation prior to 
deciding on the shares to be permanently registered, he rf>COm• 
mended that the alienation should remain in the names of Bhau 
Khan and Ghulam Shah in the last ascertained proportions of 
¼th and fth, " pending further orders and proof of otherwise 
" defined possession." The Pattadari was accordingly confirmed 
to these two individuals at the final Settlement, but without any 
specification of shares. 

No. 12. MUHAMMAD RAHIM PA.THAN A ND 

SULTAN KH.d.N. 

Shah Zaman by a Sanad, dated 1210 A. H. (1795 A. D.), 

Title. 
which recited that the ' Nalas' of M:ulla 
Dost Muhammad had been purchased by 

Sultan Khan Babar, and that he had been granted Pattaa 

' No. 1816, dated 18Ul Auguat 1851, 
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for the " Mamul Malia," confirmed these Pattas to him. The 
amount was not recorded. The Sanad was confirmed by :Muham­
mad Shah in Safar 1217 A. H. 

2. Mir Rustam by his Sanad, dated 15th Ramzan 1258 
A. H. (1842), granted to Sultan Khan's son 

aJ';�·:zt;!t!�::t'.1'a.1pnra the 3rd share of (the revenues of) Dostwah 
out of the !ths due to the Khairpur Mirs, 

besides remitting assessment on two wells. Captain Pelly 
recommended that the Pattadari enjoyed under Mir Rustam 
might be declared hereditary, and Major Goldsmid concuITing 
with him, the final Settlement admitted him to this class. 

No. 13. FA. TEH ULLAH, MUSA KHAN .AND 
RAHM.A T  ULLAH. 

Genealogy. 
The genealogy of these Pattadars is as 

follows :-
KHAIRULLAJI DURANI FUFILZAI. 

I 
I I Fateh Ullah Musa Rahmat Khan. Khan. Ullah. Other sons. 

The first Sanad recorded in this case was one by Shah 

Title and Settlement. 
Shuja-ul-Mulk in favour of Khairullah, dated 
December 1788, 65 years prior to the Con• 

quest. It '' continued the ancient ' Mamul' of the Zarkharid 
lands of Chodia, Mirdah, Kara Bagejo and N unari" to Khai�lah. 
In 1806 a bond of agreement was drawn up between the 
Pattadars and Ghula.m Haidar Khan, son of Mir Sohrab, to tbe 
effect that one-third of the land revenue in the purchased estates 
should be the property of the former, and two-thirds sold to the 
Mir. Mir Muhammad Khan, son of Ghulam Haidar, however, 
under this and subsequent agreements held t Chodia and tiths 
of I>eh Adamji, the balance forming the Pattadari, which at the 
final Settlement was confirmed hereditarily to its holders. 
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No. 14, GA.D U KHAN (DEOEASED) SUOOEEIJED 

B Y  MUHAMMAD AZIM. 

Genealogy. 
The genealogy of this Pattadar was a1 follows :-

:MIHRAB KHAN. (DIED BEFO:&B 1843). 
(D. I Gadu Kha.n. 1ed 19th November 1853). 

I N ur Muhammad. ( died before his father). 
I 

I Muhammad Azim. Naimat Ullah. 2. Gadu Khan and his father as well as Samand Khan's 
Title: grandfather came from . Kandahar, their native country, in or about 1774 A. D. The l'attadari of Amrut and Aurangabad was first held in the name of Ghulam Sidik Khan, Governor of Shikarpur, under Timur Shah• (1773-1782 A. D.) and was divided into 8 shares as follows :-½rd for State revenues, }rd for Oh ulam Sidik, }rd for Mirab ( conditional 

on increase of cultivation.) When Ghulam Sidik died, his nephew and heir, Fateh Ullah inherited the Pattadari, retaining his father's share for 20 years, after which he sold it to Pir Muhammad, the father of Sa.mand Kh�n. From these facts Major Goldsmid inferred t that Ghulam Sidik, the Governor, J' a man of considerable note and influence, '' had either appropriated, or received from his Monarch in Kan­dahar, " the ownership or proprietary right of lands from the whole 
" Vidc Appendix B. to Major Go'ldsmid'a printed Memoir on Shikarpur. 
t No. 398, dated 23rd December 1864, 



335 produce of which he paid one-third into the Royal treasury, and that he admitted :Mihrab Khan as a subordinate sharer." It was not inprobable that the Afghan Government readily acknow­ledged an arrangement, which was likely to increase the value of their own third share. At all events Mihrab Khan appears to have obtained a kind of prescriptive right to his portion of the Aurangabad and Amru.t revenues, which was not interfered with on the death of Ghulam Sidik. Still he was not the Zamindar of either of these debs. The two shares were continued in aliena­tion by the Afghan authorities in the names of Pir Muham­mad and :Mihrab, and on their demise, of Saman4 and Gadu Khan, their sons. When the Mirs attained power, the two last noted grantees received half the Government share only, and this half_ was in the course of five years reduced to a quarter. This was continued t-0 them by Captain Townsend, Deputy Collector, Regrant on Gadu Khan's death. Sukkur, on their producing the Governor's Parwana and their title deeds. On his death Major Goldsmid recommended that his share (¼th) should be regrantcd hered.itarily to Naimat Ullah, and that Samand Khan's share should be placed in the 2nd Class of Patta­daris, and Mr. Frere concurred in this arrangement. • At the final Settlement, the Pattadari was entered in the name of the eldest son, Muhammad Azim, and placed in the 1st Class. 3. Gadu Khan was more than 100 years old when he died in 1853. He had seen Nadir Shah and was 12 years old when that king died. He himself had been one of Ahmad Shah's officers, and in 1832-33 had sided with Shah Shuja. t 

* No. 290 dated 27th January 1855. 
t Vieu Major Gokhl8)"a list of men of rank aeut in 1847. 



336 CHAPTER VI. 
HIS SA.DA.RS. 

• JA.M A.B UL KHA.IR WA.LAD JAM BA.NBHC 

The Jam's forefathers originally possessed the district of Ubauro as independent Chiefs in their own right. They became subject to the Delhi Emperors in the reign of Shah J ahan, probably between 1630 A. D. and 1650 A. D. " Taey appear to have been men of con­,, siderable influence at Court as well as landed proprietors to no " mean ex.tent during their dependence on the Mogul Emperors." There were said to have been 16 generations of Chiefs since the tribe led by Jodh Dahr first took possession of this tract. Jam Abulkhair, even after the Conquest, was a man of great conse­quence. He was " the Chief of a very numerous tribe, the '' cultivators of a large tract," and he held " an important posi­tion as the largest Zamindar in the districts on the left Bank of " the Indus."t 2. He produced a number of documents in proof of the 
Title. 

antiquity of his tttle. 'l'he earlist of these a Firman under the seal of Aurangzib in 1668-69 directed the remission · of certain levies and the discon-tinuance of certain exactions which had been levied from the 
* The facts and quotations in this Chapter are from Mr. Frere's Memorandum attached t(I his No. 405 of 1854 to Government, when not stated othetwise. t He was Zamindar of the whole of the Ubauro Taluka with the exception of thr fQUowing 4 villages :-• Ba.harki, Basti Jiwanshah, Shah Wali, and Tanda Lobar ( Vid, Coluclur of Shilarpur', 

lro. 333, elated 20th Ju/,y 1850, to th, Commiuioner.) 
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present JtLm's namesake nnd grandfather. The exact nat ure or 
the remissions allowed was not very clearly defined either i n  
this o r  the other earlier documents of the Durani kings. His 
rights were, however, accurately described in a deed eiecuted by 
Min Sohrab and Rustam in 1808 A. D. This document is to 
the effect that the • Sirkar ' (of the Mirs) and the Da.hr Chiefs 
were to divide the revenues of Ubaura equally between them, 
and by the wording of the bond which is in the form rather 9f a 
contract between equals than of a grant from a superior to an in­
ferior, it is stated that " the obligation is to be sacred according to 
" Faith." The Dahr Chiefs, however, had gradually been declining 
in importance and some years afterwards Mir Rustam reduced 
the rights of the Jam to ¼th as we find hy an order issued in 
182ii. In the course of  time the right.s in the villages noted in 

1 .  Deh Shah Wali. 
2. Wasti Jiw..nshah, 
3, Tllnda .Ahal'lgarm. 
4, • Rahiki. 
l>. Tape. Rowti ex,ept Mad11.1J.­

wala aud Detta lihya. 

the margin were also lost, �nd we 
further find that at the close only 
nth instead of an ½th of the Deh 
ltowti was enjoyed, the Dahrs hav­
ing for a time been deprived alto­

gether of this share and receiving only nth on their restoratio n .  
But with these exceptions the Jam was in possession o f  ½th o f  
the Ubaura revenues at the time the British resumed the terri­
t-Ory in 1852. 

8. He was continued in these possessions subject to the 

Settlement. 
payment of the ½th share of the District 
Revenue Establishment ·employecl for the col­

lection of assessment. This share amounted to Rs. 1,000 an{l be­
sides this sum the Jam had to pay the remuneration of 8 Pnt­
waris which amounted to Rs. 1,515. On his complaint the Col­
lector of Shikarpur made an arrangement for redistributing the 
Patwari establishment which reduced the Jam's charges to Rs. 
1,257-8-0 in all, and the arrangement was approved by Mr. ]frere.• 

* No, 3212, dated 10th October 1855, to the Collector. 
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Subsequent.ly the Hissa.da.ri collection charge or 6 per cent. wns 
substituted for this sum. :Mr, ]�1·ere on the 30th of November 1854, 
strongly urged the policy 11.s well as the j ustice of confirming his 
pos.sessions (¼th of the revenues of Uba.ura and hth of Rowti) 
hereditarily nnd his recommendation wns approved by the Bom­
bay Government• and eventually at the final Settlement. 

* No. 676, dated 9th Februl\ry 1805, 
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In the old Summary as well as in the Rolls, the na.mes of Patadara are given lint, then thOH of Hi.sada.rs and la.at of all the names of Khairatda.rs ; but in the new book of Alienations this order hu been changed, the Khairatda.rs being placed above the other two, who should have precedence in consideration of their position and the prevalent practice. 
In the old Summary under the head of Pata.dars, the name of Fateh Allah is entered as No. IS, and Deb Chodio a.a the place of his Patadari. Under the !lame number, next to Fatteh Allah, staod the name• of Mus.'\ Khan, Rahamat Allah Khan and other sons of Khair Allah Khan, with Deh Adamji and its Makans Ha.zaro, Jamalpur, and Manamaha.d a.� the places of their Patadari ; thia is o. mistake. Fateh Allah Khan, Muaa Khan, Riha.mat Allah Khan and other sons of Khair Allah Khan hold jointly the Patad�ri of Deb Chodio only. The name of Fateh Allah, Kalandarzai, ought to have been entered as No. 14 and Deh Aclamji and ita Mauns Hazaro, Jama.lpur and Mauamaba.d as the pllllle3 of his Patadari. The name of Azim Khan ought to have been entered aa No. 15, but not 14, as it stands now. This error was correcood in ihe year 1863, both in the Eng­lish and Persian Rolls, signed by Mr. Maxwell Melvill, Assistant Commissioner. Vi<k his Persian Jetter No. 55, dated 12th January 1863, to the address of the Colleetor of Shikarpur, and the reply of the latoor thereto, No. 2407, dated 3rd May 1863. 
In 1886, every particular of above error and its correction, wa.s given to Rao Bahadur Dayan.m Gidumal, in a demi-official note by the undersigned (dated 28th January 1886) in reply to t.hatl olli.cer'I! demi-olli.cia.l note dated 26th idem. 
The Patadari Roll signed by Mr. Melvill, written in 1863, wu also 1111pplied to Rao Bahadur Daye.ram Giduma.l, but still the 2nd Volume of the new book does not contain the corrected entries. 
The eight Patadars, considered to be 2nd Class a\ the first settlement, were included in the First Ola.ea at the recommendation of the Commissioner, contained in this letter No. 66, dated 13th Ma.rch 1860, approved of by Bombay Government Resolution No. 5417, dated 31st January 186L It ia therefore that in both the English and Persian Rolls under the head • P"tadars' H are shewn, i.e., 14 original Pata.de.rs and 8, added to their number under the above quoted Reiiolution. This was communicated to Rao Bahadur Diwan Dayaram in my demi-offl.cia.l note, par&. 6, sent to him in reference to his domi-oflicial note, dated S0th January 1886, but no men­tion of the 8 Patadars appears to have been made in the 2nd Volume, in which they &hould be ahewn immediately after the U Patadara after page. 335. 
In the first Volume, however, the correepondence quoted above, regarding the inclUBion of tbe I Patadaria in the First Ola.ea, has been ua.nacribed aa far aa uceaaary at pages 326 and 327. 

E. S. KHUDADAD XHA.N. 
Xanchf, 10th September, 1887. 



OORRIGBNIJA. 

Page 2, line l,t, jor " would" 1·ead 1
' shonl,1 .'' Page 3, for "Section 1" read " Chapter I." rage 221, the figures -H with which the hca<ling com­mences should be !l Page 293, line 4, for " 1850" ,·ead " l i 50." 

T.:UUKAWAR LIST OF ALIE�EES. 

Glwtki-lst Class J agirdar. For " page 55" read " page 56." 
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